FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL INC /DE/ Form S-4 February 10, 2003 As filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 10, 2003

Registration No.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

Form S-4

REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

DELAWARE

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

6361

(Primary Standard Industrial Classification Code Number)

86-0498599

(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

17911 VON KARMAN AVENUE, SUITE 300 IRVINE, CALIFORNIA 92614 (949) 622-4333

(Address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of registrant s principal executive offices)

Peter T. Sadowski, Esq.
Executive Vice President and General Counsel
Fidelity National Financial, Inc.
17911 Von Karman Avenue, Suite 300
Irvine, CA 92614
(949) 622-4333

(Name, address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of agent for service)

With copies to:
C. Craig Carlson, Esq.
Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth
660 Newport Center Drive
Suite 1600
Newport Beach, California 92660
(949) 725-4000

Approximate Date Of Commencement Of Proposed Sale To The Public: As soon as practicable after this Registration Statement is declared effective and all other conditions to the merger (the Merger) of ANFI, Inc. (ANFI) with and into a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fidelity National Financial, Inc. (the Registrant or FNF) pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger described in the enclosed proxy statement/ prospectus have been satisfied or waived.

If the securities being registered on this form are being offered in connection with the formation of a holding company and there is compliance with General Instruction G, check the following box.

If this Form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering.

If this form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(d) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering.

CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

Title of each class of securities to be registered	Amount to be registered(1)	Proposed maximum offering price per share(2)	Proposed maximum aggregate offering price(2)	Amount of registration fee(3)
ommon Stock, \$0.0001 par value	4,495,417	N/A	\$137,734,010.18	\$12,671.53

- (1) This Registration Statement relates to the common stock, par value \$0.0001 per share, of the Registrant (the FNF Common Stock) estimated to be issuable to holders of common stock, no par value per share, of ANFI (the ANFI Common Stock) in connection with the Merger. The number of shares to be registered pursuant to this Registration Statement is based on the maximum number of shares of FNF Common Stock estimated to be issuable to shareholders of ANFI upon consummation of the Merger, determined as the product of (a) 0.454, the exchange ratio at which the Registrant would issue shares of FNF Common Stock for shares of ANFI Common Stock, and (b) 9,901,798, which represents the 7,242,228 shares of ANFI Common Stock which were issued and outstanding as of February 3, 2003 (less the 2,653,173 shares of ANFI Common Stock beneficially owned by FNF and to be cancelled in the Merger), plus the 2,659,570 options and warrants to purchase shares of ANFI Common Stock which were issued and outstanding as of February 3, 2003, the date by which the merger agreement requires the Merger to be consummated.
- (2) Estimated solely for the purpose of calculating the registration fee pursuant to Rule 457 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, based on the product of (i) \$13.91 per share, the average of the high and low prices of ANFI Common Stock, as reported on the Nasdaq National Market on February 7, 2003 and (ii) 9,901,798, which represents the 7,242,228 shares of ANFI Common Stock which were issued and outstanding as of February 3, 2003 (less the 2,653,173 shares of ANFI Common Stock beneficially owned by FNF and to be cancelled in the Merger), plus the 2,659,570 options and warrants to purchase shares of ANFI Common Stock which were issued and outstanding as of February 3, 2003.
- (3) In accordance with Rule 457, 0.0092% of the proposed maximum aggregate offering price.

The Registrant hereby amends this registration statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its effective date until	
the Registrant shall file a further amendment which specifically states that this registration statement shall thereafter become effective	
in accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or until this registration statement shall become effective on	
such date as the Securities Exchange Commission, acting pursuant to said Section 8(a), may determine.	
	_

The information in this proxy statement/prospectus is not complete and may be changed. We may not offer or sell these securities until the registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is effective. This proxy statement/prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities, and it is not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any state where the offer or sale is not permitted.

SUBJECT TO COMPLETION, DATED FEBRUARY 10, 2003

PROSPECTUS OF FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.

PROXY STATEMENT OF ANFI, INC.

MERGER PROPOSAL

YOUR VOTE IS VERY IMPORTANT

To the Shareholders of ANFI, Inc.:

The Board of Directors of ANFI, Inc., formerly American National Financial, Inc., (ANFI) by unanimous vote of its disinterested directors has approved an agreement and plan of merger with Fidelity National Financial, Inc. (FNF) whereby FNF will acquire ANFI through a merger of ANFI into a wholly-owned subsidiary of FNF (the Merger). In order to complete the Merger, ANFI must obtain the approval of its shareholders. ANFI believes that this Merger will benefit its shareholders and asks for your support in voting for the Merger proposal at ANFI s special meeting.

Under the terms of the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of January 9, 2003 (the Merger Agreement), ANFI will merge into a wholly-owned subsidiary of FNF, with such wholly-owned subsidiary of FNF emerging as the surviving corporation. In the Merger, each share of ANFI common stock outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger will be converted into 0.454 shares of FNF common stock. In addition, subject to certain limitations applicable to the senior executives of ANFI, outstanding ANFI stock options will be assumed by FNF. FNF shares are traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol FNF. ANFI shares are traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol ANFI. On February 4, 2003, the closing price of FNF common stock was \$33.66 per share. On February 4, 2003, the closing price of ANFI common stock was \$15.16 per share. We encourage you to obtain more recent quotations.

After careful consideration, the ANFI Board of Directors has determined that the Merger and the transactions associated with it are fair to and in the best interests of ANFI and its shareholders and has approved the Merger Agreement. The ANFI Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR the approval of the Merger and the adoption of the Merger Agreement.

Before the Merger can be consummated, shareholders holding a majority of the outstanding shares of ANFI common stock must approve and adopt the Merger Agreement and the Merger. Shareholders of ANFI who beneficially own an aggregate of approximately 36.3% of the outstanding shares of ANFI common stock have entered into a Voting Agreement with FNF to vote all of their outstanding ANFI common stock in favor of the Merger Agreement and the Merger. After adding the shares of ANFI common stock subject to the Voting Agreement to the shares of ANFI common stock held by FNF and by William P. Foley, II, a director of ANFI and the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of FNF, it is expected that at least approximately 64.1% of the outstanding shares of ANFI common stock as of December 31, 2002, will vote in favor of the Merger Agreement and Merger, assuring ANFI shareholder approval.

ANFI will hold a special meeting of its shareholders on , 2003, at California time, at the Irvine Marriott Hotel, 18000 Von Karman Avenue, Irvine, California 92612, to consider and vote on the Merger Agreement and the Merger. ANFI s Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on , 2003 as the record date for the determination of ANFI shareholders entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the ANFI special meeting.

This document is a prospectus of FNF relating to the issuance of shares of FNF common stock in connection with the Merger and a proxy statement for ANFI to use in soliciting proxies for its special meeting.

We strongly urge you to read and consider carefully this proxy statement/prospectus in its entirety, including the matters discussed under the section entitled Risk Factors beginning on page 23.

Your vote is important. Whether or not you plan to attend the ANFI special meeting in person, please take the time to vote your shares. You may vote your shares by completing, signing and dating the enclosed proxy card and promptly returning it in the accompanying prepaid envelope.

Michael C. Lowther

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities regulator has approved the FNF common stock to be issued in the Merger or determined if this proxy statement/prospectus is accurate or adequate. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

This proxy statement/prospectus is dated

, 2003 and is first being mailed to shareholders on or about

, 2003.

ANFI, INC.

1111 E. Katella Avenue, Suite 220 Orange, California 92867

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

To Be Held On , 2003

T_{Ω}	the	Share	holders	of ANFI	Inc
10	une	Snare	noiders	OI AINTI	. Inc.:

We will hold a special meeting of shareholders of ANFI, Inc. at , local time, on , 2003 at The Irvine Marriott Hotel, 18000 Von Karman Avenue, Irvine, California 92612, for the following purposes:

- 1. To consider and vote on a proposal to approve the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of January 9, 2003, by and among Fidelity National Financial, Inc., a Delaware corporation (FNF), ANFI Merger Sub, Inc., a California corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of FNF (Merger Sub), and ANFI, Inc., a California corporation (ANFI), a copy of which is attached as Appendix A to the accompanying proxy statement/prospectus (the Merger Agreement).
- 2. To transact such other business as may properly come before the special meeting or any adjournment or postponement.

 Only shareholders of record of ANFI common stock at the close of business on , 2003 are entitled to notice of, and will be entitled to vote at, the special meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof. Approval of the Merger Agreement will require the affirmative vote of the holders of ANFI common stock representing a majority of the outstanding shares of ANFI common stock entitled to vote at the special meeting.

YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT. TO ASSURE THAT YOUR SHARES ARE REPRESENTED AT THE SPECIAL MEETING, YOU ARE URGED TO COMPLETE, DATE AND SIGN THE ENCLOSED PROXY CARD AND MAIL IT PROMPTLY IN THE POSTAGE-PAID ENVELOPE PROVIDED, WHETHER OR NOT YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE SPECIAL MEETING IN PERSON. YOU MAY REVOKE YOUR PROXY IN THE MANNER DESCRIBED IN THE ACCOMPANYING PROXY STATEMENT/ PROSPECTUS AT ANY TIME BEFORE IT HAS BEEN VOTED AT THE SPECIAL MEETING. IF YOU ATTEND THE SPECIAL MEETING YOU MAY VOTE IN PERSON EVEN IF YOU RETURNED A PROXY.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Fernando Velez, Jr., Corporate Secretary

, 2003

Orange, California

PLEASE DO NOT SEND YOUR STOCK CERTIFICATES AT THIS TIME. IF THE MERGER IS COMPLETED, YOU WILL BE SENT INSTRUCTIONS REGARDING THE SURRENDER OF YOUR STOCK CERTIFICATES.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE MERGER

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

SUMMARY

The Companies

The ANFI Special Meeting

The Merger

Comparison of Rights of ANFI Shareholders and FNF Stockholders (Page 69)

Recent Developments

Comparative Per Share Market Price Information

Selected Consolidated Financial Data (In thousands, except per share amounts)

Selected Quarterly Financial Data

Comparative Per Share Data

RISK FACTORS

Risks Related to the Merger

Difficulties associated with integrating FNF and ANFI could affect the combined company s ability to realize cost savings.

Insurance regulators may not approve FNF s plans to convert ANFI s title and escrow operations to Ticor operations.

The price of FNF s common stock may fluctuate rapidly and prevent stockholders from selling their stock at a profit.

The sale of a substantial amount of FNF common stock after the Merger could adversely affect the market price of FNF common stock.

Risks Related to FNF

FNF s revenues may decline during periods when the demand for FNF s products and services decreases.

As a holding company, FNF depends on distributions from its subsidiaries, and if distributions from its subsidiaries are materially impaired, FNF s ability to declare and pay dividends may be adversely affected.

FNF s entering into new business lines subjects it to associated risks, such as the diversion of management attention, difficulty integrating operations and lack of experience in operating such businesses.

<u>Difficulties FNF may encounter managing its growth could adversely affect its results of operations.</u>

FNF faces competition in its industry from traditional title insurers and from new entrants with alternative products.

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

MARKET PRICE AND DIVIDEND INFORMATION

THE ANFI SPECIAL MEETING

How to Vote

Proxies

Vote by Telephone

Vote on the Internet

Vote by Mail

Voting at the Special Meeting

Voting on Other Matters

Revocation of Proxies

Record Date; Vote Required

Share Ownership of Management and Directors; Voting Agreement

Quorum

Expenses of Solicitation

Recommendation of the ANFI Board of Directors

Miscellaneous

THE MERGER

General

Merger Consideration

Background of the Merger

FNF Reasons for the Merger

ANFI Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of the ANFI Board of Directors

Opinion of Houlihan Lokey Howard & Zukin Financial Advisors, Inc. to the Special Committee

Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Merger

Required Regulatory Filings and Approvals

Resale of FNF Common Stock

Management and Operations Following the Merger

Interests of Certain Persons in the Merger

<u>Indemnification and Insurance</u>

Expenses

Pending Litigation

Accounting Treatment

THE MERGER AGREEMENT

General

Distributions with Respect to Unexchanged Shares; Transfers

Corporate Governance

Representations and Warranties

Concept of Material Adverse Effect

Certain Covenants

Conditions to the Merger

Termination Fee

Amendment and Waiver

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND MATERIAL CONTACTS

DESCRIPTION OF FNF CAPITAL STOCK

COMPARISON OF RIGHTS OF ANFI SHAREHOLDERS AND FNF STOCKHOLDERS

LEGAL MATTERS

EXPERTS

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

PART I

Item 1. Business

Item 2. Properties

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Item 4. Submissions of Matters to a vote of Security Holders

PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant s Common Stock and Related Shareholder Matters

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Item 7. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about the Market Risk of Financial Instruments

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

PART III

Item 10. through 13.

PART IV

Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K

SIGNATURES

EXHIBIT INDEX

Chapter 13 of California General Corporation Law Dissenter s Rights

EXHIBIT 3.1

EXHIBIT 3.2

EXHIBIT 23.1

EXHIBIT 23.2

Exhibit 23.3

EXHIBIT 99.1

EXHIBIT 99.2

EXHIBIT 99.3

EXHIBIT 99.4

EXHIBIT 99.5

TABLE OF CONTENTS

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE MERGER

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING	
STATEMENTS	5
SUMMARY	6
The Companies	6
The ANFI Special Meeting	8
Pending Litigation	9
The Merger	9
Comparison of Rights of ANFI Shareholders and FNF Stockholders	12
Recent Developments	12
Comparative Per Share Market Price Information	13
Selected Consolidated Financial Data	14
Comparative Per Share Data	22
RISK FACTORS	23
Risks Related to the Merger	23
Because the number of FNF shares of common stock that ANFI	
shareholders will receive in the Merger is fixed, the value of FNF	
common stock at the time the ANFI shareholders receive them could be	
less than their value at the time of ANFI special meeting	23
The actual tax treatment of the Merger may differ from the tax treatment	
FNF and ANFI expect to receive	23
Difficulties associated with integrating FNF and ANFI could affect the	
combined company s ability to realize cost savings	23
Insurance regulators may not approve FNF s plans to convert ANFI s title	
and escrow operations to Ticor operations	24
The price of FNF s common stock may fluctuate rapidly and prevent	
stockholders from selling their stock at a profit	24
The sale of a substantial amount of FNF common stock after the Merger	
could adversely affect the market price of FNF common stock	24
Risks Related to FNF	24
FNF s revenues may decline during periods when the demand for FNF s	
products and services decreases	24
As a holding company, FNF depends on distributions from its	
subsidiaries, and if distributions from its subsidiaries are materially	
impaired, FNF s ability to declare and pay dividends may be adversely	
affected	25
FNF s entering into new business lines subjects it to associated risks, such	
as the diversion of management attention, difficulty integrating operations	
and lack of experience in operating such businesses	25
Difficulties FNF may encounter managing its growth could adversely	
affect its results of operations	25
FNF s subsidiaries that engage in insurance related businesses must	
comply with additional regulations. These regulations may impede, or	
impose burdensome conditions on, FNF s rate increases or other actions	
that FNF might want to take to increase the revenues of its subsidiaries	26
FNF faces competition in its industry from traditional title insurers and	
from new entrants with alternative products	26
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL	
INFORMATION	27
MARKET PRICE AND DIVIDEND INFORMATION	34

THE ANFI SPECIAL MEETING	35
How to Vote	35
Proxies	35
Vote by Telephone	35
Vote on the Internet	35
Vote by Mail	35
Voting at the Special Meeting	35
Voting on Other Matters	36
Revocation of Proxies	36
Record Date; Vote Required	36
Share Ownership of Management and Directors; Voting Agreement	36
Quorum	37
Expenses of Solicitation	37
Recommendation of the ANFI Board of Directors	37
Miscellaneous	37
THE MERGER	38
General	38
Merger Consideration	38
Background of the Merger	38
FNF Reasons for the Merger	42
ANFI Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of the ANFI Board of Directors	43
Opinion of Houlihan Lokey Howard & Zukin Financial Advisors, Inc. to the Special Committee	45
Analyses	47
Conclusion	48
Assumptions	48
Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Merger	49
Required Regulatory Filings and Approvals	52
Resale of FNF Common Stock	52
Management and Operations Following the Merger	53
Interests of Certain Persons in the Merger	53
Indemnification and Insurance	54
Expenses	54
Pending Litigation	54
Accounting Treatment	55
THE MERGER AGREEMENT	55
General	56
Distributions with Respect to Unexchanged Shares; Transfers	56
Corporate Governance	56
Representations and Warranties	56
Concept of Material Adverse Effect	57
Certain Covenants	57
Shareholder Meeting	60
Conditions to the Merger	60
Termination	62
Termination Fee	63

ii

Amendment and Waiver		63
RELATED PARTY TRANSA	CTIONS AND MATERIAL CONTACTS	63
DESCRIPTION OF FNF CAF	PITAL STOCK	65
COMPARISON OF RIGHTS	OF ANFI SHAREHOLDERS AND FNF STOCKHOLDERS	69
LEGAL MATTERS		77
EXPERTS		77
SHAREHOLDER PROPOSA	LS	78
WHERE YOU CAN FIND M	ORE INFORMATION	78
APPENDIX A	Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of January 9, 2003, by and among Fidelity National Fin ANFI, Inc. and ANFI Merger Sub, Inc.	ancial, Inc.,
APPENDIX B	Voting Agreement, dated as of January 9, 2003, by and among Fidelity National Financial, Inc. a holders party thereto and Waiver Agreement dated January 14, 2003 relating thereto	ınd the
APPENDIX C	Opinion of Houlihan, Lokey, Howard & Zukin Financial Advisors, Inc. to the Special Committe January 9, 2003	e dated
APPENDIX D	ANFI 10-K for year ended December 31, 2001 (restated)	
APPENDIX E	ANFI 10-Q for quarter ended September 30, 2002	
APPENDIX F	Chapter 13 of California General Corporation Law: Dissenter s Rights	
	iii	

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE MERGER

Q: Why are the two companies proposing to merge?

A: FNF expects that the Merger will result in synergies for FNF s and ANFI s combined operations, furthering its ability to develop and expand its and ANFI s operations. The Merger will combine FNF s and ANFI s complementary strengths and provide significant benefits to FNF s stockholders and customers. ANFI believes that the merger consideration will provide a significant premium and increased liquidity to the ANFI shareholders.

Q. What am I being asked to vote on?

A. ANFI shareholders are being asked to approve the proposed Merger of FNF and ANFI.

O: What do I need to do now?

A: After you have carefully read this proxy statement/prospectus, indicate on your proxy how you want to vote, and sign and mail it in the enclosed prepaid return envelope as soon as possible so that your shares may be represented and voted at the ANFI special meeting. If you send the proxy without indicating how you want to vote, we will count your proxy as a vote in favor of the Merger. The Board of Directors of ANFI recommends voting for the Merger.

Q: If my shares are held in street name by my broker, will my broker vote my shares for me?

A: Your broker will vote your shares only if you provide instructions on how to vote. You should follow the directions provided by your broker regarding how to instruct your broker to vote your shares. Without instructions, your shares will not be voted on the proposed Merger, which will have the same effect as voting against the proposed Merger.

Q: Can I change my vote after I have mailed my signed proxy card?

A: Yes. There are several ways in which you may revoke your proxy and change your vote. First, you may send a written notice to the party to whom you submitted your proxy stating that you would like to revoke your proxy. Second, you may complete and submit a new proxy. Third, you may attend the ANFI special meeting and vote in person. Simply attending the special meeting, however, will not revoke your proxy. If you have instructed a broker to vote your shares, you must follow directions received from your broker to change your vote.

Q: Should I send in my stock certificates now?

A: No. We will send ANFI shareholders separate written instructions for exchanging their share certificates promptly after the effective time of the Merger. FNF stockholders will keep their existing share certificates.

Q: What will happen to my future dividends?

A: The Merger Agreement prohibits ANFI from paying dividends through the closing of the Merger. However, FNF has agreed to permit ANFI to declare and pay a cash dividend during the first quarter not to exceed \$0.125 per share, subject to reaching an agreement on the timing of the dividend. Following the Merger, the ANFI shareholders will become FNF stockholders, and dividends will be paid on the FNF shares held by the former ANFI shareholders only as determined by the Board of Directors of FNF. On January 22, 2002, FNF s Board of Directors declared a cash dividend of \$0.09 per share (as adjusted to reflect the ten percent stock dividend on May 23, 2002) payable on April 26, 2002, to stockholders of record as of April 12, 2002. On April 24, 2002, FNF s Board of Directors declared a cash dividend of \$0.10 per share, payable on July 23, 2002, to stockholders of record as of July 9, 2002. On July 23, 2002, FNF s Board of Directors declared a cash dividend of \$0.12 per share, payable on October 25, 2002, to

stockholders of record on October 11, 2002. On October 22, 2002, FNF s Board of Directors declared a cash dividend of \$0.12 per share, payable on January 21, 2003, to stockholders of record on January 7, 2003. On January 28, 2003, FNF s Board of Directors declared a cash dividend of \$0.15 per share, payable on April 25, 2003, to stockholders of record on April 11, 2003. After the Merger, FNF expects its quarterly dividend to continue to be \$0.15 per common share.

Q: Are the FNF stockholders also required to approve the Merger?

A. FNF has determined that the approval of its stockholders is not necessary in connection with the Merger.

Q: Has an outside party given its opinion as to the fairness of the merger consideration?

A. A Special Committee of ANFI s Board of Directors received an opinion from Houlihan, Lokey, Howard & Zukin Financial Advisors, Inc., to the effect that, as of the date of the opinion and subject to the assumptions, limitations and qualifications contained therein that the consideration to be received by the Unaffiliated Shareholders of ANFI in connection with the Merger is fair to them from a financial point of view. The term Unaffiliated Shareholders means the shareholders of ANFI, other than FNF, FNF s affiliates and the executive management of ANFI. The Special Committee utilized this fairness opinion in evaluating the Merger. See The Merger Opinion of Houlihan Lokey Howard & Zukin Financial Advisors, Inc. to the Special Committee and Appendix C.

Q: Are there any conditions to completion of the Merger?

A. In addition to ANFI shareholder approval, the Merger is also subject to the following conditions:

the absence of specified material and adverse changes affecting ANFI or FNF;

obtaining all necessary regulatory approvals;

the FNF shares of common stock to be issued in the Merger shall have been authorized for listing on the NYSE, subject to official notice at issuance;

in the event the ANFI shareholders have appraisal, dissenters—or similar rights under applicable law, no more than three percent of the ANFI common shares, determined as of the record date for the ANFI special meeting, shall have made an effective demand for exercise of their appraisal, dissenters—or similar rights under applicable law.

receipt by each of ANFI and FNF of legal opinions to the effect that the Merger will qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368 of the Internal Revenue Code; and

the absence of any legal restraint blocking the Merger.

See The Merger Agreement Conditions to the Merger.

Q: What rights do I have if I oppose the Merger?

A. You can vote against the Merger by indicating a vote against the proposal on your proxy card and signing and mailing your proxy card, or by voting against the Merger in person at the meeting. Failure to submit a proxy or vote at the meeting will have the same effect as a vote against the Merger. Under California law, since ANFI s and FNF s shares are listed on the NASDAQ and New York Stock Exchange respectively, dissenting ANFI shareholders do not have the right to receive the appraised value of their shares in connection with the proposed Merger unless demands for payment are filed to the extent of five percent or more of the outstanding shares of that class of stock. In the event this occurs, FNF will not be required to complete the Merger. However, if FNF decides to complete the Merger, you will not receive any stock in FNF if you dissent and follow all required procedures. If you do not vote in favor of the proposed Merger and it takes place anyway you will be bound by the terms of the Merger Agreement.

Q: Have any lawsuits been filed in connection with the Merger?

A: Yes. After FNF and ANFI announced the execution of the Merger Agreement, three putative class actions were filed in California against FNF and the directors of ANFI. These actions allege that the defendants have breached their fiduciary duties to ANFI s shareholders, by among other things, agreeing to inadequate and unfair merger terms whereby FNF will acquire the publicly held shares of ANFI. FNF and ANFI believe these lawsuits are without merit and intend to vigorously defend the cases. See The Merger Pending Litigation Shareholder Litigation beginning on page 55.

Q: When and where will the Special Meeting be held?

A. The Special Meeting will be held at The Irvine Marriott Hotel, 18000 Von Karman Avenue, Irvine, California 92612, on 2003 at local time. See The Special Meeting.

O: Who can vote?

A. Only shareholders of record as of the close of business on , 2003 may vote at the meeting. See The ANFI Special Meeting Record Date; Vote Required.

Q: How do I vote?

A: ANFI offers its registered shareholders three ways to vote, other than by attending the special meeting and voting in person:

by mail, using the enclosed proxy card and envelope;

by telephone, using the telephone number printed on the enclosed proxy card and following the instructions on the enclosed proxy card; or

through the internet, using a unique password which is printed on your enclosed proxy card and following the internet instructions on the enclosed proxy card.

Q: What if I am a beneficial holder rather than an owner of record?

A: If you hold your ANFI shares through a broker, bank or other nominee, you will receive separate instructions from the nominee describing how you may vote your ANFI shares.

Q: What other matters will be voted on at this Special Meeting?

A. California law and ANFI s Bylaws do not permit any other matters to be presented at this special meeting except for procedural matters including adjournment of the meeting to a later date.

Q: What does it mean if I receive more than one proxy or voting instruction card?

A. It means that your shares are registered differently or held in more than one account. Please complete, sign, date and mail each proxy card that you receive.

Q: What happens if I sell my shares before the Special Meeting?

A. The record date for the meeting is earlier than the expected completion date of the Merger. If you held your shares on the record date, but have transferred those shares after the record date and before the Merger, you will retain your right to vote at the meeting, but not the right to receive the Merger consideration. The right to receive the merger consideration will pass to the person to whom you transferred your shares.

- Q: Who should I contact if I have questions about the Merger and need additional copies of the proxy statement?
- A. If you have more questions about the Merger or would like additional copies of the attached proxy statement, you should contact Jo Ann N. Bunton, ANFI, Inc., 1111 E. Katella Avenue, Suite 220, Orange California 92867, Telephone: (714) 289-4300.

If you would like additional copies of this proxy statement/prospectus or the enclosed proxy card, or if you have questions about the Merger, the special meeting, or how to vote by proxy, please contact:

ANFI, Inc.
1111 E. Katella Avenue, Suite 220
Orange, California 92867
Attention: Jo Ann N. Bunton
Phone Number: (714) 289-4300

U.S. Stock Transfer Corporation 1745 Gardena Avenue, Suite 200 Glendale, California 91204 Attention: Bridget Barela Phone Number: (818) 502-1404

If you would like copies of any FNF documents incorporated by reference in this proxy statement/prospectus, please contact FNF at the following address:

Fidelity National, Financial, Inc.

4050 Calle Real, Suite 200 Santa Barbara, California 93110 Attention: Daniel K. Murphy, Senior Vice President, Investor Relations dmurphy@fnf.com Phone Number: (805) 696-7218

FNF has supplied all information contained or incorporated by reference in this proxy statement/prospectus relating to FNF, and ANFI has supplied all information contained in this proxy statement/prospectus relating to ANFI.

THIS DOCUMENT INCORPORATES BY REFERENCE IMPORTANT BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION ABOUT FNF FROM OTHER DOCUMENTS FILED WITH THE SEC. THIS DOCUMENT IS ACCOMPANIED BY A COPY OF ANFI S ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 (RESTATED) AND A COPY OF ANFI S QUARTERLY REPORT ON FORM 10-Q FOR THE QUARTER ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002, WHICH ARE ATTACHED TO THIS DOCUMENT AS APPENDIX D AND APPENDIX E, RESPECTIVELY. YOU MAY HAVE PREVIOUSLY BEEN SENT SOME OF THE FNF DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED HEREIN BY REFERENCE, WHICH ARE LISTED UNDER THE HEADING WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION, BUT YOU CAN OBTAIN ANY OF THEM FROM FNF OR THE SEC. THE DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE ARE AVAILABLE WITHOUT CHARGE UPON WRITTEN OR ORAL REQUEST TO THE PERSON IDENTIFIED ABOVE. IN ORDER TO RECEIVE TIMELY DELIVERY OF THE DOCUMENTS IN ADVANCE OF THE ANFI SPECIAL MEETING, PLEASE MAKE YOUR REQUEST NO LATER THAN , 2003, WHICH IS FIVE BUSINESS DAYS BEFORE THE ANFI SPECIAL MEETING.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This proxy statement/prospectus contains certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 with respect to the financial condition, results of operations and business of each of FNF and ANFI. These statements may be made directly in this document or may be incorporated by reference from other documents filed with the SEC by FNF or ANFI. You can find many of these statements by looking for words such as believes, estimates or similar expressions in this proxy statement/prospectus expects, anticipates, or in documents incorporated by reference herein.

These forward-looking statements are subject to numerous assumptions, risks and uncertainties, and the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act provides a safe harbor for these statements. Factors that may cause actual results to differ from those contemplated by the forward-looking statements include, among others, the following possibilities.

General economic and business conditions, including interest rate fluctuations and general volatility in the capital markets.

Changes in the performance of the real estate markets.

The impact of competitive products and pricing.

Success of operating initiatives.

Adverse publicity.

The ability to identify businesses to be acquired.

Availability of qualified personnel.

Employee benefits costs and changes in, or the failure to comply with government regulations.

Because such statements are subject to risks and uncertainties, actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such statements, which speak only as of the date of this proxy statement/prospectus or, in the case of documents incorporated by reference, the date of such documents.

All subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to FNF or ANFI or any person acting on their behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements contained or referred to in this section. Neither FNF nor ANFI undertakes any obligation to release publicly any revisions to such forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this proxy statement/prospectus or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

SUMMARY

This summary highlights information from this proxy statement/prospectus. Because it is a summary, it does not contain all of the information that may be important to you. FNF and ANFI urge you to read carefully the entire proxy statement/ prospectus and the other documents to which this document refers to obtain a full understanding of the Merger.

The Companies

Fidelity National Financial, Inc.

17911 Von Karman Avenue, Suite 300 Irvine, CA 92614 (949) 622-4333

collection and trust activities;

FNF is the largest title insurance and diversified real estate related services company in the United States. FNF s title insurance underwriters Fidelity National Title, Chicago Title, Ticor Title, Security Union Title and Alamo Title together issued approximately 29% of all title insurance policies issued nationally during 2001. FNF provides title insurance in 49 states, the District of Columbia, Guam, Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands, and in Canada and Mexico. Since acquiring Chicago Title Corporation in March 2000, FNF has leveraged its national network of 1,100 direct offices and 8,700 agents to secure the leading market share (based on net premiums written) in three out of the four states that account for 50% of the real estate activity in the country.

In addition, FNF provides a broad array of escrow and other title related services, as well as real estate related products and services, including:

t	rustee s sales guarantees;
r	ecordings;
r	econveyances;
ŗ	property appraisal services;
c	eredit reporting;
e	exchange intermediary services in connection with real estate transactions;
r	eal estate tax services;
h	nome warranty insurance;
f	oreclosure posting and publishing services;
l	oan portfolio services;
f	lood certification;
f	äeld services;
p	property data and disclosure services;

multiple listing services;		
flood insurance; and		
homeowners insurance.	6	

ANFI, Inc.

1111 E. Katella Avenue, Suite 220 Orange, California 92867 (714) 289-4300

ANFI, through its subsidiaries, provides title insurance services as well as other real estate related financial and informational services including:

escrow;
real estate information;
trustee sale guarantees;
exchange intermediary services;
document preparation and research services,;
notary signing services;
property management; and
appraisals.

In addition, ANFI obtains specialized services for customers, including tax reporting services and courier services. ANFI focuses its business on the residential real estate market and in 2001 generated the majority of its revenue from issuing title insurance policies as an independent agent on behalf of an affiliated title underwriter. For the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, net title service revenue represented approximately 55.9%, 53.1% and 57.8% of ANFI s revenues, respectively.

ANFI s primary operations are conducted in 17 counties, consisting of 104 offices, located in major counties throughout California, Arizona and Nevada. ANFI s offices process real estate transactions within their geographical area or region. Each county is operated as a separate profit center.

From 1999 through 2002, ANFI established offices in Tennessee, Florida, and New York and Pennsylvania to expand its current customer base by developing agency relationships. In addition, during 2001, ANFI expanded its operations by opening several title and escrow offices in California and Arizona, in addition to the formation of the Wireless Title Service division.

This proxy statement/prospectus is accompanied by a copy of ANFI s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 (restated) and a copy of ANFI s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2002, which includes financial information for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2002, which are attached hereto as Appendix D and Appendix E, respectively. Certain reclassifications have been made to ANFI s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 to conform with the September 30, 2002 presentation. In addition, transitional disclosures required under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, paragraph 61, have been added and all data with respect to earnings per share, dividends per share and share information, including price per share where applicable, have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the effect of the five-for-four (25%) stock split declared by ANFI s Board of Directors on June 27, 2002, and effective July 18, 2002. Such documents contain detailed financial and other information about ANFI and are hereby incorporated by reference in this proxy statement/prospectus.

ANFI Merger Sub, Inc.

17911 Von Karman Avenue, Suite 300 Irvine, CA 92614 (949) 622-4333

ANFI Merger Sub, Inc., a California corporation, is a newly-formed, wholly-owned subsidiary of FNF. FNF formed ANFI Merger Sub, Inc. solely to effect the Merger, and ANFI Merger Sub, Inc. has not

7

conducted and will not conduct any business from its inception through the effectiveness of the Merger. ANFI Merger Sub, Inc. is sometimes referred to in this document as the merger sub.

The ANFI Special Meeting

The ANFI special meeting will be held on , , , 2003 at local time, at The Irvine Marriott Hotel located at 18000 Von Karman Avenue, Irvine, California 92612. At the ANFI special meeting, ANFI common shareholders will be asked to approve and adopt the Merger Agreement and the Merger.

Record Date; Vote Required (Page 36)

You are entitled to vote at ANFI s special meeting if you owned shares at the close of business on , 2003, which is the record date for the special meeting. On , 2003, there were shares of ANFI common stock issued and outstanding and entitled to vote. You can cast one vote with respect to the Merger Agreement, for each share of ANFI common stock that you owned on the record date.

Approval by ANFI shareholders of the Merger Agreement requires the affirmative vote of holders of more than 50% of the shares of ANFI common stock outstanding on the record date. As described below under the heading Share Ownership of FNF and Affiliates, it is expected that at least 6,122,983, or approximately 64.1% of the outstanding shares of ANFI common stock as of December 31, 2002, will vote in favor of the Merger, assuring ANFI shareholder approval of the Merger Agreement and Merger.

Share Ownership of Management and Directors; Voting Agreement (Page 36)

As of February 3, 2003, directors and executive officers of ANFI and their affiliates held and were entitled to vote 3,156,802 shares of ANFI common stock, or approximately 32% of the shares of ANFI common stock outstanding on February 3, 2003. Pursuant to the terms of a voting agreement (the Voting Agreement) entered into concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement, four of the executive officers who are also directors of ANFI and who own in the aggregate 2,557,380 shares of ANFI common stock have agreed to vote all of their shares in favor of the Merger and not to sell any of their outstanding ANFI shares other than shares relating to or obtained as the result of the exercise of ANFI options until the Merger has occurred or the Merger Agreement is terminated. On January 14, 2003, FNF entered into a written waiver with the ANFI holders party to the Voting Agreement, whereby FNF waived any rights it may have to enforce the transfer prohibition as it relates to the exercise of ANFI stock options and any subsequent sale of any shares of ANFI common stock received upon exercise. In this regard, two of the interested directors of ANFI on January 16 and 17, 2003 sold in the aggregate 170,700 shares of ANFI stock obtained as the result of their exercise of ANFI options in order to begin to reduce their outstanding options to acquire ANFI shares as required by the Merger Agreement and to diversify their own personal investment portfolios.

Share Ownership of FNF and Affiliates (Page 36)

As of January 9, 2003, FNF held 2,653,173 shares of ANFI common stock, or approximately 27.8% of the shares of ANFI common stock outstanding on December 31, 2002. As of October 23, 2002, William P. Foley II, a director of ANFI and the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of FNF, held 556,805 shares of ANFI common stock, or approximately 5.8% of the shares of ANFI common stock outstanding on October 23, 2002. As of January 9, 2003, 3,469,810 shares of ANFI common stock, or approximately 36.3% of the shares of ANFI common stock outstanding on December 31, 2002, are subject to the Voting Agreement entered into by FNF and four executive officers of ANFI. After combining the shares of ANFI common stock subject to the Voting Agreement and the shares of ANFI common stock held by FNF and Mr. Foley, it is expected that at least 6,122,983, or approximately 64.1% of the outstanding shares of ANFI common stock as of December 31, 2002, will vote in favor of the Merger, assuring ANFI shareholder approval of the Merger Agreement and Merger.

Recommendation to Shareholders (Page 37)

ANFI s Board of Directors believes that the Merger is fair to ANFI and to you as an ANFI shareholder and in your best interests, and by unanimous vote of the disinterested directors recommends that you vote FOR the proposal to approve and adopt the Merger Agreement.

Pending Litigation (Page 54)

A lawsuit captioned *Schneider v. Fidelity National Financial, Inc., et. al.* (Case No. 03CC00017) was filed on January 17, 2003 in Orange County Superior Court naming as defendants FNF and the members of the Board of Directors of ANFI. The complaint seeks class action status and alleges breach of fiduciary duty in connection with the approval of the Merger by ANFI s directors. A second lawsuit captioned *Rossi v. Michael C. Lowther, et. al.* (Case No. 03CC0021) was filed on January 21, 2003 in the Orange County Superior Court naming as defendants FNF and the members of the Board of Directors of ANFI. Management of FNF and ANFI believe the lawsuits are without merit. A third lawsuit captioned *Miller v. Michael C. Lowther, et. al.*, (Case No. 03CC00018) was filed on January 17, 2003 in the Orange County Superior Court naming as defendants FNF and the members of the Board of Directors of ANFI.

The Merger

FNF and ANFI have attached the Merger Agreement to this document as Appendix A. Please read the Merger Agreement. It is the legal document that governs the transaction.

General (Page 38)

In the proposed Merger ANFI will be merged into a wholly-owned subsidiary of FNF, with such wholly-owned subsidiary emerging as the surviving corporation and as a wholly-owned subsidiary of FNF. At the completion of the Merger, the merger subsidiary s articles of incorporation, bylaws and directors, as in effect immediately prior to the Merger, will continue as the articles of incorporation, bylaws and directors of the surviving corporation. FNF and ANFI hope to complete the Merger by June 30, 2003.

What ANFI Shareholders Will Receive (Page 38)

In the Merger, each share of ANFI common stock will be converted into the right to receive 0.454 shares of FNF common stock. In addition, ANFI shareholders will receive cash instead of any fractional shares of FNF common stock to which they are otherwise entitled.

ANFI Stock Options; Warrants and Employee Stock Purchase Plan (Page 38)

Subject to certain limitations applicable to the senior executives of ANFI, when the Merger is completed, each unexercised option to buy ANFI common stock outstanding under ANFI s stock option plans and each warrant to purchase ANFI common stock will become an option or warrant to purchase FNF common stock. The number of shares of FNF common stock subject to each new option or warrant, as well as the exercise price of each new option or warrant, will be adjusted to reflect the exchange ratio. There will be no change in the vesting schedule applicable to any of the ANFI stock options or warrants.

All ANFI employees shall be eligible to become participants in FNF s employee stock purchase plan with credit for time of service with ANFI and credit for time of participation in the ANFI employee stock purchase plan for all purposes. All ANFI employees who are participants in ANFI s employee stock purchase plan at the effective time of the Merger shall automatically become participants in FNF s employee stock purchase plan, and ANFI s employee stock purchase plan will be terminated in accordance with its provisions.

Opinion of ANFI s Financial Advisors (Page 45)

Houlihan, Lokey, Howard & Zukin Financial Advisors, Inc. (HLHZFA) has delivered its written opinion dated January 9, 2003 to the Special Committee of the ANFI Board of Directors that, as of such date and based on the assumptions made, matters considered and limits of review stated therein, the consideration

to be received by the Unaffiliated Shareholders of ANFI in connection with the Merger is fair to them from a financial point of view. A copy of the opinion delivered by HLHZFA is attached to this document as Appendix C. You should read this opinion in its entirety to understand the assumptions made, matters considered and limitations on the review undertaken by HLHZFA in providing its opinion.

Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Merger (Page 49)

Since the Merger is expected to qualify as a reorganization under Section 368(a)(2)(D) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, the ANFI shareholders should not recognize any gain or loss on the receipt of shares of FNF common stock in exchange for shares of ANFI common stock in the Merger. However, ANFI shareholders may recognize gain or loss on the receipt of cash in lieu of a fractional share of FNF common stock. Because of the complexities of the tax laws, ANFI shareholders are advised to consult their own tax advisors concerning the applicable federal, state, local, foreign and other tax consequences resulting from the Merger.

Regulatory Approvals Required for the Merger (Page 52)

The Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976 requires us to furnish certain information and materials to the Antitrust Division of the Department of Justice and the Federal Trade Commission and requires a specified waiting period to expire or be terminated before the Merger can be completed. Even after the waiting period expires or terminates, the Antitrust Division of the Department of Justice and the Federal Trade Commission will have the authority to challenge the merger on antitrust grounds before or after the merger is completed. FNF and ANFI do not believe that additional regulatory filings will be required for consummation of the Merger and are in the process of confirming the same with authorities in the states of New York and California. Following the Merger, FNF believes preapproval regulatory filings will be necessary in connection with its currently planned conversion of ANFI s title and escrow operations to Ticor operations.

Interests of Certain Persons in the Merger (Page 53)

Shareholders should note that some of ANFI s directors and executive officers and some of FNF s directors and executive officers may have interests in the Merger that are different from, or in addition to, the interests of ANFI and FNF stockholders generally.

Appraisal Rights for Dissenting Shareholders (Appendix F)

If you are an ANFI shareholder, California law permits you to dissent from the Merger. If you dissent, the fair value of your ANFI stock may be determined by a court and paid to you in cash. To do this, you must follow certain procedures, including giving ANFI certain notices and voting your shares against the merger. Generally, under California law, because ANFI is listed on the National Market System of the NASDAQ Stock Market, you only have the right to receive the fair value of your shares as a dissenter if demands for payment are filed to the extent of five percent or more of the outstanding shares. In the event this occurs, FNF will not be required to complete the Merger. However, if FNF decides to complete the Merger, you will not receive any stock in FNF if you dissent and follow all of the required procedures. Instead, you will only receive the value of your shares as determined by a court. The value of your shares as determined by the court may be more or less than the value of the merger consideration. The relevant sections of California law governing this process are attached to this document as Appendix F.

Accounting Treatment (Page 55)

The Merger will be accounted for as a purchase in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, which means that the assets and liabilities of ANFI not already owned by FNF will be recorded on the books of FNF at their fair values as of the acquisition date, with the excess of the purchase price, if any, allocated to goodwill.

Conditions to Completion of the Merger (Page 60)

The completion of the Merger depends on the satisfaction or waiver of a number of conditions, including the following:

- 1. approval of the Merger by the holders of more than 50% of the shares of ANFI common stock outstanding on the record date;
- 2. the FNF shares of common stock to be issued in the Merger shall have been authorized for listing on the NYSE, subject to official notice of issuance:
 - 3. approval of the Merger by certain federal regulatory authorities and the expiration of applicable waiting periods;
 - 4. the absence of any legal action blocking, or threatening to block, the consummation of the Merger;
- 5. receipt by each of FNF and ANFI of legal opinions to the effect that the Merger will qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368 of the Internal Revenue Code;
- 6. the absence of a material adverse effect on FNF or ANFI from December 31, 2001, until the time of the Merger, other than effects caused by the Merger itself, changes in general economic conditions, securities market conditions, interest rate levels, or certain legal proceedings; and
- 7. less than three percent of the outstanding shares of ANFI common stock validly elect to exercise any appraisal rights they may have.

Termination of the Merger Agreement (Page 62)

FNF and ANFI may mutually agree in writing to terminate the Merger Agreement at any time without completing the Merger, even after the shareholders of ANFI have approved the Merger.

In addition, either of FNF and ANFI can terminate the Merger Agreement at any time if:

- 1. the merger has not been completed by June 30, 2003, which either of FNF or ANFI can extend for a maximum amount of an additional 60 days in order to obtain necessary governmental consents, including clearance under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Act;
 - 2. the ANFI shareholders do not give the required approval;
- 3. the other company breaches or fails to perform any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement set forth in the Merger Agreement in a manner which would cause conditions to the Merger not to be satisfied, and such breach or failure to perform either cannot be cured or is not cured within a period of ten days after written notice; or
- 4. any legal restriction permanently restraining, enjoining or otherwise prohibiting completion of the merger has become final and non-appealable.

ANFI may also terminate the Merger at any time before the Merger is approved by the ANFI shareholders if its Board of Directors has determined that an alternative transaction with a third party is superior to the Merger and that ANFI should enter into an agreement relating to that transaction. However, ANFI must give FNF seven business days to match the third party s offer before ANFI can terminate the Merger Agreement.

FNF may terminate the Merger Agreement if ANFI s Board of Directors fails to make, withdraws or adversely modifies its recommendation of the Merger Agreement or if ANFI s Board of Directors recommends any other acquisition proposal to the shareholders of ANFI. FNF may also terminate the Merger at any time before the Merger is approved by the ANFI shareholders if the ANFI Board of Directors has determined that an alternative transaction with a third party is superior to the Merger and that ANFI should enter into an agreement relating to that transaction. FNF has seven business days to determine whether it will match the terms of such alternative transaction.

Termination Fee (Page 63)

ANFI shall pay to FNF a termination fee of \$2,780,000 if the Merger Agreement is terminated as follows:

the ANFI Board of Directors has authorized ANFI to enter into a binding agreement in connection with a superior proposal or has withdrawn or amended its recommendation of the Merger;

less than 50% of the outstanding common stock of ANFI is voted in favor of the Merger and there is a breach of the Voting Agreement or a member of the Board of Directors of ANFI fails to vote his or her shares in favor the Merger; or

FNF terminates the Merger Agreement because of ANFI s breach of its representations or warranties or failure to perform any of its obligations under the Merger Agreement and, within 12 months of termination, ANFI shall engage in any negotiations or discussions with any third party regarding an acquisition proposal.

Comparison of Rights of ANFI Shareholders and FNF Stockholders (Page 69)

The rights of ANFI s shareholders are currently governed by ANFI s Articles of Incorporation, ANFI s Bylaws and the General Corporation Law of the State of California, whereas the rights of FNF stockholders are governed by FNF s Certificate of Incorporation, FNF s Bylaws and the Delaware General Corporate Law. Upon the completion of the Merger, ANFI shareholders will become stockholders of FNF, and therefore their rights will be governed by FNF s Certificate of Incorporation, FNF s Bylaws and the Delaware General Corporate Law. There are a number of differences between the Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws of FNF and the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of ANFI, and between the Delaware General Corporate Law and the General Corporation Law of the State of California. These differences are discussed under the section entitled Comparative Rights of FNF and ANFI Stockholders.

Recent Developments

In December, 2002, ANFI sold 322,318 shares of CKE Restaurant, Inc. s common stock, which it had held for investment, and received \$1.2 million based upon an average price of \$3.78 per share, resulting in a pre-tax loss of \$1.8 million.

After FNF and ANFI announced the execution of the Merger Agreement, three putative class actions were filed in California against FNF and the directors of ANFI. These actions allege that the defendants have breached their fiduciary duties to ANFI s shareholders, by among other things, agreeing to inadequate and unfair merger terms whereby FNF will acquire the publicly held shares of ANFI. FNF and ANFI believe these lawsuits are without merit and intend to vigorously defend the cases. See The Merger Pending Litigation Shareholder Litigation beginning on page .

On January 29, 2003, FNF announced that it entered into a stock purchase agreement with ALLTEL Corporation, Inc., a Delaware corporation (ALLTEL), pursuant to which FNF will acquire from ALLTEL the financial services division of ALLTEL Information Services, Inc., an Arkansas corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of ALLTEL (AIS). As a result of the acquisition, AIS will become a wholly owned subsidiary of FNF. The transaction is expected to close by the end of the first quarter of 2003. Under the terms of the stock purchase agreement, all of the issued and outstanding shares of AIS common stock, par value \$1.00 per share, will be purchased by FNF for \$775 million in cash and \$275 million in FNF common stock issued to ALLTEL, subject to a one-year lock-up agreement. Consummation of the acquisition is subject to customary closing conditions. In connection with the stock purchase agreement, prior to closing FNF and ALLTEL will enter into a stockholder s agreement, a non-competition agreement and certain other transition agreements. The stockholder s agreement will: (1) restrict the sale by ALLTEL of the FNF common stock received in the transaction for up to one year, (2) grant ALLTEL the right to designate one nominee to the FNF Board of Directors so long as ALLTEL continues to hold at least 50% of the shares of FNF common stock received in the acquisition, and (3) grant ALLTEL certain registration rights with respect to the FNF stock they receive in the areas of acquisition. The non-competition agreement will prohibit, with certain

exceptions, ALLTEL and its affiliates for a period of two years from engaging in the business relating to the assets acquired by FNF in the transition.

Also on January 29, 2003, FNF issued a press release announcing its fourth quarter and 2002 year end earnings information. The earnings information is preliminary and subject to adjustment. In the release, FNF announced:

fourth quarter revenue of \$1.6 billion, compared with \$1.1 billion for the fourth quarter of 2001;

fourth quarter net earnings of \$174.9 million compared with \$92.3 million for the fourth quarter of 2001;

fourth quarter earnings per share of \$1.77 per diluted share, compared with \$0.95 per diluted share for the fourth quarter of 2001;

2002 revenue of \$5.1 billion, compared with \$3.9 billion for 2001;

2002 net earnings of \$531.7 million, compared with \$305.5 million for 2001; and

2002 net earnings per share of \$5.38 per diluted share, compared with \$3.15 per diluted share for 2001.

Comparative Per Share Market Price Information

The following table sets forth the high, low and closing prices per share of FNF common stock and ANFI common stock on the NYSE and Nasdaq National Market, respectively, on December 13, 2002, and February 6, 2003. December 13, 2002 was the last trading day before FNF and ANFI announced that they had executed a letter of intent to consummate the merger. February 6, 2003 was the last practicable trading day for which information was available prior to the date of this proxy statement/prospectus.

	FN	FNF Common Stock			ANFI Common Stock		
	High	Low	Close	High	Low	Close	
	(D	ollars per sha	re)	(D	ollars per sha	re)	
December 13, 2002	\$32.79	\$31.46	\$32.40	\$13.40	\$13.02	\$13.27	
February 6, 2003	\$32.26	\$31.25	\$31.36	\$14.47	\$13.93	\$14.05	

The market price of both FNF and ANFI common stock will fluctuate prior to the merger. No assurance can be given as to the future prices or markets for FNF common stock or ANFI common stock. You should obtain current stock price quotations for both FNF and ANFI common stock. Additional market price information is contained on page 34 under the heading Market Price and Dividend Information.

Selected Consolidated Financial Data

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Fidelity National Financial, Inc.

The selected consolidated financial data of FNF as of and for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 has been derived from the consolidated financial statements of FNF incorporated by reference herein which have been audited by KPMG LLP, independent auditors. The selected consolidated financial data as of and for the nine months ended September 30, 2002 and 2001 has been derived from unaudited consolidated financial statements filed with the SEC and incorporated by reference herein and include all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) which FNF considers necessary for a fair presentation of the consolidated financial position and results of operations. Operating results for the nine months ended September 30, 2002 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the entire year ending December 31, 2002. This information is qualified in its entirety by, and should be read in conjunction with, FNF s consolidated financial statements, and the notes thereto, and Management s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition which are included in reports filed by FNF with the SEC and are incorporated by reference in this proxy statement/ prospectus. See Where You Can Find More Information. Share and per share data has been retroactively adjusted for stock dividends and splits since our inception, including the 10% stock dividend in May 2002. Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year amounts to conform with the 2002 presentation.

	Year Ended December 31,			Nine Months Ended September 30,		
	2001(1)(2)	2000(3)	1999	2002	2001(2)	
		(In thousands	s, except per share a	nd other data)		
Operating Data:						
Revenue:						
Title insurance premiums	\$2,694,479	\$1,946,159	\$ 939,452	\$2,408,416	\$1,901,980	
Escrow and other title related						
fees	728,406	459,121	206,570	679,304	516,540	
Real estate related services	287,063	166,718	67,844	308,183	195,598	
Interest and investment						
income	93,105	87,392	28,695	59,023	72,096	
Realized gains and (losses),						
net	6,349	(201)	3,350	9,195	8,024	
Other income	64,705	82,805	109,943	28,550	47,792	
	3,874,107	2,741,994	1,355,854	3,492,671	2,742,030	
Expenses:						
Personnel costs	1,187,177	845,349	407,078	1,037,722	854,171	
Other operating expenses	829,433	624,087	334,578	717,046	583,634	
Agent commissions	1,098,328	884,498	423,675	1,020,936	766,605	
Provision for claim losses	134,724	97,322	52,713	120,421	95,435	
Amortization of cost in excess	134,724	91,322	32,713	120,421	93,733	
of net assets acquired	54,155	35,003	6,638		35,045	
Interest expense	46,569	59,374	15,626	25,999	36,917	
interest expense	40,309		15,020	25,999	50,917	
	3,350,386	2,545,633	1,240,308	2,922,124	2,371,807	
Earnings before income taxes,						
minority interest and						
cumulative effect of a change						
in accounting principle	523,721	196,361	115,546	570,547	370,223	
Income tax expense	209,488	86,624	46,065	205,397	148,088	

	Year Ended December 31,		Nine Months Ended September 30,		
	2001(1)(2)	2000(3)	1999	2002	2001(2)
		(In thousand	s, except per share a	nd other data)	
Earnings before minority interest and cumulative effect			•		
of a change in accounting					
principle	314,233	109,737	69,481	365,150	222,135
Minority interest	3,048	1,422	(1,372)	8,368	3,230
Willionty interest			(1,372)		
Earnings before cumulative					
effect of a change in					
accounting principle	311,185	108,315	70,853	356,782	218,905
Cumulative effect of a change					
in accounting principle, net of					
income taxes	(5,709)				(5,709)
meome taxes					
Net earnings	\$ 305,476	\$ 108,315	\$ 70,853	\$ 356,782	\$ 213,196
Per Share Data:					
Basic earnings per share before					
cumulative effect of a change					
in accounting principle	\$ 3.31	\$ 1.52	\$ 1.96	\$ 3.74	\$ 2.33
Cumulative effect of a change	7 2.02	,	+	7 - 2.7.	, -100
in accounting principle	(.06)				(.06)
in decounting principle	(.00)				(.00)
Basic net earnings per share	\$ 3.25	\$ 1.52	\$ 1.96	\$ 3.74	\$ 2.27
Weighted average shares					
outstanding, basic basis	94,048	71,173	36,092	95,276	93,885
Diluted earnings per share	94,040	71,173	30,092	93,270	95,665
before cumulative effect of a					
change in accounting principle	\$ 3.21	\$ 1.47	\$ 1.87	\$ 3.61	\$ 2.26
Cumulative effect of a change	\$ 3.21	Φ 1.47	Ф 1.07	\$ 5.01	\$ 2.20
in accounting principle	(06)				(06)
in accounting principle	(.06)				(.06)
D'1 (1 () 1	¢ 2.15	e 1.47	¢ 1.07	ф. 2.61	¢ 2.20
Diluted net earnings per share	\$ 3.15	\$ 1.47	\$ 1.87	\$ 3.61	\$ 2.20
Weighted average shares					
outstanding, diluted basis	96,865	73,733	37,916	98,762	96,710
Dividends declared per share	\$.34	\$.32	\$.25	\$.31	\$.25
Balance Sheet Data:					
Investments(4)	\$1,823,312	\$1,685,331	\$ 506,916	\$2,452,580	\$1,850,388
Cash and cash equivalents(5)	542,620	262,955	38,569	549,753	476,773
Total assets	4,415,998	3,833,985	1,042,546	5,196,785	4,326,596
Notes payable	565,690	791,430	226,359	513,856	611,150
Reserve for claim losses	881,053	907,482	239,962	892,675	891,430
Minority interests and	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	,		,,,,	,,,,,
preferred stock of subsidiary	47,166	5,592	4,613	115,561	40,627
Stockholders equity	1,638,870	1,106,737	432,494	2,107,113	1,583,831
	-,000,070	-,200,707	, ,, ,,	_,,110	-,000,001
		15			

	Year Ended December 31,			- 1	Nine Months Ended September 30,		
	2001(1)(2)	2000(3)	1999	2002	2001(2)		
	(In thousands, except per share and other data)						
Other Data:							
Orders opened by direct							
operations	2,635,200	1,352,000	743,000	2,234,500	1,848,000		
Orders closed by direct							
operations	1,770,600	971,000	551,000	1,537,800	1,236,100		
Provision for claim losses to							
title insurance premiums	5.0%	5.0%	5.6%	5.0%	5.0%		
Title related revenue(6):							
Percentage direct							
operations	59.0%	52.8%	53.6%	57.9%	59.4%		
Percentage agency							
operations	41.0%	47.2%	46.4%	42.1%	40.6%		

- (1) FNF s financial results for the year ended December 31, 2001 include the results of the former operations of Vista Information Solutions, Inc. (Vista) for the period from August 1, 2001, the acquisition date, through December 31, 2001
- (2) During 2001, FNF recorded a \$5.7 million, after-tax charge, reflected as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, as a result of adopting Emerging Issues Task Force No. 99-20, Recognition of Interest Income and Impairment on Purchased and Retained Beneficial Interests in Securitized Financial Assets, (EITF 99-20).
- (3) FNF s financial results for the year ended December 31, 2000 include the operations of Chicago Title Corporation for the period from March 20, 2000, the merger date, through December 31, 2000.
- (4) Investments as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 and September 30, 2002 and 2001 include securities pledged to secure trust deposits of \$319.1 million, \$459.4 million, \$463.2 million and \$365.0 million, respectively.
- (5) Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 and September 30, 2002 and 2001 include cash pledged to secure trust deposits of \$367.9 million, \$132.1 million, \$395.0 million and \$322.5 million, respectively.
- (6) Includes title insurance premiums and escrow and other title related fees.

16

Selected Quarterly Financial Data

Selected quarterly financial data is as follows:

Ouarter	End	lec
---------	-----	-----

	March 31,	June 30,(3)	September 30,	December 31,	
		(In thousands			
2001(1)					
Revenue	\$777,864	\$961,548	\$1,002,618	\$1,132,077	
Earnings before income taxes, minority interest and cumulative effect of a change in accounting					
principle	78,140	153,049	139,034	153,498	
Net earnings	44,992	84,122	84,082	92,280	
Basic earnings per share	.49	.89	.89	.98	
Diluted earnings per share	.47	.87	.86	.95	
Dividends paid per share	.08	.08	.08	.09	
2000(2)					
Revenue	\$377,657	\$757,642	\$ 790,103	\$ 816,592	
Earnings before income taxes and minority interest	7,190	60,716	64,058	64,397	
Net earnings	1,869	31,371	37,570	37,505	
Basic earnings per share	.05	.39	.46	.45	
Diluted earnings per share	.05	.37	.45	.44	
Dividends paid per share	.08	.08	.08	.08	

⁽¹⁾ FNF s financial results for the year ended December 31, 2001 include the results of the former operations of Vista for the period from August 1, 2001, the acquisition date, through December 31, 2001.

⁽²⁾ FNF s financial results for the year ended December 31, 2000 include the operations of Chicago Title Corporation for the period from March 20, 2000, the merger date, through December 31, 2000.

⁽³⁾ In the second quarter of 2001, FNF recorded a \$5.7 million, after-tax charge, reflected as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, as a result of adopting EITF 99-20.

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (SFAS No. 142). SFAS No. 142 requires that an intangible asset that is acquired shall be initially recognized and measured based on its fair value. The statement also provides that goodwill should not be amortized, but shall be tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if circumstances indicate potential impairment, through a comparison of fair value to its carrying amount. Existing goodwill was amortized through 2001, after which time amortization ceased. FNF completed the transitional goodwill impairment test as of the adoption date on its reporting units and has determined that each of its reporting units has a fair value in excess of its carrying amount. Accordingly, no goodwill impairment has been recorded.

Beginning on January 1, 2002, FNF ceased recording goodwill amortization in accordance with SFAS No. 142. The following table reconciles reported net earnings and net earnings per share to adjusted net earnings and net earnings per share.

	Year Ended December 31,			Nine Months Ended September 30,	
	2001	2000	1999	2002	2001
Reported net earnings	\$305,476	\$108,315	\$70,853	\$356,782	\$213,196
Add back: Amortization of cost in excess of	, , , , , ,	, , , , ,	, ,	, ,	, ,,,,,
net assets acquired	54,155	35,003	6,638		35,045
Add back: Tax effect of amortization of					
cost in excess of net assets acquired	(1,062)	(838)			(815)
A diseased seek consists	¢250.560	¢ 142 490	¢77.401	¢256.792	\$247.426
Adjusted net earnings	\$358,569	\$142,480	\$77,491	\$356,782	\$247,426
Basic Earnings Per Share:					
Reported net earnings	\$ 3.25	\$ 1.52	\$ 1.96	\$ 3.74	\$ 2.27
Amortization of cost in excess of net assets					
acquired	0.57	0.49	0.19		0.37
Tax effect of amortization of cost in excess					
of net assets acquired	(0.01)	(0.01)			
Adjusted net earnings per share basic	\$ 3.81	\$ 2.00	\$ 2.15	\$ 3.74	\$ 2.64
Adjusted het earnings per share basic	φ 3.61	φ 2.00	φ 2.1 <i>3</i>	\$ 3.74	φ 2.04
Diluted Earnings Per Share:					
Reported net earnings	\$ 3.15	\$ 1.47	\$ 1.87	\$ 3.61	\$ 2.20
Amortization of cost in excess of net assets					
acquired	0.56	0.47	0.17		0.36
Tax effect of amortization of cost in excess					
of net assets acquired	(0.01)	(0.01)			
Adjusted net earnings per share diluted	\$ 3.70	\$ 1.93	\$ 2.04	\$ 3.61	\$ 2.56
ragusted net carmings per snare diluted	ψ 5.70	φ 1.93	φ 2.04	ψ 5.01	φ 2.30
		10			
		18			

ANFI, Inc.

The selected consolidated financial data of ANFI as of and for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 has been derived from the consolidated financial statements of ANFI included in Appendix D to this proxy statement/ prospectus which have been audited by KPMG LLP, independent auditors. The selected consolidated financial data as of and for the nine months ended September 30, 2002 and 2001 has been derived from unaudited consolidated financial statements filed with the SEC and included in Appendix E to this proxy statement/ prospectus and include all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) which ANFI considers necessary for a fair presentation of the consolidated financial position and results of operations. Operating results for the nine months ended September 30, 2002 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the entire year ending December 31, 2002. This information is qualified in its entirety by, and should be read in conjunction with, ANFI s consolidated financial statements, and the notes thereto, and Management s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition which are included in Appendices D and E to this proxy statement/ prospectus. Certain reclassifications have been made to ANFI s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 to conform with the September 30, 2002 presentation. In addition, transitional disclosures required under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, paragraph 61, have been added and all data with respect to earnings per share, dividends per share and share information, including price per share where applicable, have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the effect of the five-for-four (25%) stock split declared by ANFI s Board of Directors on June 27, 2002, and effective July 18, 2002. See Where You Can Find More Information. Per and share data has been retroactively adjusted for stock dividends and splits since our inception. Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to conform with the 2002 presentation.

	Years Ended December 31,			Nine Months Ended September 30,			
	2001	2000	1999	2002	2001		
		(Amounts in thousands, other than earnings per share, order and fee per file data)					
Balance Sheet Data:							
Cash and short term investments	\$ 10,018	\$ 9,865	\$ 4,875	\$ 18,948	\$12,617		
Investments	24,721	10,533	14,022	26,620	17,684		
Total assets	66,653	53,341	47,324	83,456	62,038		
Due to affiliate and capital leases with							
affiliates	3,536	3,230	1,642	3,521	3,131		
Shareholders equity	35,913	31,977	32,031	49,169	33,033		
Statement of Operations Data:							
Net title service revenue related party	\$ 76,435	\$44,144	\$51,899	\$ 75,320	\$54,062		
Escrow fees	32,176	21,969	25,190	30,692	23,335		
Underwriting premiums	8,890	3,461	452	13,763	5,698		
Ancillary service fees	17,080	12,684	11,362	15,547	12,717		
Gain (loss) on sale/exchange of equity							
security	1,001	(134)		2,461	1,003		
Investment revenue	1,267	1,047	930	1,137	910		
Total revenue	136,849	83,171	89,833	138,920	97,725		
Personnel costs	73,909	51,189	54,277	70,338	53,238		
Other operating expenses	35,233	23,245	19,759	35,259	24,247		
Title plant rent and maintenance	7,946	5,322	6,264	6,457	5,748		
Total expenses	117,088	79,756	80,300	112,054	83,233		
Earnings before income taxes	19,761	3,415	9,533	26,866	14,492		
Income taxes	8,497	1,400	3,908	11,015	5,991		
Net earnings	\$ 11,264	\$ 2,015	\$ 5,625	\$ 15,851	\$ 8,501		

	Years Ended December 31,			Nine Months Ended September 30,		
	2001	2000	1999	2002	2001	
		(Amounts in thousands, other than earnings per share, order and fee per file data)				
Per Share Data:						
Earnings per share:						
Basic	\$ 1.20	\$.20	\$.60	\$ 1.73	\$ 0.89	
Diluted	1.09	.20	.59	1.50	0.82	
Weighted average common shares outstanding:						
Basic	9,386	10,085	9,445	9,147	9,568	
Diluted	10,295	10,085	9,485	10,584	10,399	
Dividends declared per share	\$ 0.34	\$ 0.28	\$ 0.28	\$ 0.325	\$ 0.305	
Other Operating Data:						
Gross title insurance premiums	\$ 88,391	\$ 51,113	\$ 58,370	\$ 98,344	\$ 66,430	
Orders opened	210,000	111,000	119,000	189,600	146,600	
Orders closed	127,000	73,200	88,900	123,300	90,450	
Average fee per file(1)	\$ 848	\$ 1,109	\$ 940	\$ 971	\$ 919	

⁽¹⁾ Average fee per file information for American Title Company, Pioneer Land Title Corporation and National Title Insurance of New York, Inc. direct branches consists of gross title insurance premiums, escrow fees and other title-related fees divided by the number of closed files (not including revenue generated by ANFI s STAR Product, which are excluded due to the abbreviated characteristics of the policy). In addition, non title-related revenues and investment income are excluded as there are no associated closed files.

Quarterly Financial Data

Selected quarterly financial data is as follows:

	Quarter Ended				
	March 31,	June 30,	September 30,	December 31,	
		(In thousan			
2001					
Revenue	\$28,470	\$35,516	\$33,738	\$39,125	
Earnings before income taxes	3,830	5,769	4,892	5,270	
Net earnings, basic and diluted basis	2,260	3,404	2,837	2,763	
Basic earnings per share	.22	.35	.32	.31	
Diluted earnings per share	.21	.33	.29	.28	
Dividends paid per share	.07	.07	.10	.10	
2000					
Revenue	\$17,689	\$20,916	\$21,762	\$22,804	
Earnings (loss) before income taxes	(563)	1,089	1,384	1,505	
Net earnings (loss), basic and diluted basis	(332)	643	817	887	
Basic earnings (loss) per share	(.03)	.06	.08	.09	
Diluted earnings (loss) per share	(.03)	.06	.08	.09	
Dividends paid per share	.07	.07	.07	.07	
	20				

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (SFAS No. 142). SFAS No. 142 requires that an intangible asset that is acquired shall be initially recognized and measured based on its fair value. The statement also provides that goodwill should not be amortized, but shall be tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if circumstances indicate potential impairment, through a comparison of fair value to its carrying amount. Existing goodwill was amortized through 2001, after which time amortization ceased. ANFI completed the transitional goodwill impairment test as of the adoption date and has determined that there has been no impairment of goodwill.

Beginning on January 1, 2002, ANFI ceased recording goodwill amortization in accordance with SFAS No. 142. The following table reconciles reported net earnings and net earnings per share to adjusted net earnings and net earnings per share.

	Year Ended December 31,		Nine Mon Septem		
	2001	2000	1999	2002	2001
Reported net earnings	\$11,264	\$2,015	\$5,625	\$15,851	\$8,501
Add back: Amortization of cost in excess of net assets acquired Add back: Tax effect of amortization of cost in excess of net assets acquired	551	512	201		420
net assets acquired					
Adjusted net earnings	\$11,815	\$2,527	\$5,826	\$15,851	\$8,921
Basic Earnings Per Share:					
Reported net earnings	\$ 1.20	\$ 0.20	\$ 0.60	\$ 1.73	\$ 0.89
Amortization of cost in excess of net assets acquired Tax effect of amortization of cost in excess of net assets acquired	0.06	0.05	0.02		0.04
Adjusted net earnings per share basic	\$ 1.26	\$ 0.25	\$ 0.62	\$ 1.73	\$ 0.93
Diluted Earnings Per Share:					
Reported net earnings	\$ 1.09	\$ 0.20	\$ 0.59	\$ 1.50	\$ 0.82
Amortization of cost in excess of net assets acquired Tax effect of amortization of cost in excess of net assets acquired	0.06	0.05	0.02		0.04
Adjusted net earnings per share diluted	\$ 1.15	\$ 0.25	\$ 0.61	\$ 1.50	\$ 0.86
	21				

Comparative Per Share Data

The following table sets forth certain information regarding FNF s and ANFI s earnings, dividends and book value per share on a historical basis, on a pro forma combined basis and on an equivalent pro forma basis. The information set forth below should be read in conjunction with the historical consolidated financial statements of FNF and ANFI, including the notes thereto, incorporated by reference or appearing elsewhere in this proxy statement/ prospectus. See Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information and Where You Can Find More Information. The unaudited pro forma combined data below is for illustrative purposes only. The financial results may have been different had the companies always been combined. You should not rely on this information as indicative of the historical results that would have been achieved had the companies always been combined or the future results that FNF will experience after the Merger.

Set forth below are net income, cash dividends and book value per common share amounts for FNF and ANFI on a historical basis, for FNF on a pro forma combined basis, and on a pro forma combined basis per ANFI-equivalent-common-share. The exchange ratio is 0.454 of one share of FNF common stock for each share of ANFI common stock.

The FNF pro forma combined data was derived by combining the adjusted historical consolidated financial information of FNF and ANFI using the purchase method of accounting for business combinations as described under Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Statements.

The ANFI equivalent-common-share pro forma information shows the effect of the Merger from the perspective of an owner of ANFI common stock. The information was computed by multiplying the FNF pro forma information by the exchange ratio of 0.454.

	FNF Historical	ANFI Historical	Pro Forma Combined(1)	Equivalent Pro Forma Amount Per Share of ANFI(2)
As of and for the Nine Months Ended				
September 30, 2002				
Basic net income per share of common stock from				
continuing operations	\$ 3.74	\$1.73	\$ 3.78	\$ 1.72
Diluted net income per share of common stock from				
continuing operations	\$ 3.61	\$1.50	\$ 3.63	\$ 1.65
Book value per share of common stock	\$22.03	\$5.17	\$22.67	\$10.23
Cash dividends declared per share of common stock	\$ 0.31	\$0.33	\$ 0.31	\$ 0.14
As of and for the Year Ended				
December 31, 2001				
Basic net income per share of common stock from				
continuing operations	\$ 3.31	\$1.20	\$ 3.26	\$ 1.48
Diluted net income per share of common stock from				
continuing operations	\$ 3.21	\$1.09	\$ 3.14	\$ 1.43
Book value per share of common stock	\$17.39	\$4.05	N/A	N/A
Cash dividends declared per share of common stock	\$ 0.34	\$0.34	N/A	N/A

⁽¹⁾ The Pro Forma combined Per Share Data assumes the issuance of approximately 3,181,380 shares of FNF common stock to effect the Merger based on the number of ANFI shares outstanding at January 9, 2003 (0.454 shares of FNF common stock for each share of ANFI common stock). See Note 1 of Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements.

Farrizoloni

⁽²⁾ The Equivalent Pro Forma Amount per share of ANFI represents the equivalent amounts per share that a holder of ANFI common stock would receive, determined by multiplying the Pro Forma amounts by 0.454.

RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the following factors, in addition to the other information included elsewhere in this proxy statement/prospectus and the documents that FNF has filed with the SEC, in considering what action to take in connection with approval of the Merger. Unless the context requires otherwise, the use of the term combined company refers to the combined company of FNF and ANFI after giving effect to the Merger.

Risks Related to the Merger

Because the number of FNF shares of common stock that ANFI shareholders will receive in the Merger is fixed, the value of FNF common stock at the time the ANFI shareholders receive them could be less than their value at the time of ANFI special meeting.

In the Merger, each ANFI share will be converted into the right to receive 0.454 shares of FNF common stock. The Merger Agreement does not provide for an adjustment in the exchange ratio even if there is a decrease in the market price of FNF common stock between the date of this proxy statement/prospectus and the effective date of the Merger. At the time of the ANFI special meeting, ANFI shareholders will not know the exact value of the FNF common stock that they will receive when the Merger is completed. The market price of FNF common stock when the Merger takes place may vary from its price at the date of this document and at the date of the special meetings and thereafter. Such variations in the market price of FNF common stock may result from changes in the business, operations or prospects of ANFI, FNF or the combined company, market assessments of the likelihood that the Merger will be consummated and the timing thereof, regulatory considerations, general market and economic conditions and other factors.

We urge you to obtain current market quotations for FNF common stock and ANFI common stock.

The actual tax treatment of the Merger may differ from the tax treatment FNF and ANFI expect to receive.

The Merger Agreement provides that the obligations of the parties to complete the Merger are conditioned upon the receipt as of the time of the Merger by ANFI of an opinion of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, counsel to FNF, to the effect that, on the basis of facts, representations and reasonable assumptions set forth in the opinion and subject to the qualifications discussed below, for United States federal income tax purposes, the Merger will be treated as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368 of the Internal Revenue Code.

The Merger Agreement provides that the obligations of the parties to complete the Merger are conditioned upon the receipt as of the time of the Merger by FNF of an opinion of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth (or other counsel acceptable to FNF) to the effect that, on the basis of facts, representations and reasonable assumptions set forth in the opinion and subject to the qualifications discussed below, for United States federal income tax purposes, the Merger will be treated as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368 of the Internal Revenue Code.

In rendering the tax opinion with respect to the matters described above and as to the accuracy of the discussion of certain United States federal income tax consequences of the Merger herein, counsel will rely upon, and will assume as accurate and correct (without any independent investigation) certain representations as to factual matters contained in certificates delivered by ANFI and FNF. If such representations as to factual matters are inaccurate, the opinion could be adversely affected. The tax opinion will represent tax counsel s best judgment as to the tax treatment of the Merger, but will not be binding on the IRS, and the companies cannot assure you that the IRS will not contest the conclusions expressed therein. If, contrary to the conclusions reached in the opinion of tax counsel, the Merger is not treated as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368 of the Internal Revenue Code, the Merger will be fully taxable to ANFI and the ANFI shareholders.

Difficulties associated with integrating FNF and ANFI could affect the combined company s ability to realize cost savings.

FNF and ANFI expect the combined company to realize cost savings and other financial and operating benefits from the Merger, but there can be no assurance regarding when or the extent to which the combined

company will be able to realize these benefits. Difficulties associated with integrating FNF and ANFI would have an adverse effect on the combined company s ability to realize the expected financial and operational benefits of the Merger.

Insurance regulators may not approve FNF s plans to convert ANFI s title and escrow operations to Ticor operations.

One of FNF s reasons for seeking to acquire ANFI is its expectation that the Merger will result in synergies for the combined company s operations, including the decision to change the name of ANFI to Ticor, one of FNF s existing title insurance brands, following the Merger to enable FNF to further develop and expand the Ticor brand. Following the Merger, FNF intends to seek the approval of insurance regulatory authorities in New York and California for the conversion of ANFI s title and escrow operations to Ticor operations. While FNF has no reason to believe that it will not be granted regulatory approval for the conversion, FNF cannot assure you that such approval will be obtained.

The price of FNF s common stock may fluctuate rapidly and prevent stockholders from selling their stock at a profit.

The market price of FNF s common stock could fluctuate rapidly and affect the amount of profit, if any, which stockholders may realize from the sale of FNF common stock. Since January 1, 2002 and through January 21, 2003 the market price has ranged from a low of \$21.70 per share to a high of \$34.68 per share. Fluctuations may occur, among other reasons, in response to:

operating results;
announcements by FNF or its competitors;
regulatory changes;
economic changes;
general market conditions; and
other risk factors described in this proxy statement/prospectus

The trading price of FNF s common stock could continue to be subject to wide fluctuations in response to the factors set forth above and other factors, many of which are beyond FNF s control. The stock market in recent years has experienced extreme price and trading volume fluctuations that often have been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of individual companies. You should consider the likelihood of these market fluctuations before voting to approve the Merger pursuant to which you will receive FNF stock.

The sale of a substantial amount of FNF common stock after the Merger could adversely affect the market price of FNF common stock.

All of the shares of FNF common stock that ANFI shareholders receive in the Merger may be sold immediately, except possibly some of the shares received by affiliates of ANFI within the meaning of Rule 145 of the Securities Act of 1933. Substantially all of the outstanding shares of FNF common stock are freely tradable (subject to certain Rule 144 restrictions in the case of FNF affiliates). The sale of a substantial amount of FNF common stock after the Merger could adversely affect its market price. It could also impair FNF s ability to raise money through the sale of more stock or other forms of capital. In addition, the sale of authorized but unissued shares of FNF common stock by FNF after the Merger could adversely affect its market price. Based on assumptions set forth in the Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Statements, it is expected that there will be approximately 99,379,000 shares of FNF common stock outstanding after the Merger, excluding FNF shares held as treasury stock and FNF shares issuable upon the exercise of outstanding options and warrants.

Risks Related to FNF

FNF s revenues may decline during periods when the demand for FNF s products and services decreases.

In the title insurance industry, revenues are directly affected by the level of real estate activity and the average price of real estate sales on both a national and local basis. Real estate sales are directly affected by changes in the cost of financing purchases of real estate i.e., mortgage interest rates. Other macroeconomic

factors affecting real estate activity include, but are not limited to, demand for housing, employment levels, family income levels and general economic conditions. Because these factors can change dramatically, revenue levels in the title insurance industry can also change dramatically. For example, beginning in late 1995 and into 1998, the level of real estate activity increased, including refinancing transactions, new home sales and resales, due in part to decreases in mortgage interest rates. Stable mortgage interest rates and strength in the real estate market, especially in California and throughout the West Coast, contributed to very positive conditions for the title insurance industry throughout 1997 and 1998. However, during the second half of 1999 and through 2000, steady interest rate increases caused by actions taken by the Federal Reserve Board resulted in a significant decline in refinancing transactions. As a result, the market shifted from a refinance-driven market in 1998 to a more traditional market driven by new home purchases and resales in 1999 and 2000. However, beginning in December 2000 and continuing through the fourth quarter of 2002, interest rates have been reduced by 525 basis points, bringing interest rates down to their lowest level in recent history, which again has significantly increased the volume of refinance activity.

Historically, real estate transactions have produced seasonal revenue levels for title insurers. The first calendar quarter is typically the weakest quarter in terms of revenue due to the generally low volume of home sales during January and February. The fourth calendar quarter is typically the strongest in terms of revenue due to commercial entities desiring to complete transactions by year-end. Significant changes in interest rates may alter these traditional seasonal patterns due to the effect the cost of financing has on the volume of real estate transactions.

FNF s revenues in future periods will continue to be subject to these and other factors which are beyond its control and, as a result, are likely to fluctuate.

As a holding company, FNF depends on distributions from its subsidiaries, and if distributions from its subsidiaries are materially impaired, FNF s ability to declare and pay dividends may be adversely affected.

FNF is a holding company whose primary assets are the securities of its operating subsidiaries. FNF s ability to pay dividends is dependent on the ability of its subsidiaries to pay dividends or repay funds to FNF. If FNF s operating subsidiaries are not able to pay dividends or repay funds to FNF, FNF may not be able to declare and pay dividends to you.

FNF s title insurance and home warranty subsidiaries must comply with state and federal laws which require them to maintain minimum amounts of working capital, surplus and reserves, and place restrictions on the amount of dividends that they can distribute to FNF. During 2001, approximately 91.4% of FNF s year-to-date revenues was derived from subsidiaries engaged in these regulated businesses. Compliance with these laws will limit the amounts FNF s regulated subsidiaries can dividend to FNF. During 2002, FNF s title insurance subsidiaries could pay dividends or make other distributions to FNF of \$114.3 million.

FNF s entering into new business lines subjects it to associated risks, such as the diversion of management attention, difficulty integrating operations and lack of experience in operating such businesses.

FNF has acquired, and may in the future acquire, businesses in industries with which management is less familiar than FNF is with the title insurance industry. For example, on January 28, 2003, FNF entered into a stock purchase agreement with ALLTEL Corporation whereby FNF will acquire from ALLTEL Corporation the financial services division, ALLTEL Information Services, Inc. Also, in the last three years, FNF has expanded the range and amount of real estate related services it provides, began underwriting home warranty policies, invested in restaurant businesses, expanded its commercial title insurance business and considered acquiring underwriters of other lines of insurance products. These activities involve risks that could adversely affect FNF s operating results, such as diversion of management s attention, integration of the operations, systems and personnel of the new businesses and lack of substantial experience in operating such businesses.

Difficulties FNF may encounter managing its growth could adversely affect its results of operations.

FNF has historically achieved growth through a combination of developing new products and services, increasing its market share for existing products, and acquisitions. Part of its strategy is to pursue opportunities

to diversify and expand its operations by acquiring or making investments in other companies. The success of each acquisition will depend upon:

FNF s ability to integrate the acquired business operations, products and personnel;

FNF s ability to retain key personnel of the acquired businesses; and

FNF s ability to expand its financial and management controls and reporting systems and procedures.

FNF s subsidiaries that engage in insurance related businesses must comply with additional regulations. These regulations may impede, or impose burdensome conditions on, FNF s rate increases or other actions that FNF might want to take to increase the revenues of its subsidiaries.

FNF s title insurance business is subject to extensive regulation by state insurance authorities in each state in which it operates. These agencies have broad administrative and supervisory power relating to the following, among other matters:

licensing requirements;
trade and marketing practices;
accounting and financing practices;
capital and surplus requirements;
the amount of dividends and other payments made by insurance subsidiaries;
investment practices;
rate schedules;
deposits of securities for the benefit of policyholders;
establishing reserves; and
regulation of reinsurance.

Most states also regulate insurance holding companies like FNF with respect to acquisitions, changes of control and the terms of transactions with its affiliates. These regulations may impede or impose burdensome conditions on FNF s rate increases or other actions that FNF may want to take to enhance its operating results, and could affect its ability to pay dividends on its common stock. In addition, FNF may incur significant costs in the course of complying with regulatory requirements. FNF cannot assure you that future legislative or regulatory changes will not adversely affect its business operations.

FNF faces competition in its industry from traditional title insurers and from new entrants with alternative products.

The title insurance industry is highly competitive. According to Corporate Development Services, the top five title insurance companies accounted for 88% of net premiums collected in 2001. Over 40 independent title insurance companies accounted for the remaining 12% of the market. The number and size of competing companies varies in the different geographic areas in which FNF conducts its business. In FNF s principal markets, competitors include other major title underwriters such as First American Corporation, LandAmerica Financial Group, Inc., Old Republic International Corporation and Stewart Information Services Corporation, as well as numerous independent agency operations at the regional and local level. These smaller companies may expand into other markets in which FNF competes. Also, the removal of regulatory barriers might result in new competitors entering the title insurance business, and those new competitors may include diversified financial services companies that have greater financial resources than FNF does and possess other competitive advantages. Competition among the major title insurance companies, expansion by smaller regional companies and any new entrants with alternative products could affect FNF s business operations and financial condition.

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FNF and ANFI are providing the following Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information to give you a better picture of what the results of operations and financial position of FNF might have been had the Merger been completed at an earlier date. The Unaudited Pro Form Condensed Combined Statements of Earnings for the nine months ended September 30, 2002 and the year ended December 31, 2001 give effect to the Merger as if it had been completed on January 1, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The Unaudited Condensed Combined Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2002 gives effect to the Merger as if it had been completed on that date.

As of January 9, 2003, FNF owned approximately 28% of ANFI s outstanding common stock and accounts for ANFI under the equity method of accounting. Accordingly, FNF does not have a controlling financial interest in ANFI.

The acquisition of the noncontrolling equity interest (72%) of ANFI will be accounted for under the purchase method of accounting in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 141, *Business Combinations*(SFAS 141). Under the purchase method of accounting, assets acquired and liabilities assumed are recorded at their estimated fair values. Goodwill is created to the extent that the merger consideration, including certain acquisition and closing costs, exceeds the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired. FNF has not yet completed its analysis of the fair value of the net identifiable assets to be acquired, which includes, among other things, estimating the fair value of ANFI is property and equipment, title plants, operating leases and backlog of open orders. Based on the information currently available, the Merger is expected to initially create approximately \$117.0 million in goodwill. The actual goodwill arising from the Merger will be based on the merger consideration, including certain acquisition and closing costs, the fair values of assets and liabilities on the date the Merger is consummated, and the fair value of FNF options exchanged for outstanding ANFI options in accordance with FASB Interpretation 44 (FIN 44). No assurance can be given that the actual goodwill amount arising from the Merger will not be more or less than the amount contemplated in the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information. In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 142, *Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets* (SFAS 142), goodwill will be initially recognized and measured based on its fair value and will not be amortized, but tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if circumstances indicate potential impairment, through a comparison of fair value to its carrying amount.

FNF and ANFI have prepared the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Financial Information based on available information, using assumptions that their respective management believes are reasonable. The Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information is being provided for informational purposes only. It does not purport to represent FNF s actual financial position or results of operations had the Merger occurred on the dates specified nor does it project FNF s results of operations or financial position for any future period or date.

The Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information should be read in conjunction with FNF s and ANFI s audited and unaudited historical financial information and related notes, as well as Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included herein and incorporated by reference herein. FNF and ANFI s share and per share data for the year ended December 31, 2001 has been retroactively adjusted for FNF s 10% stock dividend in May 2002 and ANFI s five-for-four (25%) stock split in July 2002. In addition, certain reclassifications have been made to both FNF and ANFI s prior year amounts to conform with their respective 2002 presentation. Additional reclassifications have been made to ANFI s financial information to conform with FNF s financial information presentation. See Where You Can Find More Information.

28

FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

September 30, 2002

	FNF Historical	ANFI Historical	Combined	Pro Forma Adjustments	Pro Forma
		4 aarma	(In thousands)		
Tourseton suite.		ASSETS			
Investments: Fixed maturities available for sale at					
fair value at September 30, 2002 includes \$186,260 of pledged FNF fixed maturity securities related to					
secured trust deposits	\$1,243,612	\$25,331	\$1,268,943		\$1,268,943
Equity securities, at fair value	88,779	1,289	90,068		90,068
Other long-term investments	34,456		34,456	(21,461)(2),(3)	12,995
Settlement of investments, at September 30, 2002 includes \$73,048 of pledged FNF investments related to secured trust					
deposits	215,921		215,921		215,921
Short-term investments, at September 30, 2002 includes \$394,973 of pledged FNF cash					
related to trust deposits	869,812	1,290	871,102		871,102
•					
Total investments	2,452,580	27,910	2,480,490	(21,461)	2,459,029
Cash and cash equivalents, at September 30, 2002 includes \$394,973 of pledged FNF cash related to secured	_,,	_,,,,,,,,	_,,,,,,,,,	(,,,	_,,
trust deposits	549,753	17,658	567,411		567,411
Leases and residual interests in					
securitizations	141,714		141,714		141,714
Trade receivables, net	181,208	4,174	185,382		185,382
Notes receivable, net (related party \$6,426 in 2002)	17,775		17,775		17,775
Cost in excess of net assets acquired,					
net	947,275	11,226	958,501	105,740(2),(4)	1,064,241
Prepaid expenses and other assets	365,996	2,844	368,840	(2,776)(2),(5)	366,064
Title plants	275,988	4,132	280,120	(1,100)(2),(6)	279,020
Property and equipment, net	165,376	10,315	175,691		175,691
Deferred tax asset	99,120	5,197	104,317		104,317
	\$5,196,785	\$83,456	\$5,280,241	\$ 80,403	\$5,360,644
	LIABILITIES	AND STOCKHO	OLDERS EQUITY		
Liabilities:			_		
Accounts payable and accrued					
liabilities	\$ 606,395	\$20,217	\$ 626,612		\$ 626,612
Notes payable	513,856	2,860	516,716	(745)(2),(6)	515,971
Reserve for claim losses	892,675	5,494	898,169		898,169
Secured trust deposits	855,876		855,876		855,876
Due to affiliate		2,776	2,776	(2,776)(2),(5)	
Income taxes payable	105,309	2,940	108,249		108,249

Edgar Filing: FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL INC /DE/ - Form S-4

	2,974,111	34,287	3,008,398	(3,521)	3,004,877
Minority interests and preferred					
stock of subsidiary	115,561		115,561		115,561
Stockholders equity:					
Preferred stock					
Common stock	10		10		10
Additional paid-in capital	1,542,118	23,442	1,565,560	113,440(1)	1,679,000
Retained earnings	575,165	26,578	601,743	(26,578)(1)	575,165
Accumulated other comprehensive					
earnings	17,970	(851)	17,119	851(1)	17,970
Unearned compensation				(3,789)(1)	(3,789)
Treasury stock	(28,150)		(28,150)		(28,150)
	2,107,113	49,169	2,156,282	83,924	2,240,206
	\$5,196,785	\$83,456	\$5,280,241	\$ 80,403	\$5,360,644

See accompanying Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements.

FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2002

	FNF Historical	ANFI Historical	Combined	Pro Forma Adjustments	Pro Forma
		(In th			
Revenue:					
Title insurance premiums	\$2,408,416	\$ 13,763	\$2,422,179		\$2,422,179
Net title service revenues		75,320	75,320	(75,320)(5)	
Escrow and other title related fees	679,304	30,692	709,996		709,996
Real estate related services	308,183	15,547	323,730		323,730
Interest and investment income	59,023	1,137	60,160	(2.50.0.5)	60,160
Realized gains, net	9,195	2,461	11,656	(3,534)(7)	8,122
Other income	28,550		28,550		28,550
	3,492,671	138,920	3,631,591	(78,854)	3,552,737
Expenses:					
Personnel costs	1,037,722	70,338	1,108,060		1,108,060
Other operating expenses	717,046	33,213	750,259	2,790(8)	753,049
Agent commissions	1,020,936	7,333	1,028,269	(75,320)(5)	952,949
Provision for claim losses	120,421	931	121,352	, , , , ,	121,352
Amortization of cost in excess of					
net assets acquired					
Interest expense	25,999	239	26,238		26,238
	2,922,124	112,054	3,034,178	(72,530)	2,961,648
				(72,880)	2,501,010
Famings before income toyes and					
Earnings before income taxes and minority interest	570,547	26,866	597,413	(6,324)	591,089
Income tax expense	205,397	11,015	216,412	(6,296)(9)	210,116
meome tax expense		11,015	210,412	(0,290)(9)	210,110
Earnings before minority interest	365,150	15,851	381,001	(28)	380,973
Minority interest	8,368		8,368	, ,	8,368
Earnings from continuing					
operations	\$ 356,782	\$ 15,851	\$ 372,633	\$ (28)	\$ 372,605
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations	\$ 3.74	\$ 1.73	N/A	N/A	\$ 3.78(10)
continuing operations	ψ <i>3.</i> 7 4	ψ 1.75	IVA	IVA	\$ 3.78(10)
Weighted average shares					
outstanding, basic	95,276	9,147	N/A	N/A	98,458(10)
Diluted earnings per share from					
continuing operations	\$ 3.61	\$ 1.50	N/A	N/A	\$ 3.63(10)
Weighted average shares outstanding, diluted	98,762	10,584	N/A	N/A	102,739(10)
outstanding, unuted	90,702	10,304	IN/A	IN/A	102,/39(10)

See accompanying Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements.

FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001

	FNF Historical	ANFI Historical	Combined	Pro Forma Adjustments	Pro Forma			
		(In thousands, except per share data)						
Revenue:								
Title insurance premiums	\$2,694,479	\$ 8,890	\$2,703,369		\$2,703,369			
Net title service revenues		76,435	76,435	(76,435)(5)				
Escrow and other title related fees	728,406	32,176	760,582		760,582			
Real estate related services	287,063	17,080	304,143		304,143			
Interest and investment income	93,105	1,267	94,372		94,372			
Realized gains, net	6,349	1,001	7,350	(3,641)(7)	3,709			
Other income	64,705		64,705		64,705			
	3,874,107	136,849	4,010,956	(80,076)	3,930,880			
					<u> </u>			
Expenses:								
Personnel costs	1,187,177	73,909	1,261,086		1,261,086			
Other operating expenses	829,433	36,443	865,876	3,111(8)	868,987			
Agent commissions	1,098,328	4,659	1,102,987	(76,435)(5)	1,026,552			
Provision for claim losses	134,724	1,104	135,828		135,828			
Amortization of cost in excess of net								
assets acquired	54,155	551	54,706		54,706			
Interest expense	46,569	422	46,991		46,991			
	3,350,386	117,088	3,467,474	(73,324)	3,394,150			
			<u> </u>		<u> </u>			
Earnings before income taxes and								
minority interest	523,721	19,761	543,482	(6,752)	536,730			
Income tax expense	209,488	8,497	217,985	(6,523)(9)	211,462			
Earnings before minority interest	314,233	11,264	325,497	(229)	325,268			
Minority interest	3,048	11,20.	3,048	(22)	3,048			
morey merest								
Earnings from continuing operations	\$ 311,185	\$ 11,264	\$ 322,449	\$ (229)	\$ 322,220			
Basic earnings per share from								
continuing operations	\$ 3.31	\$ 1.20	N/A	N/A	\$ 3.31(10)			
•								
XX7 ' 1 (1) 1 ((1) 1)								
Weighted average shares outstanding,	04.040	0.207	37/4	27/4	07.220(10)			
basic	94,048	9,386	N/A	N/A	97,229(10)			
Diluted earnings per share from								
continuing operations	\$ 3.21	\$ 1.09	N/A	N/A	\$ 3.20(10)			
W7 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1								
Weighted average shares outstanding,	04.045	10.205	37/4	37/4	100 500 (10)			
diluted	96,865	10,295	N/A	N/A	100,723(10)			

See accompanying Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements.

FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

1. As of January 9, 2003, FNF owned approximately 28% of ANFI s outstanding common stock. This pro forma adjustment reflects the purchase price for the remaining 72% of ANFI s outstanding common stock:

a.	In the Merger, each share of ANFI common stock will be exchanged for
	.454 shares of FNF common stock. This is a fixed exchange ratio. Based
	on ANFI s shares outstanding as of January 9, 2003, the date the Merger
	Agreement was signed, FNF anticipates issuing approximately
	3,181,380 shares of FNF common stock in the Merger. For purpose of
	this analysis and in accordance with EITF 99-12, the assumed common
	stock price is \$32.35 per share, which represents the average closing price
	of FNF common stock on the NYSE for the two day period beginning
	two days prior through two days subsequent to December 16, 2002, the
	last trading day before the public announcement of the Merger (the
	Valuation Date)

\$102,911

b. In the Merger, each vested and unvested option and warrant to purchase ANFI common stock will be exchanged for 0.454 vested and unvested options and warrants to purchase FNF common stock. This pro forma adjustment reflects the fair value of the vested and unvested options and warrants using FNF s common stock price on the Valuation Date

33,971

c. In accordance with FIN 44, unearned compensation costs are recorded upon consummation of the Merger for the portion of the intrinsic value, at the consummation date, of the unvested FNF options that will be exchanged for unvested ANFI options. This pro forma adjustment reflects the establishment of unearned compensation cost on the pro forma September 30, 2002 balance sheet, in the amount of

(3,789)

Total recorded purchase price

\$133,093

2. The preliminary purchase price allocation is as follows:

\$ 37,293
116,966
(21,166)
\$133,093

- 3. This pro forma adjustment eliminates FNF s 28% investment in ANFI of \$21,461 as of September 30, 2002.
- 4. This pro forma adjustment eliminates ANFI s unamortized cost in excess of net assets acquired of \$11,226 as of September 30, 2002, and records cost in excess of net assets acquired of \$116,966.
- 5. This pro forma adjustment eliminates the intercompany transactions and balances between FNF and ANFI.
- 6. This pro forma adjustment eliminates ANFI s title plant under capital lease of \$1,100 and capital lease obligation of \$745 with FNF.

7. This pro forma adjustment eliminates the effect of the equity method of accounting of ANFI recorded by FNF of \$3,534 for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2002 and \$3,641 for the year ended December 31, 2001.

- 8. In accordance with FIN 44, unearned compensation costs are recorded upon consummation of the merger for the unearned portion of the intrinsic value of the unvested FNF options that will be exchanged for unvested ANFI options. The amortization of the unearned compensation cost over the remaining vesting period, results in a pre-tax charge of \$2,790 for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2002 and \$3,111 for the year ended December 31, 2001.
- 9. Income taxes are recorded at the estimated tax rate of 40%, multiplied by the pro forma adjustments to earnings before taxes and minority interest plus the benefit of 5% (state tax rate less federal benefit of state tax) multiplied by net title service revenue recorded by ANFI. ANFI s subsidiary was subject to state income taxes for this revenue; however, if the acquisition had occurred as of January 1, 2002 or 2001, this revenue would have been earned by an insurance subsidiary of FNF and as such would not have been subject to state income taxes.
- 10. The pro forma number of shares used in the per share computation basic is the weighted average number of FNF common shares outstanding during the nine months ended September 30, 2002 and the year ended December 31, 2001 plus the issuance of approximately 3,181,380 shares of FNF common stock to effect the Merger. The pro forma number of shares used in the per share computation diluted includes the impact of the assumed conversions of ANFI dilutive potential securities that will be exchanged for FNF dilutive securities.

MARKET PRICE AND DIVIDEND INFORMATION

FNF s common stock is listed on the NYSE under the symbol FNF. ANFI s common stock is listed on NASDAQ National Market under the symbol ANFI. As of February 6, 2003, there were approximately 1,740 holders of record of FNF common stock, and as of February 3, 2003 there were approximately 55 holders of record of ANFI common stock. The table below sets forth, for the fiscal quarters indicated, the high and low sales prices per share of FNF common stock and ANFI common stock, as reported on the NYSE Composite Tape and the NASDAQ National Market, as applicable. FNF has historically followed a policy of paying quarterly dividends. Since the first quarter of 1999, ANFI has paid cash dividends on a quarterly basis, which payments have been made at the discretion of its Board of Directors. ANFI s last dividend payment in the amount of \$0.125 per share was paid on January 6, 2003 to shareholders of record on December 23, 2002. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, ANFI has agreed to refrain from paying any further dividends prior to the Merger, except that ANFI may pay declare and pay a cash dividend to its shareholders of up to \$0.125 per share during the first quarter of 2003.

FNF Common Stock(1)			ANFI Common Stock(2)		
High	Low	Dividends Declared	High	Low	Dividends Declared
\$15.08	\$ 9.60	\$0.08	\$ 2.86	\$ 2.18	\$ 0.07
16.58	10.33	0.08	2.73	2.00	0.07
20.61	13.95	0.08	2.28	1.95	0.07
32.55	16.32	0.08	2.33	2.27	0.07
\$30.53	\$21.55	\$0.08	\$ 3.64	\$ 2.18	\$ 0.07
23.14	16.61	0.08	4.11	2.91	0.07
24.80	18.55	0.09	7.20	4.00	0.10
25.06	20.19	0.09	6.89	5.24	0.10
\$25.44	\$21.70	\$0.09	\$ 6.88	\$ 5.00	\$ 0.10
31.74	23.96	0.10	12.80	6.32	0.10
32.32	24.55	0.12	14.80	10.55	0.125
33.61	26.79	0.12	15.15	10.27	0.125
\$34.68	\$32.89	\$0.15	\$15.56	\$14.79	N/A
	\$15.08 16.58 20.61 32.55 \$30.53 23.14 24.80 25.06 \$25.44 31.74 32.32 33.61	\$15.08 \$ 9.60 16.58 10.33 20.61 13.95 32.55 16.32 \$30.53 \$21.55 23.14 16.61 24.80 18.55 25.06 20.19 \$25.44 \$21.70 31.74 23.96 32.32 24.55 33.61 26.79	High Low Dividends Declared \$15.08 \$ 9.60 \$0.08 16.58 10.33 0.08 20.61 13.95 0.08 32.55 16.32 0.08 \$30.53 \$21.55 \$0.08 23.14 16.61 0.08 24.80 18.55 0.09 25.06 20.19 0.09 \$25.44 \$21.70 \$0.09 31.74 23.96 0.10 32.32 24.55 0.12 33.61 26.79 0.12	High Low Dividends Declared High \$15.08 \$ 9.60 \$0.08 \$ 2.86 16.58 10.33 0.08 2.73 20.61 13.95 0.08 2.28 32.55 16.32 0.08 2.33 \$30.53 \$21.55 \$0.08 \$ 3.64 23.14 16.61 0.08 4.11 24.80 18.55 0.09 7.20 25.06 20.19 0.09 6.89 \$25.44 \$21.70 \$0.09 \$ 6.88 31.74 23.96 0.10 12.80 32.32 24.55 0.12 14.80 33.61 26.79 0.12 15.15	High Low Dividends Declared High Low \$15.08 \$ 9.60 \$ 0.08 \$ 2.86 \$ 2.18 \$16.58 \$ 10.33 \$ 0.08 \$ 2.73 \$ 2.00 \$20.61 \$ 13.95 \$ 0.08 \$ 2.28 \$ 1.95 \$ 32.55 \$ 16.32 \$ 0.08 \$ 2.33 \$ 2.27 \$ 30.53 \$ 21.55 \$ 0.08 \$ 3.64 \$ 2.18 \$ 23.14 \$ 16.61 \$ 0.08 \$ 4.11 \$ 2.91 \$ 24.80 \$ 18.55 \$ 0.09 \$ 7.20 \$ 4.00 \$ 25.06 \$ 20.19 \$ 0.09 \$ 6.89 \$ 5.24 \$ 25.44 \$ 21.70 \$ 0.09 \$ 6.88 \$ 5.00 \$ 31.74 \$ 23.96 \$ 0.10 \$ 12.80 \$ 6.32 \$ 32.32 \$ 24.55 \$ 0.12 \$ 14.80 \$ 10.55 \$ 33.61 \$ 26.79 \$ 0.12 \$ 15.15 \$ 10.27

- (1) The FNF amounts for 2000, 2001 and 2002 have been adjusted to give retroactive effect to a 10% stock dividend in August 2001 and May 2002.
- (2) The ANFI amounts for 2000, 2001 and 2002 have been adjusted to give retroactive effect to a 10% stock dividend in May 2001 and the five-for-four (25%) stock split in July 2002.

Following the Merger, the holders of FNF common stock will be entitled to receive such dividends as may be declared by FNF s Board of Directors. FNF s current dividend policy anticipates the payment of quarterly dividends in the future. The declaration and payment of dividends will be in the discretion of FNF s Board of Directors and will be dependent upon FNF s future earning, financial condition and capital requirements. FNF s ability to declare dividends is also subject to its compliance with the financial covenants contained in its existing credit agreement. In addition, since FNF is a holding company, its ability to pay dividends depends largely on the ability of its subsidiaries to pay dividends to it, and the ability of its title insurance subsidiaries to do so is subject to, among other factors, their compliance with applicable insurance regulations.

THE ANFI SPECIAL MEETING

This proxy statement/prospectus is being mailed to the holders of ANFI common stock for use at the ANFI special meeting to be held on , 2003 at local time, at The Irvine Marriott Hotel, located at 18000 Von Karman Avenue, Irvine, California 92612, and at any adjournments or postponements thereof.

At the ANFI special meeting, ANFI shareholders will be asked to consider and vote upon a proposal to approve and adopt the Merger Agreement between FNF and ANFI and the Merger.

How to Vote

Your vote is important. Shareholders of record can vote by telephone, on the Internet or by mail as described below. If you are a beneficial owner, please refer to our proxy card or the information forwarded by your bank, broker or other holder of record to see which options are available to you.

Proxies

If you are an ANFI shareholder, you may use the accompanying proxy if you are unable to attend the ANFI special meeting in person or wish to have your shares voted by proxy even if you do attend the ANFI special meeting. All shares of ANFI common stock represented by valid proxies received pursuant to this solicitation, and not revoked before they are exercised, will be voted in the manner specified therein. Proxies that do not contain voting instructions will be voted in favor of approval and adoption of the Merger Agreement and the Merger.

Vote by Telephone

You can vote by calling the toll-free telephone number noted on your proxy card. Telephone voting is available 24 hours a day and will be accessible until 4:00 p.m. (EDT) on , 2003 [one day before that date on which the proxy cards must be received]. Easy-to-follow voice prompts allow you to vote your shares and confirm that your instructions have been properly recorded. Our telephone voting procedures are designed to authenticate shareholders by using individual control numbers. IF YOU VOTE BY TELEPHONE, YOU DO NOT NEED TO RETURN YOUR PROXY CARD.

Vote on the Internet

You also can choose to vote on the Internet. The web site for Internet voting is on your proxy card. Internet voting is available 24 hours a day and will be accessible until 4:00 p.m. (EDT) , 2003 [one day before that date on which the proxy card must be received]. As with telephone voting, you can confirm that your instructions have been properly recorded. Our Internet voting procedures are designed to authenticate shareholders by using individual control numbers. If you vote on the Internet, you also can request electronic delivery of future proxy materials. IF YOU VOTE ON THE INTERNET, YOU DO NOT NEED TO RETURN YOUR PROXY CARD.

Vote by Mail

In order to be effective, completed proxy cards must be received by 8:30 a.m. (EDT) on . If you choose to vote by mail, simply mark your proxy, date and sign it, and return it to the following address:

Voting at the Special Meeting

The method you use to vote will not limit your right to vote at the special meeting if you decide to attend in person. If your shares are held in the name of a bank, broker or other holder of record, you must obtain a proxy, executed in your favor, from the holder of record to be able to vote at the special meeting. All shares that have been properly voted and not revoked will be voted at the special meeting. If you sign and return your proxy card but do not give voting instructions, the shares represented by that proxy will be voted as recommended by the Board of Directors of ANFI.

Voting on Other Matters

If other matters are properly presented at the special meeting for consideration, the persons named on the proxy card will have the discretion to vote on those matters for you.

Revocation of Proxies

Proxies may be revoked at any time before they are voted by:

written notice addressed to ANFI, Inc., 1111 East Katella Avenue, Suite 220, Orange, California 92867, Attention: Jo Ann N. Bunton, Controller;

timely delivery of a valid, later-dated proxy; or

voting by ballot at the special meeting.

However, attendance at the special meeting will not, in itself, constitute revocation of a previously granted proxy.

Record Date; Vote Required

Only holders of record of shares of ANFI common stock at the close of business on , 2003 are entitled to notice of and to vote at the ANFI special meeting, with each share entitled to one vote. ANFI shareholders have limited dissenters or appraisal rights in connection with the Merger.

Approval and adoption of the Merger Agreement requires the favorable vote of the holders of at least a majority of the shares of ANFI common stock voting in person or by proxy at the ANFI special meeting.

On , 2003, which is the record date for the special meeting, there were shares of ANFI common stock issued and outstanding and entitled to vote. One vote may be cast with respect to the Merger Agreement and the Merger for each share of ANFI common stock that was owned on the record date.

As described above under the heading Summary The ANFI Special Meeting Share Ownership of FNF and Affiliates, it is expected that at least 6,122,983, or approximately 64.1% of the outstanding shares of ANFI common stock as of December 31, 2002, will vote in favor of the Merger, assuring ANFI shareholder approval of the Merger Agreement and Merger

Under NASDAQ rules, brokers and nominees are precluded from exercising their voting discretion on the proposal to approve and adopt the Merger and the Merger Agreement and, for this reason, absent specific instructions from the beneficial owner of shares, they are not permitted to vote such shares. In determining whether the Merger and the Merger Agreement are approved, a non-vote will have the same effect as a vote against the Merger Agreement and Merger. ACCORDINGLY, THE ANFI BOARD OF DIRECTORS URGES THE ANFI SHAREHOLDERS TO COMPLETE, DATE AND SIGN THE ACCOMPANYING PROXY AND RETURN IT PROMPTLY IN THE ENCLOSED, POSTAGE-PAID ENVELOPE, OR OTHERWISE VOTE VIA THE INTERNET OR TELEPHONE AS DESCRIBED ABOVE.

Share Ownership of Management and Directors; Voting Agreement

As of February 3, 2003, directors and executive officers of ANFI and their affiliates held and were entitled to vote 3,156,802 shares of ANFI common stock, or approximately 32% of the shares of ANFI common stock outstanding on February 3, 2003. Pursuant to the terms of a voting agreement (the Voting Agreement) entered into concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement, four of the executive officers who are also directors of ANFI and who own in the aggregate 2,557,380 shares of ANFI common stock have agreed to vote all of their shares in favor of the Merger and not to sell any of their outstanding ANFI shares other than shares relating to or obtained as the result of the exercise of ANFI options until the Merger has occurred or the Merger Agreement is terminated. On January 14, 2003, FNF entered into a written waiver with the ANFI holders party to the Voting Agreement, whereby FNF waived any rights it may have to enforce the transfer prohibition as it relates to the exercise of ANFI stock options and any subsequent sale of any shares of ANFI common stock received upon exercise. In this regard, two of the interested

directors of ANFI on January 16 and 17, 2003 sold in the aggregate 170,700 shares of ANFI stock obtained as the result of their exercise of ANFI options in order to begin to reduce their outstanding options to acquire ANFI shares as required by the Merger Agreement and to diversify their own personal investment portfolios.

Quorum

Holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of ANFI common stock entitled to vote must be present, either in person or by proxy, at the ANFI special meeting to constitute a quorum. In general, abstentions and broker non-votes will not be counted as present or represented for the purposes of determining a quorum for the ANFI special meeting.

Expenses of Solicitation

The expenses of the solicitation of proxies with respect to the ANFI special meeting will be borne by ANFI. In addition to solicitation by mail, arrangements will be made with brokers and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries to send proxy materials to their principals and ANFI will, upon request, reimburse them for reasonable expenses of so doing. Solicitation of proxies from some ANFI shareholders may be made by ANFI s officers, directors, consultants and employees by telephone, facsimile, or in person after the initial solicitation.

Recommendation of the ANFI Board of Directors

BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF ITS DISINTERESTED DIRECTORS, THE ANFI BOARD OF DIRECTORS APPROVED THE MERGER AGREEMENT AND THE MERGER, DECLARED THAT THE MERGER AGREEMENT AND THE MERGER ARE ADVISABLE AND DETERMINED THAT THE MERGER IS FAIR TO, AND IN THE BEST INTERESTS OF, ANFI AND THE ANFI SHAREHOLDERS. ACCORDINGLY, BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF ITS DISINTERESTED DIRECTORS, THE ANFI BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT THE ANFI SHAREHOLDERS VOTE FOR APPROVAL AND ADOPTION OF THE MERGER AGREEMENT AND THE MERGER. See The Merger ANFI Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of the ANFI Board of Directors.

Miscellaneous

It is not expected that any other matters will be brought before the ANFI special meeting. If any other matters are properly brought before the ANFI special meeting, including a motion to adjourn or postpone the ANFI special meeting to another time and/or place for the purpose of, among other things, permitting dissemination of information regarding material developments relating to the Merger Agreement and the Merger, or soliciting additional proxies in favor of the approval of the Merger Agreement and the Merger, the persons named on the accompanying proxy card will vote the shares represented by the proxy upon such matters in their discretion. However, if ANFI proposes to adjourn or postpone its special meeting for the purpose of soliciting additional votes in favor of the Merger agreement and the Merger, and seeks a vote of ANFI shareholders on such proposal, proxies that have been voted against the Merger Agreement and Merger (or on which an ANFI shareholder has elected to abstain) will not be voted in favor of any adjournment or postponement for the purpose of soliciting additional proxies. Any other proxy will be deemed to have voted FOR any such adjournment or postponement proposal. Should the ANFI special meeting be reconvened, all proxies will be voted in the same manner as such proxies would have been voted when the ANFI special meeting was originally convened, except for proxies effectively revoked or withdrawn prior to the time proxies are voted at the reconvened ANFI special meeting.

ANFI SHAREHOLDERS SHOULD NOT SEND IN ANY STOCK CERTIFICATES WITH THEIR PROXY CARDS. ANFI SHAREHOLDERS WILL BE SENT SEPARATE WRITTEN INSTRUCTIONS FOR EXCHANGING THEIR STOCK CERTIFICATES PROMPTLY AFTER THE EFFECTIVE TIME OF THE MERGER. FNF STOCKHOLDERS WILL NOT EXCHANGE THEIR STOCK CERTIFICATES IN CONNECTION WITH THE MERGER.

THE MERGER

The following describes certain aspects of the proposed Merger. Because this discussion is a summary, it may not contain all of the information that is important to you. To understand the Merger fully, and for a more complete description of the legal terms of the Merger, you are urged to read the Merger Agreement carefully. A copy of the Merger Agreement is attached as Appendix A to this document and is incorporated in this document by reference.

General

The Merger Agreement provides for the Merger of ANFI with and into a newly formed, wholly-owned subsidiary of FNF, with such wholly-owned subsidiary surviving the Merger as a wholly-owned subsidiary of FNF. The Merger will become effective with the filing of an agreement of merger with the Secretary of State of the State of California. It is anticipated that this filing will be made as soon as practicable after the last of the conditions to the Merger, as set forth in the Merger Agreement, has been satisfied or waived. When the Merger is completed:

the separate corporate existence of ANFI will cease;

the merger subsidiary will continue as the surviving corporation; and

the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the merger subsidiary then in effect will be the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the surviving corporation.

FNF and ANFI hope to complete this transaction by June 30, 2003.

Merger Consideration

In the Merger, each share of ANFI common stock outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger will be converted into the right to receive 0.454 shares of FNF common stock.

No fractional shares of FNF common stock will be issued in the Merger. Any fractional share of FNF common stock which would otherwise be payable to an ANFI shareholder will be settled in cash in an amount equal to the value of such fractional share, based upon the FNF share price at the effective time of the Merger.

When the Merger is completed, each unexercised stock option to buy ANFI common stock outstanding under ANFI s stock option plans and each warrant to purchase ANFI common stock will become an option or warrant to purchase FNF common stock, subject to certain limitations applicable to the senior executives of ANFI. The number of shares of FNF common stock subject to each new option or warrant, as well as the exercise price of each new option or warrant, will be adjusted to reflect the exchange ratio. There will be no change in the vesting schedule applicable to any of the ANFI stock options or warrants.

All ANFI employees shall be eligible to become participants in FNF s employee stock purchase plan with credit for time of service with ANFI and credit from time of participation in the ANFI employee stock purchase plan. At the effective time of the Merger, the ANFI employee stock purchase plan will be terminated in accordance with its provisions.

Background of the Merger

Beginning in mid-2001, ANFI s senior management commenced a strategic review of ANFI s status and market position and prospects, including the status of the real estate market and current interest rates. Then, as now, ANFI was engaged in a highly-cyclical industry, its revenue stream was not diversified and ANFI relied almost entirely on its underwritten title insurance business. At the end of June 2001, the stock of ANFI was trading for approximately \$4 a share, adjusted for the July 2002 stock split, which represented an approximate 33 1/3% decrease in the price per share of ANFI stock since the date of the initial public offering.

As management did not feel the reduction in the price per share of ANFI stock since the date of its initial public offering was reflective of the true value of ANFI, ANFI s senior management ,with the concurrence of

its Board of Directors, retained Houlihan, Lokey, Howard & Zukin Capital (Houlihan Lokey) on October 30, 2001, to act as ANFI s financial advisor. The financial advisor was retained to evaluate ANFI s strategic alternatives and to provide financial advisory and investment banking services in connection with potential transactions such as acquisitions, financings, capital infusions, mergers, consolidations, tender exchange offers, leveraged buyouts, leveraged recapitalizations, sales of assets or equity interests or similar transactions involving all or a substantial part of ANFI s business.

Among other activities, Houlihan Lokey contacted 37 potential buyers. Of that group, three parties showed some level of interest in pursuing a transaction with ANFI. One of those interested parties was FNF, which at that time offered approximately \$10.40 per share, adjusted for the July 18, 2002 ANFI five for four stock split. Another party expressed interest in acquiring ANFI at a price of between \$8.20 to \$9.00 per share, adjusted for the July 2002 stock split. A third party expressed interest at between \$6.40 and \$8.00 per share, adjusted for the July 2002 stock split. During this period the price per share of ANFI stock was trading in the approximate range of \$10.95 per share to \$15.00 per share.

Due to a number of factors, including the fact that none of these offers was meaningfully in excess of the price per share at which ANFI stock was then trading, the fact that ANFI s stock price appreciated significantly over the period between June 2001 and the completion of the Houlihan Lokey initial solicitation of potential buyers in June 2002, and a determination by the ANFI Board of Directors that there was a general lack of interest by prospective buyers at values which would result in a purchase price at a premium to the then market price of ANFI stock, Houlihan Lokey s engagement as financial advisor was terminated by ANFI on or about June 30, 2002.

William P. Foley, II, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of FNF, requested a meeting on December 10, 2002 with Michael C. Lowther, the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of ANFI and Wayne D. Diaz, President of ANFI. Mr. Foley informed Messrs. Lowther and Diaz that FNF was interested in pursuing an acquisition of ANFI based upon the conversion of each common share of ANFI into 0.454 common shares of FNF. Based on the December 10, 2002 closing stock prices, this was an implied value of \$15.00 per ANFI share based on FNF s share price of \$33.04 and represented a 19% premium to ANFI s share price of \$12.63.

On December 11, 2002, at a regularly scheduled meeting of the ANFI Board of Directors, Mr. Lowther announced that he had received an offer from Mr. Foley on behalf of FNF to acquire ANFI. At that meeting, the Board appointed a special committee of the Board of Directors (the Special Committee) consisting of four independent directors to evaluate, negotiate and recommend to the ANFI Board of Directors the advantages and disadvantages of the FNF proposal on an independent basis.

Thereafter, negotiations were commenced between the Special Committee and representatives of FNF regarding the terms of a letter of intent. Immediately following the December 11, 2002, ANFI Board of Directors meeting, the Special Committee contacted Houlihan Lokey concerning their availability to act as financial advisor in connection with the Special Committee s negotiation of the proposed letter of intent with FNF and the possibility of its affiliate, HLHZFA, rendering an rendering an opinion on the fairness of the terms of the transaction.

On December 13, 2002 a non-binding letter of intent was executed between ANFI and FNF. The letter of intent contained several significant conditions to completion of the transaction including a due diligence review period, negotiation of a mutually satisfactory merger agreement, obtaining all necessary regulatory approvals, no material adverse change in ANFI s or FNF s businesses, receipt by ANFI of an acceptable fairness opinion, an opinion as to tax deferred treatment of the merger consideration, ANFI shareholder approval and other customary closing conditions.

On December 13, 2002, the Special Committee retained Houlihan Lokey to act as the Special Committee s exclusive financial advisor to provide financial advisory and investment banking services in connection with the possible acquisition of ANFI by FNF, or an acquisition of ANFI by a party other than FNF. HLHZFA was also engaged to render an opinion to the Special Committee as to the fairness, from a

financial point of view, to the unaffiliated shareholders of ANFI of the consideration to be received by them in connection with the proposal made by FNF or an alternative proposal from a party other than FNF.

Following the execution of the letter of intent on Friday, December 13, 2002, negotiations commenced concerning the terms of a definitive agreement relating to the proposed merger of ANFI and FNF. Pursuant to the letter of intent, ANFI and its representatives were permitted to solicit superior offers from parties other than FNF for a 14 day period commencing on December 13, 2002, subject to a termination fee if ANFI accepted a superior offer. Houlihan Lokey immediately commenced efforts to solicit other offers to acquire ANFI.

On Monday morning, December 16, 2002, prior to the beginning of trading on the New York Stock Exchange and NASDAQ, a press release was issued announcing that FNF and ANFI had entered into a letter of intent pursuant to which FNF would acquire ANFI.

On December 18, 2002, FNF delivered the initial draft of the proposed merger agreement to the Special Committee.

On December 20, 2002 at a meeting of the Special Committee, the law firm of Sheppard, Mullin, Richter & Hampton, LLP, (Sheppard Mullin) was retained by the Special Committee to act as its counsel in connection with the proposed acquisition by FNF. At this meeting the Special Committee reviewed the status of discussions with FNF and the nature of the material terms being negotiated. Discussion included a review of the terms of FNF s acquisition proposal as contained in the letter of intent, and an initial discussion was held concerning the terms of the initial draft of the merger agreement.

On December 24, 2002, the Special Committee met with representatives of Houlihan Lokey, HLHZFA and Sheppard Mullin. At that meeting the representatives of Houlihan Lokey reviewed the status of their search for prospective purchasers. The representatives of Houlihan Lokey stated at this meeting that they were actively testing the market to see what other interest might exist for a possible acquisition of ANFI. It was also noted that because of FNF s familiarity with ANFI through its part ownership of ANFI and its rendering of management services to ANFI, that the risk of not closing due to possible due diligence problems was reduced significantly. Representatives of Houlihan Lokey advised the Special Committee that the two parties that had expressed interest during the search previously conducted in mid-June, 2002, were no longer interested. In addition, representatives of HLHZFA reviewed the status of preparation of their fairness opinion relating to the FNF proposal and reviewed the terms of the FNF offer, including the consideration to be paid. At this meeting, Sheppard Mullin also discussed the fiduciary duties of the members of the Special Committee in conducting their deliberations.

On the afternoon of December 27, 2002 the Special Committee received via telefax a letter from the President of First American Title Insurance Company requesting information concerning ANFI and expressing its interest in pursuing an acquisition of ANFI. As a result of this expression of interest from First American Title Insurance Company (First American), a Special Committee meeting was held that afternoon at which it was decided to deliver any information reasonably requested by First American up to and including the last day of the fourteen-day non-exclusive period provided for in the letter of intent in which non-public information could be given to an interested third party prior to ANFI s receipt of an offer superior to the FNF offer. All documents which First American requested for review on December 27, 2002 were provided to it that same day.

On December 30, 2002 another meeting of the Special Committee was held with the participation of Sheppard Mullin and representatives of Houlihan Lokey to determine the results of the market search. Houlihan Lokey reported that, other than First American, no party expressed interest in pursuing a possible acquisition of ANFI. As a result of this meeting it was decided to contact the President of First American to inform him of the time parameters in which First American would have to make its offer in order to have it considered by the Special Committee prior to proceeding with the FNF offer. Representatives of HLHZFA, also present at the meeting, notified the Special Committee that on January 6, 2003 they would present to the Special Committee on a preliminary basis their findings regarding the fairness from a financial point of view of

the proposed consideration to be paid by FNF to the Unaffiliated Shareholders of ANFI in connection with the Merger.

On or about January 5, 2003, the President of First American notified the Special Committee that First American had decided not to pursue the acquisition of ANFI.

At the January 6, 2003 meeting of the Special Committee, representatives from Houlihan Lokey and HLHZFA were present together with counsel from Sheppard Mullin. Representatives of Houlihan Lokey reviewed the fact that they were unable to generate other offers to acquire ANFI. Representatives of HLHZFA also discussed the due diligence which they had undertaken in connection with the proposed fairness opinion, including meetings with members of the senior management of ANFI, reviewing 10-K and 10-Q filings for both ANFI and FNF, reviewing a budget of ANFI s financial performance for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2003, historical market prices and trading volumes for both ANFI and FNF, reviewing drafts of documents relating to the proposed merger, including the Merger Agreement, and reviewing other publicly available financial data related to the acquisition of certain companies comparable to ANFI. During the January 6, 2003 meeting, HLHZFA delivered its preliminary conclusion to the Special Committee that as of that date, based on the assumptions made, matters considered and limits of review as set forth in such opinion, the consideration to be received by the Unaffiliated Shareholders in connection with the Merger was fair to them from a financial point of view. At this meeting HLHZFA presented a draft of an analysis it had used to reach its preliminary conclusion, which it reviewed with the Special Committee and its counsel. At that meeting, counsel to the Special Committee, as well as counsel to ANFI, reviewed the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement and updated the Special Committee as to how issues had been resolved. Sheppard Mullin again reviewed with the members of the Special Committee their fiduciary duties under California law. It was also brought to the attention of the Special Committee that First American had stated that it was not interested in pursuing a acquisition of ANFI. The Special Committee decided to hold another meeting to provide additional time to review in more detail the fairness analysis, and thereafter have another opportunity to further question HLHZFA regarding its findings and confer with counsel to the Special Committee at a follow-up meeting of the Special Committee.

On January 9, 2003 another meeting of the Special Committee was held. Also participating in the meeting were counsel to the Special Committee, Sheppard Mullin, and representatives of HLHZFA. At this meeting HLHZFA provided the Special Committee with its written fairness opinion with respect to the Merger and again reviewed its fairness analysis. At this meeting, HLHZFA again stated that it was of the opinion that the consideration to be received by the Unaffiliated Shareholders of ANFI in connection with the proposed Merger was fair from a financial point of view. Also at this meeting the final terms of the proposed Merger Agreement were reviewed and discussed. After further discussion with HLHZFA and Sheppard Mullin, the Special Committee voted unanimously to recommend to the Board of Directors of ANFI the approval of the terms of the proposed merger with FNF as fair and in the best interests the shareholders of ANFI, expressly including the Unaffiliated Shareholders.

On January 9, 2003, another meeting of the full ANFI Board of Directors was held, at which the terms of the final proposed merger agreement were reviewed and discussed, as well as the fairness opinion that had been rendered by HLHZFA. A review of the proposed transaction since the original receipt of the FNF proposal was conducted, as well as a review of the results of Houlihan Lokey's attempt to solicit interest from third parties in acquiring ANFI. Following further discussion, ANFI is Board, by the unanimous affirmative vote of the disinterested directors, approved the form of the Merger Agreement and the execution of the Merger Agreement and determined that the merger was fair to, and in the best interest of, ANFI and the Unaffiliated Shareholders of ANFI. ANFI and FNF then executed the Merger Agreement on January 9, 2003. FNF and ANFI issued a press release announcing the execution of the Merger Agreement on January 10, 2003, prior to the beginning of trading on the New York Stock Exchange and the NASDAQ. Concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement, four interested directors of ANFI executed the Voting Agreement with FNF wherein they agreed to vote all their shares in favor of the Merger at the special shareholders meeting and not to sell any ANFI shares prior the Merger. On January 14, 2003, FNF agreed that, notwithstanding the terms of the Voting Agreement, shares relating to or acquired as the result of the

exercise of outstanding options as of the date of the Merger Agreement could be sold by the ANFI executives who were parties to the Voting Agreement.

On January 16 and 17, 2003, Carl A. Strunk and Barbara A. Ferguson, two of the interested directors, elected to exercise ANFI options and in the aggregate sold 170,700 shares of ANFI in order to begin to reduce their outstanding options to acquire ANFI shares as required by the Merger Agreement and to diversify their own personal investment portfolios. Subsequently, FNF agreed to permit ANFI to declare and pay a cash dividend during the first quarter not to exceed \$0.125 per share, subject to reaching an agreement on the timing of the dividend.

FNF Reasons for the Merger

The FNF Board of Directors, by unanimous vote of the disinterested members, has approved the Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, has deemed the Merger advisable and has determined that the terms of the Merger and the Merger are fair and in the best interests of FNF and its stockholders. In reaching its determination to approve the Merger Agreement and the Merger, the FNF Board of Directors consulted with FNF management and its financial and other advisors, and considered a number of factors, including the following.

The current status of FNF s business, operations, financial condition, earnings and prospects, and current industry, economic and market conditions.

The expectation that the Merger would result in synergies for the combined company s operations, including changing the name of ANFI to Ticor following the Merger to enable FNF to further develop and expand its Ticor brand as a third major title brand along with Fidelity Title and Chicago Title.

The belief that the critical mass to be gained by combining ANFI with Ticor s existing operations will be sufficient to gain additional cost savings unavailable to either entity on its own.

The expectation that the direct title operations of ANFI would be a good complement to the existing mix of agency business and direct operations of Ticor.

The experienced management team at ANFI that FNF and its Ticor operations would gain as part of the acquisition.

The business, operations, financial condition, earnings and prospects of ANFI, and current industry, economic and market conditions. In making its determination, the FNF Board of Directors took into account the fact that senior management of FNF had performed a due diligence review of ANFI s business.

The anticipated financial impact of the proposed transaction on FNF s and ANFI s future financial performance, including the effect on earnings, FNF s stock price, and on FNF s stockholders in general.

The complementary nature of the two companies businesses and the close relationship between the boards of directors of the two companies, including a shared director.

The structure of the transaction and the terms of the Merger Agreement, including the fact that the Merger is intended to qualify as a reorganization under Section 368 of the Internal Revenue Code.

The discussion above addresses the material factors considered by the FNF Board of Directors in its consideration of the Merger. In view of the variety of factors and the amount of information considered, the FNF Board of Directors did not find it practicable to, and did not, make specific assessments of, quantify or otherwise assign relative weights to the specific factors considered in reaching its determination. The determination was made after consideration of all of the factors as a whole. In addition, individual members of the FNF Board of Directors may have given different weights to different factors.

THE FNF BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF ITS DISINTERESTED MEMBERS, APPROVED THE MERGER AGREEMENT AND THE MERGER, DECLARED THAT

THE MERGER AGREEMENT AND THE MERGER ARE ADVISABLE AND DETERMINED THAT THE MERGER IS FAIR TO, AND IN THE BEST INTERESTS OF, FNF AND THE FNF STOCKHOLDERS.

ANFI Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of the ANFI Board of Directors

In reaching its determination to recommend approval and adoption of the Merger Agreement and the Merger, the Special Committee of ANFI s Board of Directors consulted with ANFI management, as well as with its financial advisor, Houlihan, Lokey, and its own independent counsel, Sheppard, Mullin, Richter & Hampton, LLP, and considered a number of factors, including the following.

The terms and conditions of the proposed Merger, including the fact that each share of common stock of ANFI is to be converted into the right to receive 0.454 shares of common stock of FNF. This exchange ratio represented a premium of approximately 11% over the preceding day s closing price. Based upon the trailing 30 day average of the ANFI closing prices from December 16, 2002, the exchange ratio represented a premium of 23.7%; for the trailing three month period from the close of trading on December 6, 2002 a premium of 28.3%; for the trailing six month period from the close of trading on December 16, 2002, a premium of 23.1%; and for the trailing 12 month period from the close of trading on December 16, 2002, a premium of 53%.

The fact that ANFI had previously retained Houlihan Lokey from October 30, 2001 through June 30, 2002 to perform a market search for potential purchasers of ANFI, and the highest offer obtained during that period was from FNF at \$10.40 per share (as adjusted for the July 18, 2002 stock split).

The fact that during the previous sale process, Houlihan Lokey had contacted 37 potential buyers, of which only three parties showed interest in pursuing a transaction with ANFI.

The fact that during the non-exclusive period established under the December 13, 2002 letter of intent, ANFI, through Houlihan Lokey, had attempted to solicit superior proposals to the FNF proposal and no other offers were obtained in the market place during this period.

The fact that on July 5, 2002, senior management of ANFI sold 627,982 shares of their ANFI shares (on a pre-split basis) to FNF in a private transaction. Adjusted for the July 18, 2002 stock split, FNF acquired these shares at a price of \$12.00 per share.

The level of competition in the title insurance industry with companies of greater financial resources than ANFI.

The expectation that the exchange of ANFI shares for FNF shares would result in the ANFI shareholders receiving less volatile shares which would not be subject to as wide market fluctuations as the ANFI shares.

The fact that the structure of the transaction is expected to allow tax on the shares of FNF stock to be received by the ANFI shareholders to be deferred until the FNF shares are sold.

The fact that the Merger will allow ANFI shareholders to retain an equity interest in the combined company.

The anticipated benefits of the Merger for ANFI s core businesses as a result of the financial, marketing and distribution advantages that will result from a combination with FNF.

The ANFI Board of Director s assessment of the business, operations, financial condition, earnings and prospects of each of ANFI and FNF. In making its determination, the ANFI Board of Directors took into account the fact that senior management of both FNF and ANFI had a close business relationship due to FNF s beneficial ownership of approximately 28% of the outstanding shares of ANFI and FNF s continuing provision of certain administrative and support functions to ANFI.

The fact that the close business relationship between FNF and ANFI significantly reduced the risk that the transaction might not close due to due diligence concerns.

The likelihood of obtaining required regulatory approvals.

The terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, including:

that ANFI may provide information to and negotiate with unsolicited bidders, if the ANFI Board determines a bid is, or could reasonably be expected to result in, a superior proposal;

that prior to obtaining the ANFI shareholder vote, ANFI may terminate the Merger Agreement to accept a superior proposal for a competing transaction;

that ANFI could be obligated to pay FNF a termination fee of \$2,780,000; and

that while the termination provisions of the Merger Agreement could obligate ANFI to pay FNF a termination fee equal to \$2,780,000, which could have the effect of discouraging alternative proposals for a business combination with ANFI, the Merger Agreement did not preclude bona fide alternative proposals and that the size of the termination fee was reasonable in light of the size and benefits of the transaction. See The Merger Agreement Termination Fee for a description of the termination fee provisions of the Merger Agreement.

The impact of the Merger on employees and customers served by ANFI following the Merger.

The non-financial terms of the transaction, including the fact that ANFI is expected to be operated separately within the FNF corporate group as part of TICOR.

The complementary nature of the two companies businesses and the belief of senior management that ANFI and FNF possess complementary skills and assets.

The fact that ANFI s wholly-owned subsidiary, American Title Company (ATC), had entered into a contract with Chicago Title Insurance Company (CTIC), a wholly-owned subsidiary of FNF, on or about October 1, 2000, pursuant to which ATC agreed that, until June 30, 2007, ATC would act as an exclusive agent for CTIC with respect to the procurement of title insurance policies in 16 counties in California and Arizona, subject to certain exceptions.

That there are risks associated with obtaining the necessary regulatory approvals, and as a result of certain conditions to the completion of the Merger, it is possible that the Merger may not be completed even if approved by shareholders. See
The Merger Agreement
Conditions to the Merger.

The fact that following announcement of the Merger Agreement, ANFI s relationships with employees, agents and customers might be negatively affected because of uncertainty surrounding ANFI s future status and direction.

The fact that the executive officers and directors of ANFI may be deemed to have interests in the proposed Merger that are different from and in addition to the interests of ANFI shareholders generally. See Interests of Certain Persons in the Merger below.

That the opinion of HLHZFA, dated January 9, 2003, stated that as of the date of the opinion and subject to the assumptions, limitations and qualifications contained therein, the consideration to be received by the Unaffiliated Shareholders of ANFI common stock in connection with the Merger was fair to them from a financial point of view. See Opinion of Houlihan Lokey Howard & Zukin Financial Advisors, Inc. to the Special Committee below.

The fact that, based on the collective methodologies used by HLHZFA in support of its January 9, 2003 fairness opinion, that the consideration to be received by the Unaffiliated Shareholders of ANFI common stock in connection with the Merger was fair to them from a financial point of view.

The fact that there was no minimum price or collar in the price of FNF stock as a condition to the closing of the Merger.

The fact that the FNF shares to be received are much more actively traded and FNF is followed by many more analysts.

The discussion above addresses the material factors considered by the ANFI Board of Directors in its consideration of the Merger. In view of the variety of factors and the amount of information considered, the

ANFI Board of Directors did not find it practicable to, and did not, make specific assessments of, quantify or otherwise assign relative weights to the specific factors considered in reaching its determination. The determination was made after consideration of all of the factors as a whole. In addition, individual members of the ANFI Board of Directors may have given different weights to different factors. For a discussion of the interests of certain members of ANFI s management and the ANFI Board of Directors in the Merger, including the election of certain interested directors to exercise options and sell ANFI shares on January 16 and 17, 2003. See Interests of Certain Persons in the Merger below.

BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE DISINTERESTED DIRECTORS, THE ANFI BOARD OF DIRECTORS HAS APPROVED THE MERGER AGREEMENT AND THE MERGER, DECLARED THAT THE MERGER AGREEMENT AND THE MERGER ARE ADVISABLE AND DETERMINED THAT THE MERGER IS FAIR TO, AND IN THE BEST INTERESTS OF, ANFI AND THE ANFI SHAREHOLDERS. ACCORDINGLY, THE ANFI BOARD RECOMMENDS THAT THE ANFI SHAREHOLDERS VOTE FOR APPROVAL AND ADOPTION OF THE MERGER AGREEMENT AND THE MERGER.

Opinion of Houlihan Lokey Howard & Zukin Financial Advisors, Inc. to the Special Committee

On December 13, 2002, the Special Committee of the Board of Directors of ANFI retained Houlihan Lokey Howard & Zukin Financial Advisors, Inc. (HLHZFA) to render an opinion (the Opinion) to the Special Committee as to the fairness, from a financial point of view, of the consideration to be received by the Unaffiliated Shareholders of ANFI s in connection with the Merger. The term Unaffiliated Shareholders means the shareholders of ANFI, other then FNF, affiliates of FNF, and the executive management of ANFI. The Special Committee utilized the Opinion in evaluating the Merger.

The Special Committee retained HLHZFA based upon its experience in the valuation of businesses and their securities in connection with mergers, acquisitions, recapitalizations and similar transactions, particularly with respect to insurance and financial services companies. HLHZFA is a nationally recognized investment banking firm that is continually engaged in providing financial advisory services and rendering fairness opinions in connection with mergers and acquisitions, leveraged buyouts, business valuations and securities valuations for a variety of regulatory and planning purposes, recapitalizations, financial restructurings and private placements of debt and equity securities.

On January 9, 2003, HLHZFA delivered the Opinion to the Special Committee to the effect that, as of the date of the Opinion, on the basis of its analysis summarized below and subject to the limitations described below, the consideration to be received by the Unaffiliated Shareholders of ANFI in connection with the Merger is fair to them from a financial point of view.

The full text of the Opinion, which describes, among other things, the assumptions made, general procedures followed, matters considered and limitations on the review undertaken by HLHZFA in rendering the Opinion is attached hereto and is incorporated herein by reference. The summary of the Opinion in this proxy statement/ prospectus is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the Opinion. You are urged to read HLHZFA s Opinion in its entirety.

The Opinion does not constitute a recommendation to the Special Committee or its shareholders on whether or not to support the Merger and does not constitute a recommendation to any shareholder on whether or not to vote in favor or against any matter set forth herein. The Opinion is furnished for the benefit of the Special Committee in evaluating the Merger, and, by its terms, may not be relied upon by any other person without the written consent of HLHZFA, except to the extent required by applicable law.

As compensation to HLHZFA for its services in connection with the rendering of its Opinion, ANFI agreed to pay HLHZFA an aggregate fee of \$450,000. Of this amount, \$270,000 of HLHZFA s aggregate fee is to be paid only upon the successful completion of the Merger. No portion of HLHZFA s aggregate fee is contingent upon the conclusions reached in the Opinion. The fact that ANFI structured HLHZFA s fees for services in connection with the rendering of its fairness opinion as contingent upon the successful completion of the Merger was disclosed to and discussed by the Special Committee at the time of HLHZFA s

engagement, in the presence of counsel to the Special Committee. In addition, ANFI agreed to indemnify HLHZFA and related persons against certain liabilities, including liabilities under federal securities laws that arise out of the engagement of HLHZFA, and to reimburse HLHZFA for its reasonable expenses.

Additionally, Houlihan Lokey, an affiliate of HLHZFA, received \$75,000 in fees, plus reimbursement of its reasonable expenses, from ANFI for financial advisory and investment banking services performed by Houlihan Lokey on behalf of ANFI from October 30, 2001 through June 30, 2002. ANFI engaged Houlihan Lokey during such period and again on December 13, 2002, to solicit indications of interest to sell ANFI both before and after FNF submitted its merger proposal to ANFI s board. Houlihan Lokey is also entitled to be paid an additional fee equal to five percent of the transaction value (equal to the market value of the equity in ANFI at the time of the Merger, plus interest bearing debt of ANFI outstanding as of the effective time of the Merger) in excess of \$168 million. This fee will be adjusted up or down depending on the ANFI stock price and debt outstanding as the time of the Merger.

The Opinion does not address ANFI s underlying business decisions to effect the Merger. HLHZFA did not, and was not requested by ANFI or any other person to make any recommendations as to the form or amount of consideration in connection with the Merger. Furthermore, at the request of ANFI, HLHZFA did not participate in the negotiation of the Merger or its terms or advise ANFI or the Special Committee with respect to alternatives to the Merger. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Houlihan Lokey, an affiliate of HLHZFA, did act as ANFI s financial advisor with respect to the Merger and, although it did not negotiate the terms of the Merger for any party, Houlihan Lokey solicited indications of interest to sell ANFI to parties other than FNF after ANFI had received FNF s merger proposal. At the time HLHZFA was engaged by the Special Committee, it discussed with the Special Committee facts relevant to the Special Committee s determination of HLHZFA s independence with respect to rendering a fairness opinion on the Merger, given HLHZFA s affiliation with Houlihan Lokey.

In arriving at the Opinion, among other things, HLHZFA undertook the following:

- 1) met with certain members of the senior management of ANFI to discuss the operations, financial condition, future prospects, projected operations and performance of ANFI and the pending Merger;
- 2) reviewed ANFI s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended 2001, Form 10-Q for the three quarters ended September 30, 2002, and ANFI-prepared financial statements dated November 30, 2002, which ANFI s management has identified as the most current financial statements available;
- 3) reviewed a budget of ANFI s projected financial performance for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2003 prepared by ANFI s management;
- 4) reviewed the historical market prices and trading volume for ANFI s publicly traded securities and other publicly available information regarding ANFI;
 - 5) reviewed FNF s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended 2001 and Form 10-Q for the three quarters ended September 30, 2002;
- 6) reviewed the historical market prices and trading volume for FNF s publicly traded securities and other publicly available information regarding FNF;
- 7) reviewed drafts of certain documents relating to the Merger, including the draft dated January 8, 2003 of the Merger Agreement by and between FNF and ANFI (which acted as the basis for conclusions reached in the Opinion with respect to the Merger structure);
- 8) reviewed certain other publicly available financial data for certain companies that HLHZFA deemed comparable to ANFI, and publicly available prices and premiums paid in other transactions that HLHZFA considered similar to the Merger; and
 - 9) conducted such other studies, analyses and inquiries as HLHZFA has deemed appropriate.

Analyses

The following is a summary of the material financial analyses used by HLHZFA in connection with providing the Opinion. This summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the Opinion, which is attached as Appendix C to this proxy statement/prospectus. You are urged to read the full text of the HLHZFA Opinion carefully and in its entirety.

HLHZFA s analyses of the Merger contemplated by the Merger Agreement included the calculation and comparison of the following: (i) an analysis of ANFI s stock price as determined by HLHZFA. HLHZFA then performed the following analyses in order to determine the current price per share of ANFI.

As a preliminary matter, HLHZFA reviewed the historical market prices and trading volume for ANFI s publicly traded common stock and reviewed publicly-available analyst reports, news articles, and press releases relating to ANFI. HLHZFA reviewed ANFI s closing stock price on a five-day average, one-month average, three-month average, six-month average and one-year average basis as of December 16, 2002. The resulting per share indications from this approach, as reviewed by HLHZFA, ranged from \$9.99 to \$13.10. Thereafter, HLHZFA undertook the following methodologies:

Market Multiple Methodology: HLHZFA reviewed certain financial information of comparable publicly traded title insurance companies selected solely by HLHZFA. The comparable public companies included: Capital Title Group, Inc., First American Corp., Investors Title Company, LandAmerica Financial Group, Inc., Old Republic International Corp. and Stewart Information Services (collectively, the Comparables). HLHZFA calculated financial ratios of the Comparables based on the most recent publicly available information. HLHZFA calculated financial ratios, including the multiples of: (i) enterprise value (EV) to latest 12 months (LTM) revenues, (ii) market value of equity (MVE defined as) to LTM earnings, (iii) MVE to LTM book value, (iv) EV to projected fiscal year 2003 (NFY) revenues of the Comparables based on the most recent publicly available information, (v) MVE to NFY earnings of the Comparables based on the most recent publicly available information, (vi) EV to three-year average revenues and (vii) MVE to three-year average earnings. MVE is calculated by multiplying the per share price of an entity s common equity securities by the fully diluted shares of the entity. EV is calculated by adding an entity s MVE to the book value of its existing debt and preferred stock.

HLHZFA s analysis showed that the multiples exhibited by the Comparables was as follows:

Market Multiple Methodology

	Low	High	Mean	Median
EV as a multiple of:				
LTM revenues	0.26x	1.40x	0.72x	0.69x
NFY revenues	0.25x	1.40x	0.69x	0.59x
Three-year average revenues	0.32x	1.56x	0.88x	0.83x
MVE as a multiple of:				
LTM earnings	5.3x	9.1x	7.3x	7.8x
LTM book value	0.97x	2.28x	1.35x	1.16x
NFY earnings	7.8x	11.1x	9.3x	9.4x
Three-year average earnings	8.4x	12.0x	10.2x	10.3x

HLHZFA derived EV indications for ANFI by applying selected revenue, earnings and book value multiples to operating results for the 12 months ended December 31, 2002, projected revenues and earnings for the fiscal year ending approximately December 31, 2003, and three-year average revenues and earnings for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002. Based on the above, the resulting indications of the EV of the operations of ANFI ranged from approximately \$130 million to \$150 million under this approach.

After determining the EV of the operations of ANFI, HLHZFA made certain adjustments to determine equity value, including adjustments to reflect (i) certain debt obligations of ANFI, (ii) an adjustment to reflect control of ANFI, (iii) an adjustment to reflect contingent liabilities of ANFI, and (iv) the dilutive effect of certain stock options outstanding. After consideration of these adjustments, HLHZFA estimated the MVE of ANFI using the market multiple methodology to be in the range of \$146.3 million to \$167.3 million, or \$12.18 per share to \$13.93 per share, respectively.

Comparable Transaction Methodology: HLHZFA reviewed the consideration paid in certain change of control acquisitions of selected publicly-traded title insurance companies that HLHZFA deemed relevant. This analysis produced the following multiples in change of control transactions:

Comparable Transaction Methodology

	Low	High	Mean	Median
EV as a multiple of:				
LTM revenues	0.46x	0.80x	0.63x	0.58x
MVE as a multiple of:				
LTM earnings	10.5x	12.6x	11.5x	11.5x
LTM book value	1.8x	5.8x	3.6x	3.3x

In performing its analysis under this approach, HLHZFA considered that the merger and acquisition transaction environment varies over time because of, among other things, interest rate and equity market fluctuations and industry results and growth expectations. No company or transaction used in the analysis described above was directly comparable to ANFI. However, HLHZFA reviewed the foregoing transactions to understand the range of multiples of revenue, earnings and book value paid for companies in the title insurance industry.

HLHZFA derived EV indications of ANFI by applying selected revenue, earnings and book value multiples to certain operating results for the 12 months ended December 31, 2002. Based on this approach, the resulting indications of the EV of the operations of ANFI ranged from approximately \$154.7 million to \$193.4 million.

After determining the EV of the operations of ANFI, HLHZFA made certain adjustments to determine equity value including adjustments to reflect (i) certain debt obligations of ANFI, (ii) contingent liabilities of ANFI, and (iii) the dilutive effect of certain stock options outstanding. After consideration of such adjustments, HLHZFA estimated the MVE of ANFI, using the comparable transaction methodology, to be in the range of \$151.9 million to \$188.6 million, or \$12.65 per share to \$15.71 per share, respectively.

Conclusion

The aforementioned market multiple and comparable transaction methodologies provided HLHZFA with indications of the MVE for ANFI which ranged from \$12.42 to \$14.82 per share, compared to \$15.64 per share in the Merger (if the shareholder had sold the FNF stock received in the Merger on January 9, 2003 at the close of market on such date). Based on the above analyses, HLHZFA determined that the consideration to be received by the Unaffiliated Shareholders of ANFI in connection with the Merger is fair to them from a financial point of view.

Assumptions

As a matter of course, ANFI does not publicly disclose forward-looking financial information. Nevertheless, in connection with its review, HLHZFA considered financial projections. These financial projections were prepared by the management of ANFI. The financial projections were prepared under market conditions as they existed as of approximately December 2002 and ANFI s management does not intend to provide HLHZFA with any updated or revised financial projections. The financial projections do not take into account any circumstances or events occurring after the date they were prepared. In addition, factors such as industry

performance, general business, economic, regulatory, market and financial conditions, as well as changes to the business, financial condition or results of operations of ANFI, may cause the financial projections or the underlying assumptions to be inaccurate. As a result, the financial projections may not be relied upon as necessarily indicative of future results.

In arriving at the Opinion, HLHZFA reviewed key economic and market indicators, including, but not limited to, growth in the U.S. Gross Domestic Product, inflation rates, interest rates, consumer spending levels, manufacturing productivity levels, unemployment rates and general stock market performance. The Opinion is based on the business, economic, market and other conditions as they existed as of January 9, 2003, and on the financial projections provided to HLHZFA as of such date. In rendering the Opinion, HLHZFA has relied upon and assumed, without independent verification that the accuracy and completeness of the financial and other information provided to HLHZFA by the management of ANFI, including the projections, was reasonably prepared and reflects the best currently available estimates of the financial results and condition of ANFI; and that no material changes have occurred in the information reviewed between the date the information was provided and the date of the Opinion. HLHZFA did not independently verify the accuracy or completeness of the information supplied to it with respect to ANFI and does not assume responsibility for it. HLHZFA did not make any independent appraisal of the specific properties or assets of ANFI.

The summary set forth above describes the material points of more detailed analyses performed by HLHZFA in arriving at the Opinion. The preparation of a fairness opinion is a complex analytical process involving various determinations as to the most appropriate and relevant methods of financial analysis and application of those methods to the particular circumstances and is therefore not readily susceptible to summary description. In arriving at the Opinion, HLHZFA made qualitative judgments as to the significance and relevance of each analysis and factor. Accordingly, HLHZFA believes that its analyses and summary set forth herein must be considered as a whole and that selecting portions of its analyses, without considering all analyses and factors, or portions of this summary, could create an incomplete and/or inaccurate view of the processes underlying the conclusions set forth in the Opinion. In its analysis, HLHZFA made numerous assumptions with respect to ANFI, the merger, industry performance, general business, economic, market and financial conditions and other matters, many of which are beyond the control of the respective entities. The estimates contained in such analyses are not necessarily indicative of actual values or predictive of future results or values, which may be more or less favorable than suggested by such analyses. Additionally, analyses relating to the value of businesses or securities of ANFI are not appraisals. Accordingly, such analyses and estimates are inherently subject to substantial uncertainty.

Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Merger

The following discussion describes the material U.S. federal income tax consequences of the Merger that are generally applicable to the holders of ANFI stock pursuant to their exchange of such stock for FNF stock in the Merger. The discussion below:

is based on current provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (sometimes referred to as, the Code), applicable Treasury Regulations, administrative rulings and pronouncements, and judicial decisions, all of which are subject to change, possibly with retroactive effect having a potential effect on the income tax consequences of the Merger;

does not purport to address all aspects of U.S. federal income taxation that may affect individual shareholders, optionholders or warrantholders in light of their particular circumstances; that are generally assumed to be known by investors; or that may affect shareholders or optionholders to which special provisions of the U.S. federal income tax may apply based on their particular circumstances or status (see Qualifications below);

assumes that the shares of ANFI common stock are held as capital assets; and

assumes that the Merger and related transactions will take place in accordance with all of the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement and as described in this document without the waiver or modification of any of those terms or conditions.

In addition, no information is provided in this document with respect to the tax consequences of the Merger under foreign, state, or local laws, nor the tax consequences of other transactions effected prior or subsequent to, or concurrently with, the Merger, whether any such transactions are undertaken in connection with the Merger, including without limitation any transaction in which shares of ANFI stock are acquired or shares of FNF common stock are disposed of, or the tax consequences of the assumption by FNF of the ANFI options or the tax consequences of the receipt of rights to acquire FNF common stock.

ANFI SHAREHOLDERS ARE URGED TO CONSULT THEIR OWN TAX ADVISORS AS TO THE SPECIFIC TAX CONSEQUENCES TO THEM OF THE MERGER, INCLUDING TAX RETURN REPORTING REQUIREMENTS, WHETHER GAIN, IF ANY, WILL BE TREATED AS CAPITAL GAIN OR A DIVIDEND, THE APPLICABILITY AND EFFECT OF U.S. FEDERAL, STATE, LOCAL, AND OTHER APPLICABLE TAX LAWS, AND THE EFFECT OF ANY CHANGES IN THE TAX LAW.

Neither ANFI nor FNF has requested, nor do they intend to request, a ruling from the IRS with regard to any of the tax consequences of the Merger. The opinion of counsel referred to below will not be binding on the IRS and there can be no assurance that the IRS or the courts will not take a contrary view.

FNF and ANFI expect that the Merger will be treated as a tax-free reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code and that for federal income tax purposes no gain or loss will be recognized by ANFI shareholders who exchange their shares of ANFI common stock solely for shares of FNF common stock pursuant to the Merger, except upon the receipt of cash by holders in lieu of fractional shares of FNF common stock. The Internal Revenue Service has not been and will not be asked to rule upon the tax consequences of the Merger. Instead, ANFI and FNF will rely upon the opinion of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth to the effect that the Merger will be treated as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code. The opinion of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth will be based upon the facts described in this proxy statement/ prospectus, and will be subject to certain assumptions, covenants and qualifications, including but not limited to the truth and accuracy of certain representations and covenants made in the Merger Agreement and other representations contained in certificates of officers of ANFI, FNF and FNF s merger subsidiary. The opinion of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth will also be based upon the Code, regulations now in effect thereunder, current administrative rulings and practice, and judicial authority, all of which are subject to change, possibly with retroactive effect. Unlike a ruling from the Service, an opinion of counsel is not binding on the Service and there can be no assurance, and none is hereby given, that the Service will not take a position contrary to one or more positions reflected herein or that the opinion will be upheld by the courts if challenged by the Service. If any of those representations, qualifications, covenants or assumptions is inaccurate, or if any change in fact or law occurs, then the tax consequences of the Merger could differ from those described in such opinion.

A successful Internal Revenue Service challenge to the reorganization status of the Merger would result in ANFI shareholder recognizing taxable gain or loss with respect to each share of stock of ANFI surrendered, in an amount equal to the difference between the shareholder s basis in that share and the fair market value of that share, as of the effective time, of the FNF common stock received in the exchange. In that event, a shareholder s aggregate basis in the ANFI common stock received would equal its fair market value, and the shareholder s holding period for that stock would begin the day after the Merger.

Subject to the limitations and qualifications referred to herein, qualification of the Merger as such a reorganization will result in the following federal income tax consequences:

no income, gain or loss will be recognized by ANFI, FNF nor FNF s merger subsidiary solely as a result of the consummation of the Merger;

subject to the last item below, no gain or loss will be recognized by the holders of ANFI common stock upon the exchange of ANFI common stock solely for FNF common stock pursuant to the Merger;

the aggregate tax basis of the FNF common stock received by an ANFI shareholder pursuant to the Merger, including any fractional shares deemed received as described in the last item below, will be the same as the aggregate tax basis of the ANFI common stock surrendered in exchange therefor;

the holding period of the FNF common stock received by a shareholder of ANFI pursuant to the Merger will include the period during which the ANFI common stock surrendered in exchange therefor was held by such ANFI shareholder, provided the ANFI common stock is a capital asset in the hands of the ANFI shareholder at the time of the Merger; and

cash received by an ANFI shareholder in lieu of a fractional share interest in FNF common stock will generally be treated as received in redemption of such fractional share interest, and an ANFI shareholder will generally recognize gain or loss, subject to the provisions and limitations of Section 302 of the Code, which gain or loss will be capital gain or loss provided the ANFI common stock was a capital asset in the hands of the ANFI shareholder at the time of the Merger. For United States federal income tax purposes, the gain or loss is measured by the difference between the amount of cash received and the portion of the tax basis of the share of ANFI common stock allocable to such fractional share interest.

Record Keeping Requirements. An ANFI shareholder who exchanges ANFI common stock for FNF common stock or who exchanges ANFI common stock for FNF common stock and cash (in lieu of a fractional share) in connection with the Merger will be required to retain records and file with that shareholder s federal income tax return for the taxable year in which the Merger takes place a statement setting forth all the relevant facts in respect of the non-recognition of gain or loss upon the exchange. The statement must include:

the shareholder s basis in the shares of ANFI common stock surrendered in the Merger;

the value of the shares of FNF common stock received, using the fair market value as of the effective time of the Merger; and

the amount of any cash received in the Merger.

Backup Withholding Tax. Under the Internal Revenue Code, an ANFI shareholder may be subject, under some circumstances, to backup withholding tax with respect to cash received in the Merger unless the shareholder complies with certain notification and identification requirements provided under the relevant provisions of the Internal Revenue Code. Any amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules generally will be allowed as a credit against the shareholder s U.S. federal income tax liability.

Qualifications. As noted above, the foregoing discussion does not address aspects of U.S. federal income taxation that may be relevant to ANFI shareholders, optionholders or warrantholders to which special provisions of the U.S. federal income tax law may apply based on their particular circumstances or status. For example, the discussion does not address aspects of U.S. federal income taxation that may be relevant to:

dealers in securities or currencies;
traders in securities;
financial institutions;
tax-exempt organizations;
insurance companies;
persons holding shares of ANFI common stock as part of a hedging, straddle, conversion, or other integrated transaction;
persons subject to the alternative minimum tax;
non-United States persons; or
shareholders that exercise dissenters rights.

The preceding discussion sets forth the material U.S. federal income tax consequences of the Merger but does not purport to be a complete analysis or discussion of all potential tax effects relevant thereto. Thus, ANFI shareholders are urged to consult their own tax advisors as to the specific tax consequences to them of the Merger, including tax return reporting requirements, whether gain, if any, will be treated as capital gain or a dividend, the applicability and effect of U.S. federal, state, local, and other applicable tax laws, and the effect of any changes in the tax law.

Required Regulatory Filings and Approvals

Under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, and the rules promulgated under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Act, FNF and ANFI cannot complete the Merger until they notify and furnish information to the Federal Trade Commission and the Antitrust Division of the U.S. Department of Justice and specified waiting period requirements are satisfied.

At any time before or after completion of the Merger, the Antitrust Division or the Federal Trade Commission could take such action under the antitrust laws as it deems necessary or desirable in the public interest, including seeking to enjoin the consummation of the Merger or seeking divestiture of substantial assets of FNF or ANFI. Private parties may also bring actions under the antitrust laws under certain circumstances. Although FNF and ANFI believe that the Merger is legal under the antitrust laws, there can be no assurance that a challenge to the Merger on antitrust grounds will not be made or, if such a challenge is made, that it would not be successful.

Title insurance companies, including underwriters, underwritten title companies and independent agents, are subject to extensive regulation under applicable state laws. As an underwritten title company and an agent, ANFI is subject to regulation in California and Arizona. In California, ANFI is regulated by the Department of Insurance for the State of California and in Arizona it is regulated by the State Banking Department of the State of Arizona. National Title Insurance of New York, Inc., (National), a subsidiary of ANFI, is regulated by the Insurance Commissioner of the State of New York. National transacts business in a number of states.

FNF and ANFI do not believe that additional regulatory filings will be required for consummation of the Merger and are in the process of confirming the same with various authorities in the states of New York and California. Following the Merger, FNF believes preapproval regulatory filings will be necessary in connection with the conversion of ANFI s title and escrow operations to Ticor operations.

Resale of FNF Common Stock

All shares of FNF common stock received by ANFI shareholders in the Merger will be freely transferable, except that FNF common stock received by persons who are deemed to be affiliates (as such term is defined in Rule 145 under the Securities Act) of ANFI at the time of the ANFI special meeting may be resold by them only in transactions permitted by the resale provisions of Rule 145 under the Securities Act (or Rule 144 under the Securities Act in the case of such persons who become affiliates of FNF) or as otherwise permitted under the Securities Act. Persons who may be deemed to be affiliates of ANFI or FNF generally include individuals or entities that control, are controlled by, or are under common control with, such party and may include certain officers and directors of such party as well as principal stockholders of such party.

Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, ANFI agreed to deliver to FNF a list of names of those persons whom ANFI believes to be affiliates of ANFI within the meaning of Rule 145 under the Securities Act. ANFI has agreed to use its commercially reasonable best efforts to cause each person who is identified as an affiliate in the list referred to above to deliver to FNF, within 30 days of the date the Merger Agreement is signed, an affiliate letter acknowledging that such person may be deemed an affiliate of FNF following the Merger and thus may be subject to certain restrictions of their ability to resell their FNF common stock. Such affiliate letter shall provide that the ANFI affiliate will agree not to sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of any shares of FNF common stock to be received by such person in or pursuant to the Merger, except in compliance with applicable provisions of the Securities Act.

This proxy statement/ prospectus cannot be used in connection with resales of FNF common stock received in the Merger by any person who may be deemed to be an affiliate of ANFI under the Securities Act.

Management and Operations Following the Merger

Following the Merger, FNF will continue the operations of ANFI. Subject to any required regulatory approval and final business decisions to be made by FNF, FNF expects to convert the ANFI brand into FNF s Ticor brand, including by combining some of FNF s Ticor assets with the continuing ANFI operations. FNF expects the Board of Directors of the surviving corporation to be comprised of members of the Board of Directors of FNF. ANFI s shareholders will become stockholders of FNF, and their rights as stockholders will be governed by FNF s Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws. See Comparison of Rights of ANFI Shareholders and FNF Stockholders.

Interests of Certain Persons in the Merger

Certain members of ANFI s management have interests in the Merger that are different from and in addition to their interests as ANFI shareholders generally. The ANFI Board of Directors was aware of these interests and considered them in approving the Merger Agreement and the Merger.

William P. Foley, II, is currently a member of ANFI s Board of Directors and is also the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of FNF.

Michael C. Lowther, Wayne D. Diaz, Carl A. Strunk and Barbara A. Ferguson are all directors and senior officers of ANFI. Mr. Lowther is Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of ANFI. Mr. Diaz is President of ANFI. Mr. Strunk is Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of ANFI. Barbara A. Ferguson is Executive Vice President of ANFI. On or about January 20, 2003, as required by the Merger Agreement Mr. Lowther, Mr. Diaz and Ms. Ferguson entered into modifications of their existing employment agreements with ANFI (which will only become effective upon consummation of the Merger Agreement). The resulting employment agreements as modified are substantially identical to their current employment agreements with ANFI except that (i) the annual bonus for each individual for each of calendar years 2003, 2004 and 2005 will include a minimum guarantee equal to the bonus each such individual received for calendar year 2001, and (ii) each of Mr. Lowther, Mr. Diaz and Ms. Ferguson has waived his or her right to receive severance pay and other benefits by reason of the change in control of ANFI which will occur upon consummation of the Merger Agreement.

The existing employment agreement of Carl A. Strunk has not been modified. If Mr. Strunk terminates his employment with ANFI in connection with the Merger or if his employment is terminated after the Merger, or other change of control transaction other than for cause, then Mr. Strunk will be entitled to (i) his minimum base annual salary due to him through the date of termination of the employment agreement; (ii) severance in an amount equal to the product of (A) his annual base salary at the date of termination of employment plus any incentive compensation bonus and (B) the number of years (including partial years) remaining in the term of his employment pursuant to the employment agreement or one, whichever is greater; (iii) immediate vesting of all options not already vested; and (iv) the continuation of other employee benefits comparable to those to which Mr. Strunk was entitled at the time of determination. Mr. Strunk s employment agreement is for a term of three years beginning August 14, 2001. However, at the end of each year of the employment agreement, the employment agreement is automatically extended for an additional one year unless ANFI (or its successor in interest) or Mr. Strunk provides the other with prior written notice of the intent not to extend the term for an additional year. However, ANFI is entitled not to elect to extend Mr. Strunk s employment agreement only if ANFI or any of its subsidiaries fails to perform in accordance with the budgeted expectations for such entities in the employment agreement year in which the election not to renew occurs.

On January 14, 2003, FNF entered into a written waiver with the ANFI holders party to the Voting Agreement, whereby FNF waived any rights it may have to enforce the transfer prohibition included in the Voting Agreement as it relates to the exercise of ANFI stock options and any subsequent sale of any shares of

ANFI common stock received upon exercise. On January 16 and 17, 2003 Mr. Strunk and Ms. Ferguson elected to exercise ANFI options and collectively sold 170,700 shares of ANFI in order to begin to reduce their outstanding options to acquire ANFI shares as required by the Merger Agreement and to diversify their own personal investment portfolios.

Indemnification and Insurance

The Merger Agreement provides that FNF will maintain in effect in accordance with their terms all rights to indemnification and exculpation from liabilities for acts or omissions occurring at or prior to the Merger now existing in favor of the current or former directors or officers of ANFI and its subsidiaries as provided in their respective articles of incorporation or bylaws (or comparable organizational documents) and any indemnification agreements of ANFI. Directors and officers of ANFI who become directors or officers of FNF will be entitled to the same indemnity rights and protections as are afforded to other directors and officers of FNF. The Merger Agreement further provides that, immediately prior to the closing, ANFI shall purchase one or more single payment, run-off policies of directors and officers liability insurance covering acts or omissions occurring prior to the Merger with respect to those persons who are currently covered by the ANFI s directors and officers liability insurance policies on terms with respect to such coverage and amount no less favorable than the terms of the current policies of ANFI, such policy (or policies) to become effective at the Merger and to remain in effect for a period of six years after the completion of the Merger, provided, however, that prior to purchasing such insurance, ANFI shall have consulted with FNF to determine whether FNF can obtain such coverage on more favorable terms. If such coverage is unavailable, for six years after the Merger, FNF shall provide to ANFI s directors and officers liability insurance covering acts or omissions occurring prior to the Merger with respect to those persons who are currently covered by ANFI s directors and officers liability insurance policies on terms and in amounts no less favorable than those existing upon the Merger.

Expenses

The Merger Agreement provides that whether or not the merger is consummated, all fees and expenses incurred in connection with the Merger shall be paid by the party incurring such expenses, except that (i) each of FNF and ANFI shall bear and pay one-half of the costs and expenses incurred in connection with the printing of this proxy statement/ prospectus, as well as the SEC filing fees related thereto, and the HSR filings and (ii) if the Merger is consummated, the surviving corporation shall pay, or cause to be paid, all state, local, foreign or provincial sales, use, real property, transfer, stock transfer or similar taxes (including any interest or penalties with respect thereto) attributable to the Merger.

Pending Litigation

Jones v. American Title Company L-03904 Alameda County Superior Court.

Plaintiff, a former employee has sued American Title Company (a wholly-owned subsidiary of ANFI) claiming that he was wrongfully terminated. Plaintiff alleges that his termination was based on breach of employment contract and age discrimination. Plaintiff has not specified the amount of damages he is seeking. Some discovery has been undertaken. The parties have tentatively agreed to mediate the dispute.

Mara Escrow Company v. American Title L9051 Los Angeles County Superior Court.

Plaintiff sued American Title and four of its employees for conversion, unfair competition misappropriation of trade secrets, and breach of fiduciary duty. Plaintiff alleges that its former employees, prior to leaving and becoming employees of American Title, copied or took over 500 files without their authorization in violation of their fiduciary duties.

Lawlor v. National Title Ins. Co. of New York, Inc. L9127 Supreme Court of the State of New York, County of Nassau.

This is a class action. Plaintiff contends that National Title, a wholly owned subsidiary of ANFI, over charged filed rates on policies issued to owner s in conjunction with residential refinancing. The action was filed in July, and no response has yet been filed. ANFI management intends to vigorously defend this action.

Wage and Hour Claims

In mid-September ANFI was advised that counsel for an employee of ANFI was considering bringing an action for his client (and all parties similarly situated) for alleged violations by the Company of Labor Code provisions pertaining to overtime pay. No action has been filed. Counsels for the parties are discussing the dispute, and the possibility of resolving it through alternative dispute resolution.

Insurance Department Examination

In June 2001, auditors from the State of California, Department of Insurance commenced a market conduct examination of American Title Company a wholly-owned subsidiary of ANFI. Similar examinations have been or are being conducted for virtually all companies in the title insurance business. The examination is not yet complete. ANFI is unable to determine if an unfavorable outcome is either probable or remote; however, the management of ANFI does not believe that any outcome will have a materially adverse effect on its consolidated financial statements.

Shareholder Litigation

Beginning on January 17, 2003 and continuing thereafter, three lawsuits have been filed in the Superior Court of the State of California County of Orange on behalf of a purported class of public shareholders of ANFI relating to FNF s and ANFI s announcement that they had entered into the Merger Agreement to effect the Merger described in this proxy statement/prospectus. The California actions are captioned Gary Schneider v. Fidelity National Financial, Inc., et al., Case No. 03CC00017; Caron Rossi v. Michael C. Lowther, et al., Case No. 03CC00021; and Peter Miller v. Michael C. Lowther, et al., Case No. 03CC00018. The actions generally name as defendants FNF and the members of the ANFI Board of Directors, and generally allege that the consideration FNF is offering to ANFI s public shareholders in the Merger is inadequate and unfair, that the individual defendants breached their fiduciary duties to ANFI s public shareholders in the formulating and agreeing to the terms of the Merger and that FNF aided and abetted such breach of fiduciary duties by the individual defendants. The actions seek to proceed on behalf of a class of ANFI shareholders other than the defendants, seek preliminary and permanent injunctive relief against the consummation of the Merger, seek monetary damages in an unspecified amount and seek recovery of plaintiffs costs and attorneys fees. These actions are in their earliest stages. FNF and ANFI believe that the allegations are without merit and intend to defend against them vigorously.

The description of these shareholder actions is qualified in its entirety by reference to the allegations in the complaints, which FNF has filed with the SEC as exhibits to the registration statement of which this proxy statement/ prospectus is a part and which are incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/ prospectus.

Accounting Treatment

The Merger will be accounted for using the purchase method in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141 Business Combinations . Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of ANFI not already owned by FNF will be recorded on the books of FNF at their respective fair values at the effective time of the Merger, with the excess of the purchase price, if any, allocated to goodwill.

THE MERGER AGREEMENT

The following describes certain aspects of the proposed Merger, including material provisions of the Merger Agreement. Because this discussion is a summary, it may not contain all of the information that is important to you. To understand the Merger fully, and for a more complete description of the legal terms of

the Merger, you are urged to read the Merger Agreement carefully. A copy of the Merger Agreement is attached as Appendix A to this document and is incorporated by reference.

General

In the Merger, shares of ANFI common stock will be converted into the right to receive Merger consideration consisting of shares of FNF. See The Merger Merger Consideration.

Distributions with Respect to Unexchanged Shares; Transfers

All shares of FNF common stock to be issued pursuant to the Merger will be deemed issued and outstanding as of the effective time of the Merger. If a dividend or other distribution is declared by FNF in respect of the FNF common stock, the record date for which is at or after the effective time of the Merger, that declaration will include dividends or other distributions in respect of all shares issuable in the Merger agreement. No dividends or other distributions in respect of the FNF common stock will be paid to any holder of any unsurrendered ANFI stock certificate until such ANFI stock certificate is surrendered for exchange in accordance with the Merger Agreement. Subject to applicable law, following surrender of any such ANFI stock certificate, there will be issued and/or paid to the holder of the certificates representing whole shares of FNF common stock issued in exchange therefor, without interest, (1) at the time of such surrender, the dividends or other distributions with a record date after the effective time of the Merger theretofore payable with respect to such shares of FNF common stock and not paid, and (2) at the appropriate payment date, the dividends or other distributions payable with respect to such whole shares of FNF common stock with a record date after the effective time of the Merger but with a payment date subsequent to surrender. Neither ANFI, FNF nor the exchange agent or any other person will be liable to any former holder of shares of ANFI common stock for any amount delivered in good faith to a public official pursuant to applicable abandoned property, escheat or similar laws.

Corporate Governance

The Merger Agreement provides that the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the wholly-owned subsidiary of FNF into which ANFI will merge as in effect immediately prior to the Merger will continue to be the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the surviving corporation after the Merger.

Representations and Warranties

The Merger Agreement contains customary reciprocal representations and warranties of FNF, ANFI and FNF s wholly-owned subsidiary into which ANFI will merge as to, among other things:

due organization and good standing;
corporate authority to enter into the Merger Agreement and related matters;
absence of conflicts with organizational documents and material agreements;
capitalization;
necessary regulatory approvals;
subsidiaries;
reports filed with the SEC;
financial statements;
undisclosed liabilities;
information to be supplied:

absence of certain changes;

transactions with affiliates;

56

litigation;
tax matters;
employee benefit matters;
compliance with laws; and
environmental matters.
None of the representations and warranties contained in the Merger Agreement will survive the Merger.

Concept of Material Adverse Effect

Many of the representations and warranties included in the Merger Agreement are qualified by the concept of material adverse effect. The concept of material adverse effect also applies to some of the covenants and conditions to the Merger described under Certain Covenants and Conditions to the Merger below. For purposes of the Merger Agreement, the concept of material adverse effect means a material adverse effect on the financial condition, business or results of operations of FNF or ANFI, as the case may be, taken as a whole, other than effects caused by:

changes in general economic or securities markets conditions;

changes in interest rate levels;

in the case of ANFI, the identity of FNF as the acquiring company or FNF s conduct with respect to the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement prior to the Merger;

in the case of FNF, the identity of ANFI as the acquired company or ANFI s conduct with respect to the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement prior to the Merger; or

the public announcement of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement.

Certain Covenants

Conduct of ANFI s Business Prior to the MergerANFI has agreed that after the date of the Merger Agreement and prior to the Merger it will conduct its businesses in all material respects in the ordinary course consistent with past practice and will use commercially reasonable efforts to preserve intact its business organization, maintain in effect all material licenses, approvals and authorizations, and preserve existing relationships with its key employees, key agents, material customers, lenders, suppliers and others having material business relationships with ANFI.

Specifically, ANFI has agreed that, without the prior written consent of FNF (which consent cannot be unreasonably withheld or delayed), and except as otherwise expressly contemplated by the Merger Agreement, it will not, and will not permit its subsidiaries to:

amend or modify their charter documents or bylaws;

take any action that would prevent or materially impair the ability of ANFI to consummate the Merger;

split, combine or reclassify any shares of capital stock or declare, set aside or pay any dividend (except that FNF has agreed to permit ANFI to declare and pay a cash dividend during the first quarter not to exceed \$0.125 per share, subject to reaching an agreement on the timing of the dividend) or other distribution in respect of its capital stock or the capital stock of any of its subsidiaries which are not wholly-owned, or redeem, repurchase or otherwise acquire any of its securities or the securities of any of its subsidiaries which are not wholly-owned;

issue, deliver or sell any shares of its capital stock or any securities convertible into or exercisable for any such capital stock other than upon the exercise of stock options or warrants, pursuant to existing employee plans in accordance with their present terms; provided that in no event shall the aggregate of

any and all issuances be in excess of 654,000 shares of ANFI capital stock or securities convertible into or exercisable for capital stock of ANFI;

other than expenses incurred in connection with the Merger such as reasonable legal and accounting expenses and investment banking expenses, incur any capital expenditures or any obligations or liabilities in respect thereof, except for those (a) contemplated by the capital expenditure budgets for ANFI and its subsidiaries, (b) incurred in the ordinary course of business, or (c) which are not otherwise described in clause (a) or (b) and which are not in excess of \$100,000;

except for acquisitions in the ordinary course of the investment activities of ANFI and its subsidiaries consistent with past practice, acquire any assets of, or equity interests in, any person or entity having a fair market value in excess of \$100,000;

sell, lease, encumber or otherwise dispose of any assets, other than (a) in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, (b) equipment and property no longer used in the operation of ANFI s business and (c) sales or other dispositions of assets related to discontinued operations;

incur any indebtedness for borrowed money or guarantee any such indebtedness or issue or sell any debt securities or rights to acquire any debt securities, or guarantee any debt securities of others or request any advances in respect of, or make any drawdowns on, any existing indebtedness which advance or drawdown exceeds \$100,000 individually or \$250,000 in the aggregate;

amend, modify or terminate material agreements or arrangements or otherwise waive, release or assign any of their material rights, claims or benefits thereunder;

other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, or as required by law or by an agreement existing on the date of the Merger Agreement, or as otherwise contemplated by the Merger Agreement, (a) increase the amount of compensation of any director or executive officer or make any increase in or commitment to increase any employee benefits, (b) adopt any severance program or grant any material severance or termination pay to any director, officer or employee of ANFI or any of its subsidiaries, (c) adopt or implement any employee retention program or other incentive arrangement not in existence on the date of the Merger Agreement, (d) adopt any additional employee benefit plan, or, other than in the ordinary course of business, make any material contribution to any existing employee benefit plan or (e) amend in any material respect any existing ANFI employee plan;

change ANFI s methods of accounting in effect at December 31, 2001, except as required by changes in GAAP or by Regulation S-X of the SEC, as concurred in by its independent public accountants, or change ANFI s fiscal year;

other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, make any tax election or enter into any settlement or compromise of any tax liability that in either case is material to the business of ANFI and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole;

pay, discharge, settle or satisfy any claim, liability or obligation other than (a) for an amount of \$100,000 or less, and (b) ordinary course repayment of indebtedness or payment of contractual obligations when due;

take any action that would cause any of ANFI s representations and warranties in the Merger Agreement to become untrue in any material respect; or

agree or otherwise commit to do any of the foregoing.

Covenants of FNF. FNF has agreed to maintain in effect currently existing rights to indemnification from liabilities for acts or omissions occurring at or prior to the effective time of the Merger. FNF has also agreed to use commercially reasonable efforts to cause the shares FNF common stock to be issued in connection with the Merger or upon exercise of FNF options to be listed on the NYSE, subject to official notice of issuance.

No Solicitation of Transactions. ANFI has agreed that it shall not, nor shall it permit any of its subsidiaries to, nor shall it authorize or knowingly permit any officer, director, employee, investment banker, attorney, accountant, agent or other advisor or representative of ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries, directly or indirectly, to:

- (1) take any action to solicit, initiate or facilitate or encourage the submission of any acquisition proposal (as defined below);
- (2) engage in any negotiations regarding, or furnish to any person or entity any non-public information with respect to, or take any other action knowingly to facilitate any inquiries or the making of any proposal that constitutes, or may be reasonably expected to lead to, any acquisition proposal;
 - (3) grant any waiver or release under any standstill or similar agreement with respect to any class of ANFI s equity securities; or
 - (4) other than in the manner described below, enter into any agreement with respect to any acquisition proposal.

However, ANFI may take any actions described in clauses (1) through (4) above in respect of any person or entity who makes an acquisition proposal if:

ANFI s Board of Directors, by majority vote, determines in its good faith judgment that either (x) such acquisition proposal constitutes a superior proposal (as defined below), and ANFI provides written notice of termination of the merger agreement between FNF and ANFI in the manner described below, or (y) such acquisition proposal could reasonably be expected to result in a superior proposal; and

prior to furnishing any non-public information to any person or entity who makes an acquisition proposal, such person or entity shall have entered into a confidentiality agreement with ANFI.

The merger agreement defines an acquisition proposal as any offer or proposal for, or indication of interest in, a merger, consolidation, share exchange, business combination, reorganization, recapitalization, liquidation, dissolution or other similar transaction involving, or any purchase or acquisition of, 25% or more of:

any class of equity securities of ANFI; or

all or substantially all of the consolidated assets of ANFI and its subsidiaries; other than the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement between FNF and ANFI.

The merger agreement defines a superior proposal as a written acquisition proposal on terms which ANFI s Board of Directors by majority vote determines in good faith, after consultation with its investment advisors and outside legal counsel, would result in a transaction, if consummated, that is more favorable to ANFI shareholders from a financial point of view than the transaction contemplated by the merger agreement between FNF and ANFI. In making such determination, the ANFI Board of Directors is required to take into account all legal, financial, regulatory and other aspects of the proposal, including conditions to consummation (which shall not include a financing condition).

Unless ANFI s Board of Directors has previously withdrawn, or is concurrently therewith withdrawing, its recommendation herein that ANFI shareholders vote to approve the merger, neither ANFI s Board of Directors nor any committee of the Board of Directors may recommend any acquisition proposal to ANFI shareholders. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing contained in the merger agreement will prevent ANFI s Board of Directors from complying with Rule 14e-2 under the Securities Exchange Act with respect to any acquisition proposal or making any disclosure required by applicable law. ANFI will notify FNF promptly, but in no event later than 48 hours, after receipt by ANFI or any of its subsidiaries (or any of their respective directors, officers, agents or advisors) of any acquisition proposal. Similarly, ANFI will notify FNF of any contacts concerning, or any request for non-public information or for access to the properties, books or records of, ANFI or any ANFI subsidiary, or any request for a waiver or release under any standstill or similar

agreement, by any person that has made an acquisition proposal or indicates that it is considering making an acquisition proposal. This notice to FNF will state the identity of the offeror and, if an acquisition proposal is made, the material terms of the acquisition proposal. ANFI will keep FNF reasonably informed of the status and material terms of any such acquisition proposal.

ANFI may terminate the Merger Agreement at any time before the Merger Agreement has been approved by a majority of the shares of ANFI common stock outstanding if:

ANFI s Board of Directors shall have authorized ANFI, subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, to enter into a binding agreement concerning a transaction that constitutes a superior proposal; and

ANFI notifies FNF that it intends to enter into such an agreement, specifying the material terms and conditions of such agreement.

In connection with the foregoing, ANFI has agreed that it will not terminate the Merger Agreement if, within seven business days of receiving notice that ANFI intends to enter into an agreement for a superior proposal, FNF makes an offer such that the ANFI Board of Directors determines in its good faith judgement that the superior proposal is no longer a superior proposal. ANFI is not permitted to enter into another agreement during such seven business day period.

Shareholder Meeting

ANFI has agreed to cause a meeting of its shareholders to be duly called and held for the purpose of obtaining the required ANFI shareholder approval (including the payment of any severance payments subject to the application of Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code, if any) as soon as reasonably practicable after the registration statement which is part of this proxy statement/prospectus is declared effective. Except for certain instances relating to acquisition proposals and superior proposals discussed above, ANFI s Board of Directors has agreed to recommend approval and adoption by its shareholders of the Merger Agreement and the Merger, and ANFI has agreed to use its commercially reasonable efforts to solicit the required ANFI shareholder approval.

Conditions to the Merger

Mutual Conditions.

The obligations of FNF, ANFI and the merger subsidiary to effect the Merger are subject to the satisfaction or waiver of the following conditions:

approval of the Merger by the holders of more than 50% of the shares of ANFI common stock voting by person or by proxy and the ANFI special meeting;

the shares of FNF common stock to be issued in the Merger shall have been authorized for listing on the NYSE, subject to official notice of issuance:

the registration statement filed with the SEC under the Securities Act to register shares of FNF common stock to be issued in the Merger, of which this proxy statement/prospectus is a part, has been declared effective, and no stop order suspending the effectiveness of the registration statement has been issued, and no proceedings for that purpose having been initiated by the SEC and not concluded or withdrawn, and all state securities or blue sky authorizations necessary to carry out the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement having been obtained;

the expiration or termination of the waiting period applicable to the consummation of the Merger under the Hart-Scott Rodino Act without the imposition of any condition that either FNF or ANFI sell, divest or otherwise dispose of any assets or conduct its business in a manner which would reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on the combined company, taken as a whole, after giving effect to the Merger;

on the proposed date of the Merger, no governmental entity has issued any order, injunction or decree, or taken any other action that is in effect and restrains, enjoins or otherwise prohibits the consummation of the Merger, nor is there pending any action that seeks to restrain, enjoin or otherwise prohibit the consummation of the Merger; and

the parties have obtained or made all governmental consents, approvals, actions, orders, authorizations, registrations, declarations, announcements and filings contemplated by the Merger Agreement which, if not obtained or made, would render consummation of the Merger illegal or would be reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the combined company, taken as a whole, after giving effect to the Merger.

Additional Conditions to the Obligations of ANFI. In addition, the obligation of ANFI to consummate the Merger are subject to the satisfaction or waiver of the following conditions:

FNF and the merger subsidiary shall have performed in all material respects all of the obligations required to be performed by them at or prior to the time of the Merger, the representations and warranties of FNF and the merger subsidiary contained in the Merger Agreement shall have been true and correct when made and as of the time of the filing of the agreement of merger as if made as of such time (except to the extent any such representation or warranty expressly speaks as of an earlier date, in which case it shall be true and correct as of such date), except for such inaccuracies as would not be reasonably likely, individually or in the aggregate, to have a material adverse effect on FNF; and ANFI having received certificates signed by the Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer of FNF and Merger Sub to the foregoing effect;

ANFI shall have received an opinion from counsel acceptable to ANFI, which may include Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth (counsel to FNF and the merger subsidiary), to the effect that the Merger will be treated for federal income tax purposes as a tax free reorganization under Section 368(a)(2)(D) of the Internal Revenue Code; and

since the date of the FNF balance sheet included in the FNF 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002, there shall not have occurred any change in the financial condition, business or operations of FNF and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole, that would be reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on FNF.

Additional Conditions to the Obligations of FNF and the Merger Subsidiary. In addition, the obligations of FNF and the merger subsidiary to consummate the Merger are subject to the satisfaction or waiver of the following further conditions:

ANFI shall have performed in all material respects all of its obligations under the Merger Agreement, the representations and warranties of ANFI contained in the Merger Agreement shall be true and correct when made and as of the time of the filing of the agreement of merger as if made as of such time (except to the extent any such representation or warranty expressly speaks as of an earlier date, in which case it shall be true and correct as of such date), except for such inaccuracies as would not be reasonably likely, individually or in the aggregate, to have a material adverse effect on ANFI, and FNF shall have received a certificate signed by the Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer of ANFI to the foregoing effect;

since the date of the ANFI balance sheet included in the ANFI 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002, there shall not have occurred any change in the financial condition, business or operations of ANFI and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole, that would be reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on ANFI;

in the event the ANFI shareholders have any appraisal, dissenters—or similar rights under applicable law, no more than three percent of the outstanding shares of ANFI common stock, determined as of the record date for the ANFI special meeting, shall have made an effective demand for exercise of their appraisal, dissenters—or similar rights under applicable law;

each of the ANFI senior executives shall have outstanding options to acquire ANFI common stock that, upon assumption by FNF in the Merger, shall be exercisable into no more than 50,000 shares of FNF common stock;

FNF having received a written opinion from Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth (or other counsel reasonably acceptable to FNF), to the effect that the Merger will be treated for federal income tax purposes as a tax free reorganization under Section 368(a)(2)(D) of the Internal Revenue Code; and

FNF having received any consents, approvals, actions, orders, or authorizations from the Department of Insurance necessary to consummate the transactions contemplated in the Merger Agreement, including the conversion of ANFI to Ticor Title after the effective time of the Merger.

Termination

The Merger Agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the effective time of the Merger, whether before or after approval of the Merger Agreement by the ANFI shareholders:

by mutual written agreement of FNF and ANFI;

by either FNF or ANFI, if the Merger shall not have been consummated by June 30, 2003 (which date may be extended by either party for a maximum of 60 days if on that date all regulatory approvals have not been obtained or the waiting period under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Act has not expired or been terminated); provided, however, this right to terminate the Merger Agreement will not be available to a party whose breach of any obligations under the Merger Agreement has been the cause of the failure of obtaining such regulatory approvals prior June 30, 2003, or the extended date, as the case may be;

by either FNF or ANFI, if there is any law or regulation that makes consummation of the Merger illegal or otherwise prohibited, or any judgment, injunction, order or decree of any governmental entity having competent jurisdiction has issued a nonappealable final order enjoining ANFI or FNF from consummating the Merger; provided, however, this right to terminate the Merger Agreement will not be available to a party whose breach of any obligations under the Merger Agreement has been the cause of such law, regulation, judgment, injunction, order or decree; or

at the ANFI special meeting, the approval of the Merger Agreement and the Merger by at least 50% of the outstanding shares of ANFI common stock is not obtained.

The Merger Agreement may be terminated by ANFI if:

at any time prior to the approval of the Merger Agreement by the ANFI shareholders, ANFI s Board of Directors has determined to enter into an agreement for a superior proposal (see Certain Covenants No Solicitation of Transactions above); or

at any time prior to the effective time of the Merger, whether before or after the approval of the Merger Agreement by the ANFI shareholders a breach or failure to perform any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement on the part of FNF set forth in the Merger Agreement shall have occurred which would cause the conditions to ANFI s obligations to complete the Merger not to be satisfied, and either these conditions are incapable of being satisfied by the June 30, 2003 (or, if the termination date has been extended as described above, such extended date) or such breach or failure to perform has not been cured within ten days after notice of such breach or failure to perform has been given by ANFI to FNF.

The Merger Agreement may be terminated by FNF if:

the ANFI Board of Directors shall have amended, modified, withdrawn, conditioned or qualified its recommendation for approval of the Merger by the ANFI shareholders in a manner materially adverse to FNF; or

at any time prior to the effective time of the Merger, whether before or after the approval of the Merger Agreement by the ANFI shareholders: (1) the ANFI Board of Directors shall have recommended any

acquisition proposal to the ANFI shareholders, or failed to recommend that the ANFI shareholders vote to approve the Merger; (3) a breach of or failure to perform any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement on the part of ANFI set forth in the Merger Agreement has occurred which would cause the conditions to FNF s obligations to complete the Merger not to be satisfied, and either these condition are incapable of being satisfied by June 30, 2003 (or, if the termination date has been extended as described above, such extended date) or such breach or failure to perform has not been cured within ten days after notice of such breach or failure to perform has been given by FNF to ANFI.

Termination Fee

ANFI shall pay to FNF a termination fee in the amount of \$2,780,000 if the Merger Agreement is terminated solely as follows:

if ANFI terminates the Merger Agreement in order to accept another acquisition proposal;

if FNF terminates the Merger Agreement because the ANFI Board of Directors recommends another acquisition proposal to the ANFI shareholders, or fails to recommend the Merger with FNF to the ANFI shareholders;

if either party shall terminate Merger Agreement due to a failure to obtain the approval of the ANFI shareholders and one or more of the ANFI executives party to the Voting Agreement has breached that agreement or otherwise failed to vote all shares of their ANFI stock in favor of the Merger Agreement and Merger; or

if FNF shall terminate the Merger Agreement due to an uncured breach thereof by ANFI and within 12 months of such termination, ANFI shall engage in any negotiations or discussions with any third party regarding an acquisition proposal.

Amendment and Waiver

Any provision of the Merger Agreement may be amended or waived prior to the Merger by an amendment executed by ANFI and FNF or a waiver granted by the party against whom the waiver is to be effective. However, no amendment or waiver that would require shareholder approval under applicable law shall be made after ANFI s shareholders approve the Merger Agreement and the Merger without the further approval of ANFI s shareholders.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND MATERIAL CONTACTS

ANFI and FNF share a common director, William P. Foley, II, who is currently a member of ANFI s Board of Directors and the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of FNF.

On July 12, 2002, pursuant to Purchase and Sale Agreements, each dated July 5, 2002, by and among FNF and certain ANFI officers and directors, FNF purchased in privately negotiated transactions an aggregate of 784,978 shares of ANFI common stock for an aggregate purchase price of \$9,419,730, or \$12.00 per share. The amounts purchased from each officer and/or director of ANFI and the identity and title of each such officer and/or director are as follows:

Seller	Title	Shares of ANFI Common Stock Purchased
Michael C. Lowther	Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer	287,500
Wayne D. Diaz	President	287,500
Carl A. Strunk	Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer	105,415
Barbara A. Ferguson	Executive Vice President	104,563

Michael C. Lowther, Wayne D. Diaz, Carl A. Strunk and Barbara A. Ferguson are all directors and senior officers of ANFI. Mr. Lowther is Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of ANFI.

Mr. Diaz is President of ANFI; Mr. Strunk is Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of ANFI. Ms. Ferguson is Executive Vice President of ANFI. On or about January 20, 2003, as required by the Merger Agreement Mr. Lowther, Mr. Diaz and Ms. Ferguson entered into modifications of their existing employment agreements with ANFI (which will only become effective upon consummation of the Merger Agreement). The resulting employment agreements as modified are substantially identical to their current employment agreements with ANFI except that (1) the annual bonus for each individual for each of calendar years 2003, 2004 and 2005 will include a minimum guarantee equal to the bonus each such individual received for calendar year 2001, and (2) each of Mr. Lowther, Mr. Diaz and Ms. Ferguson has waived his or her right to receive severance pay and other benefits by reason of the change in control of ANFI which will occur upon the effectiveness of the Merger.

The existing employment agreement of Carl A. Strunk has not been modified. If Mr. Strunk terminates his employment with ANFI in connection with the Merger or if his employment is terminated after the Merger, or other change of control transaction other than for cause, then Mr. Strunk will be entitled to (i) his minimum base annual salary due to him through the date of termination of the employment agreement; (ii) severance in an amount equal to the product of (A) his annual base salary at the date of termination of employment plus any incentive compensation bonus and (B) the number of years (including partial years) remaining in the term of his employment pursuant to the employment agreement or one, whichever is greater; (iii) immediate vesting of all options not already vested. Mr. Strunk s employment agreement is for a term of three years beginning August 14, 2001; and (iv) the continuation of other employee benefits comparable to those to which Mr. Strunk was entitled at the time of termination. However, at the end of each year of the employment agreement, the employment agreement is automatically extended for an additional one year unless ANFI (or its successor in interest) or Mr. Strunk provides the other with prior written notice of the intent not to extend the term for an additional year. However, ANFI is entitled not to elect to extend Mr. Strunk s employment agreement only if ANFI or any of its subsidiaries fails to perform in accordance with the budgeted expectations for such entities in the employment agreement year in which the election not to renew occurs.

Chicago Title Insurance Company (CTIC), a wholly-owed subsidiary of FNF, entered into an agency agreement with ANFI s wholly-owned subsidiary, American Title Company (ATC), whereby ATC agreed that, until June 30, 2007, it would act as an agent for CTIC with respect to the procurement of title insurance policies in 16 counties in California and Arizona subject to certain exceptions. This exclusive arrangement with CTIC does not apply to other counties into which ANFI may expand in the future. Under the agency agreement, ATC pays Fidelity National Title Insurance Company (FNTIC), a wholly-owned subsidiary of FNF, an administration fee of one percent of gross premiums for administrative services including accounting, legal and human resources. This administrative service agreement can be terminated by ATC upon ninety (90) days notice to FNTIC. The unexpected loss of CTIC underwriting or FNTIC s administrative services, for any reason, could result in an interruption to ANFI s operations until such services are secured elsewhere.

Additionally, ANFI leases title plants from FNTIC in Kern, San Mateo and Santa Clara counties and Chicago Title Insurance Company in Tucson. At the expiration of the leases, ANFI has an option to acquire these title plants for a nominal consideration. ANFI has also entered into a real property lease with Title Records, Inc., an affiliate of FNF.

George J. Wall, a director of ANFI, is a partner in the law firm of Palmieri, Tyler, Wiener, Wilhelm & Waldron, LLP. That law firm performed legal services for ANFI in 2002 and 2003 and it is expected this firm will continue to provide legal services to ANFI until the Merger is complete including the representation of ANFI in this transaction. The management of ANFI is of the opinion that the fees paid to Mr. Wall s law firm are comparable to those fees that would have been paid for comparable legal services from a law firm not affiliated with ANFI. Mr. Wall served during 2002 and 2003 as head of the Special Committee of the ANFI Board of Directors which reviewed and negotiated the terms of the proposed Merger with FNF. In that capacity, Mr. Wall received fees as did the other members of the Special Committee. The management of ANFI is of the opinion that the Special Committee fees paid Mr. Wall are comparable to committee fees that would be paid by other similarly situated companies for similar services.

Matthew K. Fong, a director of ANFI, is of counsel to the law firm of Sheppard, Mullin, Richter and Hampton, LLP (Sheppard Mullin). That law firm acted as counsel to the Special Committee of the ANFI Board of Directors. The management of ANFI is of the opinion that the fees paid to Sheppard Mullin are comparable to those fees that would have been paid for comparable legal services from a law firm not affiliated with ANFI. Mr. Fong is not receiving any portion of the legal fees received by Sheppard Mullin relating to Sheppard Mullin s services rendered to the Special Committee. Mr. Fong served during 2002 and 2003 as a member of the Special Committee of the ANFI Board of Directors which reviewed and negotiated the terms of the proposed Merger with FNF. In that capacity, Mr. Fong received fees as did other members of the Special Committee. Management of ANFI is of the opinion that the Special Committee fees paid to Mr. Fong are comparable to Special Committee fees that would be paid by other similarly situated companies for similar services.

Mr. Fong is a member of the audit committee of the ANFI Board of Directors. The ANFI audit committee charter provides that the committee members must be independent and otherwise qualified to serve on the audit committee under NASDAQ rules, and be free from any relationship that would interfere with the exercise of the director s independent judgment. Among the criteria for determining such independence is a maximum limit on the payments that may be made to an employer of the audit committee member equal to the lesser of \$200,000 per year or 5% of the employer s total annual revenue. Mr. Fong s employer, Sheppard Mullin, has served as independent legal counsel to the ANFI Special Committee. Sheppard Mullin has not to date received, and ANFI does not expect to pay, compensation for Sheppard Mullin s services in an amount that would exceed the foregoing maximum limit.

DESCRIPTION OF FNF CAPITAL STOCK

The following description does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to FNF s Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws and to the Delaware General Corporation Law.

General

The authorized capital stock of FNF consists of 150,000,000 shares of FNF common stock, par value \$0.0001 per share, and 3,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value \$0.0001 per share. As of February 4, 2003, there were approximately 96,158,000 shares of FNF common stock outstanding, and no shares of FNF preferred stock outstanding.

FNF Common Stock

The holders of FNF common stock are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by FNF s Board of Directors out of funds legally available therefor, and may be paid in cash, stock or other property. In certain cases, holders of FNF common stock may not receive dividends until obligations to the holders of any outstanding shares of FNF preferred stock have been satisfied. In addition, FNF s ability to pay dividends may be restricted by loan agreements, regulatory restrictions, or other transactions that FNF enters into from time to time. In the event of the dissolution of FNF, holders of FNF common stock will share ratably in all assets remaining after payment of liabilities and after providing for any liquidation preference for any outstanding shares of preferred stock. Each holder of FNF common stock is entitled to one vote for each share held of record on all matters presented for a vote at a stockholders meeting, including the election of directors. Holders of FNF common stock have no cumulative voting rights or preemptive rights to purchase or subscribe for any stock or other securities, and there are no conversion rights or redemption or sinking fund provisions with respect to such stock. Additional authorized shares of FNF common stock may be issued without stockholder approval.

FNF Preferred Stock

The authorized but unissued shares of FNF preferred stock are available for issuance from time to time at the discretion of FNF s Board of Directors without stockholder approval. The FNF Board of Directors has the authority to determine, for each series of FNF preferred stock it establishes, the number, designation, preferences, limitations, and relative rights of the shares of such series, subject to applicable law and the

provisions of any then-outstanding series of FNF preferred stock. The terms of any series of FNF preferred stock, including the dividend rate, redemption price, liquidation rights, sinking fund provisions, conversion rights and voting rights, and any corresponding effect on other FNF stockholders, will be dependent largely on factors existing at the time of issuance. Such terms and effects could include restrictions on the payment of dividends on the FNF common stock if dividends on the FNF preferred stock are in arrears, dilution of the voting power of other FNF stockholders to the extent a series of FNF preferred stock has voting rights, and reduction of amounts available for liquidation as a result of any liquidation preference granted to any series of FNF preferred stock.

Anti-Takeover Provisions

Certain provisions of FNF s Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws may make it less likely that FNF s management would be changed, or someone would acquire voting control of FNF, without the consent of the FNF Board of Directors. These provisions may delay, deter or prevent tender offers or takeover attempts that FNF s stockholders may believe are in their best interests, including tender offers or takeover attempts that might allow FNF stockholders to receive a premium over the market price of FNF common stock.

Fair Price Provision, Transactions and Interested Stockholders. FNF s Certificate of Incorporation prohibits certain business combinations between FNF and interested stockholders, which include direct and indirect owners of ten percent or more of the voting stock of FNF and their affiliates, unless those transactions are approved by holders of at least 66 2/3% of the outstanding voting stock not owned by any interested stockholders, voting together as a single class. This 66 2/3% approval is in addition to any approval required by law. Business combinations requiring the 66 2/3% approval include:

any merger or consolidation with an interested stockholder or a corporation affiliated with an interested stockholder;

any sale, lease, pledge, exchange, mortgage or other transfer or disposition of FNF assets valued at ten percent or more of the fair market value of FNF s consolidated assets to an interested stockholder or person or entity affiliated with an interested stockholder, other than in the ordinary course of business;

the issuance, pledge or transfer by FNF of any FNF securities, or the securities of one or more of its subsidiaries, to an interested stockholder in exchange for consideration with a value of ten percent or more of the fair market value of FNF s consolidated assets, unless such person is acting as an underwriter for such securities;

any sale, lease, pledge, exchange, mortgage or other transfer or disposition of the assets of any interested stockholder or any person or entity affiliated with an interested stockholder with a value of ten percent or more of the fair market value of the consolidated assets of FNF to FNF or one or more of its subsidiaries, other than in the ordinary course of business;

the adoption of any plan proposed by or on behalf of an interested stockholder or a person or entity affiliated with an interested stockholder to liquidate or dissolve FNF; and

any transaction that increases the voting power or proportionate share of any class of equity or convertible securities of FNF owned directly or indirectly by an interested stockholder or a person or entity affiliated with an interested stockholder.

However, if 66 2/3% of the continuing directors approve the business combination, the 66 2/3% stockholder approval requirement does not apply. Continuing directors are those FNF directors, excluding directors who are the interested stockholder or a representative or affiliate of the interested stockholder, (1) who were members of the Board of Directors before the interested stockholder involved in the business combination became an interested stockholder, or (2) whose election or nomination was approved by a majority of the directors holding office at the time the interested stockholder involved in the business combination became an interested stockholder.

This special stockholder approval requirement also does not apply to any business combination that meets certain conditions specified in the FNF Certificate of Incorporation. These conditions include:

that each stockholder receives for each of his or her shares a purchase price at least equal to the greater of (1) the highest price per share paid by the interested stockholder either in the course of becoming an interested stockholder or in the two years before the business combination is announced, (2) the fair market value of FNF shares when the interested stockholder became an interested stockholder, and (3) the fair market value of FNF shares when the business combination was announced;

that if, during the period after the interested stockholder became an interested stockholder and prior to completion of the business combination, FNF has failed to declare and pay any regular quarterly dividend, unless such failure was approved by 66 2/3% of the continuing directors;

the interested stockholder has not acquired any additional shares of FNF stock after becoming an interested stockholder;

after the interested stockholder became an interested stockholder, such person has not directly or indirectly received the benefit of any loans, advances, guarantees, pledges or other financial assistance provided by FNF; and

a proxy or information statement describing the proposed business combination is mailed to all holders of FNF common stock at least 30 days before the business combination is completed.

Holders of at least 66 2/3% of the outstanding voting stock of FNF not owned by any interested stockholders, voting together as one class, must approve a proposal to amend, repeal, or adopt provisions inconsistent with the provisions of the FNF Certificate of Incorporation described above, unless such proposal is approved by 66 2/3% of the continuing directors, in which case holders of at least a majority of the outstanding voting stock entitled to vote may approve such a proposal.

Transactions with Directors and Executive Officers. FNF s Bylaws provide that, the approval of directors representing at least 75% of the FNF Board of Directors is required for any transaction, or series of related transactions, to which FNF or any of its subsidiaries is to be a party, in which any member of the FNF Board of Directors or any executive officer of FNF has an interest, if such transaction would be required to be disclosed pursuant to Item 404 of Regulation S-K under the Securities Act, in a proxy statement of FNF for a meeting of its stockholders.

Preferred Stock May be Issued Without Stockholder Approval. FNF s Certificate of Incorporation permits its Board of Directors, at any time and without stockholder approval, to issue one or more new series of preferred stock. In some cases, the issuance of preferred stock without stockholder approval could discourage or make more difficult attempts to take control of FNF through a merger, tender offer, proxy contest or otherwise. Preferred stock with special voting rights or other features issued to persons favoring FNF s then existing management could stop a takeover by preventing the person trying to take control of FNF from acquiring the voting shares necessary to take control.

Classified Board of Directors. Members of the FNF Board of Directors are divided into three classes and serve staggered three-year terms. This means that only approximately one-third of the directors are elected at each annual meeting of stockholders, and that it would take two years to replace a majority of the directors by means of such elections. Under FNF s Certificate of Incorporation, directors can be removed from office during their terms only if holders of at least 50% of the outstanding voting stock, voting together as one class, approve the removal. Holders of at least 80% of the outstanding voting stock, voting together as a single class, must approve any proposal to amend, repeal or adopt any provisions inconsistent with this provision unless such proposal is approved by 66 2/3% of the continuing directors, in which case holders of at least a majority of the outstanding voting stock entitled to vote may approve such a proposal.

Restriction on Stockholder Actions by Written Consent. FNF s Certificate of Incorporation provides that any action required or permitted to be taken by FNF s stockholders must be effected at a duly called annual or special meeting of stockholders and not by written consent. Special meetings of stockholders may be called only by the Board of Directors. Holders of at least 80% of FNF s outstanding voting stock, voting together as one class, must approve any proposal to amend, repeal or adopt any provision inconsistent with

these provisions, unless such proposal is approved by 66 2/3% of the continuing directors, in which case holders of at least a majority of the outstanding voting stock entitled to vote may approve such proposal.

Advance Notice of Requirements for Director Nominations and Stockholder Proposals. FNF s stockholders can nominate candidates for the FNF Board of Directors. However, stockholders must follow the advance notice procedures described in FNF s Bylaws. In general, a stockholder must submit a written notice of the nomination to the Secretary of FNF, which must be received at least 120 days prior to the anniversary of the mailing of the preceding year s proxy statement for the annual meeting of stockholders. In the event that the date of the annual meeting of stockholders is advanced by more than 30 days or delayed by more than 60 days from such anniversary, to be timely notice by the stockholder must be received by the Secretary of FNF not earlier than the 90th day prior to such annual meeting and not later than the close of business on the later of (1) the 60th day prior to such annual meeting or (2) the tenth day following the day on which notice of the date of the annual meeting was mailed or public disclosure thereof was made by FNF, whichever first occurs. The notice must set forth specific information about (1) the nominee for the Board of Directors, (2) the stockholder making the nomination, (3) a representation that the stockholder is a holder of record of stock of FNF entitled to vote at such meeting and intends to appear in person or by proxy at a meeting to nominate the person or persons specified in the notice, (4) a description of all arrangements or understandings between the stockholder or any person that directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries controls, or is controlled by, or is under common control with, such stockholder and each nominee and any other person or persons relating to the nomination or nominations; (5) the class and number of shares of FNF that are beneficially owned by the stockholder and the person to be nominated as of the date of the stockholder s notice and by any other stockholders known by the stockholder to be supporting such nominees; (6) other information regarding each nominee proposed by the stockholder as would be required to be included in a proxy statement filed pursuant to the proxy rules of the SEC; and (7) the written consent of each nominee to serve as a director of FNF if so elected.

Stockholders can make proposals relating to other business of FNF to be considered at an annual meeting only pursuant to the advance notice procedures described in the FNF Bylaws. In general, a stockholder must submit a written notice of the proposal and the stockholder s interest in the proposal and such notice must be received by the Secretary of FNF at least business 120 days prior to the anniversary of the mailing of the preceding year s proxy statement for the annual meeting of stockholders. However, in the event that the date of the annual meeting is advanced by more than 30 days or delayed by more than 60 days from such anniversary, to be timely notice by the stockholder must be received not earlier than the 90th day prior to such annual meeting of stockholders and not later than the close of business on the later of (i) the 60th day prior to such annual meeting or (ii) the 10th day following the date on which notice of the date of the annual meeting was mailed or public disclosure thereof was made, whichever first occurs. The notice must set forth as to each matter the stockholder proposes to bring before the annual meeting of stockholders: (1) a brief description of the business desired to be brought before the annual meeting of stockholders and the reasons for conducting such business at the meeting, (2) the name and address, as they appear on FNF s books, of the stockholder proposing the business, (3) the class, series, and number of shares of FNF that are beneficially owned by the stockholder, and (4) any material interest of the stockholder or any affiliate of the stockholder in such business.

Directors Ability to Amend BylawsUnder the FNF Bylaws, FNF s Board of Directors can adopt, amend or repeal bylaws subject to limitations imposed by Delaware law. However, pursuant to FNF s Certificate of Incorporation, the Board of Directors may not amend or repeal bylaw provisions relating to (1) the calling of special meetings of stockholders, (2) actions by stockholders without a meeting, (3) the agenda for matters to be presented at stockholders meetings, (4) the election of directors and (5) the indemnification of officers and directors, without the vote of at least 66 2/3% of the continuing directors or at least 80% of FNF s outstanding voting stock, voting together as one class. Holders of at least 80% of FNF s outstanding voting stock, voting together as one class, must approve any proposal to amend, repeal or adopt any provision inconsistent with these provisions, unless such proposal is approved by 66 2/3% of the continuing directors, in which case holders of at least a majority of the outstanding voting stock entitled to vote may approve such proposal. FNF stockholders also have the power to change or repeal provisions of the FNF

Bylaws, other than those enumerated above requiring a special vote, by majority vote at an annual or special meeting of stockholders.

Additional Authorized Shares of Capital Stock. FNF s Board of Directors may issue additional shares of authorized FNF common stock available for issuance, in addition to their ability to issue preferred stock as discussed above, at such times, under such circumstances and with such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors may determine to impede a change in control of FNF.

COMPARISON OF RIGHTS OF ANFI SHAREHOLDERS

AND FNF STOCKHOLDERS

The rights of holders of FNF s Common Stock are governed by the Delaware General Corporation Law and FNF s Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws, while the rights of the shareholders of ANFI are governed by the California General Corporation Law and ANFI s Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws. In most respects, the rights of ANFI s shareholders are similar to those of FNF s stockholders. The following discussion summarizes the significant differences between the companies charter documents. This summary is not a complete discussion of, and is qualified by reference to, FNF s Certificate of Incorporation, FNF s Bylaws, ANFI s Articles of Incorporation, ANFI s Bylaws, the Delaware General Corporation Law and the California General Corporation Law.

Capital Stock. The shareholders of ANFI are entitled to one vote for each share held on all matters submitted to a shareholder vote. In the event of a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of ANFI, the holders of ANFI s Common Stock are entitled to share ratably in all assets remaining after payment of liabilities. Holders of ANFI s Common Stock have no preemptive rights, redemption rights, sinking fund provisions or rights to convert their shares of Common Stock into any other securities. All outstanding shares of ANFI s capital stock are fully paid and non-assessable.

See Description of FNF Capital Stock immediately prior to this Comparison of Rights regarding FNF capital stock.

Directors. FNF s Bylaws provide for FNF s Board of Directors to consist of no less than three nor more than fifteen members, currently fixed at thirteen. Board vacancies may be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining directors. FNF s stockholders may use cumulative voting to elect directors. ANFI s Bylaws provide for the Board of Directors of ANFI to consist of no less than three nor more than twelve members.

Stockholder Proposals. FNF s Bylaws provide that in order to properly bring nominations for the election of directors or other business before a stockholder meeting, a stockholder must give timely notice in writing to the secretary of FNF. To be timely, the stockholder s notice must be delivered at the principal executive offices of FNF not less than 120 calendar days in advance of the estimated mailing date for the proxy statement relating to FNF s next annual meeting. However, if the date of the annual meeting has been changed by more than 30 days from the date contemplated at the time of the previous year s proxy statement, notice must be received at a reasonable time before the solicitation is made. Such stockholder s notice to the secretary must set forth:

a brief description of the business desired to be brought before the meeting and the reasons for conducting such business at the annual meeting;

the name and address of the stockholder proposing such business and the class and number of shares of FNF s capital stock which are beneficially owned by such stockholder;

any material interest of the stockholder in such business; and

such information that is required to be provided by the stockholder pursuant to the proxy rules of the SEC.

ANFI s Bylaws provide that, in order to properly bring nominations for the election of directors or other business before a shareholder meeting, a shareholder must give timely notice in writing to the secretary of

ANFI. To be timely, the shareholder s notice must be received by the secretary not less than one hundred 120 calendar days prior to the anniversary of the mailing of the preceding year s proxy statement for the annual meeting of shareholders. However, if the annual meeting is advanced by more than 30 days or delayed by more than 60 days from such anniversary, to be timely, notice by the shareholder must be received by the secretary not earlier than the 90th day prior to such annual meeting and not later than the close of business on the later of the 60th day prior to such annual meeting or the tenth day following the day on which notice of the date of the annual meeting was mailed or public disclosure thereof was made by ANFI, whichever occurs first. The notice must set forth as to each matter the shareholder proposes to bring before the annual meeting of shareholders:

a brief description of the business desired to be brought before the annual meeting of shareholders and the reasons for conducting such business at such meeting;

the name and address of the shareholder proposing such business and the class, series, and number of shares of ANFI beneficially owned by the shareholder;

any material interest of the shareholder or an affiliate in such business; and

Such information that is required to be provided by the shareholder pursuant to the proxy rules of the SEC.

Additionally, for shareholder nomination of directors, such notice must also set forth:

name and address of the person or persons to be nominated;

a representation that the shareholder is a holder of record of stock of ANFI entitled to vote at such meeting and intends to appear in person or by proxy at a meeting to nominate the person or persons specified in the notice;

the class and number of shares of ANFI that are beneficially owned by the person to be nominated as of the date of such shareholder s notice and by other shareholders known by such shareholder to be supporting such nominees as of the date of such shareholder s notice; and

the written consent of each nominee to serve as a director of ANFI if so elected.

A description of all arrangements or understandings between the shareholder or any person that directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries controls, or is controlled by, or is under common control with, such shareholder and each nominee and any other person or persons relating to the nomination or nominations;

Right to Call Special Meetings of Stockholders. FNF s Bylaws provide that special meetings of FNF s stockholders may be called by its Board of Directors, the chairman, the chief executive officer or one or more stockholders holding shares entitled to cast not less than ten percent of the votes at that meeting. A stockholder entitled to call a special meeting must give notice in writing to the chairman of the board, president, chief executive officer or secretary of FNF. Such stockholder s notice must set forth the time of such meeting and the general nature of the business proposed to be transacted. The officer receiving the request shall cause notice to be given to the stockholders entitled to vote at that meeting that a meeting will be held at the time requested by the person(s) who called the meeting no less than 35 nor more than 60 days after the receipt of the request. If the notice is not given within 20 days after the receipt of the request, the person(s) requesting the meeting may give the notice. No action of the stockholders shall be taken by written consent.

ANFI s Bylaws provide that special meetings of shareholders may be called by its Board of Directors, the chairman, the president or one or more shareholders holding not less than ten percent of the votes entitled to vote at the meeting. Any person other than the Board of Directors entitled to call a special meeting must submit a written request to the chairman, president, vice president or secretary. The officer receiving the request shall cause notice to be given to the shareholders entitled to vote at that meeting that a meeting will be held at the time requested by the person(s) who called the meeting no less than 35 nor more than 60 days

after the receipt of the request. If the notice is not given within 20 days after the receipt of the request, the person(s) requesting the meeting may give the notice.

Significant Differences between the Corporate Laws of California and Delaware

The corporate laws of California and Delaware differ in many respects. It is not practical to describe all such differences in this proxy statement/prospectus, but the principal differences which could materially affect the rights of shareholders are discussed below.

Size of the Board of Directors. Under California law, although changes in the number of directors must in general be approved by a majority of the outstanding shares, the board of directors may fix the exact number of directors within a stated range set forth in the articles of incorporation or bylaws, if that stated range has been approved by the shareholders. Delaware law permits the board of directors alone to change the authorized number or the range of directors by amendment to the bylaws, unless the directors are not authorized to amend the bylaws or the number of directors is fixed in the certificate of incorporation (in which case a change in the number of directors may be made only by amendment to the certificate of incorporation following approval of such change by the stockholders). The ability of the board of directors to alter the size of the board without stockholder approval enables a company to respond quickly to a potential opportunity to attract the services of a qualified director or to eliminate a vacancy for which a suitable candidate is not available.

Cumulative Voting. California law generally provides that if any shareholder has given notice of his or her intention to cumulate votes for the election of directors, any other shareholder of the corporation is also entitled to cumulate his or her votes at such election. Under Delaware law, cumulative voting is not mandatory, and cumulative voting rights must be provided in a corporation s certificate of incorporation if shareholders are to be entitled to cumulative voting rights. FNF s Certificate of Incorporation does provide for cumulative voting.

Cumulative voting entitles each shareholder to cast a number of votes that is equal to the number of voting shares held by such shareholder multiplied by the total number of directors to be elected, and to cast all such votes for one nominee or distribute the votes among up to as many candidates as there are positions to be filled. Without cumulative voting, a shareholder or group of shareholders must hold a majority of the voting shares to cause the election of one or more nominees. Cumulative voting enables a minority shareholder or group of shareholders holding a relatively small number of shares to elect a representative or representatives to the board of directors.

Most California corporations are required by the California General Corporation Law to give shareholders the option to cumulate such shareholder s votes for the election of directors. California corporations whose stock is listed on a national stock exchange or whose stock is held by at least 800 shareholders of record and included in the Nasdaq National Market, the New York Stock Exchange, or the American Stock Exchange (a Listed Company) can eliminate cumulative voting with shareholder approval to adopt amendments to the corporation s articles of incorporation or bylaws.

Classified Board of Directors. A classified board is one in which a certain number, but not all, of the directors are elected on a rotating basis each year. California law generally requires that directors must be elected annually, but does permit California corporations meeting certain qualifications to amend their articles of incorporation or bylaws to provide for a classified board. Delaware law permits, but does not require, a classified board of directors, with staggered terms under which one-half or one-third of the directors are elected for terms of two or three years, respectively. This method of electing directors makes changes in the composition of the board of directors, and thus a potential change in control of a corporation, a lengthier and more difficult process. Classification of directors is also likely to provide the Board of Directors with greater continuity and experience. FNF has a classified board of directors.

Power to Call Special Shareholder Meetings. Under California law, a special meeting of shareholders may be called by the board of directors, the chairman of the board, the president, the holders of shares entitled to cast not less than ten percent of the votes at such meeting and such additional persons as are authorized by

the articles of incorporation or the bylaws. Under Delaware law, a special meeting may be called by the board of directors or by any other person authorized to do so in the certificate of incorporation or the bylaws and those provisions may not necessarily include a right for a ten percent or greater vote of stockholders to call a special meeting. FNF s Bylaws authorize its stockholders to call a special meeting. Such action on the part of stockholders could include removal of a director, election of a director or the implementation of a rule requiring stockholder ratification of specific defensive strategies.

Elimination of Actions by Written Consent of Stockholders. Under California and Delaware law, stockholders may execute an action by written consent in lieu of a stockholder meeting. Delaware law permits a corporation to eliminate such actions by written consent in its charter. Elimination of written consents of stockholders could lengthen the amount of time required to take stockholder actions since certain actions by written consent are not subject to the minimum notice requirement of a stockholders meeting. The elimination of stockholders written consents may deter hostile takeover attempts. FNF s stockholders may not act by written consent. Without the stockholder s written consent, a holder or group of holders controlling a majority in interest of FNF s capital stock would not be able to amend FNF s Bylaws or remove directors pursuant to a stockholder s written consent. Any such holder or group of holders would have to call a stockholders meeting and wait the notice periods set forth in FNF s Bylaws prior to taking any such action.

Shareholder Approval of Certain Business Combinations. In the last several years, a number of states (but not California) have adopted special laws designed to make certain kinds of unfriendly corporate takeovers, or other transactions involving a corporation and one or more of its significant stockholders, more difficult. Under Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, certain business combinations by Delaware corporations with interested stockholders are subject to a three-year moratorium unless specified conditions are met. Under Section 1203 of the California Corporations Law, certain business combinations with a majority shareholder are subject to specified conditions, but there is no equivalent provision to Section 203, which addresses business combinations with a significant but not majority shareholder.

Section 203 prohibits a Delaware corporation from engaging in a business combination with an interested stockholder for three years following the date that such person becomes an interested stockholder. With certain exceptions, an interested stockholder is a person or group who owns 15% or more of the corporation s outstanding voting stock (including any rights to acquire stock pursuant to an option, warrant, agreement, arrangement or understanding, or upon the exercise of conversion or exchange rights, and stock with respect to which the person has voting rights only), or is an affiliate or associate of the corporation and was the owner of 15% or more of such voting stock at any time within the previous three years. For purposes of Section 203, the term business combination is defined broadly to include mergers with or caused by the interested stockholder, sales or other dispositions to the interested stockholder (except proportionately with the other stockholders) of assets of the corporation or a subsidiary equal to ten percent or more of the aggregate market value of the corporation s consolidated assets or its outstanding stock, the issuance or transfer by the corporation or a subsidiary of stock of the corporation or such subsidiary to the interested stockholder (except for transfers which do not increase the interested stockholder s proportionately as a stockholder), directly or indirectly, of any loans, advances, guarantees, pledges or other financial benefits provided by or through the corporation or a subsidiary.

The three-year moratorium imposed on business combinations by Section 203 does not apply if: (i) prior to the date on which such stockholder becomes an interested stockholder the board of directors approves either the business combination or the transaction which resulted in the person becoming an interested stockholder; (ii) the interested stockholder owns 85% of the corporation s voting stock upon consummation of the transaction which made him or her an interested stockholder (excluding from the 85% calculation shares owned by directors who are also officers of the target corporation and shares held by employee stock plans which do not permit employees to decide confidentially whether to accept a tender or exchange offer); or (iii) on or after the date such person becomes an interested stockholder, the board approves the business combination and it is also approved at a stockholder meeting by 66 2/3% of the voting stock not owned by the interested stockholder.

Section 203 only applies to Delaware corporations which have a class of voting stock listed on a national securities exchange, quoted on an interdealer quotation system such as the Nasdaq National Market or held of record by more than 2,000 stockholders. In addition, a Delaware corporation may elect not to be governed by Section 203 by a provision in its original certificate of incorporation or an amendment thereto or its bylaws, which amendment must be approved by majority stockholder vote and may not be further amended by the board of directors. FNF opted out of, and is not governed by the provisions of, Section 203.

Removal of Directors. Under California law, any director or the entire board of directors may be removed, with or without cause, by the affirmative vote of a majority of the outstanding shares entitled to vote; however, no individual director may be removed (unless the entire board is removed) if the number of votes cast against such removal, or not consenting in writing to removal, would be sufficient to elect the director under cumulative voting. Under Delaware law, a director of a corporation that does not have a classified board of directors or cumulative voting may be removed with or without cause with the approval of a majority of the outstanding shares entitled to vote. In the case of a Delaware corporation having cumulative voting, if less than the entire board of directors is to be removed, a director may not be removed without cause if the number of shares voted against such removal would be sufficient to elect the director if then cumulatively voted at an election of the entire board of directors. A director of a corporation with a classified board of directors may be removed only for cause, unless the certificate of incorporation otherwise provides. A limitation on the ability of stockholders to remove members of the board of directors without cause may make a potential change in control of a company a lengthier and more difficult process.

Filling Vacancies on the Board of Directors. Under California law, any vacancy on the board of directors other than one created by removal of a director may be filled by the board of directors. If the number of directors is less than a quorum, a vacancy may be filled by the unanimous written consent of the directors then in office, by the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors at a meeting held pursuant to notice or waivers of notice or by a sole remaining director. A vacancy created by removal of a director may be filled by the board of directors only if the board of directors is so authorized by a corporation s articles of incorporation or by a bylaw approved by the corporation s shareholders. ANFI s Bylaws do not permit directors to fill vacancies created by removal of a director; if the vacancy was created by the removal of a director by the vote or written consent of the shareholders or by court order, the vacancy may be filled only by the affirmative vote of a majority of shares represented and voting at a duly held meeting at which a quorum is present, or by the written consent of the holders of at least a majority of the outstanding shares. Under Delaware law, vacancies and newly created directorships may be filled by a majority of the directors then in office (even though less than a quorum) unless otherwise provided in the certificate of incorporation or bylaws (and unless the certificate of incorporation directs that a particular class is to elect such director, in which case any other directors elected by such class, or a sole remaining director, will fill such vacancy). FNF s Bylaws authorize the majority of directors then in office (even less than a quorum), or a sole remaining director, to fill any vacancy occurring on its Board of Directors for any cause.

Loans to Officers and Employees. Under California law, any loan or guaranty to or for the benefit of a director or officer of a corporation or its parent requires approval of the shareholders unless such loan or guaranty is provided under a plan approved by the shareholders. In addition, under California law, shareholders of any corporation with 100 or more shareholders of record may approve a bylaw authorizing the board of directors alone to approve loans or guaranties to or on behalf of officers (whether or not such officers are directors) if the board determines that any such loan or guaranty may reasonably be expected to benefit the corporation. Under Delaware law, a corporation may make loans to, guarantee the obligations of or otherwise assist its officers or other employees and those of its subsidiaries (including directors who are also officers or employees) when such action, in the judgment of the directors, may reasonably be expected to benefit the corporation.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, pursuant to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, a Listed Company, regardless of its state of incorporation, is prohibited from making or materially modifying existing personal loans to its executive officers and directors.

Indemnification and Limitation of Liability. California and Delaware have similar laws respecting indemnification by a corporation of its officers, directors, employees and other agents. The laws of both states also permit corporations to adopt a provision in their charters eliminating the liability of a director to the

corporation or its shareholders for monetary damages for breach of the director s fiduciary duty. There are nonetheless certain differences between the laws of the two states with respect to indemnification and limitation of liability.

ANFI s Articles of Incorporation, as amended, eliminate the liability of directors to the fullest extent permissible under California law. California law does not permit the elimination of monetary liability where such liability is based upon: (a) intentional misconduct or knowing and culpable violation of law; (b) acts or omissions that a director believes to be contrary to the best interests of the corporation or its shareholders, or that involve the absence of good faith on the part of the director; (c) receipt of an improper personal benefit; (d) acts or omissions that show reckless disregard for the director s duty to the corporation or its shareholders, where the director in the ordinary course of performing a director s duties should be aware of a risk of serious injury to the corporation or its shareholders; (e) acts or omissions that constitute an unexcused pattern of inattention that amounts to an abdication of the director s duty to the corporation and its shareholders; (f) interested transactions between the corporation and a director in which a director has a material financial interest; and (g) liability for improper distributions, loans or guarantees.

The Certificate of Incorporation of FNF likewise eliminates the liability of directors to the fullest extent permissible under Delaware law, as such law exists currently or as it may be amended in the future. Under Delaware law, such provision may not eliminate or limit director monetary liability for: (a) breaches of the director s duty of loyalty to the corporation or its stockholders; (b) acts or omissions not in good faith or involving intentional misconduct or knowing violations of law; (c) the payment of unlawful dividends or unlawful stock repurchases or redemptions; or (d) transactions in which the director received an improper personal benefit.

The limitation of liability provisions permissible under California and Delaware law also may not limit a director s liability for violation of, or otherwise relieve directors from the necessity of complying with, federal or state securities laws, or affect the availability of non-monetary remedies such as injunctive relief or rescission.

California law permits indemnification of expenses incurred in derivative or third-party actions, except that with respect to the former (a) no indemnification may be made without court approval when a person is adjudged liable to the corporation in the performance of that person s duty to the corporation and its shareholders, unless a court determines such person is entitled to indemnify for expenses, and then such indemnification may be made only to the extent that such court shall determine, and (b) no indemnification may be made without court approval in respect of amounts paid or expenses incurred in settling or otherwise disposing of a threatened or pending action or amounts incurred in defending a pending action which is settled or otherwise disposed of without court approval. Indemnification is permitted by California law only for acts taken in good faith and believed to be in the best interests of the corporation and its shareholders, as determined by a majority vote of a disinterested quorum of the directors, independent legal counsel (if a quorum of independent directors is not obtainable), a majority vote of a quorum of the shareholders (excluding shares owned by the indemnified party) or the court handling the action.

California law requires indemnification when the individual has successfully defended the action on the merits (as opposed to Delaware law which requires indemnification relating to a successful defense on the merits or otherwise). Delaware law generally permits indemnification of expenses incurred in the defense or settlement of a derivative or third-party action, provided there is a determination by a disinterested quorum of the directors, by independent legal counsel or by a majority vote of a quorum of the stockholders that the person seeking indemnification acted in good faith and in a manner reasonably believed to be in or (in contrast to California law) not opposed to the best interests of the corporation. Without court approval, however, no indemnification may be made in respect of any derivative action in which such person is adjudged liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of his or her duty to the corporation.

California and Delaware corporations may include in their charters a provision, which extends the scope of indemnification through agreements, bylaws or other corporate action beyond that specifically authorized by statute.

Inspection of Shareholder List. Both California and Delaware law allow any shareholder to inspect and copy the shareholder list for a purpose reasonably related to such person s interest as a shareholder. California law provides, in addition, for an absolute right to inspect and copy the shareholder list by persons holding an aggregate of five percent or more of a corporation s voting shares, or shareholders holding an aggregate of one percent or more of such shares who have filed a Schedule 14B with the SEC relating to the solicitation of proxies for the election of directors. The latter provision has not been amended in response to the elimination of Schedule 14B under the revised proxy rules. Under California law, such absolute inspection rights also apply to a corporation formed under the laws of any other state if the corporation s principal executive offices are in California or if it customarily holds meetings of its board in California. Delaware law also provides for inspection rights as to a list of stockholders entitled to vote at a meeting within a ten day period preceding a stockholders meeting for any purpose germane to the meeting. However, Delaware law contains no provisions comparable to the absolute right of inspection provided by California law to certain shareholders.

Dividends and Repurchases of Shares. California law dispenses with the concepts of par value of shares as well as statutory definitions of capital, surplus and the like. The concepts of par value, capital and surplus are retained under Delaware law.

Under California law, a corporation may not make any distribution (including dividends, whether in cash or other property, and repurchases of its shares) unless either the corporation s retained earnings immediately prior to the proposed distribution equal or exceed the amount of the proposed distribution or, immediately after giving effect to such distribution, the corporation s assets (exclusive of goodwill, capitalized research and development expenses and deferred charges) would be at least equal to 1.25 times its liabilities (not including deferred taxes, deferred income and other deferred credits), and the corporation s current assets would be at least equal to its current liabilities (or 1.25 times its current liabilities if the average pre-tax and pre-interest expense earnings for the preceding two fiscal years were less than the average interest expense for such years). Such tests are applied on a consolidated basis.

Delaware law permits a corporation to declare and pay dividends out of surplus or, if there is no surplus, out of net profits for the fiscal year in which the dividend is declared and/or for the preceding fiscal year as long as the amount of capital of the corporation following the declaration and payment of the dividend is not less than the aggregate amount of the capital represented by the issued and outstanding stock of all classes having a preference upon the distribution of assets. In addition, Delaware law generally provides that a corporation may redeem or repurchase its shares only if such redemption or repurchase would not impair the capital of the corporation.

Shareholder Voting. Both California and Delaware law generally require that a majority of the holders of voting shares of the acquiring and target corporations approve statutory mergers. Delaware law does not require a stockholder vote of the surviving corporation in a merger (unless the corporation provides otherwise in its certificate of incorporation) if (a) the merger agreement does not amend the existing certificate of incorporation, (b) each share of the surviving corporation outstanding before the merger is an identical outstanding or treasury share after the merger, and (c) the number of shares to be issued by the surviving corporation in the merger does not exceed 20% of the shares outstanding immediately prior to the merger. California law contains a similar exception to its voting requirements for reorganizations where shareholders or the corporation itself, or both, immediately prior to the reorganization will own immediately after the reorganization equity securities constituting more than five-sixths of the voting power of the surviving or acquiring corporation or its parent entity. Both California and Delaware law also require that a sale of all or substantially all of the assets of a corporation be approved by a majority of the voting shares of the corporation transferring such assets.

With certain exceptions, California law also requires that mergers, reorganizations, certain sales of assets and similar transactions be approved by a majority vote of each class of shares outstanding. By contrast, Delaware law generally does not require class voting, except in certain transactions involving an amendment to the certificate of incorporation which adversely affects a specific class of shares.

Interested Director Transactions. Under both California and Delaware law, certain contracts or transactions in which one or more of a corporation s directors has an interest are not void or voidable because

of such interest provided that certain conditions, such as obtaining the required approval and fulfilling the requirements of good faith and full disclosure, are met. With certain exceptions, the conditions are similar under California and Delaware law. Under California and Delaware law, (a) either the shareholders or the board of directors must approve any such contract or transaction after full disclosure of the material facts, and in the case of board approval the contract or transaction must also be just and reasonable (in California) or fair (in Delaware) to the corporation, or (b) the contract or transaction must have been just and reasonable or fair as to the corporation at the time it was approved. In the latter case, California law explicitly places the burden of proof on the interested director. Under California law, if shareholder approval is sought, the interested director is not entitled to vote his or her shares at a shareholder meeting with respect to any action regarding such contract or transaction. If board approval is sought, the contract or transaction must be approved by a majority vote of a quorum of the directors, without counting the vote of any interested directors, except that interested directors may be counted for purposes of establishing a quorum.

Under Delaware law, if board approval is sought, the contract or transaction must be approved by a majority of the disinterested directors (even though less than a majority of a quorum). Therefore, certain transactions that the Board of Directors of the Company would lack the authority to approve, because of the number of interested directors, could be approved by a majority of the disinterested directors of FNF representing less than a majority of a quorum.

Voting by Ballot. California law provides that the election of directors may proceed in the manner described in a corporation s bylaws. Under Delaware law, the right to vote by written ballot may be restricted if so provided in the certificate of incorporation. It may be more difficult for a stockholder to contest the outcome of a vote which has not been conducted by written ballot.

Shareholder Derivative Suits. California law provides that a shareholder bringing a derivative action on behalf of a corporation need not have been a shareholder at the time of the transaction in question, provided that certain tests are met. Under Delaware law, a stockholder may only bring a derivative action on behalf of the corporation if he or she was a stockholder of the corporation at the time of the transaction in question or his or her stock thereafter devolved upon him or her by operation of law. California law also provides that the corporation or the defendant in a derivative suit may make a motion to the court for an order requiring the plaintiff shareholder to furnish a security bond. Delaware does not have a similar bonding requirement.

Appraisal Rights. Under both California and Delaware law, a shareholder of a corporation participating in certain major corporate transactions may, under varying circumstances, be entitled to appraisal rights pursuant to which such shareholder may receive cash in the amount of the fair market value of his or her shares in lieu of the consideration he or she would otherwise receive in the transaction. Under Delaware law, such appraisal rights are not available (a) with respect to the sale, lease or exchange of all or substantially all of the assets of a corporation, (b) with respect to a merger or consolidation by a corporation the shares of which are either listed on a national securities exchange or are held of record by more than 2,000 holders if such stockholders receive in the transaction only shares which are so listed or held of record, plus cash in lieu of fractional shares, or (c) to stockholders of a corporation surviving a merger if no vote of the stockholders of the surviving corporation is required to approve the merger because the merger agreement does not amend the existing certificate of incorporation, each share of the surviving corporation outstanding prior to the merger is an identical outstanding or treasury share after the merger, and the number of shares to be issued in the merger does not exceed 20% of the shares of the surviving corporation outstanding immediately prior to the merger and if certain other conditions are met.

The limitations on the availability of appraisal rights under California law are different from those under Delaware law. Shareholders of a California corporation whose shares are listed on a national securities exchange or on a list of over-the-counter margin stocks issued by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System generally do not have appraisal rights unless the holders of at least five percent of the class of outstanding shares claim the right or unless the corporation or any law restricts the transfer of such shares. Appraisal rights are unavailable, however, if the shareholders of a corporation or the corporation itself, or both, immediately prior to the reorganization will own immediately after the reorganization equity securities

constituting more than five-sixths of the voting power of the surviving or acquiring corporation or its parent entity. California law generally affords appraisal rights in sale of asset reorganizations.

Dissolution. Under California law, shareholders holding 50% or more of the total voting power may authorize a corporation s dissolution, with or without the approval of the board of directors, and this right may not be modified by the articles of incorporation. Under Delaware law, unless the board of directors approves the proposal to dissolve, the dissolution must be approved by all the stockholders entitled to vote thereon. Only if the dissolution is initiated by the board of directors may it be approved by a simple majority of the corporation s stockholders then entitled to vote. In the event of such a board-initiated dissolution, Delaware law allows a Delaware corporation to include in its certificate of incorporation a supermajority voting requirement in connection with dissolutions.

Application of California Corporate Law to Delaware Corporations

Under Section 2115 of the California General Corporation Law, certain foreign corporations (i.e., corporations not organized under California law) are placed in a special category if they have characteristics of ownership and operation which indicate that they have significant contacts with California. So long as a Delaware or other foreign corporation is in this special category, and it does not qualify for one of the statutory exemptions, it is subject to a number of key provisions of the California General Corporation Law. Among the more important provisions are those relating to the election and removal of directors, cumulative voting, prohibition of classified boards of directors, standards of liability and indemnification of directors, distributions, dividends and repurchases of shares, shareholder meetings, approval of certain corporate transactions, dissenters—rights and inspection of corporate records.

A foreign corporation transacting business in California is subject to Section 2115 if the average of its property factor, payroll factor and sales factor (as such terms are defined in the California Revenue and Taxation Code) is more than 50% during is its last full income year and if more than one-half of its outstanding voting securities are held of record by persons having addresses in California. Even if the corporation meets the criteria set forth in the preceding sentence, a corporation is not subject to Section 2115 if its securities are listed on a national exchange or the Nasdaq National Market and the corporation s shares are held by at least 800 holders as of the record date of its most recent annual meeting of stockholders. FNF believes that it is exempt from Section 2115.

LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the shares of FNF common stock to be issued to ANFI shareholders pursuant to the Merger will be passed upon by Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation, Newport Beach, California. Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth will also deliver an opinion concerning certain federal income tax consequences of the Merger.

EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules of FNF as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 and for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2001 have been incorporated by reference in this proxy statement/prospectus in reliance upon the report of KPMG LLP, independent auditors, upon the authority of such firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

The consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule of ANFI as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2001, have been included in this proxy statement/prospectus in Appendix D in reliance upon the report of KPMG LLP, independent auditors, appearing in Appendix D, upon the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS

Because of the special meeting of shareholders being held to consider the Merger, and because after the Merger ANFI shareholders will become FNF stockholders, ANFI does not intend to hold an annual meeting of shareholders in 2003. If the Merger does not occur, however, the Board of Directors of ANFI will call for an annual meeting of shareholders to conduct regular business, and shareholder proposals intended to be presented at the 2003 annual meeting of shareholders of ANFI must have been received by the corporate secretary of ANFI by December 31, 2002 for inclusion in the proxy materials for that meeting.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

FNF has filed with the SEC a registration statement on Form S-4 to register under the Securities Act the shares of FNF common stock to be issued to ANFI shareholders pursuant to the Merger. The registration statement, including the exhibits and schedules attached thereto, contains additional relevant information about FNF and FNF common stock. This proxy statement/prospectus is a part of that registration statement and constitutes a prospectus of FNF, as well as a proxy statement of ANFI for the ANFI special meeting of shareholders.

The rules and regulations of the SEC allow us to omit certain information included in the registration statement from this proxy statement/prospectus. In addition, attached hereto as Appendix D is ANFI s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001 (restated) and attached hereto as Appendix E is ANFI s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2002.

FNF and ANFI file reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy any reports, proxy statements and other information we file at the following locations of the SEC:

Public Reference Room 450 Fifth Street, N.W. Room 1024 Washington, D.C. 20549 Chicago Regional Office Citicorp Center 500 West Madison Street Suite 1400 Chicago, Illinois 60661-2511

You may also obtain copies of this information by mail from the Public Reference Section of the SEC, 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Room 1024, Washington, D.C. 20549, at prescribed rates. Further information on the operation of the SEC s Public Reference Room in Washington, D.C. can be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC also maintains an internet world wide web site that contains reports, proxy statements and other information about issuers, such as FNF and ANFI, who file electronically with the SEC. The address of that site is http://www.sec.gov.

You can also inspect reports, proxy statements and other information about FNF at the offices of the NYSE, 20 Broad Street, New York, New York 10005.

The SEC allows FNF to incorporate by reference information into this proxy statement/prospectus, which means that FNF may disclose important information to you by referring you to another document filed separately with the SEC. The information incorporated by reference is deemed to be part of this proxy statement/prospectus, except for any information superseded by information in this proxy statement/prospectus. This proxy statement/prospectus incorporates by reference the documents set forth below, and any amendments to those documents, that we have previously filed with the SEC. These documents contain important information about FNF.

FNF SEC Filings Period or Date Filed (File No. 1-9396) Annual Report on Form 10-K Year ended December 31, 2001 Quarterly Periods ended March 31, 2002, June 30, 2002 and Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q September 30, 2002 Current Reports on Form 8-K Filed on August 13, 2002 and January 29, 2003 Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A Filed on April 29, 2002 Definitive Additional Proxy Material on Form DEFA14A Filed on December 17, 2002 and January 10, 2003 Description of FNF common stock, par value \$0.0001 per share, Filed on February 4, 1992 included in the FNF registration statement on Form 8-A, including any

FNF and ANFI also incorporate herein by reference additional documents that FNF or ANFI may file with the SEC between the date of this proxy statement/ prospectus and the date of the ANFI special meeting. These documents include periodic reports, such as Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8-K, as well as proxy statements.

FNF has supplied all information contained or incorporated by reference in this document relating to FNF, and ANFI has supplied all such information relating to ANFI.

You can obtain any of the documents incorporated by reference in this document from FNF or ANFI, respectively, or from the SEC through the SEC s web site at the address provided above. Documents incorporated by reference are available from FNF or ANFI, respectively, without charge, excluding any exhibits to those documents unless the exhibit is specifically incorporated by reference as an exhibit in this proxy statement/prospectus. You can obtain documents incorporated by reference in this proxy statement/prospectus by requesting them in writing or by telephone from FNF at the following address:

Fidelity National Financial, Inc.

4050 Calle Real, Suite 200 Santa Barbara, California 93110

Attention: Senior Vice President, Investor Relations

amendment or report filed for the purpose of updating such description

Daniel K. Murphy,

Phone number: (805) 696-7218

Or, you can obtain documents incorporated by reference in this proxy statement/prospectus by requesting them in writing or by telephone from ANFI at the following address:

ANFI, Inc.

1111 E. Katella Avenue, Suite 220, Orange, California 92867 Attention: Jo Ann N. Bunton Phone number: (714) 289-4300

If you would like to request documents from FNF or ANFI, please do so by , 2003 to receive them before the special meeting of shareholders of ANFI. If you request incorporated documents from FNF or ANFI, FNF or ANFI will mail them to you by first-class mail, or other equally prompt means, within one business day of receipt of your request.

YOU SHOULD RELY ONLY ON THE INFORMATION CONTAINED OR INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE IN THIS PROXY STATEMENT/ PROSPECTUS TO VOTE ON THE MERGER. NEITHER COMPANY HAS NOT AUTHORIZED ANYONE TO PROVIDE YOU WITH INFOR-

MATION THAT IS DIFFERENT FROM WHAT IS CONTAINED IN THIS PROXY STATEMENT/ PROSPECTUS. THIS PROXY STATEMENT/ PROSPECTUS IS DATED , 2003. YOU SHOULD NOT ASSUME THAT THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE PROXY STATEMENT/ PROSPECTUS IS ACCURATE AS OF ANY DATE OTHER THAN SUCH DATE, AND NEITHER THE MAILING OF THE PROXY STATEMENT/ PROSPECTUS TO SHAREHOLDERS NOR THE ISSUANCE OF FNF COMMON STOCK IN THE MERGER SHALL CREATE ANY IMPLICATION TO THE CONTRARY.

80

Appendix A

AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER

DATED AS OF JANUARY 9, 2003

BY AND AMONG

FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.,

ANFI MERGER SUB, INC.

AND

ANFI, INC.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page
ARTICLE I	DEFINITIONS	A-1
Section 1.1	Definitions	A-1
ARTICLE II	THE MERGER	A-5
Section 2.1	The Merger Sub	A-5
Section 2.1 Section 2.2	The Merger	A-5
Section 2.3	Articles of Incorporation and By-laws of the Surviving Corporation	A-5
Section 2.4	Board of Directors of the Surviving Corporation	A-5
ARTICLE III	CONVERSION OF SECURITIES AND RELATED MATTERS	A-6
Section 3.1	Conversion of Capital Stock	A-6
Section 3.2	Fractional Shares; Adjustments	A-6
Section 3.3	Exchange of Certificates	A-6
Section 3.4	ANFI Stock Options and Warrants	A-8
Section 3.5	Shares of Dissenting Shareholders	A-9
ARTICLE IV	REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF ANFI	A-9
Section 4.1	Corporate Existence and Power	A-9
Section 4.2	Corporate Authorization	A-9
Section 4.3	Governmental Authorization	A-9
Section 4.4	Non-Contravention	A-10
Section 4.5	Capitalization	A-10
Section 4.6	Subsidiaries	A-10
Section 4.7	The ANFI SEC Documents	A-11
Section 4.8	Financial Statements	A-11
Section 4.9	No Material Undisclosed Liabilities	A-11
Section 4.10	Information to Be Supplied	A-12
Section 4.11	Absence of Certain Changes	A-12
Section 4.12	Transactions with Affiliates	A-12
Section 4.13	Litigation	A-12
Section 4.14	Taxes	A-13
Section 4.15	Employees and Employee Benefits	A-13
Section 4.16	Compliance with Laws	A-14
Section 4.17	Directors and Officers Insurance Policies	A-14
Section 4.18	Environmental Matters	A-14
Section 4.19	Finders Fees; Opinion of Financial Advisor	A-15
Section 4.20	Required Vote; Board Approval	A-15
ARTICLE V	REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF FNF AND MERGER SUB	A-15
Section 5.1	Corporate Existence and Power	A-15
Section 5.2	Corporate Authorization	A-15
Section 5.3	Governmental Authorization	A-16
Section 5.4	Non-Contravention	A-16
Section 5.5	Capitalization of FNF and Merger Sub	A-16
Section 5.6	Subsidiaries	A-17

A-i

		Page
Section 5.7	FNF SEC Documents	A-17
Section 5.8	Financial Statements	A-17
Section 5.9	No Material Undisclosed Liabilities	A-18
Section 5.10	Information to Be Supplied	A-18
Section 5.11	Absence of Certain Changes	A-18
Section 5.12	Transactions with Affiliates	A-18
Section 5.13	Litigation	A-18
Section 5.14	Compliance with Laws	A-18
Section 5.15	Finders Fees; Opinion of Financial Advisor	A-19
Section 5.16	Required Vote; Board Approval	A-19
Section 5.17	Taxes	A-19
Section 5.18	Employees and Employee Benefits	A-19
Section 5.19	Environmental Matters	A-20
Section 5.20	Shareholder Consent	A-20
Section 5.21	Assets and Liabilities	A-21
ARTICLE VI	COVENANTS OF ANFI	A-21
Section 6.1	ANFI Interim Operations	A-21
Section 6.2	Shareholder Meeting	A-23
Section 6.3	Acquisition Proposals; Board Recommendation	A-23
Section 6.4	New Employment Agreements	A-24
Section 6.5	Registration Rights	A-24
ARTICLE VII	COVENANTS OF FNF	A-24
Section 7.1	Indemnification, Exculpation and Insurance	A-24
Section 7.2	Stock Exchange Listing	A-24
Section 7.3	Merger Sub Shareholder Consent	A-24
ARTICLE VIII	COVENANTS OF FNF, MERGER SUB AND ANFI	A-25
Section 8.1	Commercially Reasonable Efforts	A-25
Section 8.2	Certain Filings; Cooperation in Receipt of Consents	A-25
Section 8.3	Public Announcements	A-26
Section 8.4	Access to Information; Notification of Certain Matters	A-26
Section 8.5	Further Assurances	A-27
Section 8.6	Tax Matters	A-27
Section 8.7	Control of Other Party s Business	A-27
Section 8.8	Affiliate Letters	A-27
ARTICLE IX	CONDITIONS TO THE MERGER	A-27
Section 9.1	Conditions to the Obligations of Each Party	A-27
Section 9.2	Conditions to the Obligations of ANFI	A-28
Section 9.3	Conditions to the Obligations of FNF and Merger Sub	A-28
ARTICLE X	TERMINATION	A-29
Section 10.1	Termination	A-29
Section 10.2	Effect of Termination	Δ_30

A-ii

		Page
Section 10.3	Expenses	A-30
Section 10.4	Termination Fee	A-30 A-30
ARTICLE XI	MISCELLANEOUS	A-31
Section 11.1	Survival	A-31
Section 11.2	Notices	A-31
Section 11.3	Amendments; No Waivers	A-32
Section 11.4	Successors and Assigns	A-32
Section 11.5	Governing Law	A-32
Section 11.6	Counterparts; Effectiveness; Third Party Beneficiaries	A-32
Section 11.7	Jurisdiction	A-32
Section 11.8	Waiver of Jury Trial	A-32
Section 11.9	Arbitration	A-32
Section 11.10	Enforcement	A-33
Section 11.11	Entire Agreement	A-33
Section 11.12	Attorneys Fees	A-33
Exhibit A	Modification to Existing Employment Agreements	

A-iii

AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER

This AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER, dated as of January 9, 2003 (the *Agreement*), is made and entered into by and among Fidelity National Financial, Inc., a Delaware corporation (*FNF*), ANFI Merger Sub, Inc., a California corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of FNF (*Merger Sub*), and ANFI, Inc., a California corporation (*ANFI*).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Boards of Directors of FNF, Merger Sub and ANFI each have determined that a business combination between FNF and ANFI is advisable and in the best interests of their respective companies and stockholders and presents an opportunity for FNF and ANFI to achieve long-term strategic and financial benefits, and accordingly have agreed to effect the merger provided for herein upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein;

WHEREAS, each of the ANFI Senior Executives (as defined herein) shall, concurrently with the effectiveness of this Agreement, enter into a voting agreement to vote in favor of the transactions contemplated herein;

WHEREAS, the transaction will be structured as a forward triangular merger, wherein ANFI will be merged with and into a newly formed, wholly-owned subsidiary of FNF, with such wholly-owned subsidiary emerging as the surviving corporation and as a wholly-owned subsidiary of FNF:

WHEREAS, the parties hereto intend that the merger provided for herein shall qualify for U.S. federal income tax purposes as a reorganization under Section 368(a)(2)(D) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (together with the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, the *Code*); and

WHEREAS, by resolutions duly adopted, the respective Boards of Directors of FNF, Merger Sub and ANFI have approved and adopted this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and of the representations, warranties, covenants and agreements contained herein, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties hereto agree as follows.

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

SECTION 1.1 Definitions.

(a) As used herein, the following terms have the following meanings:

Acquisition Proposal means any offer or proposal for, or indication of interest in, a merger, consolidation, share exchange, business combination, reorganization, recapitalization, liquidation, dissolution or other similar transaction involving, or any purchase or acquisition of, twenty-five percent (25%) or more of (i) any class of equity securities of ANFI or (ii) all or substantially all of the consolidated assets of ANFI and its Subsidiaries, other than the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Action means any action, appeal, petition, plea, charge, complaint, claim, suit, demand, litigation, arbitration, mediation, hearing, inquiry, investigation or similar event, occurrence, or proceeding.

Affiliate means, with respect to any Person, any other Person, directly or indirectly, controlling, controlled by, or under common control with, such Person. For purposes of this definition, the term Control (including the correlative terms Controlling, Controlled By and Under Common Control With) means the possession, direct or indirect, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of a Person, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by contract, or otherwise.

ANFI is defined in the Introduction hereto.

ANFI Balance Sheet means ANFI s consolidated balance sheet included in the ANFI 10-K relating to its fiscal year ended on December 31, 2001.

ANFI Common Share means one share of common stock of ANFI, no par value per share.

ANFI SEC Documents means (i) the annual report on Form 10-K of ANFI (the ANFI 10-K) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001, (ii) ANFI s proxy statement, dated April 30, 2002, relating to the 2002 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the ANFI Proxy Statement), (iii) the quarterly reports on Form 10-Q of ANFI (collectively, the ANFI 10-Qs) for the quarterly periods ended March 31, 2002, June 30, 2002 and September 30, 2002, and (iv) all other reports, filings, registration statements and other documents filed by ANFI with the SEC since December 31, 2001.

ANFI Senior Executives means each of the members of the Board of Directors of ANFI as of the date of this Agreement.

Breach means any breach, inaccuracy, failure to perform, failure to comply, conflict with, default, violation, acceleration, termination, cancellation, modification, or required notification.

Business Day means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or one on which banks are authorized by law to close in Los Angeles, California.

Exchange Act means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

FNF is defined in the Introduction hereto.

FNF Balance Sheet means FNF s consolidated balance sheet included in the FNF 10-K relating to its fiscal year ended on December 31, 2001.

FNF Common Share means one share of common stock of FNF, \$0.0001 par value per share.

FNF Common Share Closing Price shall mean the closing sale price of a FNF Common Share (calculated to the nearest 0.0001) on the NYSE Composite Transactions Tape on the date of the Closing.

FNF SEC Documents means (i) FNF s annual report on Form 10-K for its fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 (the FNF 10-K), (ii) FNF s proxy statement dated April 29, 2002, relating to the 2002 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the FNF Proxy Statement), (iii) FNF s quarterly reports on Form 10-Q for the quarterly periods ended March 31, 2002, June 30, 2002 and September 30, 2002 (collectively, the FNF 10-Qs), and (iv) all other reports, filings, registration statements and other documents filed by FNF with the SEC since December 31, 2001.

GCL shall mean the General Corporation Law of the State of California as in effect from time to time.

Governmental Entity means any federal, state, municipal or local governmental authority, any foreign or international governmental authority, or any court, administrative or regulatory agency or commission or other governmental agency.

Knowledge (and all correlative terms) as to any party means to the actual knowledge of such party s executive officers or senior management identified on Section 1.1 of that party s Disclosure Schedule.

Law means all laws, statutes and ordinances and all regulations, rules and other pronouncements of Governmental Entities having the effect of law of the United States, any foreign country or any foreign or domestic state, province, commonwealth, city, country, municipality, territory, protectorate, possession or similar instrumentality or any Governmental Entity thereof.

Lien means, with respect to any asset, any mortgage, lien, pledge, charge, security interest or encumbrance of any kind in respect of such asset; provided, however, that the term Lien shall not include (i) liens for water and sewer charges and taxes not yet due and payable or being contested in good faith (and for which adequate accruals or reserves have been established by FNF or ANFI, as the case may be) and (ii) mechanics, carriers, workers, repairers, materialmen s, warehousemen s and other similar liens arising or incurred in the ordinary course of business.

Material Adverse Effect means a material adverse effect on the financial condition, business or results of operations of a Person and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, other than (x) effects caused by (i) changes in general economic or securities markets conditions, (ii) changes in interest rate levels, (iii) (A) in the case of ANFI, the identity of FNF as acquiror of ANFI or the conduct of FNF with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement prior to the Effective Time, or (B) in the case of FNF, the identity of ANFI as the acquired party or the conduct of ANFI with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement prior to the Effective Time, or (iv) the public announcement of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. FNF Material Adverse Effect means a Material Adverse Effect in respect of FNF and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, and ANFI Material Adverse Effect means a Material Adverse Effect in respect of ANFI and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

Merger Shares means each ANFI Common Share outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time (other than Dissenting Shares (as hereinafter defined) and other than shares to be cancelled in accordance with Section 3.1(a) hereof).

Merger Sub shall have the meaning set forth in the Preamble.

NYSE means the New York Stock Exchange.

Person means an individual, a corporation, a limited liability company, a partnership, an association, a trust or any other entity or organization, including any Governmental Entity.

Proxy Statement/ Prospectus means the proxy statement/prospectus, including the Registration Statement, for the ANFI Shareholders Meeting, together with any amendments or supplements thereto.

Registration Statement means the Registration Statement on Form S-4 registering under the Securities Act the FNF Common Shares issuable in connection with the Merger.

SEC means the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Securities Act means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

Subsidiary when used with respect to any Person, means any other Person, whether incorporated or unincorporated, of which (i) more than fifty percent (50%) of the securities or other ownership interests or (ii) securities or other interests having by their terms ordinary voting power to elect more than fifty percent of the board of directors or others performing similar functions with respect to such corporation or other organization, is directly owned or controlled by such Person or by any one or more of its Subsidiaries; provided, however, Fidelity National Information Solutions, Inc., a Delaware corporation, shall be excluded from the definition of Subsidiary.

Superior Proposal means a written proposal made by a Person other than FNF which is (A) for a merger, consolidation, share exchange, business combination, reorganization, recapitalization, liquidation, dissolution or other similar transaction involving, or any purchase or acquisition of, twenty-five percent (25%) or more of (i) any class of equity securities of ANFI or (ii) the consolidated assets of ANFI and its Subsidiaries, and which is (B) otherwise on terms which ANFI s Board of Directors by a majority vote determines in good faith (after consultation with its investment advisors and outside legal counsel) would result in a transaction, if consummated, that is more favorable to ANFI s shareholders, from a financial point of view (taking into account, among other things, all legal, financial, regulatory and other aspects of the proposal, including conditions to consummation (which shall not include a financing condition)) than the transactions contemplated hereby.

(b) Each of the following terms is defined in the Section set forth opposite such term:

Terms	Section
Agreement of Merger	Section 2.2(b)
ANFI 10-K	Section 1.1
ANFI 10-Qs	Section 1.1

Terms	Section
ANFI Employee Plans	Section 4.15(a)
ANFI ESPP	Section 3.4(d)
ANFI GAAP Financial Statements	Section 4.8
ANFI Material Adverse Effect	Section 1.1
ANFI Option	Section 3.4(a)
ANFI Proxy Statement	Section 1.1
ANFI Recommendation	Section 6.2
ANFI Returns	Section 4.14
ANFI Securities	Section 4.5(b)
ANFI Shareholder Approval	Section 4.20(a)
ANFI Shareholders Meeting	Section 6.2
ANFI Warrant	Section 3.4(b)
Burdensome Condition	Section 8.1
Certificate	Section 3.3(b)
Closing	Section 2.2(d)
Code	Recitals
Dissenting Shares	Section 3.5(a)
Effective Time	Section 2.2(b)
End Date	Section 10.1(b)(i)
Environmental Laws	Section 4.18(b)
ERISA	Section 4.15(a)
Exchange Agent	Section 3.3(a)
Exchange Fund	Section 3.3(a)
Extended End Date	Section 10.1(b)(i)
FNF 10-K	Section 1.1
FNF 10-Qs	Section 1.1
FNF Employee Plans	Section 5.18(a)
FNF GAAP Financial Statements	Section 5.8
FNF Material Adverse Effect	Section 1.1
FNF Option	Section 3.4(a)
FNF Proxy Statement	Section 1.1
FNF Returns	Section 5.17
FNF Securities	Section 5.5(b)
FNF Warrant	Section 3.4(b)
GAAP	Section 4.8
HSR Act	Section 4.3
JAMS	Section 11.9
Merger	Section 2.2(a)
Merger Consideration	Section 3.1(b)
Senior Executive Cap	Section 3.4(a)
Surviving Corporation	Section 2.2(a)
Surviving Corporation By-laws	Section 2.3
Surviving Corporation Certificate	Section 2.3

ARTICLE II

THE MERGER

SECTION 2.1 *The Merger Sub*. Prior to the Effective Time, FNF shall elect the boards of directors and officers of the Merger Sub and cause the Merger Sub to take such other actions as are necessary or required for the purposes of effecting the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

SECTION 2.2 The Merger.

- (a) Upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement, and in accordance with the GCL, ANFI shall be merged with and into Merger Sub at the Effective Time (the *Merger*). At the Effective Time, (i) the separate corporate existence of ANFI shall cease, and (ii) Merger Sub shall continue as the surviving corporation as a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of FNF (the *Surviving Corporation*).
- (b) Not later than the second Business Day after satisfaction or, to the extent permitted hereby, waiver of the conditions set forth in Article IX (other than conditions that by their nature are to be satisfied at the Closing, but subject to those conditions), ANFI and the Merger Sub will file an agreement of merger (the *Agreement of Merger**) with the Secretary of State of the State of California and make all other filings or recordings required by the GCL in connection with the Merger. The Merger shall become effective upon the filing of the Agreement of Merger with the Secretary of State of the State of California in accordance with the GCL or at such later time which the parties hereto shall have agreed upon and designated in such Agreement of Merger as the effective time of the Merger (the *Effective Time**).
 - (c) From and after the Effective Time, the Merger shall have the effects set forth in the GCL.
- (d) The closing of the Merger (the *Closing*) shall be held at the offices of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, 660 Newport Center Drive, Newport Beach, California (or such other place as agreed by the parties) at 9:00 a.m. California time on a date to be specified by the parties, which shall be no later than the second Business Day after satisfaction or, to the extent permitted hereby, waiver of the conditions set forth in Article IX (other than conditions that by their nature are to be satisfied at the Closing, but subject to those conditions), unless the parties hereto agree to another date or time.

SECTION 2.3 Articles of Incorporation and By-laws of the Surviving Corporation. The articles of incorporation of the Merger Sub, as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time, shall be the articles of incorporation of the Surviving Corporation until thereafter changed or amended as provided therein or by applicable law (as so amended, the Surviving Corporation Certificate). The by-laws of the Merger Sub, as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time, shall be the by-laws of the Surviving Corporation until thereafter changed or amended as provided therein or by applicable law (as so amended, the Surviving Corporation By-laws).

SECTION 2.4 Board of Directors of the Surviving Corporation. Prior to the Effective Time, FNF shall cause the Merger Sub to adopt resolutions to constitute the Board of Directors of the Merger Sub and committees thereof from and after the Effective Time. From and after the Effective Time, the members of the Board of Directors, the committees of the Board of Directors and the composition of such committees shall be as set forth on or designated in accordance with the Surviving Corporation Certificate, the Surviving Corporation By-laws and such resolutions until the earlier of the resignation or removal of any individual set forth on or designated in accordance with the Surviving Corporation Certificate, the Surviving Corporation By-laws and such resolutions or until their respective successors are duly elected and qualified, as the case may be, or until as otherwise provided in the Surviving Corporation Certificate, the Surviving Corporation By-laws and such resolutions.

ARTICLE III

CONVERSION OF SECURITIES AND RELATED MATTERS

SECTION 3.1 Conversion of Capital Stock. At the Effective Time, by virtue of the Merger:

- (a) Each ANFI Common Share held by ANFI as treasury stock or owned by FNF or any of its Subsidiaries immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be cancelled, and no payment shall be made in respect thereof.
- (b) Subject to Section 3.5 hereof, each Merger Share shall be cancelled and, at the Effective Time, shall be converted into the right to receive consideration (the *Merger Consideration*) consisting of 0.4540 FNF Common Share and any payment for fractional shares as provided in Section 3.2 hereof.

SECTION 3.2 Fractional Shares; Adjustments.

- (a) No certificate or scrip representing fractional FNF Common Shares shall be issued upon the surrender for exchange of ANFI Common Stock, and such fractional share interests will not entitle the owner thereof to vote or to any other rights of a stockholder of FNF. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, each holder of ANFI Common Shares exchanged pursuant to the Merger who would otherwise have been entitled to receive a fraction of a FNF Common Share (after taking into account all ANFI Common Shares delivered by such holder) shall receive, in lieu thereof, cash (without interest) in an amount equal to such fractional part of a FNF Common Share multiplied by the FNF Common Share Closing Price, which the Board of Directors of FNF has determined to be the fair value of such shares.
- (b) If at any time during the period between December 13, 2002 and the Effective Time, any change in the outstanding shares of capital stock of FNF or ANFI, as applicable, or securities convertible or exchangeable into capital stock of FNF or ANFI, as applicable, shall occur by reason of any reclassification, recapitalization, stock split or combination, exchange or readjustment of shares, or any stock or cash dividend or distribution thereon (other than regular quarterly cash dividends) or a record date with respect to any of the foregoing shall occur during such period, the number of FNF Common Shares constituting the Merger Consideration shall be appropriately adjusted to provide to the holders of the FNF Common Shares and the ANFI Common Shares the same economic effect as contemplated by this Agreement prior to the consummation of such event. By way of example, if FNF declares a ten percent (10%) stock dividend, the Merger Consideration shall be adjusted to equal 0.4994 FNF Common Shares for each Merger Share (rather than 0.4540 FNF Common Shares for each Merger Share) together with any payment of cash for fractional shares.

SECTION 3.3 Exchange of Certificates.

- (a) Exchange Agent. Promptly after the date hereof, FNF shall appoint a commercial bank or trust company reasonably acceptable to ANFI as an exchange agent (the Exchange Agent) for the benefit of holders of ANFI Common Shares. At or immediately prior to the Effective Time, FNF shall deposit with the Exchange Agent, for exchange in accordance with this Section, through the Exchange Agent, (i) certificates evidencing the total number of FNF Common Shares to be issued in the Merger, and (ii) cash in the amount necessary to pay amounts due pursuant to Section 3.2(a) and Section 3.5 (such certificates for FNF Common Shares and such cash being hereinafter referred to as the Exchange Fund). The Exchange Agent shall, pursuant to irrevocable instructions in accordance with this Article III, deliver the FNF Common Shares and cash contemplated to be issued pursuant to this Article III out of the Exchange Fund. Except as contemplated by Section 3.3(e), Section 3.3(f) or Section 3.3(g) hereof, the Exchange Fund shall not be used for any other purpose.
- (b) Exchange Procedures. As promptly as practicable after the Effective Time, FNF shall send, or will cause the Exchange Agent to send, to each holder of record of ANFI Common Shares that were converted into the right to receive FNF Common Shares and cash in lieu of fractional shares pursuant this Article III, a letter of transmittal and instructions (which shall be in customary form and specify that delivery shall be effected, and risk of loss and title shall pass, only upon delivery of the ANFI Common Shares to the Exchange Agent), for use in the exchange contemplated by this Section. Upon surrender of a certificate representing

ANFI Common Shares to the Exchange Agent (a *Certificate*), together with a duly executed letter of transmittal, the holder of such Certificate shall be entitled to receive in exchange therefor a certificate representing that number of whole FNF Common Shares and cash which such holder has the right to receive pursuant to the provisions of this Article III (after giving effect to any required withholding tax). Until surrendered as contemplated by this Section, each Certificate shall be deemed at any time after the Effective Time to represent only the right to receive the Merger Consideration and unpaid dividends and distributions thereon, if any, as provided in this Article III. If any portion of the Merger Consideration is to be paid to a Person other than the Person in whose name the Certificate is registered, it shall be a condition to such payment that the Certificate so surrendered shall be properly endorsed or otherwise be in proper form for transfer and that the Person requesting such payment shall pay to the Exchange Agent any transfer or other taxes required as a result of such payment to a Person other than the registered holder of such Certificate or establish to the satisfaction of the Exchange Agent that such tax has been paid or is not payable. If any Certificate shall have been lost, stolen or destroyed, upon the making of an affidavit of that fact by the Person claiming such Certificate to be lost, stolen or destroyed and, if required by FNF, the posting by such Person of a bond, in such reasonable amount as FNF may direct, as indemnity against any claim that may be made against it with respect to such Certificate, the Exchange Agent will deliver, in exchange for such lost, stolen or destroyed Certificate, the proper amount of the Merger Consideration, together with any unpaid dividends and distributions on any such FNF Common Shares, as contemplated by this Article III.

- (c) Distributions with Respect to Unexchanged Shares. Whenever a dividend or other distribution is declared by FNF in respect of the FNF Common Shares, the record date for which is at or after the Effective Time, that declaration shall include dividends or other distributions in respect of all FNF Common Shares issuable pursuant to this Agreement. No dividends or other distributions declared or made after the Effective Time with respect to FNF Common Shares constituting part of the Merger Consideration shall be paid to the holder of any unsurrendered Certificate, and no cash payment in lieu of fractional shares shall be paid to any such holder, until such Certificate is surrendered as provided in this Section. Following such surrender, there shall be paid, without interest, to the Person in whose name the FNF Common Shares have been registered (i) at the time of such surrender, the amount of dividends or other distributions with a record date at or after the Effective Time previously paid or payable on the date of such surrender with respect to such whole FNF Common Shares, less the amount of any withholding taxes that may be required thereon, and (ii) at the appropriate payment date subsequent to surrender, the amount of dividends or other distributions with a record date at or after the Effective Time but prior to surrender and a payment date subsequent to surrender payable with respect to such whole FNF Common Shares, less the amount of any withholding taxes which may be required thereon.
- (d) *No Further Ownership Rights in ANFI Common Shares*. As of the Effective Time, all ANFI Common Shares outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall automatically be cancelled and retired and shall cease to exist, and each holder of a Certificate representing any such ANFI Common Shares shall cease to have any rights with respect thereto, except the right to receive, upon surrender of such Certificate, the Merger Consideration. As of the Effective Time, the stock transfer books of ANFI shall be closed and there shall be no further registration of transfers on ANFI s stock transfer books of ANFI Common Shares outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time. If, after the Effective Time, Certificates (other than the Certificate for the ANFI Common Stock described in Section 3.1(c)) are presented to the Surviving Corporation for any reason, they shall be cancelled and exchanged as provided in this Section.
- (e) *Return of Merger Consideration*. Upon demand by FNF, the Exchange Agent shall deliver to FNF any portion of the Merger Consideration deposited with the Exchange Agent pursuant to this Section that remains undistributed to holders of ANFI Common Shares one year after the Effective Time. Holders of Certificates who have not complied with this Section prior to such demand shall thereafter look only to FNF for payment of any claim to the Merger Consideration and dividends or distributions, if any, in respect thereof.
- (f) No Liability. Neither FNF nor the Exchange Agent shall be liable to any Person in respect of any ANFI Common Shares (or dividends or distributions with respect thereto) for any amounts paid to a public official pursuant to any applicable abandoned property, escheat or similar law.

(g) Withholding Rights. FNF shall be entitled to deduct and withhold from the Merger Consideration (and any dividends or distributions thereon) otherwise payable hereunder to any Person such amounts as it is required to deduct and withhold with respect to the making of such payment under any provision of federal, state, local or foreign income tax law. To the extent that FNF so withholds those amounts, such withheld amounts shall be treated for all purposes of this Agreement as having been paid to the holder of ANFI Common Shares in respect of which such deduction and withholding was made by FNF.

SECTION 3.4 ANFI Stock Options and Warrants.

- (a) At the Effective Time, each option to purchase ANFI Common Shares (each, a ANFI Option) outstanding under any stock option or compensation plan or arrangement of ANFI, whether or not vested or exercisable, shall be assumed by FNF and shall retain its respective right to convert into a FNF Option, and shall cease to represent a right to acquire ANFI Common Shares and shall be automatically converted into an option (each, a FNF Option) to acquire, on the same terms and conditions as were applicable under such ANFI Option, that number of FNF Common Shares determined by multiplying the number of ANFI Common Shares subject to such ANFI Option by 0.4540, subject to any adjustment as required in Section 3.2(b) of this Agreement, with any fractional shares of FNF Common Shares resulting from such calculation being rounded down to the nearest whole share, at a price per share (rounded up to the nearest whole cent) equal to (x) the aggregate exercise price for the ANFI Common Shares covered by such ANFI Option divided by (y) the number of full FNF Common Shares covered by such FNF Option in accordance with the foregoing. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 3.4, in no event shall FNF be required to assume ANFI Options held by each ANFI Senior Executive that would be exercisable, in the aggregate for each such ANFI Senior Executive, into more than 50,000 shares of FNF Common Shares upon the conversion set forth in this Section 3.4 (the Senior Executive Cap (including without limitation based on compliance with the terms of the plans under which such options are granted and to minimize acceleration of such options).
- (b) At the Effective Time, each outstanding warrant to purchase ANFI Common Shares (each, an ANFI Warrant), whether or not vested or exercisable, shall cease to represent a right to acquire ANFI Common Shares and shall be converted into a warrant (each, a FNF Warrant) to acquire, on the same terms and conditions as were applicable under such ANFI Warrant, that number of FNF Common Shares determined by multiplying the number of ANFI Common Shares subject to such ANFI Warrant by the Exchange Ratio, with any fractional shares of FNF Common Shares resulting from such calculation being rounded down to the nearest whole share, at a price per share (rounded up to the nearest whole cent) equal to (x) the aggregate exercise price for the ANFI Common Shares covered by such ANFI Warrant divided by (y) the number of full FNF Common Shares covered by such FNF Warrant in accordance with the foregoing.

(c) [intentionally left blank]

- (d) At the Effective Time all ANFI employees will be eligible to become participants in the FNF ESPP with credit for time of service with ANFI and credit for time of participation in the ANFI Employee Stock Purchase Plan adopted September 29, 1999 by the Board of Directors of ANFI (the *ANFI ESPP*) for all purposes including eligibility to participate in the FNF ESPP and to receive matching contributions pursuant to the FNF ESPP. At the Effective Time, all ANFI employees who are then participants in the ANFI ESPP shall automatically become participants in the FNF ESPP, and the ANFI ESPP will be terminated in accordance with its provisions.
- (e) Prior to the Effective Time, FNF and ANFI shall take all actions (including, if appropriate, amending the terms of ANFI s stock option plans and other compensation plans or arrangements of FNF and/or ANFI) that are necessary to give effect to the transactions contemplated by Sections 3.4(a) through (d).
- (f) At or prior to the Effective Time, FNF shall take all corporate action necessary to reserve for issuance a sufficient number of FNF Common Shares for delivery upon exercise of the FNF Options. At the Effective Time, FNF shall file a registration statement on Form S-8 (or any successor form), with respect to

the FNF Common Shares subject to such FNF Options and shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to maintain the effectiveness of such registration statement(s), maintain the current status of the prospectus(es) contained therein and comply with all applicable state securities or blue sky laws for so long as such FNF Options remain outstanding.

SECTION 3.5 Shares of Dissenting Shareholders.

- (a) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, although the parties do not believe that any of the ANFI Common Shares qualify as dissenting shares under Chapter 13 of the GCL (relating to dissenters rights), if Chapter 13 of the GCL is for some reason applicable, any ANFI Common Shares that are dissenting shares as defined in Chapter 13 of the GCL (the *Dissenting Shares*) shall not be converted into or represent the right to receive the Merger Consideration. Shareholders of the Dissenting Shares shall be entitled to receive the amounts determined in accordance with the provisions of the GCL. If, after the Effective Time, any such holder effectively withdraws the demand for appraisal or fails to preserve such right to appraisal, in either case pursuant to the GCL, such Dissenting Shares shall thereupon be deemed to have been converted into and to have become exchangeable for, as of the Effective Time, the right to receive, without any interest thereon, the Merger Consideration as to such shares.
- (b) Any payments relating to Dissenting Shares shall be made solely by the Surviving Corporation, and ANFI shall not make any payment with respect to, or settle or offer to settle with, the holders of Dissenting Shares without the prior consent of FNF. ANFI shall give FNF prompt notice of any demands received by ANFI for the payment of fair value for Dissenting Shares, and FNF shall have the right to direct all negotiations and proceedings with respect to Dissenting Shares.

ARTICLE IV

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF ANFI

Except as disclosed in (i) the ANFI Disclosure Schedule attached hereto or (ii) the ANFI SEC Documents filed prior to the date hereof, ANFI represents and warrants to FNF that:

SECTION 4.1 Corporate Existence and Power. ANFI is a corporation duly incorporated, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of California, and has all corporate powers required to carry on its business as now conducted. ANFI is duly qualified to do business as a foreign corporation and is in good standing in each jurisdiction where the character of the property owned or leased by it or the nature of its activities makes such qualification necessary, except where the failure to be so qualified would not, individually or in the aggregate, have an ANFI Material Adverse Effect. ANFI has heretofore made available to FNF true and complete copies of ANFI s articles of incorporation and by-laws as currently in effect.

SECTION 4.2 *Corporate Authorization*. The execution, delivery and performance by ANFI of this Agreement and the consummation by ANFI of the transactions contemplated hereby are within ANFI s corporate powers and, except for the ANFI Shareholder Approval, have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action. Assuming that this Agreement constitutes the valid and binding obligation of FNF, this Agreement constitutes a valid and binding agreement of ANFI, enforceable in accordance with its terms, subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and similar laws, now or hereafter in effect, relating to or affecting creditors rights and remedies and to general principles of equity.

SECTION 4.3 *Governmental Authorization*. The execution, delivery and performance by ANFI of this Agreement and the consummation by ANFI of the transactions contemplated hereby require no action by or in respect of, or filing with, any Governmental Entity other than (a) the filing of the Agreement of Merger in accordance with the GCL; (b) compliance with any applicable requirements of the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976 (the *HSR Act*) or decrees thereunder applicable to ANFI; (c) compliance with any applicable requirements of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act; (d) such as may be required under any applicable state securities or blue sky laws; (e) filings listed on Section 4.3(e) of the ANFI Disclosure Schedule; (f) compliance with any applicable Environmental Laws or state environmental property transfer laws; and (g) such other consents, approvals, actions, orders, authorizations, registrations,

declarations and filings which, if not obtained or made, would not, individually or in the aggregate, (x) be reasonably likely to have an ANFI Material Adverse Effect, or (y) prevent or materially impair the ability of ANFI to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

SECTION 4.4 *Non-Contravention.* Except as set forth on Section 4.4 of the ANFI Disclosure Schedule, the execution, delivery and performance by ANFI of this Agreement and the consummation by ANFI of the transactions contemplated hereby do not and will not (a) contravene or conflict with ANFI s articles of incorporation or by-laws, (b) assuming compliance with the matters referred to in Section 4.3, contravene or conflict with or constitute a violation of any provision of any law, regulation, judgment, injunction, order or decree binding upon or applicable to ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries, (c) constitute a breach or default under or give rise to a right of termination, cancellation or acceleration of any right or obligation of ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries or to a loss of any benefit or status to which ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries is entitled under any provision of any agreement, contract or other instrument binding upon ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries or any license, franchise, permit or other similar authorization held by ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries, or (d) result in the creation or imposition of any Lien on any asset of ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries other than, in the case of each of (b), (c) and (d), any such items that would not, individually or in the aggregate (x) be reasonably likely to have an ANFI Material Adverse Effect or (y) prevent or materially impair the ability of ANFI to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

SECTION 4.5 Capitalization.

- (a) The authorized capital stock of ANFI consists of 50,000,000 ANFI Common Shares and no shares of preferred stock. As of December 31, 2002, there were outstanding (i) 9,549,919 ANFI Common Shares, (ii) stock options (or binding obligations to issue stock options) to purchase an aggregate of up to 2,989,456 ANFI Common Shares, (iii) warrants (or binding obligations to issue warrants) to purchase an aggregate of up to 42,969 ANFI Common Shares (of which warrants to purchase an aggregate of 42,969 ANFI Common Shares were currently exercisable), and (iv) rights to purchase ANFI Common Shares pursuant to the ANFI ESPP. All outstanding shares of capital stock of ANFI have been duly authorized and validly issued and are fully paid and nonassessable.
- (b) As of the date hereof, except (i) as set forth in this Section, (ii) for issuances of options pursuant to the ANFI Employee Plans in the ordinary course of business which were approved unanimously by the Board of Directors of ANFI and which have been heretofore disclosed to FNF, (iii) for issuances of ANFI Common Shares since January 9, 2003 pursuant to the ANFI ESPP in accordance with its present terms, (iii) for changes since January 9, 2003 resulting from the exercise of stock options, and (iv) for the rights of directors and employees of ANFI and its Subsidiaries pursuant to ANFI Employee Plans as in effect on the date hereof, there are no outstanding (x) shares of capital stock or other voting securities of ANFI, (y) securities of ANFI convertible into or exchangeable for shares of capital stock or voting securities of ANFI, and (z) options or other rights to acquire from ANFI, and there is no obligation of ANFI to issue, any capital stock, voting securities convertible into or exchangeable for capital stock or voting securities of ANFI (the items in clauses (x), (y) and (z) being referred to collectively as the *ANFI Securities*). There are no outstanding obligations of ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries to repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any ANFI Securities. Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement, nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated herein, shall result in the acceleration of vesting of any ANFI Option or otherwise result in any change to the terms of any ANFI Option other than the conversion set forth in Section 3.4.

SECTION 4.6 Subsidiaries.

(a) Each Subsidiary of ANFI is a corporation duly incorporated or an entity duly organized, and is validly existing and in good standing, under the laws of its jurisdiction of incorporation or organization, has all powers and authority and all material governmental licenses, authorizations, consents and approvals required to carry on its business as now conducted and is duly qualified to do business as a foreign corporation and is in good standing in each jurisdiction where the character of the property owned or leased by it or the nature of its activities makes such qualification necessary, in each case with such exceptions as, individually or in the aggregate, would not be reasonably likely to have an ANFI Material Adverse Effect.

(b) All of the outstanding shares of capital stock of, or other ownership interest in, each Subsidiary of ANFI has been validly issued and is fully paid and nonassessable. All of the outstanding capital stock of, or other ownership interest, which is owned, directly or indirectly, by ANFI in, each of its Subsidiaries is owned free and clear of any Lien and free of any other limitation or restriction (including any limitation or restriction on the right to vote, sell or otherwise dispose of such capital stock or other ownership interests) with such exceptions as, individually or in the aggregate, would not be reasonably likely to have an ANFI Material Adverse Effect. There are no outstanding (i) securities of ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for shares of capital stock or other voting securities or ownership interests in any of its Subsidiaries, (ii) options, warrants or other rights to acquire from ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries, and no other obligation of ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries to issue, any capital stock, voting securities or other ownership interests in, or any securities convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for any capital stock, voting securities or ownership interests in, any of its Subsidiaries or (iii) obligations of ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries to repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any outstanding securities of any of its Subsidiaries or any capital stock of, or other ownership interests in, any of its Subsidiaries or any capital stock of, or other ownership interests in, any of its Subsidiaries or any capital stock of, or other ownership interests in, any of its Subsidiaries or any capital stock of,

SECTION 4.7 The ANFI SEC Documents.

- (a) ANFI has made available to FNF the ANFI SEC Documents. ANFI has filed all reports, filings, registration statements and other documents required to be filed by it with the SEC since December 31, 2000. No Subsidiary of ANFI is required to file any form, report, registration statement or prospectus or other document with the SEC.
- (b) As of its filing date, each ANFI SEC Document complied as to form in all material respects with the applicable requirements of the Securities Act and/or the Exchange Act, as the case may be.
- (c) No ANFI SEC Document filed pursuant to the Exchange Act contained, as of its filing date or mailing date, as applicable, any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted to state any material fact necessary in order to make the statements made therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. No ANFI SEC Document filed pursuant to the Securities Act, as amended or supplemented, if applicable, contained, as of the date such document or amendment became effective, any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading.
- SECTION 4.8 Financial Statements. The consolidated financial statements included in the ANFI 10-K and the ANFI 10-Qs (the ANFI GAAP Financial Statements) fairly present in all material respects, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles applied on a consistent basis (GAAP) (except as may be indicated in the notes thereto and except that the unaudited interim financial statements may lack footnotes), the consolidated financial position of ANFI and its consolidated Subsidiaries as of the dates thereof and their consolidated results of operations and cash flows for the periods then ended (subject to normal year-end adjustments in the case of any unaudited interim financial statements).
- SECTION 4.9 *No Material Undisclosed Liabilities*. As of the date hereof and except as set forth in Section 4.9 of the ANFI Disclosure Schedule, there are no liabilities of ANFI or of any Subsidiary of ANFI of any kind whatsoever, whether accrued, contingent, absolute, determined, determinable or otherwise, in each case, that are required by GAAP to be set forth on a consolidated balance sheet of ANFI, other than:
 - (i) liabilities or obligations disclosed or provided for in the ANFI GAAP Financial Statements or disclosed in the notes thereto; and
 - (ii) liabilities or obligations incurred or arising in the ordinary course of business after the date of the ANFI balance sheet included in the ANFI 10-Q relating to the quarter ended September 30, 2002 or arising under this Agreement or incurred in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby; and
 - (iii) other liabilities or obligations, which, individually or in the aggregate, would not be reasonably likely to have an ANFI Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 4.10 Information to Be Supplied.

- (a) The information to be supplied in writing by ANFI expressly for inclusion or incorporation by reference in the Proxy Statement/
 Prospectus will (i) in the case of the Registration Statement, at the time it becomes effective, not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
 or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein not misleading and (ii) in the
 case of the remainder of the Proxy Statement/ Prospectus, at the time of the mailing thereof and at the time of the ANFI Shareholders Meeting,
 not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make
 the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they are made, not misleading. The Proxy Statement/ Prospectus will comply
 (with respect to information relating to ANFI) as to form in all material respects with the provisions of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act.
- (b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, ANFI makes no representation or warranty with respect to any statements made or incorporated by reference in the Proxy Statement/ Prospectus based on information supplied in writing by FNF expressly for use therein.
- SECTION 4.11 Absence of Certain Changes. Since December 31, 2001, except as disclosed in the ANFI SEC Documents, disclosed on Section 4.11 of the ANFI Disclosure Schedule, or as contemplated by this Agreement, ANFI and its Subsidiaries have conducted their business in the ordinary course consistent with past practice and there has not been:
 - (a) any action, event, occurrence, development, change in method of doing business, or state of circumstances or facts that, individually or in the aggregate, has had or would be reasonably likely to have an ANFI Material Adverse Effect;
 - (b) any declaration, setting aside or payment of any dividend or other distribution with respect to any ANFI Common Shares (other than regular quarterly cash dividends) or any repurchase, redemption or other acquisition by ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries of any outstanding shares of capital stock or other securities of, or other ownership interests in, ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries (other than any repurchases of ANFI Common Shares made prior to the date hereof pursuant to ANFI s publicly announced stock repurchase programs);
 - (c) any transaction or commitment made by, or any contract, agreement or settlement entered into by, or any judgment, order or decree to which ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries is a party which relates to its assets or business (including without limitation the acquisition or disposition of any assets) or any relinquishment by ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries of any contract or other right, in either case, material to ANFI and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole, other than transactions, commitments, contracts, agreements or settlements (including, without limitation, settlements of litigation and tax proceedings) in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, contemplated by this Agreement, or agreed to in writing by FNF; or
- (d) any change by ANFI in accounting principles or methods (other than as required by GAAP or Regulation S-X of the Exchange Act). SECTION 4.12 *Transactions with Affiliates*. Except as disclosed in the ANFI Proxy Statement and except as contemplated hereby (including the ANFI Disclosure Schedule), none of ANFI nor any of its Affiliates is an officer, director, employee, consultant, distributor, supplier or vendor of, or is party to any contract with, ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries that would be required to be disclosed in a proxy statement filed by ANFI pursuant to the Exchange Act.
- SECTION 4.13 *Litigation.* Except as disclosed in Section 4.13 of the ANFI Disclosure Schedule, there is no action, suit, investigation, arbitration or proceeding pending against, or to the Knowledge of ANFI threatened against, ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries or any of their respective assets or properties before any arbitrator or Governmental Entity that, individually or in the aggregate, would be reasonably likely to result in liability to ANFI or such Subsidiaries in excess of \$100,000.

SECTION 4.14 Taxes. (a) All material tax returns, statements, reports and forms (collectively, the ANFI Returns) required to be filed with any taxing authority by, or with respect to, ANFI and its Subsidiaries were filed on a timely basis and were true, complete and correct except to the extent that the failure to file or be true, complete and correct would not, individually or in the aggregate, have an ANFI Material Adverse Effect; (b) ANFI and its Subsidiaries have timely paid all material taxes (which for purposes of this Section 4.14 shall include interest, penalties and additions to tax with respect thereto) shown as due and payable on the ANFI Returns (other than taxes which are being contested in good faith and for which adequate reserves are reflected on the ANFI Balance Sheet) except to the extent that the failure to pay would not, individually or in the aggregate, have an ANFI Material Adverse Effect; (c) ANFI and its Subsidiaries have made provision for all material taxes payable by them for which no ANFI Return has yet been filed except for inadequately reserved taxes that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have an ANFI Material Adverse Effect; (d) no taxing authority has asserted or initiated (or, to the Knowledge of ANFI, threatened to assert or initiate) in writing any action, suit, proceeding or claim against ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries that, individually or in the aggregate, would have an ANFI Material Adverse Effect; (e) there is no application pending for approval of a change in accounting methods; (f) except as set forth in Section 4.14 of the ANFI Disclosure Schedule or for any year for which the applicable statute of limitations has expired, neither ANFI nor any of its Subsidiaries has been a member of an affiliated, consolidated, combined or unitary group other than one of which ANFI was the common parent; (g) except as set forth in Section 4.14 of the ANFI Disclosure Schedule or for any year for which the applicable statute of limitations has expired, neither ANFI nor any of its Subsidiaries is obligated by any contract, agreement or other arrangement to indemnify any other person with respect to taxes or to compensate any third party for any tax payment or tax liability under a tax sharing or similar agreement; and (h) neither ANFI nor any of its Subsidiaries has made any payments, is obligated to make any payments, or is a party to any contract, agreement or other arrangement that under any circumstances could obligate it to make any payments that will not be deductible under Code Section 280G or 162(M).

SECTION 4.15 Employees and Employee Benefits.

- (a) ANFI has made available to FNF each material employee benefit plan, as defined in Section 3(3) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (*ERISA*), each material employment, severance or similar contract, plan, arrangement or policy and each other material plan or arrangement providing for compensation, bonuses, profit-sharing, stock option or other stock related rights or other forms of incentive or deferred compensation or insurance coverage (including any self-insured arrangements and, if applicable, related trust agreements), all amendments thereto and the most recent written summary descriptions thereof, together with the most recent annual report (Form 5500 including, if applicable, Schedule B thereto) prepared in connection with any such plan, which is maintained, administered or contributed to by ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries and covers any employee or former employee of ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries. Such plans are referred to collectively herein as the *ANFI Employee Plans*.
- (b) Each ANFI Employee Plan which is intended to be qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code is so qualified and has received a favorable determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service stating that it is so qualified and, to the Knowledge of ANFI, nothing has occurred since the date of such letter that would cause it to be revoked, whether prospectively or retroactively. ANFI will make available upon request to FNF copies of the most recent Internal Revenue Service determination letters with respect to each such ANFI Employee Plan. Each ANFI Employee Plan has been administered in compliance with its terms and with the requirements prescribed by any and all statutes, orders, rules and regulations, including but not limited to ERISA and the Code, which are applicable to such ANFI Employee Plan except as would not be reasonably likely to have an ANFI Material Adverse Effect.
- (c) Except as described on Section 4.15(c) of the ANFI Disclosure Schedule and, to the Knowledge of ANFI, the execution of, and performance of the transactions contemplated in, this Agreement will not (either alone or upon the occurrence of any additional or subsequent events) constitute an event under any ANFI Employee Plan, employment or severance agreement to which ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries is a party, trust or loan that will or may result in any material payment (whether of severance pay or otherwise), acceleration,

forgiveness of indebtedness, vesting, distribution, increase in benefits or obligation to fund benefits with respect to any current or former employee, executive or director of ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries.

- (d) Except as set forth on Section 4.15(a) of the ANFI Disclosure Schedule and, to the Knowledge of ANFI, neither ANFI nor any of its Subsidiaries maintains or contributes to any ANFI Employee Plan which provides, or has any liability to provide, life insurance, medical or other welfare benefits to any employee(s) upon their retirement or termination of employment, except as required by Section 601 of ERISA and Section 4980B of the Code.
- (e) To the Knowledge of ANFI, there has been no amendment to, written interpretation or announcement (whether or not written) relating to any ANFI Employee Plan which would increase materially the expense of maintaining such ANFI Employee Plans in the aggregate above the level of the expense incurred in respect thereof for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001.
- (f) To the Knowledge of ANFI, ANFI and each of its Subsidiaries is in compliance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations respecting employment, employment practices, terms and conditions of employment, wages, hours and withholding except as would not be reasonably likely to have an ANFI Material Adverse Effect.
- SECTION 4.16 *Compliance with Laws.* ANFI and its Subsidiaries have all licenses, permits and qualifications necessary to conduct their businesses and own their properties in each jurisdiction in which ANFI or its Subsidiaries currently do business or own property, or in which such license, permit or qualification is otherwise required, except where the failure to have such licenses, permits and qualifications would not have an ANFI Material Adverse Effect. ANFI and its Subsidiaries have complied in all material respects with all laws, regulations and orders applicable to their businesses and the present use by ANFI and its Subsidiaries of their respective properties, and the business conducted by ANFI and its Subsidiaries, does not violate in any material respect any such laws, regulations or orders, and ANFI and its Subsidiaries have timely filed all reports and returns required by law, rule, regulation or policy of any regulatory authority and all such returns and reports are true and correct in all material respects, and there are no material deficiencies with respect to such filings or submissions, except where the failure to so comply would not have an ANFI Material Adverse Effect.
- SECTION 4.17 *Directors and Officers Insurance Policies*. Section 4.17 of the ANFI Disclosure Schedule describes ANFI s directors and officers insurance policies as in effect on the date hereof. ANFI has not received any notice of cancellation or termination of such directors and officers insurance policy and such insurance policy is valid and enforceable.

SECTION 4.18 Environmental Matters.

- (a) With such exceptions as, individually or in the aggregate, would not be reasonably likely to have an ANFI Material Adverse Effect, (i) no written notice, notification, demand, request for information, citation, summons, complaint or order has been received or made by, and no investigation, action, claim, suit, proceeding or review is pending or, the Knowledge of ANFI, threatened by any Person against, ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries, with respect to any applicable Environmental Law, (ii) ANFI and its Subsidiaries are and have been in compliance in all material respects with all applicable Environmental Laws and (iii) there are no liabilities or obligations of ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries of any kind whatsoever, whether accrued, contingent, absolute, direct or indirect, determined, determinable or otherwise, arising under or relating to any Environmental Law (including, without limitation, liabilities or obligations relating to divested properties or businesses or predecessor entities), and there are no facts, conditions, situations or set of circumstances that have resulted or could reasonably be expected to result in or be the basis for any such liabilities or obligations which would have an ANFI Material Adverse Effect.
- (b) For purposes of this Agreement, the term *Environmental Laws* means any international, national, provincial, regional, federal, state, local, municipal and foreign statutes, laws (including, without limitation, common law), judicial decisions, decrees, regulations, ordinances, rules, judgments, orders, codes, injunctions, permits or governmental agreements or other requirements relating to human health and safety, to the environment, including, without limitation, natural resources, or to pollutants, contaminants, wastes, or

chemicals, petroleum products, by-products or additives, asbestos, asbestos-containing material, polychlorinated biphenyls, radioactive material, hazardous substances or wastes, or any other substance (including any product) regulated as harmful or potentially harmful to human health or the environment.

SECTION 4.19 Finders Fees; Opinion of Financial Advisor.

- (a) Except as set forth on Section 4.19 of the ANFI Disclosure Schedule, there is no investment banker, broker, finder or other intermediary who might be entitled to any fee or commission from ANFI, the Surviving Corporation or any of their respective Affiliates in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement based upon arrangements made by or on behalf of ANFI. Prior to the date hereof, ANFI has provided to FNF true and correct information regarding fees set forth on Section 4.19 of the ANFI Disclosure Schedule.
- (b) ANFI has received the opinion, dated January 9, 2003, of Houlihan, Lokey, Howard & Zukin to the effect that, as of such date and subject to the exceptions stated therein, the Merger Consideration was fair from a financial point of view to the holders of ANFI Common Shares (other than FNF and its Affiliates), a copy of which opinion has been made available to FNF.

SECTION 4.20 Required Vote; Board Approval.

- (a) The only vote of the holders of any class or series of capital stock of ANFI required by law, rule or regulation to approve this Agreement, the Merger and/or any of the other transactions contemplated hereby is the affirmative vote (the *ANFI Shareholder Approval**) of the holders of a majority of the outstanding ANFI Common Shares in favor of the adoption and approval of this Agreement and the Merger.
- (b) ANFI s Board of Directors has (a) determined that this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, including the Merger, are in the best interests of ANFI and its shareholders, (b) approved this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby and (c) resolved (subject to Section 6.2) to recommend to such shareholders that they vote in favor of adopting and approving this Agreement and the Merger in accordance with the terms hereof.

ARTICLE V

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF FNF AND MERGER SUB

Except as disclosed in (i) the FNF Disclosure Schedule attached hereto or (ii) the FNF SEC Documents filed prior to the date hereof, FNF and Merger Sub jointly and severally represent and warrant to ANFI that:

SECTION 5.1 Corporate Existence and Power. Each of FNF and Merger Sub is a corporation duly incorporated, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Delaware and the State of California, respectively, and has all corporate powers required to carry on its business as now conducted. Each of FNF and Merger Sub is duly qualified to do business as a foreign corporation and is in good standing in each jurisdiction where the character of the property owned or leased by it or the nature of its activities makes such qualification necessary, except where the failure to be so qualified would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a FNF Material Adverse Effect. FNF has heretofore made available to ANFI true and complete copies of FNF s certificate of incorporation and by-laws as currently in effect.

SECTION 5.2 *Corporate Authorization*. The execution, delivery and performance by FNF and Merger Sub of this Agreement and the consummation by FNF and Merger Sub of the transactions contemplated hereby are within the respective corporate powers of FNF and Merger Sub and have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action. Assuming that this Agreement constitutes the valid and binding obligation of ANFI, this Agreement constitutes a valid and binding agreement of FNF and Merger Sub, enforceable in accordance with its terms, subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and similar laws,

now or hereafter in effect, relating to or affecting creditors rights and remedies and to general principles of equity.

SECTION 5.3 Governmental Authorization. The execution, delivery and performance by FNF and Merger Sub of this Agreement, and the consummation by FNF and Merger Sub of the transactions contemplated hereby require no action by or in respect of, or filing with, any Governmental Entity other than (a) the filing of the Agreement of Merger in accordance with the GCL; (b) compliance with any applicable requirements of the HSR Act; (c) compliance with any applicable requirements of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act; (d) such as may be required under any applicable state securities or blue sky laws; (e) filings listed on Section 5.3(e) of the FNF Disclosure Schedule; (f) compliance with any applicable Environmental Laws or state environmental property transfer laws; and (g) such other consents, approvals, actions, orders, authorizations, registrations, declarations and filings which, if not obtained or made, would not, individually or in the aggregate, (i) be reasonably likely to have a FNF Material Adverse Effect, or (ii) prevent or materially impair the ability of FNF or Merger Sub to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

SECTION 5.4 Non-Contravention. Except as set forth on Section 5.4 of the FNF Disclosure Schedule, the execution, delivery and performance by FNF and Merger Sub of this Agreement and the consummation by FNF and Merger Sub of the transactions contemplated hereby do not and will not (a) contravene or conflict with the certificate of incorporation or by-laws of FNF, (b) contravene or conflict with the articles of incorporation or by-laws of Merger Sub, (c) assuming compliance with the matters referred to in Section 5.3, contravene or conflict with or constitute a violation of any provision of any law, regulation, judgment, injunction, order or decree binding upon or applicable to FNF, Merger Sub or any of FNF s Subsidiaries, (d) constitute a breach or default under or give rise to a right of termination, cancellation or acceleration of any right or obligation of FNF, Merger Sub or any of FNF s Subsidiaries or to a loss of any benefit or status to which FNF, Merger Sub or any of its Subsidiaries is entitled under any provision of any agreement, contract or other instrument binding upon FNF, Merger Sub or any of FNF s Subsidiaries, or (e) result in the creation or imposition of any Lien on any asset of FNF, Merger Sub or any of FNF s Subsidiaries other than, in the case of each of (c), (d) and (e), any such items that would not, individually or in the aggregate, (x) be reasonably likely to have a FNF Material Adverse Effect or (y) prevent or materially impair the ability of FNF or Merger Sub to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

SECTION 5.5 Capitalization of FNF and Merger Sub.

- (a) The authorized capital stock of FNF consists of 150,000,000 FNF Common Shares, and 3,000,000 shares of preferred stock, \$0.0001 par value per share. As of January 7, 2003, there were outstanding (i) 97,218,929 FNF Common Shares, (ii) no shares of FNF preferred stock, (iii) no convertible debt securities convertible for FNF Common Shares, (iv) stock options to purchase an aggregate of 9,307,974 FNF Common Shares (of which options to purchase an aggregate of 7,175,151 FNF Common Shares were vested and exercisable), and (v) rights to purchase FNF Common Shares pursuant to the FNF Employee Stock Purchase Plan. All outstanding shares of capital stock of FNF have been duly authorized and validly issued and are fully paid and nonassessable.
- (b) As of the date hereof, except (i) as set forth in this Section, (ii) for changes since January 7, 2003 resulting from the grant of stock options under FNF Employee Plans in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice and the exercise of stock options outstanding on such date and (iii) for issuances of FNF Common Shares since January 7, 2003 pursuant to FNF s Employee Stock Purchase Plan in accordance with its present terms, there are no outstanding (x) shares of capital stock or other voting securities of FNF, (y) securities of FNF convertible into or exchangeable for shares of capital stock or voting securities of FNF, and (z) options or other rights to acquire from FNF, and no obligation of FNF to issue, any capital stock, voting securities convertible into or exchangeable for capital stock or voting securities of FNF (the items in clauses (x), (y) and (z) being referred to collectively as the FNF Securities). There are no outstanding obligations of FNF, Merger Sub or any of FNF s Subsidiaries to repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any FNF Securities.

- (c) The FNF Common Shares to be issued as part of the Merger Consideration have been duly authorized and, when issued and delivered in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, will have been validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable and free of any preemptive or other similar right.
- (d) The authorized capital stock of Merger Sub consists of 1000 shares of Merger Sub common stock, no par value per share. As of January 9, 2003, there were outstanding 100 shares of Merger Sub common stock. All outstanding shares of capital stock of Merger Sub have been duly authorized and validly issued and are fully paid and nonassessable.

SECTION 5.6 Subsidiaries.

- (a) Each Subsidiary of FNF is a corporation duly incorporated or an entity duly organized, and is validly existing and in good standing, under the laws of its jurisdiction of incorporation or organization, has all powers and authority and all material governmental licenses, authorizations, consents and approvals required to carry on its business as now conducted and is duly qualified to do business as a foreign corporation and is in good standing in each jurisdiction where the character of the property owned or leased by it or the nature of its activities makes such qualification necessary, in each case with such exceptions as, individually or in the aggregate, would not be reasonably likely to have a FNF Material Adverse Effect.
- (b) All of the outstanding shares of capital stock of, or other ownership interest in, each Subsidiary of FNF has been validly issued and is fully paid and nonassessable. All of the outstanding capital stock of, or other ownership interest, which is owned, directly or indirectly, by FNF in, each of its Subsidiaries is owned free and clear of any Lien and free of any other limitation or restriction (including any limitation or restriction on the right to vote, sell or otherwise dispose of such capital stock or other ownership interests) with such exceptions as, individually or in the aggregate, would not be reasonably likely to have a FNF Material Adverse Effect. There are no outstanding (i) securities of FNF, Merger Sub or any of FNF s Subsidiaries convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for shares of capital stock or other voting securities or ownership interests in any of FNF s Subsidiaries, (ii) options, warrants or other rights to acquire from FNF, Merger Sub or any of FNF s Subsidiaries, and no other obligation of FNF, Merger Sub or any of FNF s Subsidiaries to issue, any capital stock, voting securities or other ownership interests in, or any securities convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for any capital stock, voting securities or ownership interests in, any of its Subsidiaries or (iii) obligations of FNF, Merger Sub or any of FNF s Subsidiaries to repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any outstanding securities of any of its Subsidiaries or any capital stock of, or other ownership interests in, any of its Subsidiaries.

SECTION 5.7 FNF SEC Documents.

- (a) FNF has made available to ANFI the FNF SEC Documents. FNF has filed all reports, filings, registration statements and other documents required to be filed by it with the SEC since December 31, 2000. No Subsidiary of FNF is required to file any form, report, registration statement or prospectus or other document with the SEC.
- (b) As of its filing date, each FNF SEC Document complied as to form in all material respects with the applicable requirements of the Securities Act and/or the Exchange Act, as the case may be.
- (c) No FNF SEC Document filed pursuant to the Exchange Act contained, as of its filing date or mailing date, as applicable, any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted to state any material fact necessary in order to make the statements made therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. No FNF SEC Document filed pursuant to the Securities Act, as amended or supplemented, if applicable, contained, as of the date such document or amendment became effective, any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading.

SECTION 5.8 Financial Statements. The consolidated financial statements of FNF included in the FNF 10-K and FNF 10-Qs (the FNF GAAP Financial Statements) fairly present in all material respects, in conformity with GAAP (except as may be indicated in the notes thereto and except that the unaudited interim financial statements may lack footnotes), the consolidated financial position of FNF and its

consolidated Subsidiaries as of the dates thereof and their consolidated results of operations and cash flows for the periods then ended (subject to normal year-end adjustments in the case of any unaudited interim financial statements).

SECTION 5.9 No Material Undisclosed Liabilities. As of the date hereof and except as set forth in Section 5.9 of the FNF Disclosure Schedule, there are no liabilities of FNF, Merger Sub or of any Subsidiary of FNF of any kind whatsoever, whether accrued, contingent, absolute, determined, determinable or otherwise, in each case, that are required by GAAP to be set forth on a consolidated balance sheet of FNF, other than:

- (i) liabilities or obligations disclosed or provided for in the FNF GAAP Financial Statements or disclosed in the notes thereto;
- (ii) liabilities or obligations incurred or arising in the ordinary course of business after the date of the FNF balance sheet included in the FNF 10-Q relating to the quarter ended September 30, 2002 or arising under this Agreement or incurred in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby; and
- (iii) other liabilities or obligations, which, individually or in the aggregate, would not be reasonably likely to have a FNF Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 5.10 Information to Be Supplied.

- (a) The information to be supplied in writing by FNF or Merger Sub expressly for inclusion or incorporation by reference in the Proxy Statement/ Prospectus will (i) in the case of the Registration Statement, at the time it becomes effective, not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein not misleading and (ii) in the case of the remainder of the Proxy Statement/ Prospectus, at the time of the mailing thereof and at the time of the ANFI Shareholders Meeting, not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they are made, not misleading. The Proxy Statement/ Prospectus will comply (with respect to information relating to FNF or Merger Sub) as to form in all material respects with the provisions of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act.
- (b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, FNF and Merger Sub make no representation or warranty with respect to any statements made or incorporated by reference in the Proxy Statement/ Prospectus based on information supplied in writing by ANFI expressly for use therein.
- SECTION 5.11 *Absence of Certain Changes*. Since December 31, 2001, except as disclosed in the FNF SEC Documents, disclosed on Section 5.11 of the FNF Disclosure Schedule, or as contemplated by this Agreement, FNF, Merger Sub and FNF s Subsidiaries have conducted their business in the ordinary course consistent with past practice and there has not been any action taken by FNF that, individually or in the aggregate, has had or would be reasonably likely to have a FNF Material Adverse Effect.
- SECTION 5.12 *Transactions with Affiliates*. Except as disclosed in the FNF Proxy Statement, none of FNF or any of its Affiliates is an officer, director, employee, consultant, distributor, supplier or vendor of, or is party to any contract with, FNF, Merger Sub or any of FNF s Subsidiaries that would be required to be disclosed in a proxy statement filed by FNF pursuant to the Exchange Act.
- SECTION 5.13 *Litigation*. Except as disclosed in Section 5.13 of the FNF Disclosure Schedule or in the FNF SEC Documents, there is no action, suit, investigation, arbitration or proceeding pending against, or to the Knowledge of FNF or Merger Sub threatened against, FNF, Merger Sub or any of FNF s Subsidiaries or any of their respective assets or properties before any arbitrator or Governmental Entity that, individually or in the aggregate, would be reasonably likely to result in a FNF Material Adverse Effect.
- SECTION 5.14 *Compliance with Laws*. FNF, Merger Sub and FNF s Subsidiaries have all licenses, permits and qualifications necessary to conduct their businesses or own their properties in each jurisdiction in which FNF, Merger Sub or FNF s Subsidiaries currently do business or own property, or in which such license, permit or qualification is otherwise required, except where the failure to have such licenses, permits

and qualifications would not have a FNF Material Adverse Effect. Except as disclosed on Section 5.14 of the FNF Disclosure Schedule, FNF, Merger Sub and FNF s Subsidiaries have complied in all material respects with all laws, regulations and orders applicable to their businesses and the present use by FNF, Merger Sub and FNF s Subsidiaries of their respective properties, and the business conducted by FNF, Merger Sub and FNF s Subsidiaries, does not violate in any material respect any such laws, regulations or orders, and FNF, Merger Sub and FNF s Subsidiaries have timely filed all reports and returns required by law, rule, regulation or policy of any regulatory authority and all such returns and reports are true and correct in all material respects, and there are no material deficiencies with respect to such filings or submissions, except where the failure to so comply would not have a FNF Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 5.15 Finders Fees; Opinion of Financial Advisor. There is no investment banker, broker, finder or other intermediary who might be entitled to any fee or commission in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement based upon arrangements made by or on behalf of FNF or Merger Sub.

SECTION 5.16 Required Vote; Board Approval.

- (a) There is no vote of the holders of any class or series of capital stock of FNF required by law, rule or regulation to approve this Agreement, the Merger and/or any of the other transactions contemplated hereby; subject to the accuracy of the capitalization representation set forth in Section 4.5 and ANFI s compliance with the covenant set forth in Section 6.1(d).
- (b) FNF s Board of Directors has (a) determined that this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, including the Merger, are in the best interests of FNF and its stockholders and (b) approved this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby.

SECTION 5.17 Taxes. (a) All material tax returns, statements, reports and forms (collectively, the FNF Returns) required to be filed with any taxing authority by, or with respect to, FNF and its Subsidiaries were filed on a timely basis and were true, complete and correct except to the extent that the failure to file or be true, complete and correct would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a FNF Material Adverse Effect; (b) FNF and its Subsidiaries have timely paid all material taxes (which for purposes of this Section 5.17 shall include interest, penalties and additions to tax with respect thereto) shown as due and payable on the FNF Returns (other than taxes which are being contested in good faith and for which adequate reserves are reflected on the FNF Balance Sheet) except to the extent that the failure to pay would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a FNF Material Adverse Effect; (c) FNF and its Subsidiaries have made provision for all material taxes payable by them for which no FNF Return has yet been filed except for inadequately reserved taxes that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a FNF Material Adverse Effect; (d) no taxing authority has asserted or initiated (or, to the Knowledge of FNF or Merger Sub, threatened to assert or initiate) in writing any action, suit, proceeding or claim against FNF or any of its Subsidiaries that, individually or in the aggregate, would have a FNF Material Adverse Effect; (e) there is no application pending for approval of a change in accounting methods; (f) except as set forth in Section 5.17 of the FNF Disclosure Schedule or for any year for which the applicable statute of limitations has expired, neither FNF nor any of its Subsidiaries has been a member of an affiliated, consolidated, combined or unitary group other than one of which FNF was the common parent; and (g) except as set forth in Section 5.17 of the FNF Disclosure Schedule or for any year for which the applicable statute of limitations has expired, neither FNF nor any of its Subsidiaries is obligated by any contract, agreement or other arrangement to indemnify any other person with respect to taxes or to compensate any third party for any tax payment or tax liability under a tax sharing or similar agreement.

SECTION 5.18 Employees and Employee Benefits.

(a) Each of FNF and Merger Sub has made available to ANFI each material employee benefit plan, as defined in Section 3(3) of ERISA, each material employment, severance or similar contract, plan, arrangement or policy and each other material plan or arrangement providing for compensation, bonuses, profit-sharing, stock option or other stock related rights or other forms of incentive or deferred compensation or insurance coverage (including any self-insured arrangements and, if applicable, related trust agreements),

all amendments thereto and the most recent written summary descriptions thereof, together with the most recent annual report (Form 5500 including, if applicable, Schedule B thereto) prepared in connection with any such plan, which is maintained, administered or contributed to by FNF, Merger Sub or any of FNF s Subsidiaries and covers any employee or former employee of FNF, Merger or any of FNF s Subsidiaries. Such plans are referred to collectively herein as the *FNF Employee Plans*.

- (b) Each FNF Employee Plan which is intended to be qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code is so qualified and has received a favorable determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service stating that it is so qualified and, nothing has occurred since the date of such letter that would cause it to be revoked, whether prospectively or retroactively. FNF will make available upon request to ANFI copies of the most recent Internal Revenue Service determination letters with respect to each such FNF Employee Plan. Each FNF Employee Plan has been administered in compliance with its terms and with the requirements prescribed by any and all statutes, orders, rules and regulations, including but not limited to ERISA and the Code, which are applicable to such FNF Employee Plan except as would not be reasonably likely to have a FNF Material Adverse Effect.
- (c) Except as described on Section 5.18(c) of the FNF Disclosure Schedule, the execution of, and performance of the transactions contemplated in, this Agreement will not (either alone or upon the occurrence of any additional or subsequent events) constitute an event under any FNF Employee Plan, trust or loan that will or may result in any payment (whether of severance pay or otherwise), acceleration, forgiveness of indebtedness, vesting, distribution, increase in benefits or obligation to fund benefits with respect to any current or former employee, executive or director of FNF or any of its Subsidiaries which would have a FNF Material Adverse Effect.
- (d) Except as set forth on Section 5.18(a) of the FNF Disclosure Schedule, neither FNF nor any of its Subsidiaries maintains or contributes to any FNF Employee Plan which provides, or has any liability to provide, life insurance, medical or other welfare benefits to any employee(s) upon their retirement or termination of employment, except as required by Section 601 of ERISA and Section 4980B of the Code.
- (e) There has been no amendment to, written interpretation or announcement (whether or not written) relating to any FNF Employee Plan which would increase materially the expense of maintaining such FNF Employee Plans in the aggregate above the level of the expense incurred in respect thereof for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001.
- (f) FNF and each of its Subsidiaries is in compliance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations respecting employment, employment practices, terms and conditions of employment, wages, hours and withholding except as would not be reasonably likely to have a FNF Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 5.19 Environmental Matters.

(a) With such exceptions as, individually or in the aggregate, would not be reasonably likely to have a FNF Material Adverse Effect, (i) no written notice, notification, demand, request for information, citation, summons, complaint or order has been received or made by, and no investigation, action, claim, suit, proceeding or review is pending or, the Knowledge of FNF, threatened by any Person against, FNF or any of its Subsidiaries, with respect to any applicable Environmental Law, (ii) FNF and its Subsidiaries are and have been in compliance in all material respects with all applicable Environmental Laws and (iii) there are no liabilities or obligations of FNF or any of its Subsidiaries of any kind whatsoever, whether accrued, contingent, absolute, direct or indirect, determined, determinable or otherwise, arising under or relating to any Environmental Law (including, without limitation, liabilities or obligations relating to divested properties or businesses or predecessor entities), and there are no facts, conditions, situations or set of circumstances that have resulted or could reasonably be expected to result in or be the basis for any such liabilities or obligations which would have a FNF Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 5.20 *Shareholder Consent*. FNF s vote as the sole shareholder of Merger Sub is the only vote required of any class or series of capital stock of Merger Sub required by law, rule, regulation to approve this Agreement, the Merger and/or any of the other transactions contemplated hereby.

SECTION 5.21 *Assets and Liabilities*. Merger Sub is a newly-formed, wholly-owned subsidiary of FNF. FNF formed Merger Sub on January 8, 2003 solely to effect the Merger. Merger Sub has not conducted any business during any period of its existence and does not and will not as of the Closing have any assets or liabilities.

ARTICLE VI

COVENANTS OF ANFI

ANFI agrees that:

SECTION 6.1 ANFI Interim Operations. Except as set forth in the ANFI Disclosure Schedule or as otherwise expressly contemplated hereby, without the prior consent of FNF (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed), from the date hereof until the Effective Time, ANFI shall, and shall cause each of its Subsidiaries to, conduct their business in all material respects in the ordinary course consistent with past practice and shall use commercially reasonable efforts to (i) preserve intact its present business organization, (ii) maintain in effect all material licenses, approvals and authorizations, including, without limitation, all material licenses and permits that are required by applicable Laws and Environmental Laws for ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries to carry on its business and (iii) preserve existing relationships with its key employees, its key agents, and its material customers, lenders, suppliers and others having material business relationships with it. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, except as set forth in Section 6.1 of the ANFI Disclosure Schedule or as otherwise expressly contemplated by this Agreement, from the date hereof until the Effective Time, without the prior consent of FNF (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed), ANFI shall not, nor shall it permit any of its Subsidiaries to:

- (a) amend its articles of incorporation or by-laws;
- (b) take any action that would prevent or materially impair the ability of ANFI to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including actions that would be reasonably likely to prevent or materially impair the ability of ANFI, FNF or any of their Subsidiaries to obtain any consent, registration, approval, permit or authorization required to be obtained from any Governmental Entity prior to the Effective Time in connection with the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the consummation of the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement;
- (c) split, combine or reclassify any shares of capital stock of ANFI or any less-than-wholly-owned Subsidiary of ANFI or declare, set aside or pay any dividend or other distribution (whether in cash, stock or property or any combination thereof) in respect of its capital stock or any securities of any of its Subsidiaries which are not wholly-owned, or redeem, repurchase or otherwise acquire or offer to redeem, repurchase, or otherwise acquire any of its securities or any securities of any of its Subsidiaries which are not wholly-owned;
- (d) (i) issue, deliver or sell, or authorize the issuance, delivery or sale of, any shares of its capital stock of any class or any securities convertible into or exercisable for, or any rights, warrants or options to acquire, any such capital stock or any such convertible securities, other than (A) the issuance of ANFI Common Shares upon the exercise of stock options, (B) pursuant to an ANFI Employee Plan in accordance with its present terms, (C) the issuance of stock options in the ordinary course of business pursuant to an ANFI Employee Plan in accordance with its present terms; *provided, however*, that ANFI shall not grant stock options which would result in the acceleration of any options not assumed by FNF and that the issuance of any such stock options is with the prior written consent of FNF, and (D) as permitted pursuant to Section 3.4(d); *provided, further*, that in no event shall the aggregate of any and all issuances pursuant to subsections (B), (C) or (D) be in excess of the lesser of 654,000 shares of capital stock of ANFI and/or securities convertible into or exercisable for capital stock of ANFI and such amount as would require FNF to obtain from its stockholders approval of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, pursuant to the rules and regulations promulgated by the NYSE, (ii) except as permitted in Section 3.4(e), amend in any material respect any material term of any

outstanding security of ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries or (iii) consent, including consent by the applicable committee, to any transfer of an ANFI Option;

- (e) other than in connection with transactions permitted by Section 6.1(f) and expenses incurred in connection with this transaction such as reasonable legal and accounting expenses, and investment banking expenses, not to exceed the amount disclosed in Section 4.19 of the ANFI Disclosure Schedule, incur any capital expenditures or any obligations or liabilities in respect thereof, except for those (i) contemplated by the capital expenditure budgets for ANFI and its Subsidiaries, (ii) incurred in the ordinary course of business of ANFI and its Subsidiaries, or (iii) not otherwise described in clauses (i) and/or (ii) which are not in excess of an aggregate of \$100,000;
- (f) except for acquisitions in the ordinary course of the investment activities of ANFI and its Subsidiaries consistent with past practice, acquire (whether pursuant to merger, stock or asset purchase or otherwise) in one transaction or series of related transactions any assets of or equity interests in any Person having a fair market value in excess of \$100,000;
- (g) sell, lease, encumber or otherwise dispose of any assets, other than (i) in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, (ii) equipment and property no longer used in the operation of ANFI s business, and (iii) sales or other dispositions of assets related to discontinued operations of ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries;
- (h) incur any indebtedness for borrowed money or guarantee any such indebtedness or issue or sell any debt securities or warrants or rights to acquire any debt securities of ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries or guarantee any debt securities of others or request any advances in respect of, or make any drawdowns on, any existing indebtedness which advance or drawdown exceeds \$100,000 individually or \$250,000 in the aggregate;
- (i) amend, modify or terminate any material contract, agreement or arrangement of ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries or otherwise waive, release or assign any material rights, claims or benefits of ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries thereunder;
- (j) (i) except as set forth in Section 7.1(c) hereof, in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, or as required by law or by an agreement existing on the date hereof, increase the amount of compensation of any director or executive officer or make any increase in or commitment to increase any employee benefits, (ii) except as required by law or by an agreement existing on the date hereof, adopt any severance program or grant any material severance or termination pay to any director, officer or employee of ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries, (iii) adopt or implement any employee retention program or other incentive arrangement not in existence on the date hereof, (iv) except as set forth in Section 7.1(c) hereof, adopt any additional employee benefit plan or, except in the ordinary course of business, make any material contribution to any existing plan (other than as required by law or such plan), or (v) except as may be required by law or pursuant to any agreement existing on the date hereof, amend in any material respect any ANFI Employee Plan;
- (k) change ANFI s (x) methods of accounting in effect at December 31, 2001, except as required by changes in GAAP or by Regulation S-X of the Exchange Act, as concurred in by its independent public accountants or (y) fiscal year;
- (l) other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, make any tax election or enter into any settlement or compromise of any tax liability that in either case is material to the business of ANFI and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole:
- (m) pay, discharge, settle or satisfy any claim, liability or obligation (absolute, accrued, asserted or unasserted, contingent or otherwise) other than (y) for an amount of \$100,000 or less, or (z) ordinary course repayment of indebtedness or payment of contractual obligations when due;
 - (n) take any action that would cause any of its representations and warranties herein to become untrue in any material respect; and A-22

(o) agree, resolve or otherwise commit to do any of the foregoing.

SECTION 6.2 Shareholder Meeting. ANFI shall cause a meeting of its shareholders (the ANFI Shareholders Meeting) to be duly called and held for the purpose of obtaining the ANFI Shareholder Approval (including the payment of any severance payments subject to the application of Section 280G of the Code, if any) as soon as reasonably practicable after the Registration Statement is declared effective under the Securities Act. Except as provided in Section 6.3, (a) ANFI s Board of Directors shall recommend approval and adoption by its shareholders of this Agreement (the ANFI Recommendation), and (b) ANFI shall use commercially reasonable efforts to solicit the ANFI Shareholder Approval. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, ANFI agrees that its obligations under this Section shall not be affected by the commencement, public proposal, public disclosure or communication to ANFI of any Acquisition Proposal.

SECTION 6.3 Acquisition Proposals; Board Recommendation.

- (a) ANFI agrees that it shall not, nor shall it permit any of its Subsidiaries to, nor shall it authorize or knowingly permit any officer, director, employee, investment banker, attorney, accountant, agent or other advisor or representative of ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries, directly or indirectly, to (i) take any action to solicit, initiate or facilitate or encourage the submission of any Acquisition Proposal, (ii) engage in any negotiations regarding, or furnish to any Person any non-public information with respect to, or take any other action knowingly to facilitate any inquiries or the making of any proposal that constitutes, or may be reasonably expected to lead to, any Acquisition Proposal, (iii) grant any waiver or release under any standstill or similar agreement with respect to any class of ANFI s equity securities or (iv) other than in the manner contemplated by Section 6.3(d), enter into any agreement with respect to any Acquisition Proposal; *provided, however*, that ANFI may take any actions described in the foregoing clauses (i), (ii), (iii), or (iv) in respect of any Person who makes an Acquisition Proposal, but only if (x) the Board of Directors of ANFI by a majority vote determines in its good faith judgment that either (A) such Acquisition Proposal constitutes a Superior Proposal and provides written notice of termination of this Agreement in accordance with Section 6.3(d) and Section 10.1, or (B) such Acquisition Proposal could reasonably be expected to result in a Superior Proposal, and (y) prior to furnishing any non-public information to such Person shall have entered into a confidentiality agreement with ANFI agreeing to keep confidential any non-public information received.
- (b) Until this Agreement shall have been terminated pursuant to Section 6.3(d), neither ANFI s Board of Directors nor any committee thereof shall recommend any Acquisition Proposal to ANFI s shareholders. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing contained in this Section 6.3(b) or elsewhere in this Agreement shall prevent ANFI s Board of Directors from complying with Rule 14e-2 under the Exchange Act with respect to any Acquisition Proposal or making any disclosure required by applicable law.
- (c) Promptly (but in no event later than 48 hours) after receipt by ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries (or any of their respective directors, officers, agents or advisors) of any Acquisition Proposal, any request for non-public information or for access to the properties, books or records of ANFI or any of its Subsidiaries or any request for a waiver or release under any standstill or similar agreement, by any Person that has made an Acquisition Proposal or indicates that it is considering making an Acquisition Proposal, ANFI shall notify FNF (x) that a Person may be considering making an Acquisition Proposal, and (y) of the identity of such Person and, if an Acquisition Proposal is made, of the material terms of such Acquisition Proposal. ANFI shall keep FNF reasonably informed of the status and material terms of any such Acquisition Proposal.
- (d) Upon notice and in accordance with the terms of Section 10.1, ANFI may terminate this Agreement at any time before the ANFI Shareholder Approval is obtained if (x) ANFI s Board of Directors shall have authorized ANFI, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, to enter into a binding agreement concerning a transaction that constitutes a Superior Proposal, (y) ANFI notifies FNF that it intends to enter into such agreement, specifying the material terms and conditions of such agreement, and (z) within seven Business Days of receiving the notice described in (y) above, FNF fails to propose and agree to enter into a modification of this Agreement such that the Board of Directors of ANFI determines by a majority vote in its good faith judgment that such Acquisition Proposal previously determined to constitute a Superior Proposal is no longer a Superior Proposal.

SECTION 6.4 New Employment Agreements. On or before January 20, 2003, ANFI shall have entered into a modification to each of the employment agreements with each of Michael C. Lowther, Barbara A. Ferguson and Wayne D. Diaz, with respect to the matters set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto.

SECTION 6.5 Registration Rights. ANFI covenants to use commercially reasonable efforts to cause the holder of the ANFI Warrants to relinquish any demand registration rights which such holder may have.

ARTICLE VII

COVENANTS OF FNF

FNF agrees that:

SECTION 7.1 Indemnification, Exculpation and Insurance.

- (a) FNF agrees to maintain in effect in accordance with their terms all rights to indemnification and exculpation from liabilities for acts or omissions occurring at or prior to the Effective Time now existing in favor of the current or former directors or officers of ANFI and its Subsidiaries as provided in their respective articles of incorporation or by-laws (or comparable organizational documents) and any indemnification agreements of ANFI. In addition, from and after the Effective Time, directors and officers of ANFI who become directors or officers of FNF will be entitled to the same indemnity rights and protections as are afforded to other directors and officers of FNF.
- (b) In the event that FNF or any of its successors or assigns (i) consolidates with or merges into any other person and is not the continuing or surviving corporation or entity of such consolidation or merger or (ii) except as required by applicable law in connection with the Merger, transfers or conveys all or substantially all of its properties and assets to any person, then, and in each such case, proper provision will be made so that the successors and assigns of FNF assume the obligations set forth in this Section.
- (c) Immediately prior to the Closing, ANFI shall purchase, from an insurer or insurers chosen by ANFI, one or more single payment, run-off policies of directors and officers liability insurance covering acts or omissions occurring prior to the Effective Time with respect to those persons who are currently covered by ANFI s directors and officers liability insurance policies on terms with respect to such coverage and amount no less favorable than the terms of the current policies of ANFI which policies are described on Section 4.17 of the ANFI Disclosure Schedule, such policy (or policies) to become effective at the Effective Time and to remain in effect for a period of six years after the Effective Time; *provided, however*, prior to purchasing such insurance, ANFI shall have consulted with FNF to determine whether FNF can obtain such coverage on more favorable terms. If such coverage is unavailable, for six years after the Effective Time, FNF shall provide to ANFI s directors and officers liability insurance covering acts or omissions occurring prior to the Effective Time with respect to those persons who are currently covered by ANFI s directors and officers liability insurance policies with insurance companies who are rated at least as highly as the insurance companies who currently provide ANFI s directors and officers liability insurance as described on Section 4.17 of the ANFI Disclosure Schedule and on terms with respect to such coverage and amount no less favorable than those described on Section 4.17 of the ANFI Disclosure Schedule.

SECTION 7.2 Stock Exchange Listing. FNF shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to cause the FNF Common Shares to be issued in connection with the Merger or upon exercise of FNF Options to be listed on the NYSE, subject to official notice of issuance.

SECTION 7.3 Merger Sub Shareholder Consent. FNF as the sole shareholder of Merger Sub will provide written consent adopting and approving the Agreement and the Merger in accordance with the terms hereof.

ARTICLE VIII

COVENANTS OF FNF, MERGER SUB AND ANFI

The parties hereto agree that:

SECTION 8.1 Commercially Reasonable Efforts. Subject to the terms and conditions hereof, the parties will use commercially reasonable efforts to take, or cause to be taken, all actions and to do, or cause to be done, all things necessary, proper or advisable under applicable laws and regulations to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement as promptly as practicable after the date hereof, including (i) preparing and filing as promptly as practicable all documentation to effect all necessary applications, notices, petitions, filings, tax ruling requests and other documents and to obtain as promptly as practicable all consents, waivers, licenses, orders, registrations, approvals, permits, tax rulings and authorizations necessary or advisable to be obtained from any third party and/or any Governmental Entity in order to consummate the Merger or any of the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement and (ii) taking all reasonable steps as may be necessary to obtain all such material consents, waivers, licenses, orders, registrations, approvals, permits, tax rulings and authorizations. In furtherance and not in limitation of the foregoing, each party hereto agrees to make an appropriate filing of a Notification and Report Form pursuant to the HSR Act with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby as promptly as practicable after the date hereof and to supply as promptly as practicable any additional information and documentary material that may be requested pursuant to the HSR Act and to take all other actions necessary to cause the expiration or termination of the applicable waiting periods under the HSR Act as soon as practicable, and (iii) the defending of any lawsuits or other legal proceedings, whether judicial or administrative, challenging this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby, including seeking to have any stay or temporary restraining order entered by any Governmental Entity vacated or reversed. Nothing in this Section shall require FNF and its Subsidiaries to sell, hold separate or otherwise dispose of or conduct their business in a specified manner, or agree to sell, hold separate or otherwise dispose of or conduct their business in a specified manner, or permit the sale, holding separate or other disposition of, any assets of FNF or its Subsidiaries or the conduct of their business in a specified manner, whether as a condition to obtaining any approval from a Governmental Entity or any other Person or for any other reason (any such sale, holding separate or other disposition or conduct of business shall be referred to herein as a *Burdensome Condition*).

SECTION 8.2 Certain Filings; Cooperation in Receipt of Consents.

(a) As promptly as practicable after the date hereof, ANFI shall prepare and file with the SEC the Proxy Statement/ Prospectus and, as soon as practicable following the period of any review thereof by the SEC staff, FNF shall prepare and file the Registration Statement, in which the Proxy Statement/ Prospectus will be included. Each of ANFI and FNF shall use commercially reasonable efforts to have the Registration Statement declared effective under the Securities Act as promptly as practicable after such filing and to keep the Registration Statement effective as long as is necessary to consummate the Merger. ANFI shall mail the Proxy Statement/ Prospectus to its shareholders as promptly as practicable after the Registration Statement is declared effective under the Securities Act and, if necessary, after the Proxy Statement/ Prospectus shall have been so mailed, promptly circulate amended, supplemental or supplemented proxy material and, if required in connection therewith, resolicit proxies. FNF shall also take any action (except to qualify to do business or to file a general consent to service of process) required to be taken under any applicable state securities or blue sky laws in connection with the issuance of FNF Common Shares in the Merger, and ANFI shall use commercially reasonable efforts to furnish all information concerning its directors, officers, shareholders and business as may be reasonably requested by FNF in connection with any such action.

(b) No filing of, or any amendment or supplement to, the Proxy Statement/ Prospectus will be made by ANFI without providing FNF the opportunity to review and comment thereon. Each party will advise the other party, promptly after it receives notice thereof, of the time when the Registration Statement has become effective or any supplement or amendment has been filed, the issuance of any stop order, the suspension of the qualification of the FNF Common Shares issuable in connection with the Merger for offering or sale in any jurisdiction, or any request by the SEC for amendment of the Proxy Statement/ Prospectus or comments thereon and responses thereto or requests by the SEC for additional information. If at any time prior to the

Effective Time any information relating to either party, or any of their respective Affiliates, officers or directors should be discovered by ANFI or FNF, that should be set forth in an amendment or supplement to the Registration Statement or the Proxy Statement/ Prospectus, so that either of such documents would not include any misstatement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, the party that discovers such information shall promptly notify the other party hereto and an appropriate amendment or supplement describing such information shall be promptly filed with the SEC and, to the extent required by law or regulation, disseminated to the shareholders of ANFI.

- (c) ANFI shall use commercially reasonable efforts to cause to be delivered to FNF two letters from ANFI s independent public accountants, one dated the date on which the Registration Statement shall become effective and one dated the date of the Effective Time, each addressed to ANFI and FNF, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to FNF and customary in scope and substance for comfort letters delivered by independent public accountants in connection with registration statements similar to the Registration Statement. FNF shall use commercially reasonable efforts to cause to be delivered to ANFI two letters from FNF s independent public accountants, one dated the date on which the Registration Statement shall become effective and one dated the date of the Effective Time, each addressed to ANFI and FNF, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to ANFI and customary in scope and substance for comfort letters delivered by independent public accountants in connection with registration statements similar to the Registration Statement.
- (d) ANFI, Merger Sub and FNF shall cooperate with one another in (i) determining whether any other action by or in respect of, or filing with, any Governmental Entity is required, or any actions, consents, approvals or waivers are required to be obtained from parties to any material contracts, in connection with the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and (ii) seeking any such other actions, consents, approvals or waivers or making any such filings, furnishing information required in connection therewith and seeking promptly to obtain any such actions, consents, approvals or waivers. Each party shall permit the other party to review any communication given by it to, and shall consult with each other in advance of any meeting or conference with, any Governmental Entity or, in connection with any legal proceeding by a private party, with any other Person, and to the extent permitted by the applicable Governmental Entity or other Person, give the other party the opportunity to attend and participate in such meetings and conferences, in each case in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby.

SECTION 8.3 *Public Announcements*. The parties shall consult with each other before issuing, and provide each other a reasonable opportunity to review and comment upon, any press release or public statement with respect to this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby and, except as may be required by applicable law or any listing agreement with any national securities exchange, will not issue any such press release or make any such public statement prior to such consultation.

SECTION 8.4 Access to Information; Notification of Certain Matters.

(a) From the date hereof until the Effective Time and subject to applicable law, ANFI and FNF shall (i) give to the other party, its counsel, financial advisors, auditors and other authorized representatives reasonable access to the offices, properties, books and records of such party, (ii) furnish or make available to the other party, its counsel, financial advisors, auditors and other authorized representatives such financial and operating data and other information as such Persons may reasonably request and (iii) instruct its employees, counsel, financial advisors, auditors and other authorized representatives to cooperate with the reasonable requests of the other party in its investigation. Any investigation pursuant to this Section 8.4(a) shall be conducted in such manner as not to interfere unreasonably with the conduct of the business of the other party. All such information shall be deemed proprietary information of the delivering party, and shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, be kept confidential by the receiving party and not used other than in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. No information or knowledge obtained in any investigation pursuant to this Section 8.4(a) shall affect or be deemed to modify any representation or warranty made by any party hereunder.

- (b) Each party hereto shall give notice to each other party hereto, as promptly as practicable after the event giving rise to the requirement of such notice, of:
 - (i) any communication received by such party from, or given by such party to, any Governmental Entity in connection with any of the transactions contemplated hereby;
 - (ii) any notice or other communication from any Person alleging that the consent of such Person is or may be required in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement; and
 - (iii) any actions, suits, claims, investigations or proceedings commenced or, to its Knowledge, threatened against, relating to or involving or otherwise affecting such party or any of its Subsidiaries that, if pending on the date of this Agreement, would have been required to have been disclosed, or that relate to the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement; *provided, however*, that the delivery of any notice pursuant to this Section 8.4(b) shall not limit or otherwise affect the remedies available hereunder to the party receiving such notice.

SECTION 8.5 Further Assurances. At and after the Effective Time, the officers and directors of the Surviving Corporation will be authorized to execute and deliver, in the name and on behalf of ANFI, any deeds, bills of sale, assignments or assurances and to take and do, in the name and on behalf of ANFI, any other actions and things to vest, perfect or confirm of record or otherwise in the Surviving Corporation any and all right, title and interest in, to and under any of the rights, properties or assets of ANFI acquired or to be acquired by the Surviving Corporation as a result of, or in connection with, the Merger.

SECTION 8.6 Tax Matters.

- (a) Prior to and following the Effective Time, each party shall use commercially reasonable efforts to cause the Merger to qualify as a reorganization under Section 368(a)(2)(D) of the Code and will not take any action or fail to take any action reasonably likely to cause the Merger not so to qualify.
 - (b) Each party shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to obtain the opinions referred to in Section 9.2(b) and Section 9.3(e).

SECTION 8.7 *Control of Other Party s Business.* Nothing contained in this Agreement shall give FNF, directly or indirectly, the right to control or direct ANFI s operations prior to the Effective Time. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall give ANFI, directly or indirectly, the right to control or direct FNF s or Merger Sub s operations prior to the Effective Time. Prior to the Effective Time, each of FNF and ANFI shall exercise, consistent with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, complete control and supervision over its respective operations.

SECTION 8.8 Affiliate Letters. Within 30 days following the date hereof, ANFI shall cause to be delivered to FNF a letter identifying, in ANFI s reasonable judgment, the names and addresses of all Persons who may be deemed to be affiliates of ANFI for purposes of Rule 145(c) under the Securities Act. ANFI shall use commercially reasonable efforts to cause each such Person who is so identified to deliver to FNF on or prior to the 30th day prior to the Effective Time a letter agreement reasonably satisfactory to FNF acknowledging that such Person may be deemed an Affiliate of FNF following the Merger and thus may be subject to restrictions on the resale of FNF Common Shares held by such Person following the Merger.

ARTICLE IX

CONDITIONS TO THE MERGER

SECTION 9.1 *Conditions to the Obligations of Each Party*. The obligations of ANFI, Merger Sub and FNF to consummate the Merger are subject to the satisfaction of the following conditions:

- (a) the ANFI Shareholder Approval shall have been obtained;
- (b) the FNF Common Shares to be issued in the Merger shall have been authorized for listing on the NYSE, subject to official notice of issuance;

- (c) (i) the Registration Statement shall have become effective in accordance with the provisions of the Securities Act, no stop order suspending the effectiveness of the Registration Statement shall have been issued by the SEC and no proceedings for that purpose shall have been initiated by the SEC and not concluded or withdrawn and (ii) all state securities or blue sky authorizations necessary to carry out the transactions contemplated hereby shall have been obtained and be in effect;
- (d) any applicable waiting period under the HSR Act relating to the Merger shall have expired or been earlier terminated without the imposition of any Burdensome Condition;
- (e) no Governmental Entity of competent authority or jurisdiction shall have issued any order, injunction or decree, or taken any other action, that is in effect and restrains, enjoins or otherwise prohibits the consummation of the Merger nor is there pending any action that seeks to restrain, enjoin or otherwise prohibit the consummation of the Merger; and
- (f) the parties shall have obtained or made all consent, approvals, actions, orders, authorizations, registrations, declarations, announcements and filings contemplated by Section 4.3 and Section 5.3 which if not obtained or made (i) would render consummation of the Merger illegal or (ii) would be reasonably likely to have a Material Adverse Effect on the Surviving Corporation, taken as a whole, after giving effect to the Merger.

SECTION 9.2 Conditions to the Obligations of ANFI. The obligations of ANFI to consummate the Merger are subject to the satisfaction of the following further conditions:

- (a) (i) FNF and Merger Sub shall have performed in all material respects all of their obligations hereunder required to be performed by it at or prior to the time of the filing of the Agreement of Merger, (ii) the representations and warranties of FNF and Merger Sub contained in this Agreement (without giving effect to any materiality, Material Adverse Effect or similar qualifications included therein) shall have been true and correct when made and at and as of the time of the filing of the Agreement of Merger as if made at and as of such time (except to the extent any such representation or warranty expressly speaks as of an earlier date, in which case it shall be true and correct as of such date), except for such inaccuracies as would not be reasonably likely, individually or in the aggregate, to have a FNF Material Adverse Effect, and (iii) ANFI shall have received certificates signed by the Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer of FNF and Merger Sub to the foregoing effect;
- (b) ANFI shall have received an opinion of counsel reasonably acceptable to ANFI, which may include Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, counsel to FNF and Merger Sub, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to ANFI, on the basis of certain facts, representations and reasonable assumptions set forth in such opinion, dated as of the date of the filing of the Agreement of Merger, to the effect that the Merger will be treated for federal income tax purposes as a tax free reorganization under Section 368(a)(2)(D) of the Code. In rendering such opinion, such counsel shall be entitled to rely upon customary representations of officers of ANFI and FNF in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to such counsel and other reasonable assumptions set forth therein; and
- (c) Except as set forth on the FNF Disclosure Schedule, since the date of the FNF balance sheet included in the FNF 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002, there shall not have occurred any change in the financial condition, business or operations of FNF and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, that would be reasonably likely to have a FNF Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 9.3 Conditions to the Obligations of FNF and Merger Sub. The obligations of FNF and Merger Sub to consummate the Merger are subject to the satisfaction of the following further conditions:

(a) (i) ANFI shall have performed in all material respects all of its obligations hereunder required to be performed by it at or prior to the time of filing of the Agreement of Merger, (ii) the representations and warranties of ANFI contained in this Agreement (without giving effect to any materiality, Material Adverse Effect or similar qualifications included therein) shall have been true and correct when made and at and as of the time of the filing of the Agreement of Merger as if made at and as of such time (except to the extent any such representation or warranty expressly speaks as of an earlier date, in which

case it shall be true and correct as of such date), except for such inaccuracies as would not be reasonably likely, individually or in the aggregate, to have an ANFI Material Adverse Effect, and (iii) FNF shall have received a certificate signed by the Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer of ANFI to the foregoing effect;

- (b) Except as set forth on the ANFI Disclosure Schedule, since the date of the ANFI balance sheet included in the ANFI 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002, there shall not have occurred any change in the financial condition, business or operations of ANFI and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, that would be reasonably likely to have an ANFI Material Adverse Effect;
- (c) In the event the ANFI shareholders have any appraisal, dissenters—or similar rights under applicable law, no more than three percent (3.0%) of the ANFI Common Shares, determined as of the record date for the ANFI Shareholders Meeting, shall have made an effective demand for exercise of their appraisal, dissenters—or similar rights under applicable law;
- (d) Each of the ANFI Senior Executives shall have outstanding options to acquire ANFI common stock that, upon assumption thereof by FNF in accordance with this Agreement, shall be exercisable into no more than 50,000 FNF Common Shares;
- (e) FNF shall have received an opinion of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth (or other counsel reasonably acceptable to FNF) in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to FNF, on the basis of certain facts, representations and reasonable assumptions set forth in such opinion, dated as of the date of the filing of the Agreement of Merger, to the effect that the Merger will be treated for federal income tax purposes as a tax free reorganization under Section 368(a)(2)(D) of the Code. In rendering such opinion, such counsel shall be entitled to rely upon customary representations of officers of ANFI and FNF in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to such counsel and other reasonable assumptions set forth therein; and
- (f) FNF shall have received any consent, approvals, actions, orders, or authorizations from the Department of Insurance necessary to consummate the transactions contemplated in this Agreement and by the Merger, including, without limitation, the conversion of ANFI to Ticor Title after the Effective Time.

ARTICLE X

TERMINATION

- SECTION 10.1 *Termination*. This Agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the Effective Time by written notice by the terminating party to the other parties (except if such termination is pursuant to Section 10.1(a)), whether before or after the ANFI Shareholder Approval shall have been obtained:
 - (a) by mutual written agreement of ANFI and FNF;
 - (b) by either ANFI or FNF, if
 - (i) the Merger shall not have been consummated by June 30, 2003 (the *End Date*); provided, however, that the End Date may be extended by ANFI or FNF for an additional 60 days (the *Extended End Date*) in the event that, as of the End Date, all conditions to the Merger have been satisfied other than the conditions set forth in Section 9.1(d) and Section 9.1(f) above, except that any party whose breach of any provision of or whose failure to perform any obligation under this Agreement has been the cause of, or has resulted in, the failure to obtain any consent or approval which has not been obtained by the End Date shall not be permitted to extend the End Date to the Extended End Date due to a failure of the conditions set forth in Section 9.1(d) and Section 9.1(f); and provided further, that the right to terminate this Agreement under this Section 10.1(b)(i) shall not be available to any party whose breach of any provision of or whose failure to perform any obligation under this Agreement has been the cause of, or has resulted in, the failure of the Merger to occur on or before the End Date or the Extended End Date, as the case may be;

- (ii) there shall be any law or regulation that makes consummation of the Merger illegal or otherwise prohibited or any judgment, injunction, order or decree of any Governmental Entity having competent jurisdiction enjoining ANFI or FNF from consummating the Merger is entered and such judgment, injunction, judgment or order shall have become final and nonappealable and, prior to such termination, the parties shall have used their respective commercially reasonable efforts to resist, resolve or lift, as applicable, such law, regulation, judgment, injunction, order or decree; *provided, however*, that the right to terminate this Agreement under this Section 10.1(b)(ii) shall not be available to any party whose breach of any provision of or whose failure to perform any obligation under this Agreement has been the cause of such law, regulation, judgment, injunction, order or decree; or
- (iii) at the ANFI Shareholders Meeting (including any adjournment or postponement thereof), the ANFI Shareholder Approval shall not have been obtained;
- (c) by ANFI, (i) if a breach of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement on the part of FNF set forth in this Agreement shall have occurred which would cause the condition set forth in Section 9.2(a) not to be satisfied, and either such condition shall be incapable of being satisfied by the End Date or, if applicable, the Extended End Date or such breach or failure to perform has not been cured within 10 days after notice of such breach or failure to perform has been given by ANFI to FNF or (ii) as contemplated by Section 6.3(d);
- (d) by FNF, (i) if ANFI s Board of Directors shall have (A) amended, modified, withdrawn, conditioned or qualified the ANFI Recommendation in a manner materially adverse to FNF, (B) recommended any Acquisition Proposal to ANFI s shareholders, and/or (C) failed to make the ANFI Recommendation; (ii) if a breach of or failure to perform any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement on the part of ANFI set forth in this Agreement shall have occurred which would cause the condition set forth in Section 9.3(a) not to be satisfied, and either such condition is incapable of being satisfied by the End Date or, if applicable, the Extended End Date or such breach or failure to perform has not been cured within 10 days after notice of such breach or failure to perform has been given by FNF to ANFI; or (iii) as contemplated by Section 4.4.
- SECTION 10.2 Effect of Termination. If this Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 10.1 (including any such termination by way of Section 6.3(d)), there shall be no liability or obligation on the part of FNF or ANFI, or any of their respective officers, directors, stockholders, agents or Affiliates, except as set forth in Sections 10.2, 10.3 and 10.4 of this Agreement, which shall remain in full force and effect and survive any termination of this Agreement; provided, however, neither ANFI nor FNF shall be relieved of or released from any liabilities or damages arising out of its material breach of or material failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement, except that the payment of the Termination Fee by ANFI pursuant to Section 10.4 shall be in lieu of any and all liabilities or damages arising out of ANFI s material breach or material failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement.
- SECTION 10.3 Expenses. Whether or not the Merger is consummated, all fees and expenses incurred in connection with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby shall be paid by the party incurring such expenses, except that (i) each of ANFI and FNF shall bear and pay one-half of the filing fees incurred in connection the Registration Statement and Proxy Statement/ Prospectus and HSR filings, and (ii) if the Merger is consummated, the Surviving Corporation shall pay, or cause to be paid, all state, local, foreign or provincial sales, use, real property, transfer, stock transfer or similar taxes (including any interest or penalties with respect thereto) attributable to the Merger.

SECTION 10.4 Termination Fee.

- (a) ANFI shall pay to FNF a termination fee (the *Termination Fee*) in the amount of \$2,780,000 if this Agreement is terminated solely as follows:
 - (i) if ANFI shall terminate this Agreement pursuant to Section 10.1(c)(ii);
 - (ii) if FNF shall terminate this Agreement pursuant to Section 10.1(d)(i);

- (iii) if either party shall terminate this Agreement pursuant to Section 10.1(b)(iii) due to a failure to obtain the ANFI Shareholder Approval, and one or more of the Senior Executives are in breach of the Voting Agreement or has otherwise failed to vote all shares of the ANFI voting capital stock, for which he or it has voting power, in favor of the Merger; or
- (iv) if FNF shall terminate this Agreement pursuant to Section 10.1(d)(ii) and within twelve (12) months of such termination, ANFI shall engage in any negotiations or discussions with any third party regarding an Acquisition Proposal.
- (b) The Termination Fee required to be paid pursuant to Section 10.4 shall be paid prior to, and shall be a pre-condition to the effectiveness of, termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 10.1(c)(iii). Any other payment of the Termination Fee required to be made shall be made not later than two Business Days after termination of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XI

MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 11.1 Survival. The representations and warranties contained in this Agreement shall not survive the Effective Time. The covenants contained in Articles II, III and XI shall survive the Effective Time.

SECTION 11.2 *Notices.* Except as otherwise expressly set forth in Section 6.3(c), all notices, requests and other communications to any party hereunder shall be in writing (including facsimile or similar writing) and shall be given,

if to FNF or Merger Sub, to:

Fidelity National Financial, Inc.

4050 Calle Real

Santa Barbara, California 93110

Attention: Marlan Walker Executive Vice President Facsimile: (805) 696-7835

with a copy to:

Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth 660 Newport Center Drive, Suite 1600

Newport Beach, California 92660

 $Attention: C.\ Craig\ Carlson, Esq.$

Facsimile: (949) 725-4100

if to ANFI, to:

American National Financial, Inc.

1111 E. Katella Avenue, Suite 220

Orange, California 92867

Attention: Michael C. Lowther

Chief Executive Officer

Facsimile:

with a copy to:

Palmieri, Tyler, Wiener, Wilhelm & Waldron LLP

2603 Main Street, Suite 1300

Irvine, California 92614

Attention: George J. Wall, Esq.

Facsimile: (949) 851-1554

or such other address or facsimile number as such party may hereafter specify for the purpose by notice to the other party hereto. Each such notice, request or other communication shall be effective upon receipt.

SECTION 11.3 Amendments; No Waivers.

- (a) Any provision of this Agreement may be amended or waived prior to the Effective Time if, and only if, such amendment or waiver is in writing and signed, in the case of an amendment, by ANFI and FNF or in the case of a waiver, by the party against whom the waiver is to be effective; *provided, however*, that after the ANFI Shareholder Approval, no such amendment or waiver shall, without the further approval of such shareholders, be made that would require such approval under any applicable law, rule or regulation.
- (b) No failure or delay by any party in exercising any right, power or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof nor shall any single or partial exercise thereof preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege. The rights and remedies herein provided shall be cumulative and not exclusive of any rights or remedies provided by law.
- SECTION 11.4 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns, provided that no party may assign, delegate or otherwise transfer any of its rights or obligations under this Agreement without the consent of the other party hereto. Any purported assignment in violation hereof shall be null and void.
- SECTION 11.5 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the internal laws of the State of California without reference to its principles of conflicts of laws.
- SECTION 11.6 *Counterparts; Effectiveness; Third Party Beneficiaries.* This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of which shall be an original, with the same effect as if the signatures thereto and hereto were upon the same instrument. This Agreement shall become effective when each party hereto shall have received counterparts hereof signed by the other party hereto. No provision of this Agreement is intended to confer upon any Person other than the parties hereto any rights or remedies hereunder.

SECTION 11.7 *Jurisdiction*. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, the parties hereto agree that any suit, action or proceeding seeking to enforce any provision of, or based on any matter arising out of or in connection with, this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby shall be brought in a state court located in Orange, California, and each of the parties hereby consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of such courts (and of the appropriate appellate courts therefrom) in any such suit, action or proceeding and irrevocably waives, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any objection which it may now or hereafter have to the laying of the venue of any such suit, action or proceeding in any such court or that any such suit, action or proceeding which is brought in any such court has been brought in an inconvenient forum. Process in any such suit, action or proceeding may be served on any party anywhere in the world, whether within or without the jurisdiction of any such court. Without limiting the foregoing, each party agrees that service of process on such party as provided in Section 11.2 shall be deemed effective service of process on such party.

SECTION 11.8 Waiver of Jury Trial. EACH OF THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY AND ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.

SECTION 11.9 Arbitration. Except with respect to any instances when equitable relief is sought by a party in which case such relief may be sought in any court of competent jurisdiction, any and all disputes, controversies and claims arising out of or relating to this Agreement or concerning the respective rights or obligations of the parties hereto shall be settled and determined by arbitration before the Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Services, Inc./ Endispute (JAMS). The arbitrator shall be mutually selected by FNF and ANFI or, if they are unable to agree as to an arbitrator within ten (10) days of submitting the controversy or dispute to JAMS, each of FNF and ANFI shall select an arbitrator and within ten (10) days thereafter those arbitrators shall select the arbitrator to hear or decide the dispute. The arbitrator shall follow and base his or her award on California law. Any award or decision obtained from any such arbitration proceeding shall be final and binding on the parties, and judgement upon any award thus obtained may be entered into any court

having jurisdiction thereof. No action at law based upon any claim arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be instituted in any court by FNF or ANFI except (a) an action to compel arbitration pursuant to this Section 11.9 or (b) an action to enforce an award obtained in an arbitration proceeding in accordance with this Section 11.9. FNF and ANFI hereby consent to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state and federal courts sitting in California in any such action to compel arbitration pursuant to this paragraph or to enforce an award obtained in an arbitration proceeding in accordance with this Section 11.9. FNF and ANFI further agree that service of process may be effected by registered or certified mail to the address of FNF or ANFI, as the case may be, as provided in this Agreement. The costs of any such arbitration shall be borne one-half for the account of FNF and one-half by ANFI.

SECTION 11.10 *Enforcement*. The parties agree that irreparable damage would occur in the event that any of the provisions of this Agreement were not performed in accordance with their specific terms. It is accordingly agreed that the parties shall be entitled to specific performance of the terms hereof, this being in addition to any other remedy to which they are entitled at law or in equity.

SECTION 11.11 *Entire Agreement*. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings, both oral and written, between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.

SECTION 11.12 *Attorneys Fees.* If any action, suit or other proceeding is instituted to remedy, prevent or obtain relief from a default in the performance by either party of any of its obligations under Section 10.2 of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall recover all of such party s attorneys fees incurred in each and every such action, suit or other proceeding, including any and all appeals or petitions therefrom. As used in this Section 11.12, attorneys fees shall be deemed to mean the full and actual costs of any legal services actually performed in connection with the matters involved calculated on the basis of the usual fee charged by the attorney performing such services and shall not be limited to reasonable attorneys fees as defined in any statute or rule of court.

[signature page to follow]

A-33

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed by their respective authorized officers as of the day and year first above written.

FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.

Ву	
	ANFI MERGER SUB, INC.
Ву	
	ANFI, INC.
Ву	
	A-34

Exhibit A

MODIFICATION TO EXISTING EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS OF MICHAEL C. LOWTHER, BARBARA A. FERGUSON AND WAYNE D. DIAZ

- 1. The modifications shall be effective at the Effective Time.
- 2. The severance payment provided for in Section 8 of the employment agreements shall not apply by reason of the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, but rather shall only apply to transactions after the Effective Time involving a change in control of Merger Sub or FNF.
- 3. The annual incentive bonus to which each employee is entitled pursuant to Section 4(e) of the employment agreements shall be determined in a manner mutually agreeable to FNF and each such employee (as reflected in the modification), rather than as presented provided for in said Section 4(e).

A-35

Appendix B

VOTING AGREEMENT

This Voting Agreement, dated January 9, 2003 (this Agreement), is entered into by and among Fidelity National Financial, Inc., a Delaware corporation (Fidelity), and the holders party hereto (each, a Holder, and collectively, the Holders) of the common stock, no par value, of ANFI, Inc., a California corporation (ANFI) (each of Fidelity and the Holders are sometimes hereinafter referred to individually as a Party and, collectively, as the Parties).

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, simultaneous with the execution and delivery of this Agreement, Fidelity, ANFI and ANFI Merger Sub, Inc., a California corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of Fidelity (Merger Sub), have entered into that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated even date herewith (the Merger Agreement), pursuant to which ANFI will be merged with and into Merger Sub, with Merger Sub emerging as the surviving corporation, and

WHEREAS, the Holders will receive substantial benefit as a result of Fidelity, Merger Sub and ANFI entering into the Merger Agreement and consummating the transactions contemplated thereby, and Fidelity and Merger Sub would not have entered into the Merger Agreement if the Holders had not executed this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual promises herein made, and in consideration of the representations, warranties, and covenants contained herein, Fidelity and each Holder hereby agree as follows.

A GREEMENT:

ARTICLE 1.

DEFINITIONS

1.1 Definitions

As used herein, the following terms have the indicated meanings. Capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Merger Agreement.

- (a) ANFI Share means any share of the Common Stock, no par value per share, of ANFI.
- (b) ANFI Shareholders Meeting means the annual or special meeting of ANFI s shareholders to consider and vote upon the matters set forth in the Proxy Statement/ Prospectus.
- (c) Holder Shares means (i) the shares of issued and outstanding capital stock of ANFI held of record or beneficially owned by a Holder and (ii) additional shares of capital stock of ANFI acquired of record or beneficially owned by a Holder subsequent to the date of this Agreement and prior to the time of the ANFI Shareholders Meeting.
- (d) Merger Agreement means that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger, of even date herewith, entered into by and among Fidelity, Merger Sub and ANFI, including all exhibits thereto, and any amendments permitted pursuant to Section 5.1.
 - (e) Merger means the merger described in the Merger Agreement.
- (f) Organizational Documents of an entity means the articles of incorporation, certificate of incorporation, charter, articles of organization or formation, bylaws, operating or partnership agreement or other organizational documents of such entity.
 - (g) Transaction means each of the transactions contemplated under the Merger Agreement.

ARTICLE 2.

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE HOLDERS

Each Holder, severally and not jointly, represents and warrants to Fidelity regarding itself that the statements contained in this Article 2 are correct and complete as of the date of this Agreement and will be correct and complete as of the Effective Time as though made then.

2.1 Status of Certain Holders

If the Holder is not an individual, the Holder is an entity duly created, formed or organized, validly existing, and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its creation, formation, or organization.

2.2 Power and Authority; Enforceability

If the Holder is not an individual, the Holder has the power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement. If the Holder is an individual, the Holder is an adult of sound mind and is not executing and delivering this Agreement under duress, and otherwise has the requisite competence and authority to so execute and deliver this Agreement. The Holder has taken the action necessary to authorize the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the performance of such Holder s obligations hereunder. This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by, and is enforceable against, the Holder.

2.3 No Violation

The execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement by the Holder will not (a) breach any law or order to which the Holder is subject and, if the Holder is not an individual, any provision of the Holder s Organizational Documents, (b) breach any contract, order or permit to which the Holder is a party or by which the Holder is bound or to which any of the Holder s assets are subject or (c) require the consent of any third party.

2.4 Shares; Holder Information

The Holder holds of record or owns beneficially the number of ANFI Shares set forth next to such Holder s name on the signature page hereto. The Holder represents that it is not party to any contract or subject to any law or court order that requires the Holder to sell, transfer, or otherwise dispose of any capital stock of ANFI, or prevents the Holder from executing or delivering this Agreement or performing its obligations hereunder.

2.5 Accuracy of Representations and Warranties

The Holder understands and acknowledges that Fidelity is entering into the Merger Agreement in reliance upon the Holder s execution and delivery of this Agreement and performance of the Holder s obligations hereunder.

ARTICLE 3.

AGREEMENT TO VOTE IN FAVOR OF MERGER

Each Holder, severally and not jointly, covenants with Fidelity for itself as follows.

3.1 Voting of Shares

- (a) The Holder will attend the ANFI Shareholders Meeting, and any adjournment thereof, in person or by proxy.
- (b) The Holder agrees to vote (or cause to be voted) all of its Holder Shares at the ANFI Shareholders Meeting (i) in favor of the Merger, the Merger Agreement and any actions required in furtherance of the Merger as set forth in the Merger Agreement, (ii) against any action or agreement that is reasonably likely to result in breach in any material respect of any covenant, representation or warranty, or any other obligation of ANFI or the Holder pursuant to this Agreement and (iii) against any competing Acquisition Proposal (as such term is defined in the Merger

3.2 Transfer; Additional Shares

- (a) Except as expressly permitted by this Agreement, or required by law or court order, the Holder shall not: (i) offer for sale, sell, transfer, tender, pledge, encumber, assign or otherwise dispose of, or enter into any contract, option or other arrangement or understanding with respect to or consent to the offer for sale, transfer, tender, pledge, encumbrance, assignment or other disposition of, any or all of its Holder Shares or any interest therein, (ii) grant any proxies or powers of attorney or deposit any Holder Shares into a voting trust or enter into a voting agreement with respect to any Holder Shares or (iii) take any action that would make any representation or warranty of the Holder contained herein materially incorrect or have the effect of preventing or disabling the Holder from performing any of its obligations under this Agreement; provided, however, if the Holder is an individual, he or she may transfer Holder Shares (or any securities convertible into, exercisable for, or exchangeable for Holder Shares) by gift, will, or intestate succession to his or her immediate family or to a trust the beneficiaries of which are exclusively the undersigned and/or a member or members of his or her immediate family (for purposes of this paragraph, immediate family shall mean spouse, domestic partner, lineal descendant, father, mother, brother or sister of the transferor) so long as the transferee agrees in writing to be bound by the terms of this Agreement.
- (b) Without limiting the provisions of the Merger Agreement, this Agreement will apply to the Holder Shares at the time the Holder becomes the record owner thereof or becomes entitled under applicable law to vote or direct the voting of such shares, as though they were ANFI Shares as of the date of this Agreement. While this Agreement is in effect, the Holder will promptly notify Fidelity of the number of new ANFI Shares as to which the Holder acquires record title or to which the Holder becomes entitled under applicable law to vote or direct the voting thereof.

3.3 Revocation of Other Proxies

To the extent inconsistent with the foregoing provisions of this Article 3 or the other provisions of this Agreement, the Holder hereby revokes any and all previous proxies with respect to its Holder Shares.

3.4 Grant of Proxy

The Holder hereby appoints William P. Foley, II and Tom D. Le, or either of them, its proxy to vote all of its Holder Shares at the ANFI Shareholders Meeting (including any adjournments and postponements thereof) in accordance with Section 3.1(b) and to execute and deliver any written consents to fulfill the Holder s obligations pursuant to this Agreement; provided, however, that such appointment shall remain in effect only if this Agreement has not been terminated pursuant to Section 5. This proxy is coupled with an interest and is irrevocable until the earlier of the effectiveness of the Merger and the date the Merger Agreement is terminated according to its terms.

ARTICLE 4.

PRE-CLOSING COVENANTS

Fidelity and each Holder, severally and not jointly, for itself, further agree as follows with respect to the period between the execution of this Agreement and the earlier of the Effective Time and the termination of the Merger Agreement in accordance with its terms:

4.1 General

The Holder will use its commercially reasonable efforts to take all actions and to do all things necessary to consummate, make effective, and comply with the terms of this Agreement.

4.2 Publicity

Neither the Holder nor its Affiliates will issue any press release or other public announcement related to this Agreement or the Merger without Fidelity s prior written approval.

4.3 Competing Acquisition Proposals

The Holder (a) shall immediately cease any existing discussions or negotiations, if any, with any Persons with respect to any Acquisition Proposal, (b) shall not, directly or indirectly, initiate, solicit or knowingly encourage (including, without limitation, by way of furnishing any information or assistance), or take any other action to knowingly facilitate, any Acquisition Proposal and (c) shall promptly notify Fidelity of any written Acquisition Proposal received by the Holder.

4.4 Notice of Developments

The Holder will give prompt written notice to Fidelity of any development occurring after the date of this Agreement that causes, or reasonably could be expected to cause, a breach by the Holder of any of the representations and warranties in Article 2. No disclosure by the Holder under this Section 4.4 will be deemed to amend this Agreement or to prevent or cure any misrepresentation or breach of representation, warranty, or covenant.

ARTICLE 5.

TERMINATION

5.1 Termination of Agreement

This Agreement will automatically terminate upon the earlier to occur of (a) the termination of the Merger Agreement in accordance with the terms of the Merger Agreement and (b) the Effective Time.

5.2 Effect of Termination

Except for the obligations under this Article 5 and Article 6 below, if this Agreement is terminated under Section 5.1 above, then, except as provided in this Section 5.2, all further obligations of the Parties under this Agreement will terminate.

ARTICLE 6.

MISCELLANEOUS

6.1 Entire Agreement

This Agreement, together with the exhibits and any attachments hereto and the certificates, documents, instruments and writings that are delivered pursuant hereto, constitutes the entire agreement and understanding of the Parties hereto and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter hereof.

6.2 Successors

All of the terms, agreements, covenants, representations, warranties, and conditions of this Agreement are binding upon, and inure to the benefit of and are enforceable by, the Parties and their respective successors.

6.3 Specific Performance

Each Party acknowledges and agrees that the other Parties would be damaged irreparably if any provision of this Agreement is not performed in accordance with its specific terms or is otherwise breached. Accordingly, each Party agrees that the other Parties will be entitled to an injunction or injunctions to prevent breaches of the provisions of this Agreement and to enforce specifically this Agreement and its terms and provisions in any action instituted in any court of the United States or any state thereof having jurisdiction over the Parties and the matter, subject to Section 6.6.

6.4 Limitation of Liability

The Holder shall be severally but not jointly responsible for its obligations hereunder. The only remedies available to Fidelity in the event that the Holder is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to have

B-4

breached its obligations hereunder are (a) specific performance pursuant to Section 6.3 or (b) money damages not to exceed the fair market value of the Holder s ANFI Shares at the time of execution of this Agreement.

6.5 Counterparts

This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original but all of which together will constitute one and the same instrument.

6.6 Headings

The article and section headings contained in this Agreement are inserted for convenience only and will not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.

6.7 Governing Law

This Agreement and the performance of the obligations of the Parties hereunder will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California, without giving effect to any choice of law principles.

6.8 Amendments and Waivers

No amendment, modification, replacement, termination or cancellation of any provision of this Agreement will be valid with respect to Fidelity or a Holder unless the same will be in writing and signed by each of Fidelity and each Holder to be bound by such amendment, modification, replacement, termination or cancellation. No waiver by any Party of any default, misrepresentation, or breach of warranty or covenant hereunder, whether intentional or not, may be deemed to extend to any prior or subsequent default, misrepresentation, or breach of warranty or covenant hereunder or affect in any way any rights arising because of any prior or subsequent such occurrence.

6.9 Severability

Any provision of this Agreement that is invalid, unenforceable or illegal in any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, be ineffective only to the extent of such invalidity, unenforceability, or illegality without affecting the remaining provisions hereof and without affecting the validity, enforceability or legality of such provision in any other jurisdiction.

6.10 Notices

All notices, requests and other communications to any Party hereunder shall be in writing (including facsimile or similar writing) and shall be given,

if to Fidelity, to: Fidelity National Financial, Inc.

4050 Calle Real, Suite 200 Santa Barbara, California, 93110 Attention: Marlan Walker

with a copy to: Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth

660 Newport Center Drive, Suite 1600 Newport Beach, California 92660 Attention: C. Craig Carlson, Esq. Facsimile: (949) 725-4100

if to a Holder, to: the address set forth on the applicable signature page hereto.

or such other address or facsimile number as such Party may hereafter specify for the purpose by notice to the other Parties hereto. Each such notice, request or other communication shall be effective upon receipt.

6.11 Expenses

Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, each Party will bear its own costs and expenses incurred in connection with the preparation, execution and performance of this Agreement and the

B-5

Transactions. Holders agree that the Fidelity has not borne nor will bear any costs and expenses (including any legal fees and expenses of any Holder Party) in connection with this Agreement or any of the Transactions.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.]

B-6

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have	executed this Voting Agreement on the date first above written.
	FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.
	By:
	Print Name:
	Its:
	B-7

	HOLDER
	Print Name:
	No. of ANFI Shares Held:
	Notice Information:
	Address:
	Attention:
	Facsimile:
	with a copy to:
	Address:
	Attention:
	Facsimile:
HOLDER SIG	SNATURE PAGE TO VOTING AGREEMENT
	B-8

WAIVER

This Waiver is executed and delivered by the undersigned effective January 14, 2003 with reference to the following:

RECITALS

- A. Fidelity National Financial, Inc., a Delaware corporation (Fidelity), ANFI, Inc., a California corporation (ANFI), and ANFI Merger Sub, Inc., a California corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fidelity (Merger Sub), entered into that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated January 9, 2003 (the Merger Agreement), whereby Fidelity will acquire ANFI pursuant to a merger of ANFI with and into Merger Sub with Merger Sub emerging as the surviving entity and wholly-owned subsidiary of Fidelity (the Merger).
- B. Fidelity and certain holders (each, a Holder and, collectively, the Holders) of the common stock, no par value, of ANFI have entered into that certain Voting Agreement dated as of January 9, 2003 (the Voting Agreement), pursuant to which the Holders have agreed to vote their shares of ANFI common stock as provided for in the Voting Agreement, including, without limitation, in favor of the Merger and the Merger Agreement.
- C. The Holders, or certain of them, may exercise certain of their ANFI Options (as defined in the Merger Agreement) into shares of common stock of ANFI (the ANFI Option Shares), and subsequently sell some or all of the ANFI Option Shares acquired upon exercise prior to the Effective Time (as defined in the Merger Agreement) of the Merger.
- D. Pursuant to Section 3.2 of the Voting Agreement, each Holder is prohibited from offering for sale, selling, transferring, pledging, encumbering, assigning or otherwise disposing of, or entering into any contract or arrangement to do any of the foregoing, any or all of his or her Holder Shares (as defined in the Voting Agreement and which would include the ANFI Option Share) (the Transfer Prohibition).
 - E. Fidelity desires to waive any rights it may have to enforce the Transfer Prohibition, subject to the provisions below.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, Fidelity and the undersigned Holders hereby agree as follows:

- 1. Fidelity hereby waives its right to enforce the Transfer Prohibition as it relates to the exercise of ANFI Options by a Holder and any subsequent sale of any ANFI Option Shares acquired upon exercise.
- 2. This Waiver shall not be construed as a waiver of compliance with respect to any additional terms or conditions in the Voting Agreement or the Merger Agreement, except as expressly stated hereinabove.
 [signature page follows]

B-9

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Waiver effective as of the date first set forth above.

FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.
By:
Print Name:
Its:
HOLDERS
Michael C. Lowther
Barbara A. Ferguson
Wayne D. Diaz
Carl A. Strunk B-10
= = = =

Appendix C

[LETTERHEAD OF HOULIHAN LOKEY HOWARD & ZUKIN FINANCIAL ADVISORS, INC.]

January 9, 2003

Special Committee to the Board of Directors

of ANFI, Inc. c/o Mr. George J. Wall Chairman of the Special Committee 1111 E. Katella Avenue, Ste. 220 Orange, CA 92867

Dear Special Committee Members:

We understand that ANFI, Inc. (ANFI or the Company) has entered into a letter of intent (the LOI) with Fidelity National Financial, Inc. (Fidelity), wherein Fidelity proposes to acquire all of the outstanding shares of the common stock that Fidelity currently does not own of the Company. The LOI currently contemplates that each share of ANFI common stock will be exchanged for 0.4540 shares of Fidelity common stock. (Such transaction and other related transactions disclosed to Houlihan Lokey are referred to collectively herein as the Transaction.) Furthermore, we understand that the draft of the Agreement and Plan of Merger by and between Fidelity and ANFI dated January 8th, 2003, represents the most current draft available and incorporates all material items pertaining to the Transaction as agreed to by both Fidelity and ANFI in the LOI. Additionally, we understand that Fidelity, directly and indirectly, currently owns approximately 31 percent of the outstanding common stock of the Company, executive management (Management) of ANFI, directly and indirectly, currently owns approximately 36 percent of the outstanding common stock of the Company (Fidelity, together with Management, are referred to collectively as the Affiliated Stockholders), and the public stockholders (the Unaffiliated Stockholders) hold approximately 33 percent of the common stock of the Company.

You have requested our opinion (the Opinion) as to the matters set forth below. The Opinion does not address the Company s underlying business decision to effect the Transaction. Furthermore, we have not been requested to negotiate the Transaction or advise you with respect to alternatives to it.

In connection with this Opinion, we have made such reviews, analysis and inquiries as we have deemed necessary and appropriate under the circumstances. Among other things, we have:

- 1. met with certain members of the senior management of the Company to discuss the operations, financial condition, future prospects, projected operations and performance of the Company and the pending Transaction;
- 2. reviewed the Company s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended 2001, Form 10-Q for the three quarters ended September 30, 2002, and Company-prepared financial statements dated November 30, 2002, which the Company s management has identified as the most current financial statements available;
- 3. reviewed a budget of the Company s financial performance for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2003 prepared by the Company s management;
- 4. reviewed the historical market prices and trading volume for the Company s publicly traded securities and other publicly available information regarding the Company;
- 5. reviewed Fidelity s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended 2001 and Form 10-Q for the three quarters ended September 30, 2002;
- 6. reviewed the historical market prices and trading volume for Fidelity s publicly traded securities and other publicly available information regarding Fidelity;

C-1

Special Committee to the Board of Directors

- 2 -

of ANFI, Inc. January 9, 2003

7. reviewed drafts of certain documents relating to the Transaction, including:

The Agreement and Plan of Merger by and between Fidelity National Financial, Inc. and ANFI, Inc. dated January 8th, 2003;

- 8. reviewed certain other publicly available financial data for certain companies that we deem comparable to the Company, and publicly available prices and premiums paid in other transactions that we considered similar to the Transaction; and
- 9. conducted such other studies, analyses and inquiries as we have deemed appropriate.

We have relied upon and assumed, without independent verification, that the financial forecasts and projections provided to us have been reasonably prepared and reflect the best currently available estimates of the future financial results and condition of the Company, and that there has been no material change in the assets, financial condition, business or prospects of the Company since the date of the most recent financial statements made available to us.

We have not independently verified the accuracy and completeness of the information supplied to us with respect to the Company and do not assume any responsibility with respect to it. We have not made any physical inspection or independent appraisal of any of the properties or assets of the Company. Our opinion is necessarily based on business, economic, market and other conditions as they exist and can be evaluated by us at the date of this letter.

Based upon the foregoing, and in reliance thereon, it is our opinion that the consideration to be received by the Unaffiliated Stockholders of the Company in connection with the Transaction is fair to them from a financial point of view.

Houlihan Lokey Howard & Zukin Financial Advisors, Inc.

Appendix D

ANFI, INC.

ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

As Filed on March 25, 2002 (Restated)

D-1

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

(Mark One)

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 (No Fee Required)

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2001

or

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 (No Fee Required)

Commission File No. 0-24961

ANFI, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

California

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

1111 E. Katella Avenue, Suite 220 Orange, California 92867

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

33-0731548

(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

(714) 289-4300

(Registrant s telephone number, including area code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

None

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:

Title of each class

Name of each exchange
on which registered

Common Stock, no par value

NASDAQ National Market

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes b No o

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this

Form 10-K, or any amendment to this Form 10-K. b

As of March 13, 2002, 8,879,024 shares of common stock (no par value) were outstanding, and the aggregate market value of the shares of the common stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant was \$15,210,418. The aggregate market value was computed with reference to the closing price on the NASDAQ National Market on such date.

Location of Exhibit Index: The index to exhibits is contained in Part IV herein on page number 53.

The information in Part III hereof is incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant s Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2001, to be filed within 120 days after the close of the fiscal year that is the subject of this Report.
D-2

TABLE OF CONTENTS

FORM 10-K

		Page
	PART I	
Item 1.	Business	D-4
Item 2.	Properties	D-17
Item 3.	Legal Proceedings	D-18
Item 4.	Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders	D-18
	PART II	
Item 5.	Market for Registrant s Common Stock and Related Stockholder Matters	D-18
Item 6.	Selected Financial Data	D-19
Item 7.	Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and	
	Results of Operations	D-20
Item 7A.	Quantitative and Qualitative Market Risk Disclosures	D-29
Item 8.	Statements and Supplementary Data	D-30
Item 9.	Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and	
	Financial Disclosure	D-56
	PART III	
Item 10.	Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant	D-56
Item 11.	Executive Compensation	D-56
Item 12.	Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management	D-56
Item 13.	Certain Relationships and Related Transactions	D-56
	PART IV	
Item 14.	Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K	D-56

Certain reclassifications have been made to ANFI s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 to conform with the September 30, 2002 presentation. In addition, transitional disclosures required under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, paragraph 61, have been added and all data with respect to earnings per share, dividends per share and share information, including price per share where applicable, have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the effect of the five-for-four (25%) stock split declared by ANFI s Board of Directors on June 27, 2002, and effective July 18, 2002.

PART I

Item 1. Business

Introduction

ANFI, Inc., through its subsidiaries (collectively, we, the Company, or ANFI), formerly American National Financial, Inc., provides title insurance services as well as other real estate related financial and informational services including:

escrow,
real estate information,
trustee sale guarantees,
exchange intermediary services,
document preparation and research services,
notary signing services,
property management and
appraisals.

In addition, we obtain specialized services for customers, including tax reporting services and courier services. We focus our business on the residential real estate market and in 2001 generated the majority of our revenue from issuing title insurance policies as an independent agent on behalf of an affiliated title underwriter. For the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, net title service revenue represented approximately 55.9%, 53.1% and 57.8% of our revenues, respectively.

Our primary operations are conducted in 16 counties, consisting of 85 offices, located in major counties throughout California and Arizona (Maricopa, Pinal and Pima). Our counties process real estate transactions within their geographical area or region. Each county is operated as a separate profit center.

During 1999, 2000 and 2001, we established offices in Tennessee, Florida and New York to expand our current customer base by developing agency relationships. In addition, during 2001, we expanded our operations by opening several title and escrow offices in California and Arizona, in addition to the formation of the Wireless Title Service division.

Effective December 12, 2002, we changed our name to ANFI, Inc.

Industry Overview

The title insurance industry consists of insurers (underwriters) who issue policies through direct operations or through agents. Our principal subsidiary, American Title Company (ATC), is an agent, known in California as an underwritten title company. ATC has entered into an Issuing Agency Agreement to issue policies on behalf of Chicago Title Insurance Company (CTIC), a subsidiary of Fidelity National Financial, Inc. (FNF), which is licensed in California and Arizona, among other states. See Relationship with Fidelity National Financial, Inc.

Title Policies

Title insurance policies insure title to real estate. The beneficiaries of title insurance policies are generally buyers of real property or mortgage lenders. The policy protects the insured against title defects, liens and encumbrances not specifically excepted from its coverage. Most mortgage lenders require title insurance as a condition to making loans secured by real estate.

Title insurance is different from other types of insurance because it relates to past events that affect title to property at the time of closing; it does not protect against unforeseen future events. Prior to issuing policies, underwriters can reduce or eliminate future losses by accurately performing searches and examinations.

Title insurance policies are issued on the basis of a preliminary title report or commitment. These reports are prepared after a search of public records, maps and other relevant documents to ascertain title ownership and the existence of easements, restrictions, rights of way, conditions, encumbrances or other matters affecting the title to, or use of, real property. A visual inspection or survey of the property may also be made prior to the issuance of certain title insurance policies.

A title company s major expense is the cost of the search and examination function performed in preparing preliminary title reports, commitments and title policies, rather than the claim losses associated with the issuance of these policies. The premium for title insurance is due in full at the closing of the real estate transaction and is based upon the purchase price of the property insured or the amount of the mortgage loan and upon the type of coverage. Policy coverage generally terminates upon resale or refinance of the property. Coverage terms have become relatively standardized in accordance with forms approved by state or national trade associations, such as the American Land Title Association, the California Land Title Association, New York Land Title Association and the Land Title Association of Arizona. Among the most commonly issued title insurance policies are standard or extended coverage policies for owners and lenders and trustee sale guarantees, which provide assurances to trustees concerning certain information in connection with non-judicial foreclosures.

Title Plants

To facilitate preparing preliminary reports without manually searching public copies of public records, maps and other relevant historical documents are compiled and indexed in title plants . These title plants relate to particular counties and are kept current by the periodic addition of copies of recorded documents affecting real property in each particular county. Title companies often subscribe to independent title information services to assist in updating title plants and maintaining title records.

The Title Policy and Underwriting Process

The following briefly describes the process of issuing a title insurance policy:

- (i) The customer, typically a real estate salesperson or broker, escrow agent or lender, places an order for a title policy.
- (ii) Relevant historical data on the property is compiled, and then the title officer prepares a preliminary title report describing (a) the current status of title and conditions affecting the property, (b) any exclusions, exceptions and/or limitations which the title underwriter might include in the policy and (c) specific issues which need to be addressed and resolved by the parties to the transaction before the title policy will be issued. The preliminary report is circulated to all the parties to consider specific issues, if any.
- (iii) After resolution of the specific issues identified in the preliminary report, an escrow agent closes the transaction in accordance with the instructions of the parties and the title underwriter s conditions.
- (iv) After the escrow agent closes the transaction and releases the monies, the title underwriter or agent issues the policies (a) to the owner and the lender on a new home sale or resale transaction or (b) to the lender only, on a refinance transaction.

The terms and conditions upon which title to real property will be insured are determined in accordance with the standards, policies and procedures of the title underwriter. The underwriter may have a relationship with a third party agent, under which the agent issues the title insurance policy on behalf of the underwriter. The agent performs the search and examination function and retains a majority of the title premium as a commission. The underwriter receives the remainder of the premium collected by the agent in exchange for assuming the risk on the policy.

Underwriting practices in California, Arizona and New York are generally dictated by the California, Arizona and New York Land Title Associations, although the underwriter s personnel interpret the application of these rules to specific circumstances. Underwriters, such as Fidelity National Title Insurance Company (FNTIC) and CTIC, also maintain and distribute current information on title practices and procedures to its issuing agents.

The maximum amount of liability for an insurer, under a title insurance policy is usually the face amount of the policy plus the cost of defending the insured title against an adverse claim. The reserve for claim losses is based upon known claims, as well as losses the insurer expects to incur based on historical experience and other factors, including industry averages, claim loss history, legal environment, geographic considerations, expected recoupments and the types of policies written. The title underwriter establishes a reserve for each known claim based on a review and evaluation of potential liability.

A non-affiliated agent that issues title insurance on behalf of an insurer is not subject to the same liability that the insurer faces under the policy. The agent is not assuming risk on the title policy and its liability with respect to the issuance of the policy is typically limited to a specific amount, pursuant to an agreement with the insurer.

Economic Factors Affecting the Industry

Title insurance revenue is closely related to the level of real estate activity and the average price of real estate sales. Real estate sales are directly affected by the availability of funds to finance purchases. Other factors affecting real estate activity include demand, mortgage interest rates, family income levels and general economic conditions. While the level of sales activity was relatively depressed in certain geographical areas during the early 1990 s, decreases in mortgage interest rates since late 1995 and the resulting improvement in the real estate market have had a favorable effect on the level of real estate activity, including refinancing and resale transactions and new home sales. The overall economic environment, stable mortgage interest rates and strength in the real estate market, especially in California, contributed to very positive conditions for the industry throughout 1997, 1998 and the first quarter of 1999. However, mortgage rates began to climb during the last half of 1999 and continued through 2000, virtually eliminating the volume of refinance activity experienced in 1998 and early 1999. Beginning in late 2000 and continuing throughout 2001, interest rate decreases caused by actions taken by the Federal Reserve Bank have brought interest rates to their lowest levels in approximately two years, which was a 475 basis point reduction since January 1, 2001. While the recent interest rate decreases created opportunity for our industry, it is impossible to predict the future direction interest rates and the real estate market may move or fluctuate.

Competitive Factors

A key competitive factor in the title insurance business is the ability to develop and maintain a qualified and experienced group of professionals through which services are delivered to customers. Title insurance business is typically generated through relationships with persons in the real estate industry such as independent escrow companies, real estate brokers and agents, developers, mortgage brokers, mortgage bankers, financial institutions and attorneys. Thus, the relationships and contacts maintained by sales personnel are critical to generating such business. In addition, the quality of a title company service, its responsiveness and its ability to adapt to customer seneds are important in attracting and maintaining customers. Other competitive factors include the financial strength and reputation of the insurer.

We believe that the price of title insurance is typically not an important competitive factor. In both California and Arizona, where our primary operations are currently conducted, the minimum price of title

insurance is filed by the title underwriter and is regulated by the Department of Insurance in California and by the State Banking Commission in Arizona. In the event we expand operations into states where regulatory authorities do not control prices, the price of title insurance may also become an important competitive factor.

Our Title and Escrow Insurance Operations and Products

Title Insurance Operations

Our primary subsidiary, ATC, is an underwritten title company licensed by the Department of Insurance of the State of California. ATC s current business is limited to issuing policies as an agent on behalf of CTIC, a subsidiary of FNF. ATC acts exclusively as an agent for CTIC with respect to the procurement of title insurance policies in 16 selected counties in California and three counties in Arizona, subject to certain exceptions. These exclusive arrangements with CTIC do not apply to other counties into which the Company has expanded due to the National Title Insurance of New York, Inc. (National) acquisition. ATC s net title service revenue consists of 89% the gross title insurance premiums collected on policies issued pursuant to its agreement with CTIC. The remaining 11% is comprised of underwriting fees paid to the underwriter. As an agent, ATC is not subject to the loss and reserve requirements applicable to insurers, and pursuant to its agreements with CTIC, ATC s liability is limited to the first \$5,000 of loss under any policy issued by it on behalf of CTIC, except in the case of negligence, or willful or reckless conduct. To date, the amounts paid by us to CTIC in reimbursement of CTIC s claims losses under this arrangement have not been material. See Relationship with Fidelity National Financial, Inc.

We operate in 16 counties consisting of 85 offices located in California and Arizona. Each of our branch s process real estate transactions within the geographical area of the branch or region and each branch is operated as a separate profit center.

In the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, the following ATC branch operations accounted for the indicated percentages of our total gross title insurance premium revenues:

December 31,

	2001		2000		1999	
	Premiums	Percent	Premiums	Percent	Premiums	Percent
		(Am	ounts in thousand	s, except percent	ages)	
Alameda, CA	\$ 8,701	10.4%	\$ 5,173	10.4%	\$ 3,693	6.3%
Contra Costa, CA	6,244	7.4	2,672	5.4	2,775	4.8
Inland Empire, CA						
(Riverside and San Bernardino)	4,534	5.4	2,666	5.4	2,646	4.5
Kern, CA	3,408	4.1	2,776	5.6	3,096	5.3
Los Angeles, CA	17,221	20.5	8,931	18.0	10,013	17.2
Orange, CA	19,963	23.8	11,536	23.2	15,909	27.2
Maricopa, AZ	4,269	5.1	3,105	6.3	4,045	6.8
Pima, AZ	2,540	3.0	537	1.1		
Sacramento, CA			397	0.8	1,257	2.2
San Diego, CA	7,484	8.9	3,340	6.7	3,831	6.6
San Mateo, CA	1,673	2.0	1,188	2.4	1,263	2.2
Santa Barbara, CA	672	0.8	556	1.1	684	1.2
Santa Clara, CA	3,694	4.4	2,110	4.2	4,028	6.9
Ventura, CA	3,620	4.2	4,718	9.4	5,130	8.8
	\$84,023	100.0%	\$49,705	100.0%	\$58,370	100.0%

Title Plants Arrangements

We lease title plants from FNTIC in Kern, San Mateo and Santa Clara counties and CTIC in Tucson, for an aggregate payment of \$14,700 per month. At the expiration of the lease, we will have an option to acquire these title plants for nominal consideration. We have also entered into a capital lease with Title Records, Inc. for the use of a title plant in Los Angeles County, and have the right to acquire a copy of the public records, maps and other relevant historical documents at that plant. We access title plants in the other counties in which we operate through joint plant user agreements with Smart Title Solutions and Security Union Title Insurance Company, a subsidiary of FNF. See Relationship with Fidelity National Financial, Inc.

Title plant maintenance activities constitute a significant item of expense, since each document must be reviewed and indexed. These costs plus the costs of subscribing to various title information services and other plant expenses range from approximately \$2,000 to \$31,500 per month, per county.

Escrow Fees

In addition to providing title insurance, we provide escrow services that include all of those typically required with residential and commercial real estate purchase and finance activities. The fees from escrow services represent approximately 23.5%, 26.4% and 28.0% of our total revenues in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Trends in escrow fees are primarily related to title insurance activity. Escrow fees during the three-year period ended December 31, 2001, fluctuated in a pattern generally consistent with the volume of title insurance premiums and order counts. The decrease in 2001 escrow fees, as a percentage of total revenues, is consistent with overall volume increases in total revenues.

Our Ancillary Services

In addition to issuing title insurance policies and providing escrow services, we provide the ancillary services described below. These services accounted for approximately 12.5%, 15.3% and 12.7% as a percentage of total revenues in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Document Preparation Services.

Through American Document Services, Inc. we offer a variety of services related to the documenting of real estate transactions. These services include:

- (i) preparing reconveyance and assignment documents,
- (ii) file research and document retrieval services, and
- (iii) recording services, including retrieval of recorded documents.

We can provide these services in every county and township in the United States. Our ability to provide these services is facilitated by independent abstract companies, title companies and law firms.

Appraisal Services.

Through West Point Appraisal Services, Inc., an appraisal management company, we offer a variety of residential appraisal services to meet the various appraisal needs of our customers. The services are provided through approved independent appraisers.

Inspection Services.

Through West Point Properties, Inc., an inspection company, we provide property inspection services to our customers. These services are provided through independently contracted inspectors.

Shortened Title Assurance Reports (STAR Product).

Our STAR product serves as a low-cost, limited form of title protection for the benefit of lenders in subordinate loan transactions where the primary lending criteria is the borrower screditworthiness rather than the security interest in the real property.

Centralized Title and Escrow.

National Lenders Division, our central order processing unit, provides customers with a centralized location through which they can order title and escrow services. The services offered through our National Lenders Division can be provided on a nationwide basis.

Trustee Sale Guarantee.

Our National Default Services division provides a central location for all trustee sale guarantee requests throughout California. Our services include providing ten-day letter information, customized accounting and reporting documents, fast track messenger services and electronic file transfers. These services provide assurances to trustees concerning certain information in connection with non-judicial foreclosures of property secured by a deed of trust. Because the number of foreclosures tends to increase as the real estate market and the economy decline, this division tends to be counter-cyclical to our title insurance business.

Property Management Services.

Through Landmark REO Management Services, Inc., we provide property management and disposition services for foreclosure properties throughout the United States. These services include the initial property inspection, eviction coordination, property maintenance, the retention of a local broker, and the supervision of escrow for the sale of the property. Property management services are provided in connection with foreclosures and therefore tend to be counter-cyclical to our title insurance business.

Document Signing Services.

Through Bancserv, Inc., we provide outsource services to the real estate and banking industry through a national network of qualified notaries public.

Exchange Services.

Through American Exchange Services, Inc., we offer Section 1031 exchange intermediary services, which can facilitate safe, effective and creative solutions for a range of exchange transactions involving single units to large commercial and/or industrial properties.

Title Losses and Reserves

As an agent, ATC is not subject to the loss and reserve requirements applicable to insurers. Pursuant to its agreements with CTIC, ATC s liability is limited to the first \$5,000 of loss under any policy issued by it on behalf of CTIC, except in the case of negligence, or willful or reckless conduct. To date, our payments for reimbursement of claims losses under these arrangements have not been material.

Underwriting, Losses and Reserves

We believe that the level of risk undertaken pursuant to our underwriting standards is consistent with industry standards. The maximum amount of liability under a title insurance policy is usually the face amount of the policy plus the cost of defending the insured title against an adverse claim. The reserve for claim losses includes known claims as well as losses National Title Insurance of New York, Inc. (National) expects to incur, net of recoupments. Each known claim is reserved for on the basis of a review as to the estimated amount of the claim and the costs to settle a claim. Reserves for claims that are incurred but not reported are provided for at the time premium revenue is recognized based on historical loss experience and other factors, including industry averages, claim loss history, legal environment, geographic considerations and types of

policies written. The occurrence of a significant major claim (those greater than \$500,000) in any given period could have a material adverse effect on National s financial condition and results of operations for such period.

If a loss is related to a policy issued by an independent agent, National may proceed against the independent agent pursuant to the terms of the agency agreement. In any event, National may proceed against third parties who are responsible for any loss sustained under the title insurance policy under rights of subrogation.

We believe that our quality controls and underwriting standards help minimize our net title claims paid. We will further reduce losses by following aggressive recoupment procedures under rights of subrogation or warranties and by carefully reviewing all claims.

Courts and juries sometimes award damages against insurance companies, including title insurance companies, in excess of policy limits. Such awards are typically based on allegations of fraud, misrepresentation, deceptive trade practices or other wrongful acts commonly referred to as bad faith. Although National has not experienced damage awards materially in excess of policy limits, the possibility of such bad faith damage awards may cause increased costs and difficulty in settling title claims.

National generally pays losses in cash. In some instances claims are settled by purchasing the interest of the insured in the real property or the interest of the adverse claimant. Such interests are generally recorded as an asset on National s books at the lower of cost or fair value less selling costs and any related indebtedness is carried as a liability.

National also accrues reserves related for losses arising from the escrow, closing and disbursement functions due to fraud or operational error based on historical experience.

Reinsurance

In the ordinary course of business, National reinsures certain risks with other title insurers for the purpose of limiting its maximum loss exposure and also assumes reinsurance for certain risks of other title insurers for the purpose of earning additional income. National cedes or assumes a portion of certain policy liabilities under agent fidelity, excess of loss and case-by-case reinsurance agreements. Reinsurance agreements provide that the reinsurer is liable for loss and loss adjustment expense payments exceeding the amount retained by the ceding company. However, the ceding company remains primarily liable in the event the reinsurer does not meet its contractual obligations. National did not assume or cede any significant policy liabilities during 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Competition

The title insurance industry is highly competitive in the attraction and retention of customers and independent agents. The number of competing companies and the size of such companies varies in the different geographic areas in which we conduct business. Generally, we compete with many other title insurers and agents, with the most effective competition coming from companies which possess greater capital resources. Approximately 1,700 title companies, less than 75 of which are underwriters, are members of the American Land Title Association, the title insurance industry s national trade association.

The title insurance industry, however, is heavily concentrated. It is estimated that the five largest title insurance underwriters, either directly or through their agents, accounted for approximately 89% of the policy premium revenue in the United States in 2000 and 90% in 1999. In our principal markets, competitors currently include direct operations and agents of the title insurance subsidiaries of Fidelity National Financial, Inc., Chicago Title Corporation (which was acquired by FNF on March 20, 2000), First American Financial Corporation, LandAmerica Financial Group, Inc., Old Republic International Corporation and Stewart Information Services Corporation, as well as numerous independent agency operations at the local level. We may also face competition from entrants into the industry and the geographic markets it plans to service.

The escrow and other real estate related services industry is also highly competitive and extremely fragmented. Our competition with respect to such services includes not only other title underwriters and title

agents in the insurance industry, but also companies, both local and nationally, that specialize in providing a particular service.

Because the parties to a real estate transaction are usually concerned with time schedules and costs associated with delays in closing the transaction, competition is based primarily on the quality and timeliness of service. We believe that our competitive position is enhanced by our quality customer service, and that the price of title insurance is typically not an important competitive factor.

Marketing

We attempt to increase the volume of our title insurance and real estate related services business primarily through customer solicitation by sales personnel. The primary source of this business is from independent escrow companies, real estate brokers and agents, developers, mortgage brokers, mortgage bankers, financial institutions and attorneys. We believe that the personal contacts maintained by our sales personnel with these customers are critical to generating title insurance business. We therefore actively encourage our branch personnel to continually develop new business relationships with persons in the real estate business community. In addition to generating business through direct solicitation and general advertising, we believe that excellent service is an important competitive factor in attracting and retaining customers, and measure customer service in terms of quality and timeliness in the delivery of services.

Regulation

Title insurance companies, including underwriters, underwritten title companies and independent agents, are subject to extensive regulation under applicable state laws. As an agent, we are subject to regulation in California and Arizona. In California, we are regulated by the Department of Insurance State of California and in Arizona is regulated by the State Banking Department, State of Arizona. See Note 9 to Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Such regulations include licensing requirements for the counties in which we operate, and regulations relating to minimum levels of net worth and working capital.

Current regulations require that ATC maintain a minimum net worth of \$400,000. The net worth of ATC was \$33.4 million, \$23.0 million and \$20.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. See Note 9 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Insurance underwriters are usually subject to a holding company act in their state of domicile that regulates, among other matters, the ability to pay dividends and investment policies. The laws of most states in which National transacts business establish supervisory agencies with broad administrative powers relating to issuing and revoking licenses to transact business, regulating trade practices, licensing agents, approving policy forms, accounting principles, financial practices, establishing reserve and capital and surplus requirements, defining suitable investments for reserves, capital and surplus and approving rate schedules. In 1998, the National Association of Insurance Commissioners approved codified accounting practices that changed the definition of what constitutes prescribed statutory accounting practices that resulted in changes to the accounting policies that insurance enterprises use to prepare their statutory financial statements commencing in 2001. We have evaluated the effects of these rules and believe they will not have a material effect on the statutory capital and surplus of National.

Pursuant to statutory accounting requirements of the various states in which National is licensed, it must defer a portion of premiums earned as an unearned premium reserve for the protection of policyholders and must maintain qualified assets in an amount equal to the statutory requirements. The level of unearned premium reserve required to be maintained at any time is determined on a quarterly basis by statutory formula based upon either the age, number of policies and dollar amount of policy liabilities underwritten or the age and dollar amount of statutory premiums written. The statutory unearned premium reserve required and reported for National was \$3.0 million, \$3.2 million and \$3.7 million as of December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

National is regulated by the Insurance Commissioner of the State of New York. Regulatory examinations usually occur at three-year intervals and examination was in progress for National (1998). In December 2000,

the New York Department of Insurance issued its draft report of the December 31, 1998 examination. In February 2001, we accepted the report as issued by the State of New York Insurance Department for the 1998 examination and all issues and comments were resolved. The findings in the examination report had no impact on National s statutory results at December 31, 2001. National was notified that the report was adopted and filed by the Department.

The Auditor Division of the Controller of the State of California is currently conducting an examination of the funds due the State of California under various escheatment regulations for the years ended December 31, 1998 and prior. We have not received a preliminary report as the audit is ongoing. We do not believe that either the examinations being performed by the insurance regulators or the Controller of the State of California will have a material impact on our financial position, our results of operations or our statutory capital and surplus.

In June 2001, auditors from the State of California, Department of Insurance commenced a market conduct examination of ATC. Similar examinations have been or are being conducted at virtually all companies in the title insurance business. The examination is in its preliminary stages and is on going. We are unable to form a professional judgement that an unfavorable outcome is either probable or remote, however, management does not believe that any outcome will have a material affect on our financial statements.

Statutorily calculated net worth determines the maximum insurable amount under any single title insurance policy. As of January 1, 2002, National s self-imposed single policy maximum insurable amount, which complies with statutory limitations, was \$6.0 million.

National is subject to regulations that restrict its ability to pay dividends or make other distributions of cash or property to its parent company without prior approval from the Department of Insurance of the State of New York. The maximum amount of dividends which can be paid by National to shareholders without prior approval of the Insurance Commissioner is subject to restrictions. No dividends, including all dividends paid in the preceding twelve months, which exceed 10% of the outstanding capital shares can be paid without prior approval unless after deducting dividends National has surplus to policyholders at least equal to the greater of 50% of its reinsurance reserves or 50% of the minimum capital required. Additionally, dividends are further limited to National s earned surplus. Based on this formula, National could pay dividends to ATC of \$38,400 during 2002.

Pursuant to statutory requirements of the State of New York, National must maintain certain levels of minimum capital and surplus. The statutory capital and surplus of National was \$3.7 million, \$3.3 million and \$2.5 million at December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The statutory earnings of National were \$617,000, \$684,000 and \$426,000, for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. National is compliant with the minimum statutory requirements as of December 31, 2001.

Ratings

National is regularly assigned ratings by independent agencies designed to indicate their financial condition and/or claims paying ability. Financial data and other information are supplied to the rating agencies and subjected to quantitative and qualitative analyses from which the ratings are derived. National s rating, as assigned during 2001, 2000 and 1999, is listed below:

National Title Insurance of New York, Inc.

Demotech, Inc.
(Financial Stability Rating)

A

Investment Policies and Investment Portfolio

Our investment policy is designed to maintain a high quality portfolio, maximize income, minimize interest rate risk and match the duration of the portfolio our liabilities. Our practice is to purchase investment grade fixed maturity securities. Our portfolio is subject to economic conditions and normal market risks and uncertainties.

D-12

All of National s investment assets qualify as admitted assets and for purposes of capital and surplus and unearned premium reserves as prescribed by various state insurance regulations. These investments are restricted by the state insurance regulations of its domiciliary state and are limited primarily to cash and cash equivalents, federal and municipal governmental securities and other corporate investments. See Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Liquidity and Capital Resources.

The carrying amount of all of our investments, which approximates the fair value of total investments, was \$24.7 million and \$10.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the investment ratings of our fixed maturity portfolio at December 31, 2001 and 2000:

		2001			2000			
Ratings(1)	Amortized Cost	% of Total	Fair Value	% of Total	Amortized Cost	% of Total	Fair Value	% of Total
			(Amount	s in thousands,	except percentag	es)		
AAA	\$11,107	50.6%	\$11,218	51.1%	\$1,777	19.5%	\$1,780	21.0%
AA	3,390	15.5	3,434	15.6	628	6.9	627	7.4
A	2,156	9.8	2,178	9.9	5,196	57.1	5,230	61.8
Other	5,278	24.1	5,135	23.4	1,504	16.5	825	9.8
	<u> </u>		<u> </u>					
	\$21,931	100.0%	\$21,965	100.0%	\$9,105	100.0%	\$8,462	100.0%

(1) Ratings as assigned by Standard & Poor s Corporation.

The following table sets forth certain information regarding our fixed maturity securities at December 31, 2001. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because certain borrowers have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. Fixed maturity securities with an amortized cost of \$1.5 million and a fair value of \$1.3 million were callable at December 31, 2001:

	2001				
Maturity	Amortized Cost	% of Total	Fair Value	% of Total	
	(Amou	ınts in thousands, e	xcept percentages)		
One year or less	\$ 2,304	10.5%	\$ 2,350	10.7%	
After one year through five years	\$13,539	61.7	\$13,706	62.4	
After five years through ten years	\$ 6,088	27.8	\$ 5,909	26.9	
	\$21,931	100.0%	\$21,965	100.0%	

Equity securities at December 31, 2001 and 2000 consist of investments as follows:

December 31,						
2	001	2000				
Cost	Fair Value	Cost	Fair Value			

Industrial, miscellaneous and all other (Amounts in thousands, except percentages) \$2,756 \$1,657 \$2,071

Our investment results for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 were as follows:

December 31,

	2001	2000	1999
	(Amounts in	thousands, except perc	entages)
Net investment income(1)	\$ 1,262	\$ 1,186	\$ 930
Average invested assets	30,438	18,798	20,573
Effective return on average invested assets	4.1%	6.3%	4.5%

(1) Net investment income as reported in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings has been adjusted in the presentation above to provide the tax equivalent yield on tax exempt investments and to exclude net realized capital gains on the sale of investments and other assets. Net realized capital gain (loss) totaled \$1.0 million, (\$139,000) and \$0 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Relationship with Fidelity National Financial, Inc.

ATC, our primary subsidiary, commenced business in 1989, and was acquired by FNF in January 1996, at which time ATC s operations had been conducted solely in Kern County, California. Following FNF s acquisition, ATC s expansion strategy included acquiring and opening offices in selected other counties located throughout California. In January 1997, FNF contributed to ATC all of the outstanding stock of American Title Insurance Agency of Arizona, Inc., a title agency located in Phoenix, Arizona and Landmark REO Management Services, Inc., a property management company.

We were incorporated in November 1996 by our current management. In July 1997, we acquired 60% of the outstanding stock of ATC from FNF for \$6.0 million. We funded the purchase price through debt, all of which we have repaid from operations or as a result of our reorganization. In November 1998, we acquired the remaining 40% of the outstanding common stock of ATC from FNF in exchange for 2,887,495 shares of Company common stock or approximately 43% of the outstanding shares immediately prior to our initial public offering. Concurrent with that reorganization, \$3.5 million of our debt from the initial acquisition of ATC stock was repaid. Our stockholders (other than FNF) assumed the remaining unpaid balance of the acquisition debt in the amount of \$1.2 million. In August 1997, ATC purchased all of the outstanding common stock of Santa Barbara Title Company. In 1997 we formed our other subsidiaries, American Document Services, Inc., West Point Appraisal Services, Inc., West Point Support Services, Inc. and West Point Properties, Inc. In April 1999, Santa Barbara Title Company (SBT) merged with ATC. In December 2000, ANFI formed American Exchange Services, Inc.

In June 1999, we acquired National Title Insurance of New York Inc., a New York domiciled underwriter, from a subsidiary of FNF for \$3.25 million. National is licensed to issue title insurance in 34 states, the District of Columbia and the U.S. Virgin Islands. Our purpose in acquiring National was to own an underwriter, which will enable us to both: (1) generate underwriting fees and (2) expand geographically into counties and states in which National is presently licensed. We believe our expansion can be accomplished more quickly and cost-effectively through this acquisition than through other means. We also believe that the acquisition expands the business opportunities for our current and potential employees and affiliates, aiding our recruitment efforts, and will permit us to generate additional revenue by writing title insurance policies in those geographic areas which are not covered by ATC s exclusive agency arrangements with CTIC.

In September 2000, we purchased the assets of CTIC s Pima County, Arizona operation, American Title Agency of Pima County, Inc. The acquisition adds four offices, located in Tucson, to our Arizona network. See Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement.

We have a common director with FNF, resulting from FNF s involvement in the organization of, and its equity ownership position in us. In addition there is also existing business and contractual relationships between the two companies. Our principal subsidiary, ATC, was a wholly owned subsidiary of FNF until July 1, 1997, when we acquired 60% of ATC s outstanding common stock for \$6.0 million in cash. As a result of the reorganization and following our initial public offering, FNF owned approximately 28.0% of our outstanding common stock. In a private transaction on June 7, 2001, we purchased 1,117,500 shares of our common stock from FNF for \$4.9 million or \$4.36 per share, which is FNF s cost. The fair market value of our common stock on the transaction date was \$3.99 per share. After this transaction FNF owned approximately 19.5% of our common stock. See Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Overview and Note 12 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

CTIC entered into an Issuing Agency Agreement with our wholly-owned subsidiary American Title Company (ATC) where ATC agreed that until June 30, 2007 it will act as an agent for CTIC with respect to the procurement of title insurance policies in 16 counties in California and Arizona, subject to certain exceptions. This exclusive arrangement with CTIC does not apply to other counties into which we expand in the future. Under the Issuing Agency Agreement with CTIC, furnishing title insurance products and services, ATC pays FNTIC an administration fee of 1% of gross premiums for administrative services including accounting, legal and human resources. This administrative service arrangement can be terminated by ATC upon 90 days notice to FNTIC.

Employees

As of December 31, 2001, we had 1,013 full time employees. We believe our success depends significantly on attracting and retaining talented and experienced personnel. We locate and recruit our personnel primarily through personal contacts in the industry and our executive officers are actively involved in the recruitment process. We offer competitive packages of base and incentive compensation and benefits in order to attract and motivate our employees. We believe our employee relations are good.

Risk Factors

Our investment securities are speculative in nature and an investment in such securities involves a high degree of risk. You should consider, along with the other information contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the following considerations and risks in evaluating an investment in us.

Cyclical Nature of Real Estate Market

The title insurance industry is dependent on the volume of real estate transactions that occur. Substantially all of our title insurance, escrow and other real estate service business result from:

sales and refinancing of real estate, primarily residential properties, and

the construction and sale of new properties.

Real estate activity is cyclical in nature and is highly sensitive to the cost and availability of long-term mortgage funds and general economic conditions. Real estate activity and, in turn, our revenue base, can be adversely affected when:

interest rates are high,

money supply for mortgages are limited, and

when the economy as a whole weakens.

During 1998 and first half of 1999, low mortgage interest rates and a strong California real estate market contributed to increased residential transaction activity, benefiting our business. However, the high volume of refinance activity experienced in early 1999 virtually disappeared when mortgage rates began to climb during the last half of 1999 and 2000. Beginning in late 2000 and continuing throughout 2001 interest rate decreases caused by Federal Reserve Bank actions resulted in bringing interest rates to their lowest levels in approximately two years, which was a 475 basis point reduction since January 1, 2001, providing us with a favorable business environment.

It is impossible to predict the future direction interest rates and the real estate market may move or fluctuate. No assurance can be given that historical levels of premiums and fees received by us recently will occur in the future.

Geographic Concentration

We derived substantially all of our revenues from real estate transactions occurring in California. Due to the relatively high cost of real estate in California, the real estate market may be more sensitive to fluctuations in interest rates and general economic conditions than other regions of the United States. Adverse economic

conditions affecting the California real estate market could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Risks Associated with the Relationship with Fidelity National Financial, Inc.

We maintain a close relationship with FNF and its subsidiaries and rely upon them for a number of services in connection with our operations. We agreed, that until June 30, 2007, we will act exclusively as an agent for CTIC with respect to the procurement of title insurance policies in 13 selected counties in California and three counties in Arizona, subject to certain exceptions. In exchange for an administrative fee, FNTIC provides a variety of services for ATC, including accounting, legal and human resources services. The unexpected loss of CTIC underwriting or FNTIC s administrative services, for any reason, could result in an interruption in our operations until such services are secured elsewhere, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. See Relationship with Fidelity National Financial, Inc.

Certain of FNF s subsidiaries are our competitors in several of our markets. One of our directors and certain officers is also a director or officer of FNF. Accordingly, there is a possibility that our interests and FNF s interests might conflict. There can be no assurance that our director or our officers, in satisfying their fiduciary duties and the requirements of applicable statutory laws to ensure such conflicts are properly resolved, can or will act in our best interests.

Risks Associated with National

In June 1999, ATC acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of National from FNF. Due to the affiliated nature of the parties, this should not be considered an arm s length transaction. National, a New York domiciled insurance underwriter, is currently licensed to issue title insurance policies in 34 states, the District of Columbia and the U.S. Virgin Islands, with applications pending for two other states. An element of our business strategy is to utilize National not only as a means to generate underwriting premiums but to expand geographically into states where we do not currently operate. This was the primary purpose of the National acquisition. In addition, National does not currently underwrite a significant amount of title insurance policies through direct operations or agency relationships and we are required to commit resources to establish direct operations and agency relationships in order to realize the benefits of this acquisition. Cash resources for the development of National is provided by current cash balances and internally generated funds. National s principal value lies in the licenses it holds to operate as an underwriter and the strategic options we pursue in utilizing the licenses. There can be no assurance that we will be able to develop any significant business or generate title insurance premiums through National, or that we will realize any of the benefits anticipated from the acquisition of National.

Competition

The title insurance business is very competitive, primarily in the areas of service and expertise. The size and financial strength of the title insurer who underwrites the policies are also important factors in decisions relating to the purchase of title insurance. Many of our competitors have greater financial, personnel, marketing and other resources, and some are underwritten by larger title insurance companies. Also, the removal of regulatory barriers in the future might result in new competitors, including financial institutions, entering the title insurance business. Intense competition among the more established title insurance companies and any such new entrants could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Risks Related to Possible Acquisitions

An element of our business strategy is to expand our operations through the acquisition of complementary businesses. We have no agreements, understandings or commitments and are not currently engaged in negotiations with respect to any additional acquisition. There can be no assurance that we will be able to identify, acquire, profitably manage or successfully integrate any businesses without incurring substantial

expenses, delays or other operational or financial problems. Moreover, competition for acquisition candidates is intense, which could both increase the price of any acquisition targets and decrease the number of attractive companies available for acquisition. Furthermore, acquisitions involve a number of special risks, including diversion of management s attention, failure to retain key acquired personnel, increased costs to improve managerial, operational, financial and administrative systems and legal liabilities, some or all of which could materially and adversely affect our business, operating results and financial condition. We may have to issue additional equity securities or incur indebtedness in order to finance the acquisition of other businesses. In addition, there can be no assurance that acquired businesses, if any, will achieve anticipated revenues and earnings or performance at levels we have historically enjoyed. Our failure to manage our acquisition strategy successfully could materially and adversely affect our operating results and financial condition.

Management of Growth

We are growing significantly, and we intend to pursue further growth as part of our business strategy. Our ability to effectively manage the growth of our operations will require us to continue to improve our operational, financial and other internal systems and to attract, develop, motivate and retain our employees. Our rapid growth has presented and will continue to present numerous operational challenges, such as the assimilation of financial reporting systems, and will increase the demands on our senior management and our systems and internal controls. In addition, our success depends in large part upon our ability to attract, develop, motivate and retain talented employees with significant industry experience and contacts. Such employees are currently in great demand and there is significant competition for employees with the requisite skills and experience from other national and regional title companies. There can be no assurance that we will be able to attract and retain the qualified personnel necessary to pursue our growth strategy. There can be no assurance that we will be able to maintain or accelerate our current growth, effectively manage our expanding operations or achieve planned growth on a timely or profitable basis. To the extent we are unable to manage our growth effectively and efficiently, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected.

Cautionary Statements Regarding Forward-Looking Information

We wish to caution readers that the forward-looking statements contained in this Form 10-K under Item 1. Business , Item 7. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations , Item 7a. Quantitative and Qualitative Market Risk Disclosures and elsewhere in this Form 10-K involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties which may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by any forward-looking statements made by or on behalf of us. In connection with the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, we are filing the following cautionary statements identifying important factors that in some cases have affected, and in the future could cause our actual results to differ materially from those expressed in any such forward-looking statements.

The factors that could cause our results to differ materially include, but are not limited to, general economic and business conditions, including interest rate fluctuations; the impact of competitive products and pricing; success of operating initiatives; adverse publicity; changes in business strategy or development plans; quality of management; availability, terms, and deployment of capital; the results of financing efforts; business abilities and judgment of personnel; issues, availability of qualified personnel; employee benefit costs and changes in, or the failure to comply with government regulations.

Item 2. Properties

Our corporate office is currently located in Orange, California. Most of our offices are leased, with the exception of two buildings we own: a branch office building in Phoenix, Arizona, and the corporate office building located at 1111 E. Katella Avenue, Orange, CA. The corporate office building was acquired with the proceeds of a \$2.1 million original note that bears interest at the lending institutions prime rate, and monthly principal payments of \$4,400 per month and collateralized by a deed of trust. The outstanding balance at December 31, 2001 and 2000 was \$1.9 million and \$2.0 million, respectively.

In February 2002, we entered into an agreement to purchase an office building located in the County of Orange for \$1.1 million, based on certain conditions and inspections. The close of escrow is anticipated on or around April 15, 2002.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of business, we are subject to claims made under, and from time to time we are named as defendants in legal proceedings relating to, policies of insurance we have issued or other services performed on behalf of insured policyholders and other customers. We are involved from time to time in routine litigation incidental to the conduct of our business, apart from claims made under title insurance policies. There are currently no material pending litigation proceedings to which we are a party or to which any of our property is subject. See Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Industry Overview and Recent Developments and Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

In June 2001, auditors from the State of California, Department of Insurance commenced a market conduct examination of ATC. Similar examinations have been or are being conducted at virtually all companies in the title insurance business. The examination is in its preliminary stages and is ongoing. We are unable to form a professional judgement that an unfavorable outcome is either probable or remote, however, management does not believe that any outcome will have a material affect on our financial statements.

Item 4. Submissions of Matters to a vote of Security Holders

We did not submit any matters to a vote of security holders in the fourth quarter of 2001.

PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant s Common Stock and Related Shareholder Matters

We completed our initial public offering on February 12, 1999. Prior to that time there was no market for our common stock. The following table sets forth the range of high and low closing prices for our common stock on the NASDAQ stock exchange and the amounts of dividends per share on our common stock.

	High	Low	Dividends Declared
Year ended December 31, 2001:			
First quarter	\$3.64	\$2.18	\$0.07
Second quarter	4.11	2.91	0.07
Third quarter	7.20	4.00	0.10
Fourth quarter	6.89	5.24	0.10
Year ended December 31, 2000:			
First quarter	\$2.86	\$2.18	\$0.07
Second quarter	2.73	2.00	0.07
Third quarter	2.28	1.95	0.07
Fourth quarter	2.33	2.27	0.07

The foregoing amounts have been adjusted to give retroactive effect to a 10% stock dividend in May 2001 and the five-for-four (25%) stock split in July 2002.

Dividend Policy and Restriction on Dividend Payments

Since the first quarter of 1999, we have paid cash dividends on a quarterly basis, which payments have been made at the discretion of our Board of Directors. In September 2001, our dividend per share increased to \$.10. The continued payment of dividends will depend upon operating results, business requirements, regulatory considerations and other factors. As of March 20, 2002, we had less than 800 shareholders of record.

National is subject to regulations that restrict its ability to pay dividends or make other distributions of cash or property to its parent company without prior approval from the Department of Insurance of the State of New York. The maximum amount of dividends which can be paid by National to shareholders without prior approval of the Insurance Commissioner is subject to restrictions. No dividends, including all dividends paid in the preceding twelve months, which exceed 10% of the outstanding capital shares can be paid without prior approval unless after deducting dividends National has surplus to policyholders at least equal to the greater of 50% of its reinsurance reserves or 50% of the minimum capital required. Additionally, dividends are further limited to National s earned surplus. Based on this formula, National could pay dividends to ATC of \$38,400 during 2002.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following information should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto and Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. Share per and share data has been retroactively adjusted for the 10% stock dividend in May 2001 and the five-for-four stock split (25%) in July 2002.

	Years Ended December 31,				
	2001	2000	1999	1998	
	(Amounts in thousands, other than earnings per share, order and fee per file data)				
Balance Sheet Data:					
Cash and short term investments	\$ 10,018	\$ 9,865	\$ 4,875	\$10,495	
Investments	24,721	10,533	14,022		
Total assets	66,653	53,341	47,324	37,376	
Due to affiliate and capital leases with affiliates	3,536	3,230	1,642	1,893	
Shareholders equity	35,913	31,977	32,031	19,898	
Statement of Operations Data:					
Net title service revenue related party	\$ 76,435	\$44,144	\$51,899	\$52,684	
Escrow fees	32,176	21,969	25,190	24,267	
Underwriting premiums	8,890	3,461	452		
Ancillary service fees	17,080	12,684	11,362	14,697	
Gain (loss) on sale/exchange of equity security	1,001	(134)			
Investment revenue	1,267	1,047	930	369	
Total revenue	136,849	83,171	89,833	92,017	
Personnel costs	73,909	51,189	54,277	49,435	
Other operating expenses	35,233	23,245	19,759	18,069	
Title plant rent and maintenance	7,946	5,322	6,264	7,156	
Total expenses	117,088	79,756	80,300	74,660	
Earnings before income taxes and minority interest on net					
earnings of consolidated subsidiary	19,761	3,415	9,533	17,357	
Income taxes	8,497	1,400	3,908	7,257	
Earnings before minority interest in net earnings of					
consolidated subsidiary	\$ 11,264	\$ 2.015	\$ 5.625	\$10,100	
Minority interest in net earnings of consolidated subsidiary	Ψ 11,201	¥ 2, 010	¥ 2,020	(3,235)	
				(2,223)	
Net earnings	\$ 11,264	\$ 2,015	\$ 5,625	\$ 6,865	
-					

Years Ended December 31,

	:	2001	20	000		1999		1998
		(A				than earn	_	
Per Share Data:			•		•			
Earnings per share:								
Basic	\$	1.20	\$.20	\$.60	\$	1.55
Diluted		1.09		.20		.59		1.43
Weighted average common shares outstanding:								
Basic		9,386	10	0,085		9,445		4,432
Diluted		10,295	10	0,085		9,485		4,813
Other Operating Data:								
Gross title insurance premiums(1)	\$	88,391	\$ 51	1,113	\$ 5	58,370	\$ 5	59,206
Orders opened(1)	2	10,000	111	1,000	11	19,000	14	17,000
Orders closed(1)	1	27,000	73	3,200	8	38,900	ç	98,300
Average fee per file(1)	\$	848	\$ 1	1,109	\$	940	\$	825

⁽¹⁾ Average fee per file information for ATC, Pioneer Land Title and National direct branches consists of gross title insurance premiums, escrow fees and other title-related fees divided by the number of closed files (not including revenue generated by our STAR Product, which are excluded due to the abbreviated characteristics of the policy). In addition, non title-related revenues and investment income are excluded as there are no associated closed files. See Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Selected quarterly financial data is as follows:

	March 31,	June 30,	September 30,	December 31,
		(In thousan	ds, except share data)	
2001				
Revenue	\$28,470	\$35,516	\$33,738	\$39,125
Earnings before income taxes	3,830	5,769	4,892	5,270
Net earnings, basic and diluted basis	2,260	3,404	2,837	2,763
Basic earnings per share	.22	.35	.32	.31
Diluted earnings per share	.21	.33	.29	.28
Dividends paid per share	.07	.07	.10	.10
2000				
Revenue	\$17,689	\$20,916	\$21,762	\$22,804
Earnings (loss) before income taxes	(563)	1,089	1,384	1,505
Net earnings (loss), basic and diluted basis	(332)	643	817	887
Basic earnings (loss) per share	(.03)	.06	.08	.09
Diluted earnings (loss) per share	(.03)	.06	.08	.09
Dividends paid per share	.07	.07	.07	.07

Item 7. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion provides information to help understand and assess significant changes and trends related to our financial condition and results of operations. You should read this discussion and analysis in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto.

Overview

Certain reclassifications have been made to ANFI s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 to conform with the September 30, 2002 presentation. In addition, transitional disclosures required under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, paragraph 61, have been added and all data with respect to earnings per share, dividends per share and share information, including price per share where applicable, have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the effect of the five-for-four (25%) stock split declared by ANFI s Board of Directors on June 27, 2002, and effective July 18, 2002.

Our revenue is closely related to the level of real estate activity and the average price of real estate sales. Real estate sales are directly affected by the availability of funds to finance purchases. Other factors affecting real estate activity include demand, mortgage interest rates, family income levels and general economic conditions. Since late 1995, decreases in mortgage interest rates and the resulting improvement in the real estate market have had a favorable effect on the level of real estate activity, including refinancing transactions, new home sales and resale transactions. The overall economic environment, stable mortgage interest rates and strength in the California and West Coast real estate market contributed to very positive conditions for the industry throughout all of 1996, 1997 and 1998 and the first six months of 1999. However, mortgage rates began to climb during the last half of 1999 and continued through 2000, virtually eliminating the volume of refinance activity experienced in the prior year and early 1999. Beginning in late 2000 and continuing throughout 2001 interest rate decreases caused by actions taken by the Federal Reserve Bank resulted in bringing interest rates to their lowest levels in approximately two years, which was a 475 basis point reduction since January 1, 2001. The interest rate decreases created opportunity for the industry.

Our revenues include net title service revenue (which also includes trustee sale guarantee fees of \$1.2 million), escrow fees, underwriting premiums, ancillary service fees, gain (loss) on sale/ exchange of equity security, and investment revenue. Our operations generate escrow fees from holding and disbursing funds and documents in connection with the closing of real estate transactions. Escrow fees generally fluctuate in a pattern consistent with the fluctuation in net title service revenue.

Our ancillary services complement title and escrow services. In addition, many of these real estate related services are counter-cyclical to our title insurance and escrow services.

Investment revenue consists of revenues received from our investment portfolio. Underwriting premiums represent income derived from National s current office operations, which include New York, Tennessee, Florida and independent agents.

Net title service revenue, escrow fees and underwriting premiums are recognized as income at the time the underlying real estate transaction closes. Expenses directly related to the title and escrow process are recognized as they are incurred, throughout the duration of the transaction. As a result, our recognition of revenue lags approximately 45-90 days behind the recognition of the corresponding expenses. Ancillary service fees are recognized as income over the period during which the service is provided. These factors may result in fluctuations in gross margins.

Net title service revenues consist of gross title insurance premiums less an 11% underwriting fee paid to the underwriter. Fees to underwriters represent the portion of gross title insurance premiums paid by our underwritten title companies to CTIC, pursuant to the terms of the Issuing Agency Agreement.

Beginning in January 1997, ATC entered into an Issuing Agency Agreement under which ATC pays CTIC an underwriting fee equal to 11% of the gross title insurance premiums received. In addition, ATC pays FNF a administrative fee equal to 1% of gross title insurance premiums for certain accounting, human resources and legal services provided by FNF. We believe that the amount of these fees is reasonable in light of the level of services received and the estimated costs of performing these services internally.

While the number of orders that are closed affects our revenue, personnel costs are the largest component of our expenses. Since personnel costs are relatively fixed over the short-term, in a rapidly declining market, reductions in the number of orders can adversely affect margins. Gross margins are also affected by the

relative numbers of orders that relate to refinancing transactions as compared to those relating to real estate sale transactions.

The average fee per file and corresponding gross margins are higher for real estate sale and resale transactions than refinance transactions for three principal reasons: (i) a larger percentage of sale and resale orders close as compared to refinance orders, (ii) typically two policies are issued in a resale transaction (one each to the buyer and lender) whereas only one is issued in a refinance transaction and (iii) the base rate charged on sale and resale transactions is typically higher than that charged on refinance transactions.

Because title insurance premiums are calculated with regard to the purchase price of the property or the amount of the related mortgage, average fees per file will also increase during periods in which real estate prices and corresponding mortgage loans are increasing.

Results of Operations

The following discussion presents a comparison of 2001, 2000 and 1999.

Revenue

The following table presents information regarding the components of our revenue:

	Year Ended December 31,			
	2001	2000	1999	
	`	nts in thousands other rders and fee per file		
Net title service revenue related party	\$ 76,435	\$44,144	\$51,899	
Escrow fees	32,176	21,969	25,190	
Underwriting premiums	8,890	3,461	452	
Ancillary service fees	17,080	12,684	11,362	
Gain (loss) on sale/exchange of equity security	1,001	(134)		
nvestment revenue	1,267	1,047	930	
Total revenue	\$136,849	\$83,171	\$89,833	
Orders closed	127,000	73,200	88,900	
Average fee per file	\$ 848	\$ 1,109	\$ 940	

The premium increases from the first half of 1999 were indicative of the favorable market conditions existing during that period. In the last six months of 1999 and continuing through the year 2000, refinancing transactions declined from the prior record levels. As the refinance transactions decreased our fee per file increased due to the shift from a refinance market to a market driven by new home purchases and resales. The trend reversed in 2001 with the decline in interest rates.

Total revenue in 2001 increased 64.5% to \$136.8 million from \$83.2 million in 2000. The increase in total revenues in 2001 is primarily the result of our strength in our title and ancillary services, which were positively impacted by favorable market conditions, especially the favorable real estate market caused in part by reduced interest rates and increased money supply. Total revenue in 2000 decreased 7.4% to \$83.2 million from 1999 revenue of \$89.8 million. The decrease in total revenues from 1999 to 2000 is due to increased interest rates that resulted in a significant decline in refinancing transactions and residential resale and new home loans.

Net Title Service Revenue related partyNet title service revenue in 2001 increased \$32.3 million, or 73.1% to \$76.4 million from \$44.1 million in 2000. Net title service revenue decreased \$7.8 million or 14.9% to \$44.1 million from \$51.9 million in 1999. The increase in net title service revenue in 2001 was indicative to the favorable market conditions existing in that period. The decrease in 2000 net title service revenue was consistent with the real estate environment and the decline in closed title orders during 2000. The average fee per file decreased to \$848 in 2001 compared with \$1,109 in 2000 and \$940 in 1999. The fee per file fluctuation is consistent of the change in the percentage mix of title orders closing in a refinance market to the resale

higher fee per file business. Gross title premiums were \$88.4 million, \$51.1 million and \$58.4 million in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Escrow Fees. Revenues from escrow fees increased \$10.2 million or 46.5% to \$32.2 million in 2001 from \$22.0 million in 2000. In 2000, escrow fees decreased \$3.2 million or 12.8% to \$22.0 million compared with \$25.2 million in 1999. Escrow fees are primarily related to title insurance activity generated by the Company s direct operations. The increase in 2001, is primarily the result of the current market conditions relating to refinance activity largely fueled by continued interest rate decreases. The decrease in escrow fees in 2000 was due to interest rate increases beginning in late 1999 and continuing through the beginning of 2000, along with the decline of closed title orders during that period.

Underwriting Premiums. Underwriting premiums in 2001 increased \$5.4 million, or 156.9%, to \$8.9 million from \$3.5 million in 2000. During 2000, underwriting premiums increased \$3.0 million, or 665.7% from \$452,000 in 1999. The increase from 1999 is attributed to our strategy to expand our National business.

Ancillary Service Fees. Ancillary service fees increased \$4.5 million, or 36.1% to \$17.1 million in 2001, from \$12.6 million in 2000. In 2000, ancillary fees increased \$1.2 million, or 10.5% to \$12.6 million compared with \$11.4 million in 1999. The steady increase in ancillary service fees is a result of the level and mix of business related to the decrease of closed title orders. In 2000 we acquired certain ancillary service companies in various separate transactions. Our strategy is to strengthen the ancillary service businesses through acquisitions and we continue to evaluate opportunities to expand our ancillary services through our core title and escrow business and our national presence. In 1999, we closed a branch operation related to the STAR product that accounted for a portion of the decline in ancillary service fees in that year.

Gain (loss) On Sale/Exchange of Equity Security. Gain (loss) on sale/ exchange of equity security was \$1.0 million, (\$134,000) and \$0 for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, on sales of investment securities available for sale.

Investment Revenue. Investment revenue is primarily a function of security markets, interest rates and the amount of cash available for investment. In 2001, investment revenue increased \$220,000 or 21.0% to \$1.3 million, compared with \$1.0 million in 2000. Average invested assets increased 61.7% to \$30.4 million from \$18.8 million in 2000. The tax equivalent yield in 2001, excluding net realized gains and losses, decreased to 4.1% compared to 6.3% in 2000 primarily as a result of significant additions to our fixed income portfolio in the last quarter of 2001 at prevalent interest rates, which were significantly lower than 2000 due to actions taken by the Federal Reserve Board. In 2000 investment revenue income increased \$117,000 or 12.6% to \$1.0 million, compared with \$930,000 in 1999. Average invested assets decreased 8.7% to \$18.8 million from \$20.6 million in 1999. The tax equivalent yield in 2000, excluding net realized gains and losses, was 6.3% compared to 4.5% in 1999. Investment revenue in 2000 increased from 1999 primarily as a result of an increase in the tax equivalent yield, excluding net realized gains and losses. Although average invested assets decreased in 2000 compared to 1999, the tax equivalent yield increased primarily due to a shift to strengthen our fixed income portfolio in 2000 as compared to investments in interest bearing accounts and certificates of deposit in 1999. Prior to 1999, we invested in interest bearing accounts and certificates of deposit in 1999. Prior to 1999, we invested in interest bearing accounts and certificates of deposit in 1999.

Expenses

The following table presents the components of the our expenses:

	Year Ended December 31,		
	2001	2000	1999
	(Am	ounts in thousand	ls)
Personnel costs	\$ 73,909	\$51,189	\$54,277
Other operating expenses	35,233	23,245	19,759
Title plant rent and maintenance	7,946	5,322	6,264
Total expenses	\$117,088	\$79,756	\$80,300

Our principal costs include personnel costs, other operating expenses and title plant rent and maintenance. Personnel costs include both base salaries and commission expense paid to employees and are the most significant operating expense incurred. These expenses fluctuate with the level or orders opened and closed and the mix of revenue.

Other operating expenses consist of facilities expenses, postage and courier services, computer services, professional services, advertising expense, general insurance, provision for claim losses, trade and note receivable allowances, depreciation and amortization expense and interest expense.

Title plant rent and maintenance costs consist of payments to access title plants and the costs of updating these plants. Title plant rent and maintenance costs include daily update expenses that are dependent on the volume of real estate transaction activity and a rental charge that is based on actual usage.

Personnel Costs. Personnel costs totaled \$73.9 million, \$51.2 million and \$54.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. As a percentage of total revenue, exclusive of gain (loss) on sale/ exchange of equity security and investment revenue, personnel costs were 54.9% in 2001, 62.2% in 2000 and 61.1% in 1999. Personnel costs include base salaries, commissions and bonuses paid to employees and are the most significant operating expense incurred. These costs fluctuate with the level of orders opened and closed and the mix of revenue. The decrease in personnel expenses is the result of our ability to handle increased refinance activity without a significant increase in staffing. We continue to take significant measures to maintain appropriate personnel levels and costs relative to the volume and mix of business and revenues. We continue to monitor the prevailing market conditions and will attempt to respond as necessary.

Other Operating Expenses. Other operating expenses totaled \$35.2 million, \$23.2 million and \$19.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. As a percentage of total revenue, exclusive of gain (loss) on sale/ exchange of equity security and investment revenue, other operating expenses were 26.2% in 2001, 28.3% in 2000, and 22.2% in 1999. Other operating expenses consist of facilities expenses, provision for claim losses, professional services, advertising, postage and courier services, data processing expense, general insurance, trade and notes receivable allowance and depreciation. The decrease in other operating expenses is attributable to our aggressive cost control programs in order to maintain operating expenses consistent with levels of revenues; however, certain fixed costs are incurred regardless of revenue levels, resulting in fluctuations year over year. Other operating expenses increased as a percentage of total revenue in 2000 from 1999 due to expansions and acquisitions, including travel, conventions and other general and administrative costs. Those increases offset much of our cost control efforts in 2000. We continuously review and evaluate operating expenses relative to existing and projected market conditions.

Title Plant Rent and Maintenance Expense. Title plant rent and maintenance expense totaled \$7.9 million, \$5.3 million and \$6.3 million for the years ending December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Title plant rent and maintenance expense decreased as a percentage of total revenue, exclusive of gain (loss) on sale/ exchange of equity security and investment revenue, to 5.9% in 2001 from 6.5% in 2000 and from 7.1% in 1999. The year over year fluctuations in plant expense is primarily a result of our expansion and various contract negotiations within several counties in California and Arizona combined with a reduction of the volume of business during 2000 compared to 1999. The agreements negotiated during 2000 resulted in significant cost reductions for us.

Income Taxes. Income taxes for 2001, 2000 and 1999 as a percentage of earnings before income taxes was 43.0%, 41.0% and 41.0%, respectively. The fluctuations in income taxes as a percentage of earnings before income taxes are attributable to the effect of state income taxes on our wholly-owned underwritten title company and the ancillary service companies; a change in the amount and the characteristics of net income, operating income versus investment income; and the tax treatment of certain items.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash Flows. Our current cash requirements include debt service, debt relating to capital leases, personnel and other operating expenses, taxes and dividends on common stock. We believe that all anticipated cash requirements for current operations will be met from internally generated funds and through cash

received from our subsidiaries. Our cash requirements include expenses relating to the development and expansion of National s business. We presently have in place much of the infrastructure (principally consisting of personnel) that will be used for this development.

Two significant sources of our funds are dividends and distributions from our subsidiaries. As a holding company, we receive cash from our subsidiaries in the form of dividends and as reimbursement for operating and other administrative expenses we incur. These reimbursements are executed within the guidelines of various management agreements among us and our subsidiaries. Our underwritten title company and our ancillary companies collect premiums and fees and pay underwriting fees and operating expenses. These companies are restricted only to the extent of maintaining minimum levels of working capital and net worth, but are not restricted by state regulations or banking authorities in their ability to pay dividends and make distributions.

National is subject to regulations that restrict its ability to pay dividends or make other distributions of cash or property to its parent company without prior approval from the Department of Insurance of the State of New York. The maximum amount of dividends which can be paid by National to shareholders without prior approval of the Insurance Commissioner is subject to restrictions. No dividends, including all dividends paid in the preceding twelve months, which exceed 10% of the outstanding capital shares can be paid without prior approval unless after deducting dividends we have surplus to policyholders at least equal to the greater of 50% of its reinsurance reserves or 50% of the minimum capital required. Additionally, dividends are further limited to National s earned surplus. During 2002, our title insurance subsidiary could pay dividends to its parent of \$38,400.

Financing. We entered into the following note payable agreements in connections with the following purchases:

On April 14, 1999 we purchased a home office building located in Orange, CA for \$2.6 million. We borrowed \$2.1 million, secured by a first trust deed. The terms of the note payable require monthly interest payments at prime rate and monthly principal payments of \$4,000. The note matures on April 1, 2004.

In January 2000, we purchased 100% of the stock of Bancserv, Inc., a California corporation located in Yorba Linda, California. The purchase price was \$1.3 million, \$400,000 paid in cash and a \$900,000 promissory note that bears interest at a rate of 7.5%, and is due in full on January 2005. The note requires monthly payments of \$15,500 beginning February 14, 2000.

In February 2000, we purchased 100% of the stock of Pioneer Land Title Corporation. The purchase price was \$1.8 million, \$360,000 paid in cash and a \$1.4 million promissory note that bears interest at 6.6% per annum from the purchase date through the fourth anniversary date.

Financing Obligations. Our financing obligation includes notes payable in connection with the corporate office building purchase, Pioneer Land Title Corporation and Bancserv, Inc. acquisitions together with capital lease payments and operating lease commitments. As of December 31, 2001, our annual payments relating to these obligations are as follows:

	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	Thereafter	Portion relating to interest	Total
				(Amounts	s in thousa	nds)		
Notes payable	\$ 566	\$ 578	\$2,369	\$ 15	\$	\$	\$	\$ 3,528
Capital lease obligations								
Affiliated	170	170	170	170	170	243	(269)	824
Non-affiliated	222	222	222	222	222	204	(262)	1,052
Operating lease payments	4,998	4,208	2,501	1,465	580	78		13,830
Total	\$5,956	\$5,178	\$5,262	\$1,872	\$972	\$525	(531)	\$19,234
					_			
			D-25					

Critical Accounting Policies

The accounting policies described below are those we consider critical in preparing our Consolidated Financial Statements. Certain of these policies require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of certain contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the Consolidated Financial Statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. See Note 2 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a more detailed description of our significant accounting policies that have been followed in preparing our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Revenue Recognition. Revenue fluctuates primarily with changes in mortgage interest rates and economic conditions in our markets, primarily California. While the number of orders that are closed affects our revenue, personnel costs are the largest component of our expenses. Since personnel costs are relatively fixed over the short-term, in a rapidly declining market, reductions in the number of orders can adversely affect margins. Gross margins are also affected by the relative numbers of orders that relate to refinancing transactions as compared to those relating to real estate sale transactions.

Historically, the greatest volume of residential resale activity has usually occurred in the spring and summer months. However, events during the past five years, including numerous actions taken by the Federal Reserve Board, have caused unusual fluctuations in real estate activity, particularly in the seasonal pattern of residential resale and refinance activity. We cannot predict whether the usual spring and summer increase in volume will continue to be affected by such factors.

To the extent real estate prices or mortgage interest rates increase due to inflationary factors, our title service revenue generally increases because premiums are determined in part by the value of property or the amount of the mortgage loan. Our personnel costs and other operating expenses are also sensitive to inflation.

Investments. Our investment portfolio is subject to risk of potential impairment with economic downturns or a downgrade by individual securities. We evaluate our portfolio periodically for other than temporary declines, which, if identified, are recorded as realized losses.

Costs in Excess of Net Assets Acquired (Goodwill Intangible assets include acquired licenses to operate within various counties and the cost in excess of net assets acquired in connection with the acquisitions. Intangibles were amortized on a straight-line basis over a composite life of 25 years throughout December 31, 2001. Prior to January 1, 2002, goodwill was tested for impairment under FAS 121. Effective January 1, 2002, goodwill will not be amortized, but will be subject to continual recoverability analysis. See recent Accounting Pronouncements for further information.

Escrow Accounts. In conducting our operations, we routinely hold customers assets in trust, pending completion of real estate transactions. Certain of these amounts are maintained in segregated bank accounts and have not been included in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. We have a contingent liability relating to proper disposition of these balances for its customers which amounted to \$283.8 million at December 31, 2001.

Reserve for Claim Losses. Our reserve for claim losses includes known claims as well as losses we expect to incur, net of recoupments. Each known claim is reserved for on the basis of a review by us as to the estimated amount of the claim and the costs required to settle the claim. Reserves for claims which are incurred but not reported are provided for at the time premium revenue is recognized based on historical loss experience and other factors, including industry averages, claim loss history, current legal environment, geographic considerations and type of policy written. The occurrence of a significant major claim in any given period could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations for such period.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements. In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, Business Combinations (SFAS No. 141) and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (SFAS No. 142). SFAS No. 141 requires that all business combinations be accounted for under the purchase

method. The statement further requires separate recognition of intangible assets. The statement applies to all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001.

SFAS No. 142 requires intangible assets to be initially recognized and measured based on fair value. The statement also provides that goodwill should not be amortized, but shall be tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if circumstances indicate potential impairment, through a comparison of fair value to its carrying amount. Existing goodwill was amortized through December 31, 2001, after which time amortization ceased. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, we performed a transitional goodwill impairment test and there was no impairment of goodwill.

Beginning on January 1, 2002, the Company ceased recording goodwill amortization in accordance with SFAS No. 142. The following table reconciles reported net earnings and net earnings per share to adjusted net earnings and net earnings per share.

	Year Ended December 31,		
	2001	2000	1999
Reported net earnings	\$11,264	\$2,015	\$5,625
Add back: Amortization of cost in excess of net assets acquired	551	512	201
Add back: Tax effect of amortization of cost in excess of net assets acquired			
Adjusted net earnings	\$11,815	\$2,527	\$5,826
Basic Earnings Per Share:			
Reported net earnings	\$ 1.20	\$ 0.20	\$ 0.60
Amortization of cost in excess of net assets acquired	0.06	0.05	0.02
Tax effect of amortization of cost in excess of net assets acquired			
Adjusted net earnings per share basic	\$ 1.26	\$ 0.25	\$ 0.62
Adjusted net carmings per snare—basic	φ 1.20	φ 0.23	\$ 0.02
Diluted Earnings Per Share:		<u></u>	
Reported net earnings	\$ 1.09	\$ 0.20	\$ 0.59
Amortization of cost in excess of net assets acquired	0.06	0.05	0.02
Tax effect of amortization of cost in excess of net assets acquired	0.00	0.03	0.02
1			
Adjusted net earnings per share diluted	\$ 1.15	\$ 0.25	\$ 0.61

In October 2001, the Financial Accounting Standard Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets (SFAS No. 144) which address financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. While SFAS No. 44 supersedes Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of, it retains many of the fundamental provisions of that statement. SFAS No. 144 will not have a material impact on our financial statement or results of operations.

The following events affected our financial statements over the past several years.

We received net proceeds of approximately \$8.4 million in connection with our initial public offering on February 12, 1999. The underwriters exercised an option for over allotment to purchase an additional 206,250 shares at \$4.36 per share on March 31, 1999, which resulted in net proceeds in the amount of \$804,000.

In December 2000 and continuing through April 2001, we purchased 472,866 shares of our common stock at a cost of \$1.4 million (an average price per share of \$2.93), pursuant to the Stock Repurchase Program approved by the Board of Directors in September 1999, authorizing the repurchase of 687,500 shares of our common stock.

In June 2001, we purchased 1,117,500 shares of our common stock from FNF for \$4.9 million or \$4.36 per share, which is FNF s cost. The fair market value of our common stock on the date of transaction was \$3.99 per share. After this transaction FNF owned approximately 19.5% of our common stock.

During the third quarter, we entered into a settlement agreement relating to an acquisition that resulted in a goodwill reduction in the amount of \$620,000, thereby reducing intangible assets on the balance sheet.

In December 2001, the Board approved the cancellation and retirement of 1,670,796 shares of our common stock previously held in treasury.

The following chronology of transactions had varying impacts on our financial statements. These acquisitions transactions were accounted for under the purchase accounting method. The results of operations were included in earnings from the date of the acquisitions through December 31, 2001.

In January 1999, we agreed to purchase 100% of the assets of Pacific Printers, a printing company providing affiliated and non-affiliated reproduction of forms and printing material. The purchase price was \$125,000, paid in cash.

In February 1999, one of our directors exercised options and we received proceeds in the amount of \$220,000.

On April 14, 1999, we purchased a corporate office building located in Orange, California for \$2.6 million. We borrowed \$2.1 million, secured by a first trust deed. The terms of the note payable require monthly interest payments at prime rate and monthly principal payments of \$4,000. The note matures on April 1, 2004. The costs associated with the relocation to the executive offices were minimal.

In May 1999, the Department of Insurance, State of New York, approved the acquisition of National Title Insurance of New York, Inc. by ATC from FNF. The \$3.25 million transaction was paid in cash in June 1999.

In January 2000, we purchased 100% of the stock of Bancserv, Inc., a California corporation located in Yorba Linda, California. Bancserv, Inc. is a document company providing outsource services to the real estate and banking industry through a national network of qualified notaries public. The purchase price was \$1.3 million, \$400,000 paid in cash and a \$900,000 promissory note that bears interest at a rate of 7.5%, and is due in full on January 2005. The note requires monthly payments of \$15,500 beginning February 14, 2000.

In February 2000, we purchased 100% of the stock of Pioneer Land Title Corporation ($\,$ Pioneer $\,$), a New York corporation. Pioneer provides title and escrow services in the state of New York. The purchase price was \$1.8 million, \$360,000 paid in cash and a \$1.4 million promissory note that bears interest at 6.6% per annum from the purchase date through the fourth anniversary date.

In February 2000, we purchased 100% of the membership interests of Emerald Mortgagee Assistance Company (EMAC), a full service provider of release and assignment document preparation, document retrieval and special title assistance headquartered in Colorado with operations nationwide. The purchase price of \$1.9 million was paid in cash of \$1.7 million, subject to certain purchase price adjustments based on the combined equity of EMAC and American Research Services, its affiliate, and 80,430 shares of our common stock. In July 2001, based on a settlement of the original purchase price, the shares of common stock and cash returned to the company resulted in a goodwill reduction in the amount of \$620,000 on the balance sheet.

Recent Developments

In February 2002, we entered into an agreement with Clark County Title Service, Inc. in order to gain access to the Clark County title plant, at a purchase price of \$1.2 million.

Also in February 2002, we entered into a purchase agreement with Sommerset Group, LLC, a California limited liability company to purchase real property in the County of Orange, California. Based upon certain conditions the purchase price is \$1.1 million, payable at the close of escrow, which is anticipated on or about April 15, 2002.

On February 28, 2002, Pioneer National Title of Nevada, Inc., a subsidiary of ATC, was licensed to engage in the business of title insurance in the state of Nevada.

On March 13, 2002, the Company s Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of \$.125 per share, payable on April 8, 2002 to stockholders of record as of March 25, 2002.

On June 27, 2002, our Board of Directors declared a five-for-four (25%) stock split effective July 18, 2002. All data with respect to earnings per share, dividends per share and share information, including price per share where applicable, have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the effects of the stock split.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about the Market Risk of Financial Instruments

Our Consolidated Balance Sheets includes a substantial amount of assets and liabilities whose fair values are subject to market risks. The following sections address the significant market risks associated with our financial activities for the years ended 2001 and 2000.

Interest Rate Risk

Our fixed maturity investments and borrowings are subject to interest rate risk. Increases and decreases in prevailing interest rates generally translate into decreases and increases in fair values of those instruments. Additionally, fair values of interest rate sensitive instruments may be affected by the creditworthiness of the issuer, prepayment options, relative values of alternative investments, the liquidity of the instrument and other general market conditions.

Equity Price Risk

The carrying values of investments subject to equity price risks are based on quoted market prices or management sestimates of fair value as of the balance sheet date. Market prices are subject to fluctuation, and consequently, the amount realized in the subsequent sale of an investment may significantly differ from the reported market value. Fluctuation in the market price of a security may result from perceived changes in the underlying economic characteristics of the investee, the relative price of alternative investments and general market conditions. Furthermore, amounts realized in the sale of a particular security may be affected by the relative quantity of the security being sold.

Caution should be used in evaluating our overall market risk from the information below, since actual results could differ materially because the information was developed using estimates and assumptions as described below, and because our reserve for claim losses (representing 9.1% of total liabilities) is not included in the hypothetical effects.

The hypothetical effects of changes in market rates or prices on the fair values of financial instruments would have been as follows as of December 31, 2001:

- a. An approximate \$1.0 million net increase (decrease) in the fair value of fixed maturity securities would have occurred if interest rates had (decreased) increased by 100 basis points. The change in fair values was determined by estimating the present value of future cash flows using various models, primarily duration modeling.
- b. It is not anticipated that there would be a significant change in the fair value of other long-term investments or short-term investments if there was a change in market conditions, based on the nature and duration of the financial instruments involved.
- c. Interest expense on outstanding debt would have increased (decreased) approximately \$19,000, if interest rates increased (decreased) 100 basis points.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

INDEX TO FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ANFI, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

	Page
•	
Independent Auditors Report	D-31
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2001 and 2000	D-32
Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the years ended December 31,	
2001, 2000 and 1999	D-33
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Earnings for the years ended	
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999	D-34
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity for the years ended	
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999	D-35
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31,	
2001, 2000 and 1999	D-36
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements	D-37
Financial Statement Schedule Valuation and Qualifying Accounts	D-60

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

The Board of Directors and Shareholders ANFI, Inc.:

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ANFI, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company), formerly American National Financial, Inc., as listed in the accompanying index. In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we also have audited the financial statement schedule as listed in the accompanying index. These consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of ANFI, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

KPMG LLP

Los Angeles, California

February 21, 2002, except as to Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements, which is as of July 18, 2002

ANFI, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Formerly American National Financial, Inc.)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

	Decen	iber 31,
	2001	2000
		ands, except
ASSETS		,
Current assets:		
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 9,400	\$ 9,450
Short-term investments, at cost, which approximates fair		
market value	618	415
Accrued investment interest	383	145
Trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of \$2,011 in 2001 and \$2,118 in 2000	3,803	3,925
Notes receivables related party, net	1,812	2,141
Deferred tax asset	3,737	3,182
Prepaid expenses and other current assets	507	819
Total current assets	20,260	20,077
Investment securities available for sale, at fair market value	24,721	10,533
Property and equipment, net	7,614	7,502
Title plants	2,699	2,699
Deposits with the Insurance Commissioner	133	133
Intangibles, net of accumulated amortization of \$2,022 in	133	133
2001 and \$1,471 in 2000	11,226	12,397
Total assets	\$66,653	\$53,341
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS	EQUITY	
Current liabilities:	•	
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses	\$15,092	\$ 5,998
Customer advances	4,802	3,087
Current portion of long-term debt	566	555
Current portion of obligations under capital leases with		
affiliates	102	113
Current portion of obligations under capital leases with		
non-affiliates	146	135
Reserve for claim losses	2,730	2,431
Income tax payable		1,348
Due to affiliate	2,712	2,294
Total current liabilities	26,150	15,961
Long-term debt	2,962	3,528
Obligations under capital leases with affiliates	722	823
Obligations under capital leases with non-affiliates	906	1,052
Total liabilities	30,740	21,364
Shareholders equity:	50,770	21,504
Preferred stock, no par value; authorized 5,000,000 shares;		
issued and outstanding, none		
C		

Common stock, no par value; authorized, 50,000,000 shares;

issued 8,869,712 in 2001 and 10,229,920 in 2000

Additional paid-in capital	20,905	22,744
Retained earnings	13,741	9,409
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)	1,267	(136)
Less treasury stock, 0 shares in 2001 and 19,071 shares in		
2000, at cost		(40)
Total shareholders equity	35,913	31,977
Total liabilities and shareholders equity	\$66,653	\$53,341

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

ANFI, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Formerly American National Financial, Inc.)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

Year Ended December 31

	Tear Ended December 51			
	2001	2000	1999	
	(In thousands, except per share data)			
Revenues:	`	, . .	,	
Net title service revenue related party	\$ 76,435	\$44,144	\$51,899	
Escrow fees	32,176	21,969	25,190	
Underwriting premiums	8,890	3,461	452	
Ancillary service fees	17,080	12,684	11,362	
Gain (loss) on sale/exchange of equity security	1,001	(134)		
Investment revenue	1,267	1,047	930	
Total revenue	136,849	83,171	89,833	
Total revenue	150,049	05,171	<u></u>	
-				
Expenses:	72.000	51 100	54.077	
Personnel costs	73,909	51,189	54,277	
Other operating expenses includes \$3,937, \$3,801 and \$3,789				
with affiliate for the twelve-month period ended December 31,	25.222	22.245	10.750	
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively	35,233	23,245	19,759	
Title plant rent and maintenance	7,946	5,322	6,264	
Total expenses	117,088	79,756	80,300	
Earnings before income taxes	19,761	3,415	9,533	
Income taxes	8,497	1,400	3,908	
nicono anos				
N	¢ 11.074	¢ 2.015	ф <i>5 (</i> 05	
Net earnings	\$ 11,264	\$ 2,015	\$ 5,625	
Basic earnings per share	\$ 1.20	\$ 0.20	\$ 0.60	
• •				
Wile I and I are the I are the I	0.207	10.005	0.445	
Weighted average shares outstanding, basic basis	9,386	10,085	9,445	
Diluted earnings per share	\$ 1.09	\$ 0.20	\$ 0.59	
Wile I I I I I I I I I I	10.205	10.005	0.405	
Weighted average shares outstanding, diluted basis	10,295	10,085	9,485	
Cash dividends per share, actual	\$ 0.45	\$ 0.40	\$ 0.40	
F	* *****	7	Ţ 09	
Cash dividends per share after giving retroactive effect to 10%	<u>.</u>	<u>.</u>		
stock dividend and 25% stock split	\$ 0.34	\$ 0.28	\$ 0.28	

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

ANFI, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Formerly American National Financial, Inc.)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS

Year Ended December 31,

	2001	2000	1999
		(In thousands)	
Net earnings	\$11,264	\$2,015	\$5,625
Other comprehensive earnings (loss)			
Unrealized gains (losses) on investments, net(1)	1,959	(29)	(189)
Reclassification adjustments for (gains) losses in net earnings(2)	(556)	82	0
			
Other comprehensive earnings (loss)	1,403	53	(189)
Comprehensive earnings	\$12,667	\$2,068	\$5,436

⁽¹⁾ Net of income taxes (benefit) of \$1.3 million, (\$20,000) and (\$116,000) for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

⁽²⁾ Net of income taxes (benefit) of \$420,000, (\$57,000) and \$0 for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

ANFI, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Formerly American National Financial, Inc.)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

	Common S	tock	Treasury	Stock	Additional Paid-In	Retained	Accumulated Other Comprehensive	Total Shareholders
	Shares	Amount	Shares	Amount	Capital		(Loss) Earnings	Equity
			(In thou	ısands, except	share and per	share data)		
Balance, December 31, 1998 Other comprehensive earnings- unrealized loss on investment available	6,761,008	\$		\$	\$12,324	\$ 7,574	\$ (190)	\$19,898
for sale Stock options exercised Cash dividends declared (\$0.20 per chara)	457,743				220	(2.862)	(189)	(189) 220
(\$0.29 per share) Issuance of shares	2,654,432				9,340	(2,863)		(2,863) 9,340
Net earnings	2,034,432	_				5,625		5,625
Other comprehensive earnings- unrealized gain	9,873,183	-			21,884	10,336	(189)	\$32,031
on investment available for sale							53	53
Cash dividends declared (\$0.29 per share) Issuance of shares	356,737				860	(2,942)		(2,942) 860
Purchase of treasury shares	550,757		(19,071)	(40)	000			(40)
Net earnings		_				2,015		2,015
Balance, December 31, 2000	10,229,920	_	(19,071)	(40)	22,744	9,409	(136)	\$31,977
Exercise of stock options, including associated tax benefit	206,704				631			631
Other comprehensive earnings- unrealized gain on investment available	200,701				031			031
for sale Acquisition price							1,403	1,403
reduction Cash dividends declared (\$0.34 per share)			(80,430)	(200)	(30)	(3,193)		(200)
(\$0.34 per share) Issuance of shares	103,884				218	(3,193)		218
Stock repurchase			(1,117,500)	(4,875)				(4,875)
Purchase of treasury shares Retirement of treasury			(453,795)	(1,312)				(1,312)
shares	(1,670,796)		1,670,796	6,427	(6,427)			
10% stock dividend			, ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	,	3,769	(3,769)		
Net earnings						11,264		11,264
Balance, December 31, 2001	8,869,712	\$		\$	\$20,905	\$13,741	\$1,267	\$35,913

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

ANFI, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Formerly American National Financial, Inc.)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,

	Year Ended December 31,			
	2001	2000	1999	
	(In thousands)			
Cash flows from operating activities:	* 11.264	4.2015	Φ. 5.605	
Net earnings	\$ 11,264	\$ 2,015	\$ 5,625	
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to cash provided by				
operating activities:				
Depreciation and amortization	2,776	2,514	2,415	
(Gain) Loss on sale of investments	(976)	139		
Loss on sale of property and equipment	363		18	
Gain on sale of property and equipment	(4)	(190)		
Changes in:				
Accounts receivables, net	122	939	4,053	
Interest receivable	(238)	100	(245)	
Tax benefit associated with the exercise of stock options	140			
Prepaid expenses and other assets	465	316	503	
Income taxes receivable (payable) and deferred income				
taxes	(2,896)	1,376	(3,876)	
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses	8,957	(616)	(1,016)	
Reserve for claim loss	299	90	(1,970)	
Due to (from) affiliates	418	652	(251)	
Customer advances	1,715	1,308	(411)	
Total cash provided by operating activities	22,405	8,643	4,845	
Cash flow from investing activities:				
Purchase of property and equipment	(2,849)	(1,549)	(6,011)	
Additions to notes receivable	(228)	(1,078)	(1,401)	
Collections on notes receivable	557	266	72	
Proceeds from sale of investment securities	3,055	5,059		
Purchase of investment securities	(13,871)	(1,656)	(9,690)	
Proceeds from short term investments	(,)	1,079	(2,020)	
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment		220	395	
Purchase of short term investments	(203)		5,5	
Purchase of title plant	(200)		(75)	
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash received	420	(2,542)	(2,550)	
requisition of substatutes, not of cash received		(2,3 12)	(2,330)	
Takal analysis in the sales and in its and in the sales and in its and in the sales and in its and in the sales and in the sa	(12 110)	(201)	(10.260)	
Total cash used in investing activities	(13,119)	(201)	(19,260)	
Cash flows from financing activities:				
Borrowings			1,601	
Repayment of long-term debt	(555)	(570)	1,001	
Proceeds from stock options exercised	491	(370)	220	
Proceeds from issuance of common stock	218	660	9,340	
Payments of capital lease obligations	(247)	(205)	(867)	
•	(3,056)			
Dividends paid Payurahasa of transpury stock	. , ,	(2,198)	(2,863)	
Repurchase of treasury stock	(6,187)	(40)		
	(0.226)	(0.252)	7 421	
Total cash provided by (used in) financing activities	(9,336)	(2,353)	7,431	

Edgar Filing: FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL INC /DE/ - Form S-4

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	(50)	6,089	(6,984)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year	9,450	3,361	10,345
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year	\$ 9,400	\$ 9,450	\$ 3,361
,		,	
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:			
Cash paid during the year:			
Interest	\$ 422	\$ 475	\$ 174
Income taxes	5,059	1,741	7,441
Non-cash investing activities:			
Dividend declared and unpaid	881	744	
Purchase of subsidiaries:			
Assets acquired at fair value	\$	\$ 1,156	\$ 6,224
Cost in excess of net assets acquired	(620)	4,905	1,505
Cash paid for acquisitions	420	(2,565)	(3,250)
Liabilities assumed and debt issued	\$ (200)	\$ 3,496	\$ 4,479

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

ANFI, INC.

(Formerly American National Financial, Inc.)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Description of Business

ANFI, Inc., formerly American National Financial, Inc., was incorporated in the State of California in November 1996 as a holding company for certain investments in title and real estate related service companies. In March 1997, 4,161,300 of shares were issued to founding shareholders. Prior to 1997, ANFI, Inc. and subsidiaries (collectively, the Company) had substantially no operations. In April 1997, we received \$6.0 million in proceeds from the issuance of short-term notes payable, of which \$870,000 was due to certain members of management and the remainder to a financial institution, in connection with an agreement with Fidelity National Financial, Inc. (FNF) to acquire a 60% interest in American Title Company (ATC). Upon consummation of the sale in July 1997, we paid FNF \$6.0 million for 60% of ATC. In August 1997, we refinanced all debt issued in April 1997. In November 1998, we acquired the remaining 40% interest in ATC in connection with the reorganization.

In February 1999, we completed an Initial Public Offering of 2,406,250 shares at \$4.36 per share, resulting in FNF then owning 31.5% of the outstanding shares and management owning 37%. In connection with the offering, the underwriters exercised an option for over allotment to purchase an additional 206,250 shares at \$4.36 per share on March 31, 1999. See Note 9.

Our principal operations are those of ATC. ATC is an underwritten title company (UTC) in the state of California and is engaged in the business of providing title insurance and other related product services in connection with real estate transactions. We operate throughout California, and Maricopa, Pinal and Pima counties located in Arizona. ATC functions as an agent of Chicago Title Insurance Company (CTIC), affiliate and wholly-owned subsidiary of FNF, owner of 19.5% of the Company common stock at December 31, 2001. Title insurance policies are underwritten by CTIC for an underwriting fee. The underwriting agreement generally provides that ATC is liable under any single policy for only the first \$5,000 of losses. As a result of the July 1997 transaction, FNFI agreed to make no claim on ATC for claims arising from policies written prior to January 1, 1997.

In May 1999, the Department of Insurance, State of New York, approved the acquisition of National Title Insurance of New York, Inc. (National), a New York domiciled underwriter, by American Title Company, a subsidiary of American National Financial Inc., from FNF. National is licensed to issue title insurance policies in 34 states, the District of Columbia and the U.S. Virgin Islands. The \$3.25 million dollar purchase price was paid in cash and the transaction was completed in June 1999.

National did not underwrite any significant title insurance policies through direct operations or agency relationships during 2001, 2000 and 1999. National will allow us to generate additional revenue by writing title insurance policies in those geographic areas which are not covered by ATC s agency arrangements with CTIC. See Note 12.

Our other subsidiaries include American Title Insurance Agency of Arizona, Inc., American Title Agency of Pima County, Inc., Landmark REO Management Services, Inc.; American Document Services, Inc.; West Point Appraisal, Inc.; West Point Properties, Inc.; West Point Support Services, Inc., Pacific Printers, Pioneer Land Title Corporation, Bancserv, Inc., National Title Insurance of New York, Inc. and American National Exchange Services, Inc. These subsidiaries are wholly-owned by the Company.

Effective December 12, 2002, the Company changed its name to ANFI, Inc.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All inter-company profits, transactions and balances have been eliminated.

ANFI, INC. (Formerly American National Financial, Inc.)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, highly liquid instruments purchased with original maturities of three months or less are considered cash equivalents. The carrying amounts reported in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets for these instruments approximate their fair value.

Trade Receivables

The carrying amounts for trade receivables approximate their fair value. Trade receivables are reported net of allowance for doubtful accounts which represents management s estimates of those balances that are not collectible as of the balance sheet date.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, less depreciation and amortization. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the related assets that range from three to thirty years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the lesser of the term of the applicable lease or the estimated useful lives of such assets.

Title Plants

Title plants are historical title information organized and maintained for use in performing title searches. The December 31, 2001 and 2000 title plant balances are comprised of the Company s capital leases. See Note 11. Costs incurred to maintain, update and operate title plants are expensed as incurred. Sales of title plants are reported at the amount received net of the adjusted costs of the title plant sold. Sales of title plant copies are reported at the amount received. No cost is allocated to the sale of copies of a title plant unless the carrying value of the plant is diminished or impaired. Title plants are not amortized as they are considered to have an indefinite life, if maintained.

Investments

The fixed maturity securities are purchased to support our investment strategies, which are developed based on many factors including rate of return, maturity, credit risk, tax considerations and regulatory requirements. Fixed maturity securities which may be sold prior to maturity to support the Company s investment strategies are carried at fair value and are classified as available for sale. Fair values for fixed maturity securities are principally a function of current interest rates and are based on quoted market prices.

Equity securities are considered to be available for sale and carried at fair value. Fair values are based on quoted market prices.

Short-term investments, which consist primarily of securities purchased under agreements to resell, commercial paper and money market instruments, which have an original maturity of one year or less, are carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.

Realized gains and losses on the sale of investments are determined on the basis of the cost of the specific investments sold and are credited or charged to income on a trade date basis. Unrealized gains or losses on fixed maturity and equity securities which are classified as available for sale, net of applicable deferred income taxes (benefits), are excluded from income and credited or charged directly to a separate component of shareholders—equity. If any unrealized losses on fixed maturity or equity securities are deemed other than temporary, such unrealized losses are recognized as realized losses.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets include acquired licenses to operate within various counties and the cost in excess of net assets acquired in connection with the acquisitions. Intangibles are amortized on a straight-line basis over a composite life of 25 years at December 31, 2001. Impairment of intangible assets is assessed based on an analysis of the undiscounted cash flows generated by the underlying assets. No impairment of intangible assets has been recognized.

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, Business Combinations (SFAS No. 141) and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (SFAS No. 142). SFAS No. 141 requires that all business combinations be accounted for under the purchase method. The statement further requires separate recognition of intangible assets. The statement applies to all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001.

SFAS No. 142 requires intangible assets to be initially recognized and measured based on its fair value. The statement also provides that goodwill should not be amortized, but shall be tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if circumstances indicate potential impairment, through a comparison of fair value to its carrying amount. Existing goodwill was amortized through December 31, 2001, after which time amortization ceased. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, the Company performed a transitional goodwill impairment test and there was no impairment of goodwill.

Beginning on January 1, 2002, the Company ceased recording goodwill amortization in accordance with SFAS No. 142. The following table reconciles reported net earnings and net earnings per share to adjusted net earnings and net earnings per share.

	Year Ended December 31,		
	2001	2000	1999
Reported net earnings	\$11,264	\$2,015	\$5,625
Add back: Amortization of cost in excess of net assets acquired Add back: Tax effect of amortization of cost in excess of net assets acquired	551	512	201
Adjusted net earnings	\$11,815	\$2,527	\$5,826
Basic Earnings Per Share:			
Reported net earnings Amortization of cost in excess of net assets acquired	\$ 1.20 0.06	\$ 0.20 0.05	\$ 0.60 0.02
Tax effect of amortization of cost in excess of net assets acquired			
Adjusted net earnings per share basic	\$ 1.26	\$ 0.25	\$ 0.62
Diluted Earnings Per Share:			
Reported net earnings	\$ 1.09	\$ 0.20	\$ 0.59
Amortization of cost in excess of net assets acquired	0.06	0.05	0.02
Tax effect of amortization of cost in excess of net assets acquired			
Adjusted net earnings per share diluted	\$ 1.15	\$ 0.25	\$ 0.61

ANFI, INC. (Formerly American National Financial, Inc.)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Capital Lease Obligations

Capital lease obligations for title plants are recorded at the present value of the minimum lease payments at the beginning of the lease terms. The monthly payments under the leases are allocated between a reduction of the obligation and interest expense so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the obligation.

Revenue Recognition

Net title insurance premiums, escrow fees and other related charges are recognized as revenue at the time of closing of the related real estate transaction. Other service charges are recognized when the service is provided. Premiums from title policies written other than those underwritten by National are presented net of the underwriting fee to affiliated underwriters on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Earnings.

Title and Claim Losses

Expenses are recognized when incurred. A provision for claim losses on title policies is provided at the time of closing of the related real estate transaction to cover anticipated losses up to \$5,000 per policy under the underwriting fee with CTIC. Our reserve for ATC claim losses in the amount of \$1.2 million and \$683,000 on these policies is included in accounts payable and other accrued expenses as of December 31, 2001 and 2000.

Reserve for Claim Losses

Our reserve for National claim losses includes known claims as well as losses we expects to incur, net of recoupments. Each known claim is reserved for on the basis of a review as to the estimated amount of the claim and the costs required to settle the claim. Reserves for claims which are incurred but not reported are provided for at the time premium revenue is recognized based on historical loss experience and other factors, including industry averages, claim loss history, current legal environment, geographic considerations and type of policy written. The occurrence of a significant major claim in any given period could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations for such period. See Note 8.

Reinsurance

In the ordinary course of business, we reinsure certain risks with other insurers for the purpose of limiting its maximum loss exposure and also assumes reinsurance for certain risks of other insurers for the purpose of earning additional revenue. We may cede or assume a portion of certain policy liabilities under agent fidelity, excess of loss and case-by-case reinsurance agreements. Reinsurance agreements provide that in the event of a loss (including costs, attorneys fees and expenses) exceeding the retained amounts, the reinsurer is liable for the excess amount assumed. However, the ceding company remains primarily liable in the event the reinsurer does not meet its contractual obligations. Reinsurance activity is not considered significant.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for temporary differences between the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of our assets and liabilities and expected benefits of utilizing net operating loss and credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The impact on deferred taxes of changes in tax rates and laws, if any, are applied to the years during which temporary differences are expected to be settled and recorded in the period enacted.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Segment Reporting

We provide a broad range of real estate services. While our chief decision-makers monitor the revenue streams by different real estate services, operations are managed and financial performance is evaluated on a company-wide basis. Accordingly, all of our operations are considered by management to be aggregated in one reportable operating segment.

Share and Per Share Restatement

On May 24, 2001, the Company declared a 10% stock dividend to stockholders of record on June 7, 2001, payable on June 21, 2001. The fair value of the additional shares of common stock issued in connection with the stock dividend was credited to additional paid-in capital and a like amount charged to retained earnings during 2001. Fractional shares were paid in cash.

All data with respect to earnings per share, dividends per share and share information, including price per share where applicable, in the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the stock dividend.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net earnings by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Dilutive earnings per share is calculated by dividing net earnings by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding plus the assumed conversions of potential dilutive securities. We have granted certain options which have been treated as common share equivalents for purposes of calculating diluted earnings per share.

All data, with respect to earnings per share, dividends per share and share information, including price per share, where applicable, in the Consolidated Financial Statements, has been retroactively adjusted to reflect the 10% stock dividend in May 2001 and 25% stock split in July 2002.

		December 31,		
	2001	2000	1999	
	(In thousands, except per share data)			
Net earnings	\$11,264	\$ 2,015	\$5,625	
Weighted average basic shares	9,386	10,085	9,445	
Basic earnings per share	\$ 1.20	\$ 0.20	\$ 0.60	
Weighted average basic shares	9,386	10,085	9,445	
Effect of dilutive options	909		40	
Weighted average dilutive shares	10,295	10,085	9,485	
Diluted earnings per share	\$ 1.09	\$ 0.20	\$ 0.59	

Options to purchase 437,500 shares, 490,935 shares and 462,831 shares of the Company s common stock were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the options exercise price was greater than the average market price of the common shares for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

ANFI, INC. (Formerly American National Financial, Inc.)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Certain Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made in the 2001, 2000 and 1999 Consolidated Financial Statements to conform to the classifications used in 2002.

3. Acquisitions

In May 1999, the Department of Insurance, State of New York, approved the acquisition of National Title Insurance of New York, Inc., a New York domiciled underwriter by ATC a subsidiary of American National Financial Inc., from Fidelity National Financial, Inc. National Title Insurance of New York, Inc. is licensed to issue title insurance policies in 34 states, the District of Columbia and the U.S. Virgin Islands. The \$3.25 million dollar purchase price was paid in cash and the transaction was completed in June 1999. While the results of operations for National continue to increase due to agency operations the amounts are insignificant for 2001, 2000 and 1999.

In January 2000, we completed the acquisition of Bancserv, Inc. a California corporation located in the county of Orange, California. Bancserv, Inc. a document company, provides outsource services to the real estate and banking industry through a network of qualified notaries public. The purchase price was \$1.3 million, payable \$400,000 in cash and a \$900,000 promissory note subject to certain purchase price adjustments based on the audited closing date balance sheet. The effects of the audit resulted in a purchase price adjustment of \$118,000. This transaction was accounted for as a purchase. The balance of the promissory note at December 31, 2001 was \$497,600.

In February 2000, we purchased 100% of the stock of Pioneer, a New York corporation providing title and escrow services in the state of New York. The purchase price was \$1.8 million, payable \$360,000 in cash and a \$1.4 million promissory note with interest at 6.6% per annum, to be paid in equal annual installments over a five-year period. The balance of the promissory note at December 31, 2001 and 2000 was \$1.1 million and \$1.4 million. This transaction was accounted for as a purchase.

In February 2000, we purchased 100% of the membership interests of EMAC, a full service provider of release and assignment document preparation, document retrieval and special title assistance located in Colorado. The purchase price was \$1.9 million, \$1.7 million was paid in cash, subject to certain purchase price adjustments based on the combined equity of EMAC and American Research Services, its affiliate, and 80,438 shares of the our common stock. This transaction was accounted for as a purchase. In July 2001, based on a settlement of the original purchase price, the shares of common stock and cash returned to the company resulted in a goodwill reduction in the amount of \$620,000 on the balance sheet.

In September 2000, we purchased 100% of the assets of CTIC s Pima County, Arizona operations, American Title Agency of Pima County, Inc. The purchase price was \$105,000 and paid in cash. This transaction was accounted for as a purchase. The assets acquired represents the fair market value of a title plant located in Tucson.

The assets acquired, including cost in excess of net assets acquired, and liabilities assumed, in the acquisitions of National Title Insurance of New York, Inc., Bancserv Inc., Pioneer Land Title Corporation,

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Emerald Mortgagee Assistance Company, LLC, and the CTIC Pima County operation are summarized in the following table:

	National	Bancserv	Pioneer	Emerald	Pima	Total
			(Amounts in the	ousands)		
Tangible assets acquired at fair value	\$ 6,224	\$ 172	\$ 165	\$ 392	\$ 427	\$ 7,380
Cost in excess of net assets acquired	1,505	1,100	1,725	2,080		6,410
Liabilities assumed at fair value	(4,479)	(90)	(90)	(570)	(322)	(5,551)
Goodwill price reduction				(620)		(620)
Total purchase price	\$ 3,250	\$1,182	\$1,800	\$1,282	\$ 105	\$ 7,619

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following:

	Decem	ber 31,	
	2001	2000	
	(Amounts in thousands)		
Furniture, fixtures and equipment	\$ 8,451	\$ 6,720	
Leasehold improvements	1,866	1,722	
Office building	3,275	3,275	
	13,592	11,717	
Accumulated depreciation and amortization	(5,978)	(4,215)	
	\$ 7,614	\$ 7,502	

5. Investment Securities Available for Sale

It is our practice to purchase investment grade fixed maturity securities. The securities in our portfolio are subject to economic conditions and normal market risks and uncertainties.

The carrying amount and fair values of the Company s fixed maturity at December 31, 2001 and 2000 are as follows:

	Gross	Gross	
Amortized	Unrealized	Unrealized	Fair
Cost	Gains	Losses	Value

Edgar Filing: FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL INC /DE/ - Form S-4

Fixed maturity investments (available for sale):				
U.S. government and agencies	\$ 7,138	\$ 47	\$ (1)	\$ 7,184
States and political subdivisions	1,736	57		1,793
Corporate securities	13,057	140	(209)	12,988
	\$21,931	\$244	\$(210)	\$21,965

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

December 31, 2000

	Amortized Cost	Gross Unrealized Gains	Gross Unrealized Losses	Fair Value
		(Amounts in	thousands)	
U.S. government and agencies	\$1,478	\$ 23	\$	\$1,501
States and political subdivisions	7,627	27	(693)	6,961
	\$9,105	\$ 50	\$(693)	\$8,462

The change in unrealized gains (losses) on fixed maturities for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 was \$677,000, (\$271,000) and \$0, respectively.

The following tables sets forth certain information regarding our investment securities at December 31, 2001. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because certain borrowers have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. Investment securities with an amortized cost of \$1.5 million and \$1.7 million and a fair value of \$1.3 million and \$1.2 million were callable at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively:

December 31, 2001

	Amortized Cost	Fair Value
	(Amounts in t	housands)
Maturity		
One year or less	\$ 2,304	\$ 2,350
After one year through five years	13,539	13,706
After five years through ten years	6,088	5,909
	\$21,931	\$21,965

Equity securities at December 31, 2001 and 2000 consist of investments as follows:

December 31,

	2001	20	000
Cost	Fair Value	Cost	Fair Value
	(Amounts	in thousands)	
\$656	\$2,756	\$1,657	\$2,071

Industrial, miscellaneous and all other

The carrying value of the Company s investment in equity securities is fair value. As of December 31, 2001, gross unrealized gains and gross unrealized losses on equity securities were \$2.1 million and \$0 million, respectively. Gross unrealized gains and gross unrealized losses on equity securities were \$414,000 million and \$0 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2000.

The change in unrealized gains (losses) on equity securities for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 was \$1.7 million, \$414,000 and \$0 million, respectively.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Interest and investment income, including realized gains (losses), consist of the following:

		December 31,		
	2001	2000	1999	
	(An	nounts in thousan	ıds)	
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 319	\$ 222	\$291	
Fixed maturity securities	1,735	645	427	
Short term investments	85	72	193	
Notes receivable	129	108	19	
	\$2,268	\$1,047	\$930	

Net realized gains (losses) included in interest and investment income amounted to \$1.0 million, (\$139,000) and \$0 for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. All amounts are before applicable income taxes.

During the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, gross realized gains on sales of fixed maturity securities considered available for sale were \$0, \$0 and \$0, respectively; and gross realized losses were \$24,000, \$139,000 and \$0, respectively. Gross proceeds from the sale of fixed maturity securities considered available for sale amounted to \$1.1 million, \$5.1 million and \$0 million during the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

During the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, gross realized gains on sales of equity securities considered available for sale were \$1.0 million, \$0 and \$0, respectively; and gross realized losses were \$0, \$0 and \$0, respectively. Gross proceeds from the sale of equity securities amounted to \$2.0 million, \$0 and \$0 during the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

6. Income Taxes

Income taxes (benefit) for years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 consists of the following (amounts in thousands):

		2001	
	Current	Deferred	Total
Federal	\$ 7,932	\$(1,219)	\$6,713
State and local	2,108	(324)	1,784
	\$10,040	\$(1,543)	\$8,497
		2000	
	Current	Deferred	Total
Federal	\$2,022	\$ (895)	\$1,127

State and local	478	(205)	273
	\$2,500	\$(1,100)	\$1,400
		1999	
	Current	Deferred	Total
Federal	\$4,024	\$(783)	\$3,241
State and local	854	(187)	667
	\$4,878	\$(970)	\$3,908

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The effective tax rate for the period reported differs from the Federal statutory income tax rate as follows:

	2001	2000	1999
Statutory Federal income tax rate	35.0%	34.0%	34.0%
Non-deductible expenses	1.1	6.9	1.9
Amortization of cost in excess of net assets acquired	0.9	4.8	1.1
State taxes, net of Federal deduction	5.5	5.7	4.3
Change in valuation allowance	(0.3)	(9.2)	
Other	0.8	(1.2)	(0.3)
		<u> </u>	
	43.0%	41.0%	41.0%

The deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2001 consist of the following:

	Deferred Tax Assets	Deferred Tax Liabilities
	(Amounts in thousands)	
Excess state income tax	\$ 553	\$
Provision for claim losses in excess of statutory amounts	267	
Excess book over tax provision for bad debts	859	
Employee benefit and vacation accruals	893	
Accrued liabilities	1,780	
Other	78	
Excess tax depreciation over book	542	
Net operating loss available for carryover	1,017	
Investment securities		(868)
Statutory unearned premium reserve		(844)
	5,989	(1,712)
Less: valuation allowance	(540)	
Total deferred taxes	\$5,449	\$(1,712)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2000 consist of the following:

	Deferred Tax Assets	Deferred Tax Liabilities
	(Amounts in thousands)	
Excess state income tax	\$ 124	\$
Provision for claim losses in excess of statutory amounts	263	
Excess book over tax provision for bad debts	851	
Employee benefit and vacation accruals	558	
Accrued liabilities	1,098	
Other	171	
Excess tax depreciation over book	402	
Net operating loss available for carryover	996	
Investment securities	121	
Statutory unearned premium reserve		(873)
	4,584	(873)
Less: valuation allowance	(529)	
Total deferred taxes	\$4,055	\$(873)

Based upon our current and historical pre-tax earnings, management believes it is more likely than not that the Company will realize the benefit of its existing net deferred tax assets. Management believes the existing net deductible temporary differences, after considering the valuation allowance, will reverse during periods in which we generate net taxable income. However, there can be no assurance that we will generate any earnings or any specific level of continuing earnings in future years. Certain tax planning or other strategies could be implemented, if necessary, to supplement income from operations to fully realize recorded tax benefits. The valuation allowance of \$540,000 in 2001 and \$529,000 in 2000 relates to National, whose net operating losses are restricted as to their availability and Santa Barbara Title (SBT).

7. Long Term Debt

In April 1999, we completed the purchase of a home office building located in Orange, California for \$2.6 million. We financed \$2.1 million, secured by a first trust deed and are required to make monthly interest payments at prime (4.75%) and principal payments of \$4,000. As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, the principal balance was \$1.9 million and \$2.0 million, respectively. The note matures on April 1, 2004.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Long term debt consists of the following:

	December 31,	
	2001	2000
	(Amou	ınts in ands)
Bank promissory note secured by real estate, with monthly principal		
payments of \$4,000 and interest due at prime, due April 2004	\$1,938	\$1,991
Promissory note, unsecured, with principal and interest due annually at		
6.56%, due February 2004	1,080	1,440
Promissory note, unsecured, with principal and interest due monthly at		
7.5%, due January 2005	510	652
	3,528	4,083
Less current portion of long term debt	(566)	(555)
Ending balance	\$2,962	\$3,528

Principal maturities are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Decem	December 31,	
2001	2000	
· ·	unts in sands)	
\$ 566	\$ 555	
578	566	
2,369	578	
15	2,369	
	15	
\$3,528	\$4,083	

8. Summary of Reserve for Claim Losses

A summary of the reserve for claim losses follows:

December 31,		
2001	2000	
(Amounts in		

thousands)	
\$2,431	\$2,341
454	164
(155)	(74)
\$2,730	\$2,431
	\$2,431 454 (155)

9. Shareholders Equity

Capital restrictions

Underwritten title companies are subject to certain regulations by insurance regulatory or banking authorities, primarily relating to minimum net worth and working capital. Minimum net worth of \$400,000 and minimum working capital of \$10,000 is required for ATC. The net worth of ATC was \$33.4 million,

ANFI, INC. (Formerly American National Financial, Inc.)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

\$23.0 million and \$20.5 million at December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The working capital of ATC was \$15.6 million, \$7.0 million and \$3.7 million on December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

National is subject to regulations that restrict its ability to pay dividends or make other distributions of cash or property to its parent company without prior approval from the Department of Insurance of the State of New York. The maximum amount of dividends which can be paid by National to shareholders without prior approval of the Insurance Commissioner is subject to restrictions. No dividends, including all dividends paid in the preceding twelve months, which exceed 10% of the outstanding capital shares can be paid without prior approval unless after deducting dividends the Company has surplus to policyholders at least equal to the greater of 50% of its reinsurance reserves or 50% of the minimum capital required. Additionally, dividends are further limited to the Company s earned surplus. Based on this formula, National could pay dividends to its parent of \$38,400 as of January 1, 2002.

The statutory capital and surplus of National was \$3.7 million, \$3.3 million and \$2.5 million as of December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999. The statutory earnings of National was \$617,000, \$684,000 and \$426,000 for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Stock Activity

In February 1999, we completed an Initial Public Offering of 2,406,250 shares at \$4.36 per share, resulting in Fidelity National Financial, Inc. then owning 31.5% of the outstanding shares and 37.0% owned by management. We received net proceeds of approximately \$8.4 million. In connection with the offering, the underwriters exercised an option for over allotment to purchase an additional 206,250 shares at \$4.36 per share on March 31, 1999.

Beginning in September 1999, we issued shares to employees for cash under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP). Shares issued for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 were 103,884 shares, 276,301 shares and 41,931 shares, respectively. In 2001, we also purchased 332,019 shares for the ESPP plan. See Note 10.

Beginning in December 2000, and continuing through April 2001, we purchased 472,866 shares at a cost of \$1.4 million (an average price per share of \$2.93), pursuant to the Stock Repurchase Program approved by the Board of Directors in September 1999, authorizing the repurchase of 687,500 shares of our common stock.

In June 2001, we purchased 1,117,500 shares of our common stock from Fidelity National Financial, Inc. for \$4.9 million or \$4.36 per share, which is FNF s cost. The fair market value of our common stock on date of transaction was \$3.99 per share. After this transaction FNF owned approximately 19.5% of our common stock.

In December 2001, the Board approved the cancellation and retirement of 1,670,796 shares of our common stock previously held in treasury.

10. Employee Benefit Plans

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In September 1999, shareholders approved the adoption of an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP). Under the terms of the ESPP, the plan encourages a sense of proprietorship on the part of the employees of American National Financial, Inc. and our subsidiary corporations by assisting them in making regular purchases of shares of our common stock. Our employees may contribute an amount between 5% and 15% of their base salary and certain commissions. We contribute varying amounts as specified in the ESPP. During the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, 294,476 shares, 276,301 shares and 41,931 shares were allocated to the employees based on their contributions, at an average price of \$5.94, \$2.26 and \$3.03 per share, respectively. We contributed \$200,700 and \$37,200 or the equivalent of 55,718 shares and 18,594 shares

ANFI, INC. (Formerly American National Financial, Inc.)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 and zero shares in 1999, and in accordance with the employee s matching contribution. A total of 612,709 shares have been issued by the ESPP since the adoption of the plan.

401(k) Plan

We offer the American National Financial, Inc. 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan, a qualified voluntary contributory savings plan, available to substantially all employees. Eligible employees may contribute up to 15% of their pretax annual compensation, up to the amount allowed pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code. We may elect to make matching contributions. We have not made any matching contributions.

Employee and Non-Employee Director Stock Purchase Loan Program

In September 1999, the Company s Board of Directors approved the adoption of the American National Financial, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Loan Plan (Employee Plan) and the Non-Employee Director Stock Purchase Loan Program (Director Program). The purpose of the Employee Plan and Directors Program is to provide key employees and directors with further incentive to maximize shareholder value. We authorized an aggregate of \$2.0 million in loans. The Employee Plan and the Director Program funds must be used to make private or open market purchases of Company common stock through a broker-dealer designated by the Company. All loans are full recourse and unsecured, and will have a five-year term. Interest will accrue on the loans at a rate of six and one quarter percent (6 1/4%) per annum due at maturity. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, interest was paid to the Company in the amount of \$10,000 and \$105,000. Loans may be prepaid any time without penalty. Loans were made in the amount of \$1.7 million to purchase 645,434 shares of our common stock at an average purchase price of \$2.89 per share. The fair values of the note receivable are established using current market rates. The fair value calculated at December 31, 2001 and 2000 was \$1.7 million and \$1.5 million, respectively.

Stock Option Plan

In June 1999, shareholders approved the adoption of the Stock Option Plan (1999 Option Plan). Under the terms of the 1999 Option Plan, the Company may grant stock options to certain executives, key employees and branch managers of the Company and its subsidiaries. The purpose of the 1999 Plan is to attract, retain and reward key employees and to provide incentives to those persons to improve operations and increase profits. Individuals to whom options are granted may reduce the exercise price of such options by electing to defer a portion of their annual bonuses which would otherwise be payable in cash. The maximum number of shares for which options may be granted to any one person during any one calendar year under the 1999 Plan is two hundred seventy-five thousand (275,000) shares. The number of shares reserved for issuance under the 1999 Plan and subsequent amendments is 2,440,625 shares of common stock. The per share option price is determined at the grant date. The option price may be less than the fair market value of the common stock at the date of grant to reflect the application of the optionee s deferred bonus, if applicable. Options granted under the 1999 Option Plan shall be fully vested after three years and be exercisable in such installments and for such periods as may be fixed at the time of grant, however, in no event should any stock options extend for a period in excess of 10 years from the date of grant.

In August 1998, the shareholders approved the adoption of the 1998 Incentive Stock Plan (1998 Incentive Plan). Under the terms of the 1998 Incentive Plan, the Company may grant incentive or nonqualified stock options to certain key employees and non-employee directors or officers. The number of shares issuable under the 1998 Incentive Plan is 893,750 shares at not less than 100% and 85% of fair market value on the date of the grant for incentive options and non-qualified options, plus an additional 275,000 shares of common stock on the date of each annual meeting of shareholders. Officers and other key employees of the

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Company or of an affiliated company are eligible to receive incentive stock options. Officers and our other key employees or of an affiliated company, members of the Board and other service providers are eligible to receive nonqualified stock options. The term and provision for the termination of each option shall be fixed by the Board of Directors, but no option may be exercisable more than 10 years after the date it is granted. An incentive option granted to a person who is a 10% shareholder on the date of the grant shall not be exercisable more than 5 years after the date it is granted. Each option shall vest and become exercisable in one or more installments at such time or times and subject to such conditions, including within limitation the achievement of specified performance goals or objectives, as shall be determined by the Board of Directors. As of December 31, 1998, no options had been granted under the 1998 Incentive Plan. In connection with the February 1999 Initial Public Offering, 467,555 options were granted under the 1998 Incentive Plan at an exercise price of \$4.36 per share.

A summary of the Company s stock option activity for all stock option plans are as follows:

	Shares	Weighted Average Exercise Price	Exercisable
Balance, December 31, 1998	457,743	\$0.48	
Granted	519,571	4.36	
Exercised	(457,743)	0.48	
Cancelled	(56,740)	4.36	
Balance, December 31, 1999	462,831	\$4.36	156,372
Granted	2,189,440	1.86	
Cancelled	(150,646)	3.34	
Balance, December 31, 2000	2,501,625	\$2.23	896,858
Granted	1,311,450	3.67	
Exercised	(206,704)	1.78	
Cancelled	(206,882)	2.46	
Balance, December 31, 2001	3,399,489	\$2.80	1,648,623

The weighted average remaining contractual life of the options outstanding at December 31, 2001 is 5 years.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The following table sets forth options outstanding and exercisable by price range as of December 31, 2001:

December 31, 2001

	Options Outstanding		Options Exercisable		
Range of Exercise Prices	Number Outstanding as of 12/21/01	Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Life	Weighted Average Exercise Price	Number Exercisable as of 12/31/01	Weighted Average Exercise Price
\$1.06 - 1.06	371,979	6.56	\$1.06	371,979	\$1.06
1.27 - 1.27	349,509	7.25	1.27	349,509	1.27
1.27 - 1.27	9,902	7.25	1.27	9,902	1.27
1.95 - 1.95	907,500	7.01	1.95	325,461	1.95
2.18 - 2.18	455,126	6.56	2.18	220,464	2.18
2.73 - 2.73	62,708	6.81	2.70	12,293	2.70
3.88 - 3.88	446,250	7.56	3.88	0	0.00
4.37 - 4.37	359,015	5.74	4.37	359,015	4.37
5.56 - 5.56	412,500	7.79	5.56	0	0.00
5.72 - 5.72	25,000	7.91	5.72	0	0.00
\$1.06 - 5.72	3,399,489	6.96	\$2.80	1,648,623	\$2.16

We have elected to follow Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (Opinion 25) and related Interpretations in accounting for its 1998 and 1999 Stock Option Plan. As discussed below, in management s opinion, the alternative fair value accounting provided for under Statement of Accounting Standards No. 123, Accounting for Stock Based Compensation (Statement 123) requires use of option valuation models that were not developed for use in valuing employee stock options. Under Opinion 25, because the exercise price of the Company s stock options equals the market price of the underlying stock on the date of the grant, no compensation expense is recognized.

Pro forma information regarding net earnings per share is required by Statement 123, and has been determined as if we had accounted for its employee stock options under the minimum fair value method of that Statement. The minimum fair value for these options was estimated at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions. The risk free interest rate used for options granted during 2001, 2000 and 1999 was 4.33%, 6.28% and 5.19%. The expected dividend yield used for 2001, 2000 and 1999 was 6.58%, 10% and 10%. The weighted average expected life of 5 years was used for 2001, 7 years was used for 2000 and 1999. The volatility factor for 2001, 2000 and 1999 was 84%, 48% and 80%, respectively.

For purpose of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is amortized into expense over the options vesting period. Our pro forma information for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 follows (amounts in thousands, except per share data):

	2001	2000	1999
Pro forma basic and diluted net earnings	\$10,923	\$1,721	\$5,557
Pro forma basic earnings per share	\$ 1.16	\$ 0.17	\$ 0.59
Pro forma diluted earnings per share	\$ 1.06	\$ 0.17	\$ 0.58

ANFI, INC. (Formerly American National Financial, Inc.)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

11. Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

From time to time, we are subject to legal proceedings associated with claims made under policies of insurance they have issued or other services performed on behalf of insured policyholders and other customers. Management believes that no such actions depart from customary litigation incidental to the business of the Company and that resolution of all such litigation will not have a material adverse effect on the Company.

Trust Deposits

In conducting its operations, we routinely hold customers—assets in trust, pending completion of real estate transactions. Such amounts are maintained in segregated bank accounts and have not been included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. We have a contingent liability relating to proper disposition of these balances for its customers, which amounted to \$283.8 million and \$91.6 million at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Compliance Reporting

The State Banking Department, State of Arizona (State Banking Department) delivered their report of Examination of American Title Insurance of Arizona, Inc. (formerly known as Nations Title Insurance of Arizona, Inc.) as of and for the three-year period ending October 31, 1998, on March 4, 1999. The report as forwarded to the Company by State Banking Department indicated that we may not have been in compliance with certain State Banking Department Regulations. On September 15, 2000, we received notice from the State Banking Department stating the matters detailed in the Report of Examination were complete and required no further response.

Deposits with Insurance Commissioner

ATC is required to maintain certain amounts on deposit with the California Insurance Commissioner in order to operate in certain counties. The amount required by the Department of Insurance, State of California and the Department of Insurance, State of New York, is \$112,500 and \$20,000 at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Additionally, National is required to maintain certain amounts on deposit for compliance requirements. The amount at December 31, 2001 and 2000 is \$1.7 million and \$1.3 million, respectively.

Operating Leases

ATC leases certain of its premises and equipment under operating leases that expire at various dates. Several of these agreements include escalation clauses and provide for purchases and renewal options for periods ranging from one to five years during 2001.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Future minimum operating lease payments are as follows:

	December 31, 2001
	(Amounts in thousands)
2002	\$ 4,998
2003	4,208
2004	2,501
2005	1,465
2006	580
Thereafter	78
Total future minimum operating lease payments	\$13,830

Rent expense incurred under operating leases during the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 was \$4.8 million, \$4.6 million and \$4.4 million, respectively, including \$0, \$216,000 and \$416,000 paid to an affiliate.

Capital Leases

In 1997, ATC entered into a capital lease agreement with FNTIC, which expires in June 2007, for three title plants. The gross amount of title plant recorded under affiliated capital lease is \$815,000 at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

In a separate, non-affiliated transaction, ATC entered into a capital lease agreement during 1998 to purchase a copy of a title plant. The gross amount of the title plant, recorded under the capital lease, is \$1.4 million at December 31, 2001 and 2000. The capital lease agreement expires in August 2007.

Future minimum capital lease payments are as follows:

	To-Non Affiliate	To Affiliate	Total	
	(Am	(Amounts in thousands)		
2002	222	170	392	
2003	222	170	392	
2004	222	170	392	
2005	222	170	392	
2006	222	170	392	
Thereafter	204	243	447	
Total future minimum capital lease payments	1,314	1,093	2,407	
Portion relating to interest	(262)	(269)	(531)	
Present value of minimum capital lease payments	\$1,052	\$ 824	\$1,876	

12. Related Party Transactions

We pay fees to affiliated underwriter for underwriting services and administrative services under the exclusive agency agreement with CTIC. Underwriting services are provided for five years commencing July 1997, and subject to a mutually agreed five year extension to the original term expiring in 2007, for a fee of

ANFI, INC. (Formerly American National Financial, Inc.)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

11% of gross title insurance premiums. Administration fees payable to FNF is 1% of gross title insurance premiums and is cancelable with 90 days notice.

ATC leases a title plant from a subsidiary of FNF. See Note 11. Additionally, the Company reimburses subsidiaries of FNF for expenses incurred on its behalf. Such reimbursements aggregated \$3.7 million, \$3.8 million and \$3.8 million for years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

In June 1999, we acquired National from a subsidiary of FNF for \$3.3 million. Pursuant to the terms of the stock purchase agreement, effective with the purchase date, National pays FNF specific fees for certain administrative functions performs on behalf of the Company. The fees related to National at December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 was \$206,500, \$108,000 and \$64,000, respectively.

We provide underwriting risk in National under this agreement with FNF only for those geographic areas which are not covered by ATC s agency arrangements.

In June 2001, we purchased 1,117,500 shares of our common stock from Fidelity National Financial, Inc. for \$4.9 million or \$4.36 per share, which is FNF s cost. The fair market value of our common stock on date of transaction was \$3.99 per share. After this transaction FNF owned approximately 19.5% of our common stock.

13. Subsequent Event

On June 27, 2002, our Board of Directors declared a five-for-four (25%) stock split effective July 18, 2002.

All data with respect to earnings per share, dividends per share and share information, including price per share, where applicable, in the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the stock split.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

PART III

Item 10. through 13.

Within 120 days after the close of its fiscal year, the Company intends to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission a definitive proxy statement pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended, which will include the election of directors, the report of compensation committee on annual compensation, certain relationships and related transactions and other business.

PART IV

Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K

(a)(1) **Financial Statements.** The following is a list of the Consolidated Financial Statements of ANFI, Inc. and its subsidiaries included in Item 8 of Part II.

Independent Auditors Report.

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2001 and 2000.

Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Earnings for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999.

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(a)(2) **Financial Statement Schedules.** The following is a list of financial statement schedules filed as part of this annual report on Form 10-K.

Schedule V: Valuation and Qualifying Accounts.

All other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or not required, or because the required information is included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of notes thereto.

(a) The following exhibits are filed herewith or are incorporated by reference.

Exhibit Number	Description
2.1	Stock Purchase Agreement dated January 1, 1997 by and among the Registrant, Fidelity National Financial, Inc. and American Title Company, together with amendment, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353
2.2	Stock Purchase Agreement dated December 31, 1996 by and among American Title Company, Fidelity National Asset Recovery Services, Inc. and Fidelity National Financial, Inc., incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353

2.3 Stock Purchase Agreement dated December 31, 1996 by and among American Title Company, Nations Title Insurance of Arizona, Inc. and Fidelity National Financial, Inc., incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353

Exhibit Number	Description
2.4	Stock Purchase Agreement dated March 16, 1998 by and among Fidelity National Title Insurance Company of New York, National Title Insurance of New York, Inc. and American Title Company, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353
2.5	Stock Purchase Agreement dated August 9, 1997 by and between Pacific Coast Title of Santa Barbara County and American Title Company, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353
2.6	Stock Exchange Agreement dated August 21, 1998 between the Registrant and Fidelity National Financial, Inc, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353
3.1	Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353
3.2	Bylaws of the Registrant, as amended, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353
4.1	Form of Common Stock Certificate, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353
10.1	1998 Stock Incentive Plan, together with form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement and form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353
10.2	Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Michael C. Lowther, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353
10.3	Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Wayne D. Diaz, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353
10.4	Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Dennis R. Duffy, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353
10.5	Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Barbara Ferguson, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353
10.6	Issuing Agency Agreement dated July 1, 1997 between Fidelity National Title Insurance Company and American Title Company, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353
10.7	Issuing Agency Agreement dated August 25, 1997 between Fidelity National Title Insurance Company and Santa Barbara Title Company, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353
10.8	Credit Agreement dated August 7, 1997 between the Registrant and Imperial Bank, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353
10.9	Note dated August 7, 1997 of the Registrant in favor of Imperial Bank, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353
10.10	Addendum to Note dated August 7, 1997 between the Registrant and Imperial Bank, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353
10.11	Standard Sublease dated January 28, 1998 between American Title Company and Fidelity National Financial, Inc., incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353
10.12	Form of Indemnification Agreement, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353
10.13	Title Plant Lease Agreement dated July 1, 1997 between Fidelity National Title Insurance Company and American Title Company, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353

Exhibit Number	Description
10.14	Letter of Grant dated July 1, 1997 granting William P. Foley, II options to purchase 83,188 shares of common stock of the Registrant, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353
10.15	Stock Purchase Agreement dated January 14, 2000 by and between Bancserv, Inc. and ANFI, Inc., incorporated by reference from Form 10-K filed on March 27, 2000.
10.16	Stock Purchase Agreement dated February 29, 2000 by and among ANFI, Inc. and Vincent L. Prandi and Daniel A. Ferrara, incorporated by reference from 10-Q filed on May 15, 2000
10.17	Membership Interest Purchase Agreement dated February 29, 2000 by and among ANFI, Inc. and Angela Muirhead and Lawrence E. Castle, incorporated by reference from the 10-Q filed on May 15, 2000
10.18	Charter of the Audit Committee of the ANFI, Inc. Board of Directors, incorporated by reference from the 10-Q filed on August 14, 2000
10.19	Asset Purchase Agreement dated July 25, 2000 by and among ANFI, Inc. and Chicago Title Insurance Company, incorporated by reference from the 10-Q filed on November 13, 2000
10.20	Employment Agreement by and between ANFI, Inc. and Carl A. Strunk, as of August 14, 2001, incorporated by reference from the 10-Q filed on November 2, 2001
21	List of Subsidiaries of Registrant, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353
21.1	ANFI, Inc. 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan Adoption Agreement Adoption Agreement, incorporated by reference from S-8, Registration No. 333-64894 on July 11, 2001
23.1	KPMG Consent

⁽b) Reports on Form 8-K. The Company filed no reports on Form 8-K during the fourth quarter ending December 31, 2001.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

ANFI, INC.

By: /s/ MICHAEL C. LOWTHER

Michael C. Lowther Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 20, 2002

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature	Title	Date
/s/ MICHAEL C. LOWTHER	Chief Executive Officer and Director	March 20, 2002
Michael C. Lowther		
/s/ WAYNE D. DIAZ	President and Director	March 20, 2002
Wayne D. Diaz		
/s/ CARL A. STRUNK	Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting	March 20, 2002
Carl A. Strunk	Officer) and Director	
/s/ BARBARA A. FERGUSON	Executive Vice President and Director	March 20, 2002
Barbara A. Ferguson		
/s/ WILLIAM P. FOLEY, II	Director	March 20, 2002
William P. Foley, II		
/s/ BRUCE ELIEFF	Director	March 20, 2002
Bruce Elieff		
/s/ MATTHEW K. FONG	Director	March 20, 2002
Matthew K. Fong		
/s/ BRUCE L. NELSON	Director	March 20, 2002
Bruce L. Nelson		
D-59		

SCHEDULE V

ANFI, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

COL. A	COL. B		L. C	COL. D	COL. E	
		Additions				
Description	Balance at Beginning of Period	Charged to Costs and Expenses	Other (Describe)	Deductions (Describe)	Balance at End of Period	
			(Amounts in thousands))		
Year ended December 31, 2001:						
Reserve for claim losses	\$2,431	\$ 504	\$ (180)(4)	\$ 25(2)	\$2,730	
Reserve for title and escrow losses	836	867	539(2)		1,164	
Allowance on:						
Trade receivables	2,118	1,240	(95)(2)	1,252(1)	2,011	
Amortization of cost in excess of net						
assets acquired and other intangible assets	1,471	551			2,022	
Year ended December 31, 2000:						
Reserve for claim losses	\$2,341	\$ 164	\$ (74)(4)	\$	\$2,431	
Reserve for title and escrow losses	821	10	5(4)		836	
Allowance on:						
Trade receivables	2,097	642	35(2)	656(1)	2,118	
Amortization of cost in excess of net						
assets acquired and other intangible assets	959	512			1,471	
Year ended December 31, 1999:						
Reserve for claim losses	\$	\$(1,979)	\$4,320(3)	\$	\$2,341	
Reserve for title and escrow losses	991	10	5(4)	185(1)	821	
Allowance on:						
Trade receivables	1,896	1,385	252(3)	1,436(1)	2,097	
Amortization of cost in excess of net			• •			
assets acquired and other intangible assets	609	350			959	

Represents uncollectible accounts written off, change in reserve due to reevaluation of specific items and change in reserve due to sale of certain assets.

- (2) Recovery on previous accounts written off.
- (3) Reserves assumed from National acquisition in June 1999.
- (4) Represents payments.
- (5) Change in provision for claim loss.

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Number	Description			
2.1	Stock Purchase Agreement dated January 1, 1997 by and among the Registrant, Fidelity National Financial, Inc. and American Title Company, together with amendment, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353			
2.2	Stock Purchase Agreement dated December 31, 1996 by and among American Title Company, Fidelity National Asset Recovery Services, Inc. and Fidelity National Financial, Inc., incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353			
2.3	Stock Purchase Agreement dated December 31, 1996 by and among American Title Company, Nations Title Insurance of Arizona, Inc. and Fidelity National Financial, Inc., incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353			
2.4	Stock Purchase Agreement dated March 16, 1998 by and among Fidelity National Title Insurance Company of New York, National Title Insurance of New York, Inc. and American Title Company, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353			
2.5	Stock Purchase Agreement dated August 9, 1997 by and between Pacific Coast Title of Santa Barbara County and American Title Company, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353			
2.6	Stock Exchange Agreement dated August 21, 1998 between the Registrant and Fidelity National Financial, Inc, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353			
3.1	Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353			
3.2	Bylaws of the Registrant, as amended, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353			
4.1	Form of Common Stock Certificate, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353			
10.1	1998 Stock Incentive Plan, together with form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement and form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353			
10.2	Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Michael C. Lowther, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353			
10.3	Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Wayne D. Diaz, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353			
10.4	Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Dennis R. Duffy, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353			
10.5	Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Barbara Ferguson, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353			
10.6	Issuing Agency Agreement dated July 1, 1997 between Fidelity National Title Insurance Company and American Title Company, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353			
10.7	Issuing Agency Agreement dated August 25, 1997 between Fidelity National Title Insurance Company and Santa Barbara Title Company, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353			
10.8	Credit Agreement dated August 7, 1997 between the Registrant and Imperial Bank, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353			
10.9	Note dated August 7, 1997 of the Registrant in favor of Imperial Bank, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353			

Exhibit Number	Description
10.10	Addendum to Note dated August 7, 1997 between the Registrant and Imperial Bank, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353
10.11	Standard Sublease dated January 28, 1998 between American Title Company and Fidelity National Financial, Inc., incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353
10.12	Form of Indemnification Agreement, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353
10.13	Title Plant Lease Agreement dated July 1, 1997 between Fidelity National Title Insurance Company and American Title Company, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353
10.14	Letter of Grant dated July 1, 1997 granting William P. Foley, II options to purchase 83,188 shares of common stock of the Registrant, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353
10.15	Stock Purchase Agreement dated January 14, 2000 by and between Bancserv, Inc. and ANFI, Inc., incorporated by reference from Form 10-K filed on March 27, 2000.
10.16	Stock Purchase Agreement dated February 29, 2000 by and among ANFI, Inc. and Vincent L. Prandi and Daniel A. Ferrara, incorporated by reference from 10-Q filed on May 15, 2000
10.17	Membership Interest Purchase Agreement dated February 29, 2000 by and among ANFI, Inc. and Angela Muirhead and Lawrence E. Castle, incorporated by reference from the 10-Q filed on May 15, 2000
10.18	Charter of the Audit Committee of the ANFI, Inc. Board of Directors, incorporated by reference from the 10-Q filed on August 14, 2000
10.19	Asset Purchase Agreement dated July 25, 2000 by and among ANFI, Inc. and Chicago Title Insurance Company, incorporated by reference from the 10-Q filed on November 13, 2000
10.20	Employment Agreement by and between ANFI, Inc. and Carl A. Strunk, as of August 14, 2001, incorporated by reference from the 10-Q filed on November 2, 2001
21	List of Subsidiaries of Registrant, incorporated by reference from Form S-1, Registration No. 333-62353
21.1	ANFI, Inc. 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan Adoption Agreement Adoption Agreement, incorporated by reference from S-8, Registration No. 333-64894 on July 11, 2001
23.1	Consent of KPMG LLP
	D-62

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-Q

DESCRIPTION 13 OR 15(d) DESCRIPTION 13 OR 15(d) DESCRIPTION 13 OR 15(d) DESCRIPTION 13 OR 15(d) DESCRIPTION 13 OR 15(d)

or

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Quarter Ended September 30, 2002

Commission File Number 0-24961

American National Financial, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

California

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

33-0731548

(I.R.S. Employer Identification Number)

1111 E. Katella Avenue, Suite 220, Orange, California

92867

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(714) 289-4300

(Registrant s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes b No o

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer s classes of Common Stock, as of the latest practicable date.

Common stock, no par value, 9,526,083 shares as of November 4, 2002

E-1

FORM 10-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT

Quarter Ended September 30, 2002

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page Number
Part I: FINANCIAL INFORMATION	
Item 1. Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements	E-3
A. Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30, 2002	
and December 31, 2001	E-3
B. Condensed Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the three-month and nine month periods ended September 30, 2002 and 2001	E-4
C. Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Earnings for the three-month and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2002 and	
2001	E-5
D. Condensed Consolidated Statement of Shareholders Equity for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2002	E-6
E. Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the	
nine-month periods ended September 30, 2002 and 2001	E-7
F. Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements	E-8
Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and	
Results of Operations	E-10
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Market Risk Disclosures	E-15
Item 4. Controls and Procedures	E-15
Part II: OTHER INFORMATION	
Item 1. Legal Proceedings	E-15
Item 2. Changes in Securities	E-16
Items 3., 4 and 5. of Part II have been omitted because they are not applicable with respect to the current reporting period	
Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K	E-16

PART I: FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements AMERICAN NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

	September 30, 2002	December 31, 2001
	(Unaudited) (In thousands, amou	•
ASSETS		
Current assets:		
Cash and cash equivalents	\$17,658	\$ 9,400
Short-term investments, at cost, which approximates fair market value	1,290	618
Accrued investment interest	412	383
Frade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of \$1,936 in 2002		
and \$2,011 in 2001	4,174	3,803
Notes receivables related party, net	.,	1,812
Deferred tax asset, current	2,869	1,791
Prepaid expenses and other current assets	2,299	507
repaid expenses and other current assets		
Total current assets	28,702	18,314
nvestment securities available for sale, at fair market value	26,620	24,721
Deferred tax asset, long-term	2,328	1,946
Property and equipment, net	10,315	7,614
Fitle plants	4,132	2,699
Deposits with the Insurance Commissioner	133	133
Cost in excess of net assets acquired, net of accumulated amortization of 52,022 in 2002 and 2001	11,226	11,226
Total assets	\$83,456	\$66,653
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS	S EQUITY	
Current liabilities:		
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses	\$17,051	\$15,092
Customer advances	5,090	4,802
Current portion of long-term debt	521	566
Current portion of obligations under capital leases with affiliates	109	102
Current portion of obligations under capital leases with non-affiliates	177	146
Reserve for claim losses	3,570	2,730
ncome tax payable	2,940	
Oue to affiliate	2,776	2,712
Total current liabilities	32,234	26,150
ong-term debt	595	2,962
Obligations under capital leases with affiliates	636	722
Obligations under capital leases with non-affiliates	822	906
m - 11' 1'''	24.207	20.740
Total liabilities	34,287	30,740
Shareholders equity:		

Preferred stock, no par value; authorized 5,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding, none

outstanding, none		
Common stock, no par value; authorized, 50,000,000 shares; issued and		
outstanding, 9,516,535 in 2002 and 8,869,714 in 2001		
Additional paid in capital	23,442	20,905
Retained earnings	26,578	13,741
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income	(851)	1,267
Total shareholders equity	49,169	35,913
Total liabilities and shareholders equity	\$83,456	\$66,653

AMERICAN NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

	Three Months Ended September 30,		Nine Mont Septem	
	2002	2001	2002	2001
	(Unaudited) (In thousands, except per share data)			
Revenues:				
Net title service revenue related party	\$28,280	\$18,885	\$ 75,320	\$54,062
Escrow fees	11,474	7,844	30,692	23,335
Underwriting premiums	5,795	2,354	13,763	5,698
Ancillary service fees	5,167	4,317	15,547	12,717
Gain on sale/ exchange of equity security	72	3	2,461	1,003
Investment revenue	351	335	1,137	910
Total revenues	51,139	33,738	138,920	97,725
E				
Expenses:	25.946	10 505	70.229	52 229
Personnel costs	25,846	18,505	70,338	53,238
Other operating expenses including \$603 and \$851, and \$1,561 and \$2,914 with affiliate for the three-month and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2002 and 2001,				
respectively	13,926	8,608	35,259	24,247
Title plant rent and maintenance	2,221	1,733	6,457	5,748
Total expenses	41,993	28,846	112,054	83,233
1				
Famings hafara ingoma tayas	9,146	4,892	26,866	14 402
Earnings before income taxes Income taxes	3,396	2,055	11,015	14,492 5,991
nicome taxes	3,390	2,033	11,013	3,991
Net earnings	\$ 5,750	\$ 2,837	\$ 15,851	\$ 8,501
Basic earnings per share	\$ 0.61	\$ 0.32	\$ 1.73	\$ 0.89
Dasie earnings per snare	φ 0.01	φ 0.32	Ψ 1.75	Ψ 0.07
Weighted average shares outstanding, basic	9,479	8,779	9,147	9,568
Diluted earnings per share	\$ 0.52	\$ 0.29	\$ 1.50	\$ 0.82
Diffuted carriings per snare	Ψ 0.52	Ψ 0.27	Ψ 1.50	Ψ 0.02
Weighted average shares outstanding, diluted	11,048	9,946	10,584	10,399
Cash dividends per share, actual	\$ 0.125	\$ 0.125	\$ 0.375	\$ 0.325
Cush dividends per share, actual	Ψ 0.123	Ψ 0.123	Ψ 0.575	Ψ 0.525
Cash dividends per share after giving retroactive effect to 10% stock dividend and 25% stock split	\$ 0.125	\$ 0.10	\$ 0.325	\$ 0.305

AMERICAN NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS

	Three Months Ended September 30,		Nine Mont Septeml	
	2002	2001	2002	2001
		`	ndited) usands)	
Net earnings	\$ 5,750	\$2,837	\$15,851	\$8,501
Other comprehensive earnings (loss):				
Unrealized gain (loss) on investment, securities available for				
sale(1)	(1,192)	339	(710)	1,267
Reclassification adjustment for (gains) in net earnings(2)	(46)	(2)	(1,408)	(592)
Other comprehensive earnings (loss)	(1,238)	337	(2,118)	675
Comprehensive earnings	\$ 4,512	\$3,174	\$13,733	\$9,176

⁽¹⁾ Net of income taxes (benefit) of (\$779) and \$198, and (\$446) and \$990 for the three-month and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

⁽²⁾ Net of income taxes (benefit) of \$26 and \$1, and \$1,053 and \$411 for the three-month and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

AMERICAN NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

	Common S	tock	Additional		Accumulated Other	Total
	Shares	Amount	Paid In Capital	Retained Earnings	Comprehensive (Loss) Earnings	Shareholders Equity
			(In thousan	ds, except per sha	re data)	
Balance, December 31, 2001	8,869,714	\$	\$20,905	\$13,741	\$ 1,267	\$35,913
Exercise of stock options, including associated tax benefit	793,394		4,292			4,292
Redemption of director and/or officer notes receivable in exchange for common stock retired	(146,573)		(1,755)			(1,755)
Unrealized loss on investment securities available for sale	(- 2,2 - 2)		(),)		(2,118)	(2,118)
Dividends (\$0.325 per share)				(3,014)	, , ,	(3,014)
Net earnings		_		15,851		15,851
Balance, September 30, 2002	9,516,535	\$	\$23,442	\$26,578	\$ (851)	\$49,169

AMERICAN NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Nine	Mo	nths	Enc	led
Se	pter	nbe	r 30,	

	September 30,	
	2002	2001
	(In thous	sands)
Cash flows from operating activities:	¢ 15 051	¢ 9.501
Net earnings	\$ 15,851	\$ 8,501
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to cash provided by		
operating activities:	1.016	2.022
Depreciation and amortization	1,916	2,023
Gain on sale/exchange of investments	(2,461)	(1,003)
Loss on sale of property and equipment	3	14
Changes in:	(271)	415
Accounts receivables, net	(371)	415
Interest receivable	(29)	(126)
Tax benefit associated with the exercise of stock options	1,847	81
Prepaid expenses and other assets	(1,736)	(15)
Income taxes receivable and deferred income taxes	1,480	1,300
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses	1,656	6,243
Net increase in reserve for claim losses	840	185
Due to (from) affiliates	64	(11)
Customer advances	288	929
Net cash provided by operating activities	19,348	18,536
Cash flow from investing activities:		
Proceeds from sale of investment securities	12,673	1,870
Proceeds from maturity investment securities	2,300	
Proceeds from short term investments	480	
Collections of notes receivable		552
Additions to property and equipment	(4,620)	(2,092)
Additions to notes receivable		(214)
Purchase of investment securities available for sale	(15,982)	(7,342)
Purchase of short term investments	(1,699)	(2,175)
Purchase of title plants	(1,433)	
Net cash used in investing activities	(8,281)	(9,401)
Cash flows from financing activities:		
Repayment of long-term debt	(2,412)	(506)
Payments of capital lease obligations	(197)	(188)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options	2,445	275
Additions to capital lease obligations	65	213
Proceeds from issuance of common stock	03	218
Dividends paid	(2,710)	(2,169)
Purchase of treasury stock	(2,710)	(6,188)
Net cash used in financing activities	(2,809)	(8,558)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents	8,258	577
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period	9,400	9,450
Cash and Cash equivalents at the Deginning Of period	9,400	9,430

\$ 17,658	\$10,027
\$ 239	\$ 328
6,699	5,050
\$ 1,185	\$ 881
	\$ 239 6,699

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements

E-7

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note A Basis of Financial Statements

The financial information included in this report includes the accounts of American National Financial, Inc. and its subsidiaries (collectively, the Company) and has been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. All adjustments, consisting of normal recurring accruals considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. This report should be read in conjunction with the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001.

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2001 Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements to conform to classifications used in 2002.

Note B Share and Per Share Restatement

On June 27, 2002, our Board of Directors declared a five-for-four (5:4) stock split effective July 18, 2002. All data with respect to earnings per share, dividends per share and share information, including price per share where applicable, have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the effects of the stock split.

Note C Department of Insurance

In June 2001, auditors from the State of California Department of Insurance commenced a market conduct examination of American Title Company (ATC). Similar examinations have been or are being conducted at virtually all companies in the title insurance business. The examination is not yet completed. We are unable to determine if an unfavorable outcome is either probable or remote, however, management does not believe that any outcome will have a material effect on our condensed consolidated financial statements.

Note D Earnings Per Share

The Company presents basic earnings per share representing net earnings divided by the weighted average shares outstanding (excluding all common stock equivalents), and diluted earnings per share, representing the dilutive effect of all common stock equivalents. The following table illustrates the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share.

	Three Months Ended September 30,			ths Ended aber 30,
	2002	2001	2002	2001
	(In	n thousands, excep	t per share amount	s)
Net earnings, basic and diluted basis	\$ 5,750	\$2,837	\$15,851	\$ 8,501
Weighted average shares outstanding during the period, basic	9,479	8,779	9,147	9,568
Plus: Common stock equivalent shares assumed from conversion of options	1,569	1,167	1,437	831
Weighted average shares outstanding during the period, diluted	11,048	9,946	10,584	10,399
Basic earnings per share	\$ 0.61	\$ 0.32	\$ 1.73	\$ 0.89
Diluted earnings per share	\$ 0.52	\$ 0.29	\$ 1.50	\$ 0.82

Note E Cash Dividend

On September 25, 2002, our Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of \$.125 per share, paid on October 21, 2002, to stockholders of record on October 7, 2002.

E-8

Note F Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Pursuant to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan and the Non-Employee Director Stock Purchase Plan adopted September 29, 1999 by the Board of Directors of ANFI (collectively, the Purchase Plan), ANFI was authorized to loan to certain employees and non-employee directors an aggregate of \$2,000,000 for the purchase of ANFI common stock, no par value (Common Stock). The Purchase Plan made open market purchases of Company common stock through a broker dealer designated by the Company. All loans were full recourse and unsecured, and had a five-year term with interest at six and one quarter percent (6 1/4%). In January 2002, the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) of the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued EITF 02-1 Classification of Assets Received in Exchange for Equity Instruments. Through March 31, 2002, the notes recorded in connection with these loans have been classified as notes receivable. Recent interpretations of EITF 02-1 require that such loans and accrued interest be classified as contra equity. Accordingly, at June 30, 2002, \$1.8 million was reclassified to reduce stockholders equity.

On July 10, 2002, the Company agreed to accept shares of its common stock as full payment of the notes. The price per share (\$14.97 pre-stock split) was determined using the 20-day average closing price on the NASDAQ through July 10, 2002. On a post stock split basis (\$11.99 per share), the Company received 146,575 shares of common stock, which shares were retired.

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, Business Combinations (SFAS No. 141) and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (SFAS No. 142). SFAS No. 141 requires that all business combinations be accounted for under the purchase method. The statement further requires separate recognition of intangible assets that meet one of two criteria. The statement applies to all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001.

SFAS No. 142 requires an intangible asset that we acquire to be initially recognized and measured based on its fair value. The statement also provides that goodwill should not be amortized, but shall be tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if circumstances indicate potential impairment, through a comparison of fair value to its carrying amount. Existing goodwill was amortized through December 31, 2001, after which time amortization ceased. We performed a goodwill impairment test in accordance with SFAS No. 142 and there was no impairment of goodwill. Excluding amortization expense of \$140,000 and \$420,000 for the three and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2001, net earnings, basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share would have been \$3.0 million, \$8.9 million, \$0.34, \$0.93 and \$0.30, \$0.86, respectively, for the three and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2001.

In October 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets (SFAS No. 144) which addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. While SFAS No. 144 supercedes Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of, it retains many of the fundamental provisions of that statement. SFAS No. 144 does not have a material impact on our financial statements or results of operations.

In June 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities , (SFAS No. 146). This standard is effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material effect on the Company s financial position or results of operations.

Note G Transactions with Affiliates

On July 5, 2002, senior management of the Company, in a private transaction sold 627,982 shares, on a pre-split basis, of their personal holdings of the Company s common stock to Fidelity National Financial, Inc. (FNF) at a negotiated price of \$15.00 per share. Adjusted for the stock split, FNF received 784,978 shares at a price of \$12.00 per share. FNF s ownership in the Company is 28.5% as of September 30, 2002 compared

to 19.9% as of June 30, 2002. Senior management ownership of the Company (excluding vested and unvested stock options) after this transaction is 25.1%.

Note H Note Payable

In September 2002, we paid in full a \$1.9 million mortgage note payable and accrued interest in the amount \$3,000.

Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Factors That May Affect Operating Results

The statements contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q that are not purely historical are forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, including statements regarding the Company s expectations, hopes, intentions or strategies regarding the future.

Forward-looking statements included in this document are based on information available to us on the date hereof, and we assume no obligation to update any such forward-looking statements. It is important to note that our actual results could differ materially from those in such forward-looking statements. The reader should consult the risk factors listed from time to time and other information disclosed in our reports on Forms 10-K and filings under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

The following discussion provides information to help understand and assess significant changes and trends related to our financial condition and results of operations. You should read this discussion and analysis in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto.

Overview

Our revenues include net title service revenue, escrow fees, underwriting premiums, ancillary service fees, gain on sale/exchange of equity securities and investment income. Our operations generate escrow fees from holding and disbursing funds and documents in connection with the closing of real estate transactions. Escrow fees generally fluctuate in a pattern consistent with the fluctuation in net title service revenue. We also provide title insurance services through direct operations and through independent title insurance agents utilizing our underwriter, National Title Insurance of New York Inc. (National). Our ancillary services complement title and escrow services. In addition, many of our real estate related services are counter-cyclical to our title insurance and escrow services.

Net title service revenue and escrow fee revenues are recognized as income at the time the underlying real estate transaction closes. Expenses directly related to the title and escrow process are recognized as they are incurred throughout the duration of the transaction. As a result, our recognition of revenue lags approximately 45-90 days behind the recognition of the corresponding expenses. Other fees and revenue are generally recognized as income at the time the underlying transaction closes; however, certain other fees and revenue are recognized as income over the period during which the service is provided. These factors may result in fluctuations in gross margins. Net title service revenues consist of gross title insurance premiums less an 11% underwriting fee paid to the underwriter. Investment revenue consists of revenues received from our investment portfolio in addition to the gain on sale/exchange of equity securities.

While the number of orders that are closed affects our revenue, personnel costs are the largest component of our expenses. Since personnel costs are relatively fixed over the short term, in a rapidly declining market, reductions in the number of orders can adversely affect margins. Gross margins are also affected by the relative numbers of orders that relate to refinancing transactions as compared to those relating to real estate sale transactions.

The average fee per file and corresponding gross margins are higher for real estate sale and resale transactions than refinance transactions for three principal reasons: (i) a larger percentage of sale and resale orders close as compared to refinance orders, (ii) typically two policies are issued in a resale transaction (one

each to the buyer and lender) whereas only one is issued in a refinance transaction, (iii) the base rate charged on sale and resale transactions is typically higher than that charged on refinance transactions. As title insurance premiums are calculated with regard to the purchase price of the property or the amount of the related mortgage, average fees per file will also increase during periods in which real estate prices and corresponding mortgage loans are increasing.

Results of Operations

Revenue

The following table presents information regarding the components of our revenue:

	Three Months Ended September 30,				
	2002	2001	2002	2001	
		(Una	udited)		
Gross title premiums	\$37,537	\$23,561	\$ 98,344	\$66,430	
Net title service revenue related party	28,280	18,885	75,320	54,062	
Escrow fees	11,474	7,844	30,692	23,335	
Underwriting premiums	5,795	2,354	13,763	5,698	
Ancillary services fees	5,167	4,317	15,547	12,717	
Gain on sale/exchange of equity securities	72	3	2,461	1,003	
Investment revenue	351	335	1,137	910	
Total revenue	\$51,139	\$33,738	\$138,920	\$97,725	
Orders closed	50,500	30,500	123,300	90,450	
Average fee per file	\$ 902	\$ 913	\$ 971	\$ 919	

Total Revenue. Total revenue for the third quarter ended September 30, 2002 increased 51.6% to \$51.1 million from \$33.7 million in the comparable 2001 period. Total revenues for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2002 increased 42.2% to \$138.9 million from \$97.7 million for the same prior year period. The increase in total revenue for the three-month and nine-month periods is primarily the result of strength in our title, escrow, underwriting premiums and ancillary services, which were positively impacted by favorable market conditions, especially the favorable real estate market aided in part by reduced interest rates and increased money supply.

Net Title Service Revenue related partyNet title service revenue for the three-month and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2002 compared to the same 2001 periods increased \$9.4 million, or 49.7% to \$28.3 million from \$18.9 million, and \$21.3 million or 39.3% to \$75.3 million from \$54.1 million, respectively, which is the result of the increase in both closed title orders and in the refinance activity businesses. In the three-month periods ended September 30, 2002 and 2001, the average fee per file decreased to \$902 and \$913. The fee per file decrease in the three months ended September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively, is consistent with the lower fee per file refinance market compared to the higher fee per file resale real estate market. In the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2002 and 2001 the average fee per file were \$971 and \$919. The fee per file increase is consistent with the mix of title orders closing in the higher fee per file resale business compared to a lower fee per file refinance driven market in comparable nine-month period.

The following table depicts monthly title and escrow orders opened and closed for the first, second and third quarter of 2002 and 2001.

Month	Orders Opened	Orders Closed
January 2002	15,300	12,600
February 2002	14,100	11,900
March 2002	14,300	12,900
First Quarter 2002	43,700	37,400
April 2002	15,500	12,200
May 2002	16,700	11,700
June 2002	18,800	11,500
Second Quarter 2002	51,000	35,400
July 2002	25,600	13,900
August 2002	37,200	18,000
September 2002	32,100	18,600
•	 _	
Third Quarter 2002	94,900	50,500
Nine-months ended 2002	189,600	123,300
January 2001	19,100	6,900
February 2001	20,000	8,200
March 2001	20,400	11,100
First Quarter 2001	59,500	26,200
April 2001	16,200	10,900
May 2001	15,900	11,900
June 2001	13,400	10,950
Second Quarter 2001	45,500	33,750
July 2001	12,600	10,900
August 2001	15,000	10,800
September 2001	14,000	8,800
Third Quarter 2001	41,600	30,500
Nine months ended 2001	146,600	90,450

Escrow Fees. Escrow fees for the third quarter of 2002 were \$11.5 million, an increase of \$3.6 million, or 46.3% from the third quarter of 2001. The nine months ended September 30, 2002, escrow fees were \$30.7 million, an increase of \$7.4 million, or 31.5% from the comparable 2001 period. Escrow fees are primarily related to real estate transactions activity in the Company s direct operations. The increase in escrow fees is primarily the result of market conditions fueled by continued interest rate decreases and our recent broadened market in Phoenix, Arizona and our newest market in Clark County, Nevada.

Underwriting Premiums. Revenues from underwriting premiums for the third quarter of 2002 were \$5.8 million, an increase of \$3.4 million, or 146.2% from the third quarter of 2001. For the nine months ended September 30, 2002, underwriting premiums were \$13.8 million, an increase of \$8.1 million, or 141.5% from the comparable 2001 period. In 2002 the increase in underwriting premiums was indicative of the expansion of our underwriter both through direct operations in Clark County, Nevada and independent agency relationships.

Ancillary Service Fees. Ancillary service fees, such as document preparation services, appraisal services, inspections services, notary signing services and property management services relate partly to the level and

mix of business, as well as the performance of certain ancillary service businesses. Ancillary service fees for the third quarter of 2002 increased \$850,000, or 19.7% to \$5.2 million from \$4.3 million in the comparable 2001 period. Ancillary service fees totaled \$15.5 million for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2002, an increase of \$2.8 million, or 22.3% from ancillary service fees of \$12.7 million for the 2001 period. The increase in both periods ended September 30, 2002 is attributed to the Company strategy to strengthen its ancillary service business. The Company continues to leverage its core title and escrow businesses and its national presence to expand ancillary service businesses.

Gain On Sale/ Exchange of Equity Securities. Gain on sale/exchange of equity securities in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2002 arose from our receiving 322,318 shares of CKE Restaurant Inc. s (CKE) common stock for the remaining 656,453 shares of Santa Barbara Restaurant Group, Inc. (SBRG) common stock which we owned. SBRG and CKE concluded a merger in March 2002. The CKE stock price on the closing date of the transaction was \$9.45 per share. In accordance with APB Opinion 29, Accounting for Nonmonetary Transactions, even though the shares received were not sold, a realized gain of \$2.4 million was required to be recorded. The market price of the 322,318 shares of CKE common stock still owned by the Company was \$4.00 per share on November 4, 2002. The \$1.0 million gain in 2001 is the result of the sale of a large block of SBRG common stock at the then current market price.

Investment Revenue. Investment revenue is primarily a function of securities markets, interest rates and the amount of cash available for investment. Investment income in the third quarter of 2002 increased \$16,000 or 4.8% to \$351,000 from \$335,000 in the corresponding 2001 period. Investment revenue for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2002 totaled \$1.1 million compared with \$910,000 in the same 2001 period. The increase in investment and interest revenue earned in the third quarter ended September 30, 2002 is primarily the result of an increase in average invested assets.

Expenses

The following table presents the components of our expenses:

			nths Ended mber 30,	
	2002	2001	2002	2001
		(Una	udited)	
Personnel costs	\$25,846	\$18,505	\$ 70,338	\$53,238
Other operating expenses	13,926	8,608	35,259	24,247
Title plant rent and maintenance	2,221	1,733	6,457	5,748
•				
Total expenses	\$41,993	\$28,846	\$112,054	\$83,233

Our principal costs include personnel costs, other operating expenses and title plant rent and maintenance. Personnel costs include both base salaries and commission expense paid to employees and are the most significant operating expense incurred. These expenses fluctuate with the level of orders opened and closed and the mix of revenue.

Other operating expenses consist of facilities expenses, postage and courier services, computer services, professional services, advertising expense, general insurance, trade and note receivable allowances, depreciation expense and interest expense.

Title plant rent and maintenance costs consist of payments to access title plants and the costs of updating these plants. Title plant rent and maintenance costs include daily update expenses that are dependent on the volume of real estate transaction activity and a rental charge that is based on actual usage.

Personnel Costs. Personnel costs totaled \$25.8 million, \$18.5 million, \$70.3 million and \$53.2 million for the three-month and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Personnel costs, as a percentage of total revenue, exclusive of investment revenue and gain on sale/exchange of equity securities, decreased to 51.0% for the three-month period ended September 30, 2002 compared with 55.4% for the corresponding period in 2001. For the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2002 and 2001, personnel

expenses as a percentage of total revenue, exclusive of investment revenue and gain on sale/exchange of equity securities, were 52.0% and 55.6%, respectively. Our ability to handle increased resale and refinance activity without a significant increase in staffing resulted in the decreased personnel expense as a percentage of revenue. We continue to take significant measures to maintain appropriate personnel levels and costs relative to the volume and mix of business and revenues. We continue to monitor the prevailing market conditions and will respond as necessary.

Other Operating Expenses. Other operating expenses, as a percentage of total revenue, exclusive of investment income and gain on sale/exchange of equity securities, increased to 27.5% in the three-month period ended September 30, 2002 compared with 25.8% for the corresponding 2001 period. Other operating expenses, as a percentage of total revenue, exclusive of investment revenue and gain on sale/exchange of equity securities, increased to 26.1% for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2002 compared with 25.3% for the corresponding 2001 period. Our new market in Nevada and our expansion in Arizona caused the increase in other operating expenses for both the three-month and nine-month periods, however, certain fixed costs are incurred regardless of revenue levels, resulting in fluctuations year over year. In addition, expenses paid to affiliates declined due to the implementation of our own employee benefit programs, the costs of which are included in other operating expenses. We continuously review and evaluate operating expenses relative to existing and projected market conditions.

Plant Rent and Maintenance Expense. Title plant rent and maintenance expense totaled \$2.2 million and \$1.7 million for the three month periods ended September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and \$6.5 million and \$5.7 million for the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Title plant rent and maintenance expense decreased as a percentage of total revenue, exclusive of investment income and gain on sale/ exchange of equity securities, to 4.4% from 5.2% in the three-month periods ended September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and to 4.8% from 6.0% as a percentage of total revenue, exclusive of investment revenue and gain on sale/ exchange of equity securities for the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The decrease in both the three and nine-month periods in title plant expense is primarily a result of renegotiations within several counties in California and Arizona resulting in maintaining consistent cost reductions for the Company as well as our increase in independent agency underwriting premiums.

Income Taxes. Income taxes as a percentage of earnings, for the three-month and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2002, as a percentage of earnings, were 37.2% and 41.0%, income taxes for the three-month and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2001, were 42.0% and 41.4%, respectively. The fluctuations with income taxes as a percentage of earnings, is attributable to the effect of state income taxes on our wholly-owned underwritten title company and our ancillary service companies; the change in the amount and the characteristics of net revenue, operating income versus investment revenue; and the tax treatment of certain items.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash Flows. Our current cash requirements include debt service, debt relating to capital leases, personnel and other operating expenses, taxes and dividends on common stock. We believe that all anticipated cash requirements for current and long-term operations will be met from internally generated funds and through cash received from our subsidiaries. Our cash requirements include expenses relating to the development and expansion of National s agency business. We presently have in place much of the infrastructure (principally consisting of personnel) that will be used for this development.

Two significant sources of our funds are dividends and distributions from our subsidiaries. As a holding company, we receive cash from our subsidiaries in the form of dividends and as reimbursement for operating and other administrative expenses we incur. These reimbursements are executed within the guidelines of various management agreements between the Company and our subsidiaries. Our insurance underwriting subsidiary is restricted by state regulations in their ability to pay dividends and make distributions. Our underwritten title company and our ancillary companies collect premiums and fees and pay underwriting fees and operating expenses. These companies are restricted only to the extent of maintaining minimum levels of

working capital and net worth, but are not restricted by state regulations or banking authorities in their ability to pay dividends and make distributions. The restrictions to maintain minimum levels of working capital and net worth have not changed since December 31, 2001.

In March 2002, we completed the purchase of an ownership interest in a title plant located in Clark County, Nevada, for a purchase price of \$1.3 million, paid in cash. Also, in March, we acquired the right to access a title plant located in San Francisco, California for \$115,000, paid in cash.

In April 2002, we completed the purchase of an office building located in the County of Orange, California, for a purchase price of \$1.1 million, paid in cash. This building will house our growing American Documents division and a new escrow office.

In September 2002, we paid in full a \$1.9 million mortgage note payable and accrued interest in the amount \$3,000.

Capital Stock Transactions. On September 26, 2002, our Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program. Under the program, the Company is authorized to repurchase up to an aggregate of \$5 million of our common stock in the open market, in block purchases or in privately negotiated transactions, depending upon market conditions and other factors.

On June 27, 2002, our Board of Directors declared a five-for-four (5:4) stock split effective July 18, 2002. All data with respect to earnings per share, dividends per share and share information, including price per share where applicable, have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the effects of the stock split.

Critical Accounting Policies. There have been no material changes in our critical accounting policies described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Market Risk Disclosures

There have been no material changes in the market risk disclosure described in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Within 90 days prior to the date of this report, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the disclosure controls and procedures. Based on this evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective in timely alerting them to material information required to be included in our periodic SEC reports. It should be noted that the design of any system of controls is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions, regardless of how remote.

In addition, we reviewed our internal controls, and there have no significant changes in our internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect those controls subsequent to the date of their last evaluation.

PART II: OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of business, we are involved in various pending and threatened litigation matters related to our operations, some of which include claims for punitive or exemplary damages. We believe that no actions depart from customary litigation incidental to our business and that the resolution of all such litigation will not have a material adverse effect on the Company.

Item 2. Changes in Securities and Use of Proceeds

On June 27, 2002, our Board of Directors declared a five-for-four (5:4) stock split effective July 18, 2002. All data with respect to earnings per share, dividends per share and share information, including price per share where applicable, have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the effects of the stock split. Fractional shares were cashed out and payments were made to shareholders in lieu of fractional shares.

Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K.

- (a) Exhibits:
 - 99.1 Certification of Periodic Financial Reports pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350 signed by Michael C. Lowther, Chief Executive Officer.
 - 99.2 Certification of Periodic Financial Reports pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350 signed by Carl A. Strunk, Chief Financial Officer.
- (b) Reports on Form 8-K:

None.

E-16

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

AMERICAN NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.

(Registrant)

By: /s/ CARL A. STRUNK

Carl A. Strunk

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) and Director

Date: November 7, 2002

E-17

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Michael C. Lowther, certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of American National Financial, Inc.;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterly report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this quarterly report;
- 4. The registrant s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:
 - a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared;
 - b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing date of this quarterly report (the Evaluation Date); and
 - c) presented in this quarterly report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date:
- 5. The registrant s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant s auditors and the audit committee of registrant s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):
 - a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the registrant s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and
 - b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant s internal controls; and
- 6. The registrant s other certifying officer and I have indicated in this quarterly report whether or not there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

/s/ MICHAEL C. LOWTHER

Michael C. Lowther

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Date: November 7, 2002

CERTIFICATION

I, Carl A. Strunk, certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of American National Financial, Inc.;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterly report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this quarterly report;
- 4. The registrant s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:
 - a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared;
 - b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing date of this quarterly report (the Evaluation Date); and
 - c) presented in this quarterly report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date:
- 5. The registrant s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant s auditors and the audit committee of registrant s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):
 - a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the registrant s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and
 - b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant s internal controls; and
- 6. The registrant s other certifying officer and I have indicated in this quarterly report whether or not there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

/s/ CARL A. STRUNK

Carl A. Strunk

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) and Director

Date: November 7, 2002

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit	Description		
99.1	Certification of Periodic Financial Reports pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350 signed by Michael C. Lowther, Chief Executive Officer.		
99.2	Certification of Periodic Financial Reports pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350 signed by Carl A. Strunk, Chief Financial Officer.		
	E-20		

Appendix F

Chapter 13 of California General Corporation Law

Dissenter s Rights

- 1300. (a) If the approval of the outstanding shares (Section 152) of a corporation is required for a reorganization under subdivisions (a) and (b) or subdivision (e) or (f) of Section 1201, each shareholder of the corporation entitled to vote on the transaction and each shareholder of a subsidiary corporation in a short-form merger may, by complying with this chapter, require the corporation in which the shareholder holds shares to purchase for cash at their fair market value the shares owned by the shareholder which are dissenting shares as defined in subdivision (b). The fair market value shall be determined as of the day before the first announcement of the terms of the proposed reorganization or short-form merger, excluding any appreciation or depreciation in consequence of the proposed action, but adjusted for any stock split, reverse stock split, or share dividend which becomes effective thereafter.
 - (b) As used in this chapter, dissenting shares means shares which come within all of the following descriptions:
 - (1) Which were not immediately prior to the reorganization or short-form merger either (A) listed on any national securities exchange certified by the Commissioner of Corporations under subdivision (o) of Section 25100 or (B) listed on the National Market System of the NASDAQ Stock Market, and the notice of meeting of shareholders to act upon the reorganization summarizes this section and Sections 1301, 1302, 1303 and 1304; provided, however, that this provision does not apply to any shares with respect to which there exists any restriction on transfer imposed by the corporation or by any law or regulation; and provided, further, that this provision does not apply to any class of shares described in subparagraph (A) or (B) if demands for payment are filed with respect to 5 percent or more of the outstanding shares of that class.
 - (2) Which were outstanding on the date for the determination of shareholders entitled to vote on the reorganization and (A) were not voted in favor of the reorganization or, (B) if described in subparagraph (A) or (B) of paragraph (1) (without regard to the provisos in that paragraph), were voted against the reorganization, or which were held of record on the effective date of a short-form merger; provided, however, that subparagraph (A) rather than subparagraph (B) of this paragraph applies in any case where the approval required by Section 1201 is sought by written consent rather than at a meeting.
 - (3) Which the dissenting shareholder has demanded that the corporation purchase at their fair market value, in accordance with Section 1301.
 - (4) Which the dissenting shareholder has submitted for endorsement, in accordance with Section 1302.
 - (c) As used in this chapter, dissenting shareholder means the record holder of dissenting shares and includes a transferee of record.
- 1301. (a) If, in the case of a reorganization, any shareholders of a corporation have a right under Section 1300, subject to compliance with paragraphs (3) and (4) of subdivision (b) thereof, to require the corporation to purchase their shares for cash, such corporation shall mail to each such shareholder a notice of the approval of the reorganization by its outstanding shares (Section 152) within 10 days after the date of such approval, accompanied by a copy of Sections 1300, 1302, 1303, 1304 and this section, a statement of the price determined by the corporation to represent the fair market value of the dissenting shares, and a brief description of the procedure to be followed if the shareholder desires to exercise the shareholder s right under such sections. The

F-1

statement of price constitutes an offer by the corporation to purchase at the price stated any dissenting shares as defined in subdivision (b) of Section 1300, unless they lose their status as dissenting shares under Section 1309.

- (b) Any shareholder who has a right to require the corporation to purchase the shareholder s shares for cash under Section 1300, subject to compliance with paragraphs (3) and (4) of subdivision (b) thereof, and who desires the corporation to purchase such shares shall make written demand upon the corporation for the purchase of such shares and payment to the shareholder in cash of their fair market value. The demand is not effective for any purpose unless it is received by the corporation or any transfer agent thereof (1) in the case of shares described in clause (i) or (ii) of paragraph (1) of subdivision (b) of Section 1300 (without regard to the provisos in that paragraph), not later than the date of the shareholders meeting to vote upon the reorganization, or (2) in any other case within 30 days after the date on which the notice of the approval by the outstanding shares pursuant to subdivision (a) or the notice pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 1110 was mailed to the shareholder.
- (c) The demand shall state the number and class of the shares held of record by the shareholder which the shareholder demands that the corporation purchase and shall contain a statement of what such shareholder claims to be the fair market value of those shares as of the day before the announcement of the proposed reorganization or short-form merger. The statement of fair market value constitutes an offer by the shareholder to sell the shares at such price.
- 1302. Within 30 days after the date on which notice of the approval by the outstanding shares or the notice pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 1110 was mailed to the shareholder, the shareholder shall submit to the corporation at its principal office or at the office of any transfer agent thereof, (a) if the shares are certificated securities, the shareholder s certificates representing any shares which the shareholder demands that the corporation purchase, to be stamped or endorsed with a statement that the shares are dissenting shares or to be exchanged for certificates of appropriate denomination so stamped or endorsed or (b) if the shares are uncertificated securities, written notice of the number of shares which the shareholder demands that the corporation purchase. Upon subsequent transfers of the dissenting shares on the books of the corporation, the new certificates, initial transaction statement, and other written statements issued therefor shall bear a like statement, together with the name of the original dissenting holder of the shares.
- 1303. (a) If the corporation and the shareholder agree that the shares are dissenting shares and agree upon the price of the shares, the dissenting shareholder is entitled to the agreed price with interest thereon at the legal rate on judgments from the date of the agreement. Any agreements fixing the fair market value of any dissenting shares as between the corporation and the holders thereof shall be filed with the secretary of the corporation.
 - (b) Subject to the provisions of Section 1306, payment of the fair market value of dissenting shares shall be made within 30 days after the amount thereof has been agreed or within 30 days after any statutory or contractual conditions to the reorganization are satisfied, whichever is later, and in the case of certificated securities, subject to surrender of the certificates therefor, unless provided otherwise by agreement.
- 1304. (a) If the corporation denies that the shares are dissenting shares, or the corporation and the shareholder fail to agree upon the fair market value of the shares, then the shareholder demanding purchase of such shares as dissenting shares or any interested corporation, within six months after the date on which notice of the approval by the outstanding shares (Section 152) or notice pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 1110 was mailed to the shareholder, but not thereafter, may file a complaint in the superior court of the proper county praying the court to determine whether the shares are dissenting shares or the fair market value of the dissenting shares or both or may intervene in any action pending on such a complaint.

- (b) Two or more dissenting shareholders may join as plaintiffs or be joined as defendants in any such action and two or more such actions may be consolidated.
- (c) On the trial of the action, the court shall determine the issues. If the status of the shares as dissenting shares is in issue, the court shall first determine that issue. If the fair market value of the dissenting shares is in issue, the court shall determine, or shall appoint one or more impartial appraisers to determine, the fair market value of the shares.
- 1305. (a) If the court appoints an appraiser or appraisers, they shall proceed forthwith to determine the fair market value per share. Within the time fixed by the court, the appraisers, or a majority of them, shall make and file a report in the office of the clerk of the court. Thereupon, on the motion of any party, the report shall be submitted to the court and considered on such evidence as the court considers relevant. If the court finds the report reasonable, the court may confirm it.
 - (b) If a majority of the appraisers appointed fail to make and file a report within 10 days from the date of their appointment or within such further time as may be allowed by the court or the report is not confirmed by the court, the court shall determine the fair market value of the dissenting shares.
 - (c) Subject to the provisions of Section 1306, judgment shall be rendered against the corporation for payment of an amount equal to the fair market value of each dissenting share multiplied by the number of dissenting shares which any dissenting shareholder who is a party, or who has intervened, is entitled to require the corporation to purchase, with interest thereon at the legal rate from the date on which judgment was entered.
 - (d) Any such judgment shall be payable forthwith with respect to uncertificated securities and, with respect to certificated securities, only upon the endorsement and delivery to the corporation of the certificates for the shares described in the judgment. Any party may appeal from the judgment.
 - (e) The costs of the action, including reasonable compensation to the appraisers to be fixed by the court, shall be assessed or apportioned as the court considers equitable, but, if the appraisal exceeds the price offered by the corporation, the corporation shall pay the costs (including in the discretion of the court attorneys fees, fees of expert witnesses and interest at the legal rate on judgments from the date of compliance with Sections 1300, 1301 and 1302 if the value awarded by the court for the shares is more than 125 percent of the price offered by the corporation under subdivision (a) of Section 1301).
- 1306. To the extent that the provisions of Chapter 5 prevent the payment to any holders of dissenting shares of their fair market value, they shall become creditors of the corporation for the amount thereof together with interest at the legal rate on judgments until the date of payment, but subordinate to all other creditors in any liquidation proceeding, such debt to be payable when permissible under the provisions of Chapter 5.
- 1307. Cash dividends declared and paid by the corporation upon the dissenting shares after the date of approval of the reorganization by the outstanding shares (Section 152) and prior to payment for the shares by the corporation shall be credited against the total amount to be paid by the corporation therefor.
- 1308. Except as expressly limited in this chapter, holders of dissenting shares continue to have all the rights and privileges incident to their shares, until the fair market value of their shares is agreed upon or determined. A dissenting shareholder may not withdraw a demand for payment unless the corporation consents thereto.

- Dissenting shares lose their status as dissenting shares and the holders thereof cease to be dissenting shareholders and cease to be entitled to require the corporation to purchase their shares upon the happening of any of the following:
 - (a) The corporation abandons the reorganization. Upon abandonment of the reorganization, the corporation shall pay on demand to any dissenting shareholder who has initiated proceedings in good faith under this chapter all necessary expenses incurred in such proceedings and reasonable attorneys fees.
 - (b) The shares are transferred prior to their submission for endorsement in accordance with Section 1302 or are surrendered for conversion into shares of another class in accordance with the articles.
 - (c) The dissenting shareholder and the corporation do not agree upon the status of the shares as dissenting shares or upon the purchase price of the shares, and neither files a complaint or intervenes in a pending action as provided in Section 1304, within six months after the date on which notice of the approval by the outstanding shares or notice pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 1110 was mailed to the shareholder.
 - (d) The dissenting shareholder, with the consent of the corporation, withdraws the shareholder s demand for purchase of the dissenting shares.
- 1310. If litigation is instituted to test the sufficiency or regularity of the votes of the shareholders in authorizing a reorganization, any proceedings under Sections 1304 and 1305 shall be suspended until final determination of such litigation.
- 1311. This chapter, except Section 1312, does not apply to classes of shares whose terms and provisions specifically set forth the amount to be paid in respect to such shares in the event of a reorganization or merger.
- 1312. (a) No shareholder of a corporation who has a right under this chapter to demand payment of cash for the shares held by the shareholder shall have any right at law or in equity to attack the validity of the reorganization or short-form merger, or to have the reorganization or short-form merger set aside or rescinded, except in an action to test whether the number of shares required to authorize or approve the reorganization have been legally voted in favor thereof; but any holder of shares of a class whose terms and provisions specifically set forth the amount to be paid in respect to them in the event of a reorganization or short-form merger is entitled to payment in accordance with those terms and provisions or, if the principal terms of the reorganization are approved pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 1202, is entitled to payment in accordance with the terms and provisions of the approved reorganization.
 - (b) If one of the parties to a reorganization or short-form merger is directly or indirectly controlled by, or under common control with, another party to the reorganization or short-form merger, subdivision (a) shall not apply to any shareholder of such party who has not demanded payment of cash for such shareholder is share pursuant to this chapter; but if the shareholder institutes any action to attack the validity of the reorganization or short-form merger or to have the reorganization or short-form merger set aside or rescinded, the shareholder shall not thereafter have any right to demand payment of cash for the shareholder is shares pursuant to this chapter. The court in any action attacking the validity of the reorganization or short-form merger or to have the reorganization or short-form merger set aside or rescinded shall not restrain or enjoin the consummation of the transaction except upon 10 days prior notice to the corporation and upon a determination by the court that clearly no other remedy will adequately protect the complaining shareholder or the class of shareholders of which such shareholder is a member.
 - (c) If one of the parties to a reorganization or short-form merger is directly or indirectly controlled by, or under common control with, another party to the reorganization or short-form merger, in any action to attack the validity of the reorganization or short-form merger or to have the reorganization or short-form merger set aside or rescinded, (1) a party to a reorganization or

short-form merger which controls another party to the reorganization or short-form merger shall have the burden of proving that the transaction is just and reasonable as to the shareholders of the controlled party, and (2) a person who controls two or more parties to a reorganization shall have the burden of proving that the transaction is just and reasonable as to the shareholders of any party so controlled.

1313. A conversion pursuant to Chapter 11.5 (commencing with Section 1150) shall be deemed to constitute a reorganization for purposes of applying the provisions of this chapter, in accordance with and to the extent provided in Section 1159.

F-5

PART II

INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN THE PROSPECTUS

Item 20. Indemnification of Directors and Officers

FNF s Certificate of Incorporation limits, to the maximum extent permitted by Delaware law, the personal liability of directors for monetary damages for breach of their fiduciary duties as a director. FNF s Bylaws provide that it shall indemnify its officers and directors and may indemnify its employees and other agents to the fullest extent permitted by Delaware law.

Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law provides that a corporation may indemnify any person made a party to an action (other than an action by or in the right of the corporation) by reason of the fact that he or she was a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation or was serving at the request of the corporation against expenses (including attorneys fees), judgments, fines, and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him or her in connection with such action if he or she acted in good faith and in a manner he or she reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interests of the corporation and, with respect to any criminal action (other than an action by or in the right of the corporation), has no reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful.

FNF s directors and officers are covered by insurance policies indemnifying against certain liabilities, including certain liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933, which might be incurred by them in such capacities and against which they cannot be indemnified by FNF.

Item 21. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

The following exhibits are filed as part of this Registration Statement.

(a) *Exhibits*. The following exhibits are filed in connection with the Registration Statement of FNF Restaurants, Inc., on Form S-4, pursuant to the requirements of Item 601 of Regulation S-K:

Exhibit No.	Description
2.1	Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of January 9, 2003, by and among FNF, ANFI and ANFI Merger Sub, Inc. (included as Appendix A to the proxy statement/ prospectus filed herewith).
3.1	Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant.
3.2	Restated Bylaws of the Registrant.
5.1	Opinion and Consent of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation, regarding the validity of the shares being registered.*
8.1	Opinion and Consent of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation, regarding certain U.S. federal income tax consequences of the Merger.*
10.1	Voting Agreement, dated as of January 9, 2003, by and among Fidelity National Financial, Inc. and the holders party thereto and Waiver Agreement dated January 14, 2003 relating thereto (included as Appendix B to the proxy statement/ prospectus filed herewith).
21.1	Subsidiaries of the Registrant (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 21 to FNF s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001).
23.1	Consent of Houlihan, Lokey, Howard & Zukin Financial Advisors, Inc.
23.2	Consent of KPMG LLP with respect to FNF.
23.3	Consent of KPMG LLP with respect to ANFI.
23.4	Consent of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation (included in Exhibit 5.1).*
	II-1

Exhibit No.	Description
23.5	Consent of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation (included in Exhibit 8.1).*
24.1	Power of Attorney (included on signature page hereto).
99.1	Form of Proxy Card of ANFI.
99.2	Form of Proxy Card For Participants in Fidelity National Financial 401(k) Plan and American National Financial Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
99.3	Complaint titled Gary Schneider v. Fidelity National Financial, Inc., Michael C. Lowther, William P. Foley, II, Wayne D. Diaz, Carl A. Strunk, Barbara A. Ferguson, Bruce Elieff, Matthew K. Fong, Bruce L. Nelson and Does 1-25, inclusive, filed on January 17, 2003 in the Superior Court of the State of California, County of Orange (Case No. 03CC00017).
99.4	Complaint titled Caron Rossi v. Michael C. Lowther, William P. Foley, Wayne D. Diaz, Carl A. Strunk, Barbara A. Ferguson, Bruce Elieff, Mathhew K. Fong, Bruce L. Nelson, American National Financial, Inc. and Fidelity National Financial, Inc. (Case No. 03CC00021).
99.5	Complaint titled Peter Miller v. Michael C. Lowther, William P. Foley, II, Wayne D. Diaz, Carl A. Strunk, Barbara A. Ferguson, Bruce Elieff, Matthew K. Fong, Bruce L. Nelson, Fidelity National Financial, Inc. and Does 1-25 inclusive, filed on January 17, 2003 in the Superior Court of the State of California County of Orange (Case No. 03CC00018).

^{*} To be filed by amendment.

- (b) Financial Statement Schedules. Not Applicable
- (c) Reports, Opinions or Appraisals. Not Applicable

Item 22. Undertakings

- (a) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes:
 - (1) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this Registration Statement:
 - (i) To include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933;
 - (ii) To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the Registration Statement (or the most recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set forth in the Registration Statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume and price represent no more than a 20% change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the Calculation of Registration Fee table in the effective registration statement; and
 - (iii) To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the Registration Statement or any material change to such information in the Registration Statement.
- (2) That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.

- (3) To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain unsold at the termination of the offering.
- (b) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes that, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each filing of registrant s annual report pursuant to Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan s annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) that is incorporated by reference in the Registration Statement shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.
- (c) (1) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes as follows: that prior to any public reoffering of the securities registered hereunder through use of a prospectus which is a part of this Registration Statement, by any person or party who is deemed to be an underwriter within the meaning of Rule 145(c), the issuer undertakes that such reoffering prospectus will contain the information called for by the applicable registration form with respect to reofferings by persons who may be deemed underwriters, in addition to the information called for by the other Items of the applicable form.
 - (2) Registrant undertakes that every prospectus (i) that is filed pursuant to paragraph (c)(1) immediately preceding, or (ii) that purports to meet the requirements of Section 10(a)(3) of the Act and is used in connection with an offering of securities subject to Rule 415, will be filed as part of an amendment to the Registration Statement and will not be used until such amendment is effective, and that, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities and at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.
- (d) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of FNF pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, FNF has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by FNF of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of FNF in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, FNF will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.
- (e) (1) For purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, the information omitted from the form of prospectus filed as part of this registration statement in reliance upon Rule 430A and contained in a form of prospectus filed by the registrants pursuant to Rule 424(b)(1) or (4) or 497(h) under the Securities Act shall be deemed to be part of this registration statement as of the time it was declared effective.
 - (2) For the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each post-effective amendment that contains a form of prospectus shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.
- (f) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to respond to requests for information that is incorporated by reference into the prospectus pursuant to Items 4, 10(b), 11, or 13 of this Form, within one business day of receipt of such request, and to send the incorporated documents by first class mail or other equally prompt means. This includes information contained in documents filed

subsequent to the effective date of the Registration Statement through the date of responding to the request.

(g) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to supply by means of a post-effective amendment all information concerning a transaction, and the company being acquired involved therein, that was not the subject of and included in the Registration Statement when it became effective.

II-4

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act, the Registrant has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf of the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Santa Barbara, State of California, on February 7, 2003.

FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.

By: /s/ WILLIAM P. FOLEY, II

William P. Foley, II Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

We, the undersigned directors and officers of Fidelity National Financial, Inc., do hereby make, constitute and appoint William P. Foley, II and Alan L. Stinson, and each of them acting individually, our true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with power to act without any other and with full power of substitution, to do any and all acts and things in our name and behalf in our capacities as directors and officers, to sign any and all amendments (including post-effective amendments) to this Registration Statement, or any related Registration Statement that is to be effective upon filing pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and to file the same, with exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite or necessary to be done in and about the premises, as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that each of said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or his substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof. Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this Registration Statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this Registration Statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Signature	Title	,	Date
/s/ WILLIAM P. FOLEY, II		Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)	
William P. Foley, II			
/s/ ALAN L. STINSON		Executive Vice President and	February 7, 2003
Alan L. Stinson	(Principal Fina	Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)	
/s/ FRANK P. WILLEY	Directo	or	February 7, 2003
Frank P. Willey			
/s/ WILLIAM A. IMPARATO	Directo	or	February 7, 2003
William A. Imparato			
	S-1		

Signature	Title	Date
	Director	
Donald M. Koll	-	
/s/ DANIEL D. LANE	Director	February 7, 2003
Daniel D. (Ron) Lane	-	
/s/ WILLIAM LYON	Director	February 7, 2003
General William Lyon	-	
	Director	
Philip G. Heasley	-	
/s/ J. THOMAS TALBOT	Director	February 7, 2003
J. Thomas Talbot	-	
/s/ CARY H. THOMPSON	Director	February 7, 2003
Cary H. Thompson		
/s/ JOHN F. FARRELL, JR.	Director	February 7, 2003
John F. Farrell, Jr.		
/s/ JOHN BURNS	Director	February 7, 2003
John J. Burns, Jr.		
/s/ PATRICK F. STONE	Director	February 7, 2003
Patrick F. Stone		
/s/ TERRY CHRISTENSEN	Director	February 7, 2003
Terry Christensen		
	S-2	

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

The following exhibits are filed in connection with the Registration Statement of FNF Restaurants, Inc., on Form S-4, pursuant to the requirements of Item 601 of Regulation S-K:

Exhibit No.	Description
2.1	Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of January 9, 2003, by and among FNF, ANFI and ANFI Merger Sub, Inc. (included as Appendix A to the proxy statement/ prospectus filed herewith).
3.1	Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant.
3.2	Restated Bylaws of the Registrant.
5.1	Opinion and Consent of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation, regarding the validity of the shares being registered.*
8.1	Opinion and Consent of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation, regarding certain U.S. federal income tax consequences of the Merger.*
10.1	Voting Agreement, dated as of January 9, 2003, by and among Fidelity National Financial, Inc. and the holders party thereto and Waiver Agreement dated January 14, 2003 relating thereto (included as Appendix B to the proxy statement/ prospectus filed herewith).
21.1	Subsidiaries of the Registrant (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 21 to FNF s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001).
23.1	Consent of Houlihan, Lokey, Howard & Zukin Financial Advisors, Inc.
23.2	Consent of KPMG LLP with respect to FNF.
23.3	Consent of KPMG LLP with respect to ANFI.
23.4	Consent of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation (included in Exhibit 5.1).*
23.5	Consent of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation (included in Exhibit 8.1).*
24.1	Power of Attorney (included on signature page hereto).
99.1	Form of Proxy Card of ANFI.
99.2	Form of Proxy Card For Participants in Fidelity National Financial 401(k) Plan and American National Financial Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
99.3	Complaint titled Gary Schneider v. Fidelity National Financial, Inc., Michael C. Lowther, William P. Foley, II, Wayne D. Diaz, Carl A. Strunk, Barbara A. Ferguson, Bruce Elieff, Matthew K. Fong, Bruce L. Nelson and Does 1-25, inclusive, filed on January 17, 2003 in the Superior Court of the State of California, County of Orange (Case No. 03CC00017).
99.4	Complaint titled Caron Rossi v. Michael C. Lowther, William P. Foley, Wayne D. Diaz, Carl A. Strunk, Barbara A. Ferguson, Bruce Elieff, Matthew K. Fong, Bruce L. Nelson, American National Financial, Inc. and Fidelity National Financial, Inc. (Case No. 03CC00021).
99.5	Complaint titled Peter Miller v. Michael C. Lowther, William P. Foley, II, Wayne D. Diaz, Carl A. Strunk, Barbara A. Ferguson, Bruce Elieff, Matthew K. Fong, Bruce L. Nelson, Fidelity National Financial, Inc. and Does 1-25 inclusive, filed on January 17, 2003 in the Superior Court of the State of California County of Orange (Case No. 03CC00018).

^{*} To be filed by amendment.